
REVISED** (Page 3, Item H.2.)

The Facebook page for the Economic Development Commission
(https://www.facebook.com/forwardfranklin/) will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so

that the public will be able to watch and listen to the meeting.

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
TUESDAY, MAY 19, 2020 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. 1.
2.

Citizen Comment Period.
Mayoral Announcements - Franklin Emergency Operation Command Staff.

C. Approval ofMinutes - Regular Common Council Meeting ofMay 5, 2020.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational Business:
The following Mayoral appointments have been submitted for Council confirmation:

1. Donald Nierode, 9203 S. 44th St., Ald. Dist. 4 - Architectural Board (3 year term expiring
4/30/23).

2. David Cieszynski, 11411 W. Woods Rd., Ald. Dist. 6 - Architectural Board (3 year term
expiring 4/30/23).

3. Annemarie Vitas-Oklobdzija, 8631 W. Forest Hill Ave., Ald. Dist. 1 - Library Board
(3 year term expiring 6/30/23).

4. Joseph Musolf, 12127 W. Jefferson Terrace, Ald. Dist. 6-Parks Commission (3 year term
expiring 4/30/23).

5. Kevin Haley, 8945 S. 116th St., Aid. Dist. 6 - Plan Commission (3 year term expiring
4/30/23).

6. Adam Burckhardt, 7541 S. 72nd St., Ald. Dist. 5-Plan Commission (1 year term expiring
4/30/21).

7. Jonathan L. Webster, 4039 W. Cypress Ln., Ald. Dist. 3 - Board of Public Works (3 year
term expiring 4/30/23).

8. Kelamar Svoboda, 4928 W. Tumblecreek Dr., Ald. Dist. 3 -Board ofReview (3 year term
expiring 4/30/23).

9. Scott Meade, 9420 S. 41 st St., Ald. Dist. 4 - Technology Commission (3 year term expiring
4/30/23).

10. Rajiv Surana, 3754 W. Cypress Ln., Ald. Dist. 3 -Technology Commission (3 year term
expiring 4/30/23).

11. Steve Rekowski, 7565 S. Mission Dr., Ald. Dist. 2- Board ofZoning and Building Appeals
(3 year term expiring 4/30/23).
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12. James Cieslak, 7568 S. 74" St., Ald. Dist. 5 - Environmental Commission (3 year term
expiring 4/30/23).

The following Aldermanic appointments have been submitted for Council confirmation:

13. Alderman Nelson appointment of Doug Milinovich, 9572 W. Prairie Grass Way, Ald.
Dist. 6-Board ofReview (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).

14. Alderwoman Wilhelm appointment ofDallas Schurg, 7716 S. 51St., Ald. Dist. 3 -- Quarry
Monitoring Committee (3 year term expiring 5/31/23).

15. Alderwoman Wilhelm appointment of James Luckey, 4925 W. Rawson Ave., Ald. Dist. 3
- Board ofReview (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Confirmation of the Appointment ofHeath Robert Eddy as Planning Manager.
2. Presentation ofthe 2019 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the City of Franklin.
3. Purchase ofMobile Data Computers for the Police Department.
4. An Ordinance to Amend the Unified Development Ordinance (Zoning Map) to Rezone

Lot 84 of the Approved Final Plat for "Ryan Meadows" Subdivision from M-1 Limited
Industrial District to M-2 General Industrial District (Generally Located on the East Side
of Monarch Drive, South of Chicory Street, Area Commonly Known as Area G)
(Approximately 24.0541 Acres) (Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, Applicant).

5. A Resolution Conditionally Approving a2Lot Certified Survey Map, Being All of Lot 84
in Ryan Meadows, Located in the Southwest 1/4 and Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4
and the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of
the Northwest 1/4 all in Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, Applicant) (Generally on the
East Side ofMonarch Drive, South ofChicory Street, Area Commonly Known as Area G).

6. Standards, Findings and Decision of the City of Franklin Common Council Upon the
Application ofMills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, Applicant, for a Special Exception to Certain
Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance.

7. Concept Review for a Single-Family Residential Subdivision With 17 Lots (9720 S 112th
Street) (Kaerek Homes, Inc., Applicant).

8. Report on Expenditures Related to the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency Thru May 13,
2020.

9. Authorize Southeast Construction LLC to Construct Concrete Walk and Patio at Pleasant
ViewPark Pavilion (4901 W. Evergreen Street) for $12,600.

10. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2019-2398, an Ordinance Adopting the 2020 Annual
Budgets for the General Fund to Provide $9,000 of Carryforward Appropriations for
Building Maintenance at the Police Administration Building.

11. Authorization to Execute ProofPoint Business Package Services Agreement as Provided
Through Heartland Business Systems (HBS) for Spam Filtering and Malware Prevention
for All Incoming/Outgoing Email.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
May 19, 2020
Page 3

12. Update on Granting Selective Waiver of Interest and Penalties Associated with Late
Payment of the May 31, 2020 Tax Levy Installment to Those Franklin Property Tax Payers
Adversely Impacted by the Public Health Emergency and Setting a Final Due Date for the
2019 Tax Levy of October 1, 2020.

13. Authorize Service Agreement with Associated Financial Group, LLC in a 2020 Consulting
Relationship for Employee and Retiree Health Insurance Benefits Plan Design and
Procuring Insurance Services.

14. Potential property acquisitions for the development of West Elm Road widening and
public utilities public improvements for the Tax Incremental District No. 4 Franklin
Corporate Park: 10627 South 27th Street, Tax Key Nos. 951-9996-002 (potential
acquisition of approximately 5,969 square feet) and 951-9999-001 (potential acquisition
of approximately 5,234 square feet); 3001 West Elm Road, Tax Key No. 978-9996-006
(potential acquisition of approximately 15,977 square feet); and 10613 South 27th Street,
Tax Key No. 951-9996-009 (potential acquisition of approximately 24,008 square feet).
The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), for
market competition and bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to
potential property acquisitions for the development ofWest Elm Road widening and public
utilities public improvements for the Tax Incremental District No. 4 Franklin Corporate
Park: 10627 South 27th Street, Tax Key Nos. 951-9996-002 (potential acquisition of
approximately 5,969 square feet) and 951-9999-001 (potential acquisition of
approximately 5,234 square feet); 3001 West Elm Road, Tax Key No. 978-9996-006
(potential acquisition of approximately 15,977 square feet); and 10613 South 27th Street,
Tax Key No. 951-9996-009 (potential acquisition of approximately 24,008 square feet);
and the investing of public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto and to effect
such acquisitions, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Extraordinary Entertainment & Special Event for a Drive-In Theater, to
begin 5/22/2020. Monday through Friday at 6:00 p.m. and 8:45 p.m.;
Saturdays at 5:00 p.m., 7:45 p.m., and 10:30 p.m.; Sundays at 3:00 p.m.,
6:00 p.m., and 8:45 p.m.
Class B Combination Premise Description Change to Include Milwaukee
Milkmen North Parking Lot.
New 2019-2020 Drive-In Theater License, Milky Way Drive-In.
Renewal 2020-2021 Drive-In Theater License, Milky Way Drive-In.

(b)

(c)
(d)

Licenses and Permits.
1. Miscellaneous Licenses from License Committee Meeting of May 19, 2020.

**2. Applications from The Rock Sports Complex, 7005 S. Ballpark Dr., Thomas Johns,
Agent:
(a)

H.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.

I. Adjournment.
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Supportmng documentation and details of these agenda Items are available mn the Common Council Meeting Packet on the City of Franklin
website www franklmnw1 gov
[Note Upon reasonable notice, effortswll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mndrv1duals through appropriate atds and
services For addrt1onal mnformat1on, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500]

REMINDERS:

May21
May25
June 2
June 4
June 16
June 18

Plan Commission Meeting
Memorial Day
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting

7:00 p.m.
City Hall Closed
6:30p.m.
7:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
7:00pm.



ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B. l.

MAYORAL B.2.
ANNOUNCEMENT

MINUTES C.
APRIL 21, 2020

CLOSED SESSION G.23.
DIRECTOR OF ADMIN.
POSITION

DIRECTOR OF ADMIN. G.24.
APPOINTMENT

MAYORAL E. l.
APPOINTMENT
WEED COMMISSIONER

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

MAY 5, 2020
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on May 5,
2020 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were in attendance:
Alderman Mark Dandrea, Alderman Dan Mayer, Alderwoman
Kristen Wilhelm (by telephone), Alderwoman Shari Hanneman,
Alderman Mike Barber (by telephone), and Alderman John R.
Nelson. Also present were City Engineer Glen Morrow, City
Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:32 p.m. and closed at
6:34p.m.

An update was provided by Health Services Director Courtney Day
relating to the Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19).

Alderman Dandrea moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of April 21, 2020 as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to enter closed session pursuant to Wis.
Stat. §19.85(l)(c) and (f), to consider employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of a public employee
over which the Common Council has jurisdiction or exercises
responsibility and to consider financial, social or personal histories of
specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have
a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred
to in such histories and may re-enter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. Alderman
Nelson withdrew his motion.

Alderman Barber moved to confirm the appointment of Margaret
(Peggy) A. Steeno as Director of Administration for the City of
Franklin. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried. Unanimous vote.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to confirm the following Mayoral
Appointments: Gene Ninnemann as Weed Commissioner with a
weed cutting fee of $90 per hour for the calendar year 2020.
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MAYORAL E.2.
APPOINTMENT
PARKS COMMISSION

RES. 2020-7618 G.l.
BALLPARK COMMONS
CHALLENGE TOWER

LAW ENF. FACILITY G.2.
WATER HEATER
REPLACEMENT

LAWENF. FACILITY G.3.
RETAINING WALL

RES. 2020-7619 G.4.
TID 6 PROJECT
PLAN AND BOUNDARY
AMENDMENT

David Bartels, 8489 S. Golden Lake Court, Ald. Dist. 1, to Parks
Commission for 3-year term expiring 4/30/2023. Seconded by
Alderman Mayer. On roll call, all voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7618, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR THE
INSTALLATION OF A CHALLENGE TOWER/AERIAL ROPE
COURSE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7011 SOUTH
BALLPARK DRIVE, WITHIN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT NO. 37 (THE ROCK SPORTS COMPLEX/BALLPARK
COMMONS) (MICHAEL R. SCHMITZ, OWNER OF ROCK
SNOW PARK, LLC, APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderman
Dandrea. Alderman Mayer vacated his seat at 6:55 p.m. and returned
at 7:02 p.m. On the vote to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7618, all
voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to approve the purchase and installation
of two water heaters at the Franklin Law Enforcement Center at a cost
not to exceed $19,000. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to authorize Perry Brumm LLC to
construct a retaining wall behind the Law Enforcement Facility at
9455 West Loomis Road for $15,900. Seconded by Alderman
Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to deny a Resolution Approving an
Amendment to the Project Plan and Boundaries of Tax Incremental
District No. 6, City of Franklin, Wisconsin. Seconded by
Alderwoman Wilhelm. On roll call, Alderman Mayer, Alderwoman
Wilhelm, and Alderman Nelson voted Aye; Alderman Dandrea,
Alderwoman Hanneman, and Alderman Barber voted No. Motion
failed due to the lack of a majority vote.

Alderman Dandrea then moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7619,
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE
PROJECT PLAN AND BOUNDARIES OF TAX INCREMENTAL
DISTRICT NO. 6, CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN. Seconded
by Alderman Barber. On roll call, Alderman Barber, Alderwoman
Hanneman, Alderwoman Wilhelm, and Alderman Dandrea voted
Aye; Alderman Nelson and Alderman Mayer voted No. Motion
carried.



Common Council Meeting
May 5, 2020
Page 3

RES. 2020-7620 G.5.
PROJECT PLAN AND
ESTABLISH TID 8
BOUNDARIES

RES. 2020- G.6.
WAIVE INTEREST AND
PENALTIES FOR LATE
PROPERTY TAX
PAYMENTS

RES. 2020-7621 G.7.
SPECIAL USE
ARBY'S
7621 W. RAWSON AVE.

ORD. 2020-2431 G.8.
AMEND UDO
PAVILION DEV. CO.

RES. 2020-7622 G.9.
SPECIAL USE
PAVILION DEV. CO.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7620,
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PROJECT PLAN AND
ESTABLISHING BOUNDARIES FOR AND THE CREATION OF
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 8, CITY OF FRANKLIN,
WISCONSIN. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted
Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to table to May 19, 2020 Common Council
meeting for further discussion, a Resolution granting selective waiver
of interest and penalties associated with late payment of May 31,
2020 tax levy installment to those Franklin property tax payers
adversely impacted by the public health emergency, and setting a
final due date for the 2019 tax levy of October 1, 2020. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7621, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE TO OPERATE AN
ARBY'S RESTAURANT WITH A DRIVE THROUGH OUT OF
AN EXISTING 3,288 SQUARE FOOT RESTAURANT BUILDING
LOCATED AT 7621 WEST RAWSON AVENUE (STACY
CARISCH, CARISCH, INC., APPLICANT). Seconded by
Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2020-2431, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE TABLE 15-3.0603, STANDARD INDUSTRIAL
CLASSIFICATION TITLE NO. 7539 "AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR
SHOPS, NOT ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED", TO ALLOW FOR
SUCH USE AS A SPECIAL USE IN THE M-1 LIMITED
INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT. (MIKE GRACE, PAVILION
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, APPLICANT). Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7622, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE TO OPERATE AN
AUTOMOTIVE MINOR REPAIR (PRIMARY USE) AND TIRE
RETAIL SALES AND INSTALLATION (ACCESSORY USE)
BUSINESS UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 10800 WEST
SPEEDWAY DRIVE (PAVILION DEVELOPMENT COMPANY,
APPLICANT), as amended. Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All
voted Aye; motion carried.
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ORD. 2020-2432 G.10.
AMEND UDO
CROSS ACCESS FOR
PEDESTRIAN AND
VEHICULAR
CIRCULATION
TKN: 794-9999-009

RES. 2020-7623 G.11.
WAIVE AND RELEASE
FLOATING ACCESS
EASEMENT
9651 W. DREXEL AVE.

RES. 2020-7624 G.12.
LANDSCAPE
EASEMENT
9651 W. DREXEL AVE.

RES. 2020-7625 G.13.
APPROVE 2 LOT AND 2
OUTLOTCSM
3617 W. ELM RD.

Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2020-2432, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE $15-3.0307 CC CITY CIVIC CENTER DISTRICT,
SUBSECTION A.9., TO EXEMPT THE PROPERTY IN THE
NORTHEASTERN CORNER OF THE DISTRICT, SUCH
PROPERTY BEARING TAX KEY NO. 794-9999-009 FROM THE
REQUIREMENTS FOR CROSS ACCESS FOR BOTH
PEDESTRIAN AND VEHICULAR CIRCULATION WITH THE
ADJACENT PARCEL(S) TO THE EAST OF THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY. (STEVE PAGNOTTA, BRADFORD FRANKLIN
LLC, APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7623, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WAIVER AND RELEASE
IN PART OF THE FLOATING ACCESS EASEMENT UPON
LAND WITHIN THE SHOPPES AT WYNDHAM VILLAGE,
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY RESOLUTION NO. 2007-6339,
SOLELY FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9651 WEST
DREXEL AVENUE (STEVE PAGNOTTA, BRADFORD
FRANKLIN LLC, APPLICANT, FRANKLIN-WYNDHAM, LLC,
PROPERTY OWNER). Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7624, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD EASEMENT FOR AND
AS PART OF THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF A SITE PLAN
FOR A DAYCARE FACILITY (9651 WEST DREXEL AVENUE)
(STEVE PAGNOTTA, APPLICANT), subject to review and
approval by the Department of City Development and technical
corrections by the City Attorney. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7625,
A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 2 LOT AND
2 OUTLOT CSM, BEING LOT 3 OF CSM NO. , BEING A
PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE
SOUTHWEST 1/4 SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE
21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE
COUNTY, WISCONSIN (JHB PROPERTIES, LLC, OWNER)
(3617 WEST ELM ROAD). Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All
voted Aye; motion carried.
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APPROVAL TO ALLOW G.14.
CONSTRUCTION AND
TEMPORARY
OCCUPANCY
S. 76TH ST./W. FAITH
DR.

RES. 2020-7626 G.15.
VANDEWALLE
& ASSOC. PARKLAND
ACQUISITION SVCS.

Alderman Mayer moved to approve a request from Creative Homes to
change prior approval that would allow construction and temporary
occupancy for a model home from Lot 3 to Lot 7, after rough-grade
certification of stormwater pond, of Faithway Reserve (South 76th
Street and West Faith Drive) and change the approval to Alesci
Homes, and/or assignees, contingent upon successful cleanup of the
erosion sediment control on the south property. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7626,
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES, INC. TO PROVIDE SUPPORT FOR PARKLAND
ACQUISITION SERVICES FOR A NOT-TO-EXCEED FEE OF
$25,000. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

ORD. 2020-2433
AMEND BUDGETS

BS&A SOFTWARE
PURCHASE

ORD. 2020-2434
CARRYFORWARD
UNUSED
APPROPRIATIONS
FOR INSP. SVCS.

COVID-19
EXPENDITURES

G.16. Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2020-2433,
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2020 ANNUAL BUDGETS
FOR THE GENERAL FUND, CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND,
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND, STREET IMPROVEMENT
FUND, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND AND DEVELOPMENT
FUND TO REFLECT A LANDFILL SITING REVENUE
SHORTFALL OF $1,085,000 AND A $943,000 MMSD GRANT
RESOURCE TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND.
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. On roll call, all voted Aye; motion
carried.

G.17. Alderman Mayer moved to authorize purchase of BS&A's
Community Development and Citizen Call to Action Software
including execution of the Software Licenses and Services Agreement
and to authorize the Director of IT to execute the necessary
documents. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

G.18. Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2020-2434, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2019-2398, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2020 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR
THE GENERAL FUND TO CARRYFORWARD $78,300 OF
UNUSED 2019 PERSONNEL APPROPRIATIONS IN THE
INSPECTION SERVICES DEPARTMENT. Seconded by Alderman
Dandrea. On roll call, all voted Aye; motion carried.

G.19. Alderman Mayer moved to place on file the report on expenditures
related to the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency through April 29,
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DONATIONS G.20.
POLICE AND FIRE
DEPTS.

MARCH, 2020 G.21.
FINANCIAL REPORT

2020. Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to accept the following donations for the
Franklin Police Department for deposit into their account: Jedd
Miller in the amount of $5 and Lorraine Swiner in the amount of
$500; and the following donations for the Franklin Fire Department
for deposit into their respective accounts: Fire Prevention, Various
Donors in the amount of $995 and from Robert Healy for $125 and
for Fire Safety Schools; from Ascension in the amount of $400 and
from Dash Medical Gloves, Inc. for $250. Seconded by Alderwoman
Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to receive and place on file the March, 2020
Financial Report. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

LICENSES AND
PERMITS

I.

H.

Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7627, A
RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AN OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Dandrea moved to approve the following:
City vouchers with an ending date of May 1, 2020 in the amount of
$4,120,516.86; and Payroll dated April 24, 2020 in the amount of
$430,775.91 and payments of the various payroll deductions in the
amount of $434,041.08 plus City matching payments; and estimated
payroll dated May 8, 2020 in the amount of $405,000.00 and
payments of the various payroll deductions in the amount of
$238,000.00, plus City matching payments; and property tax
disbursements with an ending date of April 30, 2020 in the amount of
$1,445.71. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted
Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to approve the following license
recommendations from the License Committee meeting of May 5,
2020:

Hold for appearance the Operators' License applications of Destanie
M Evans, 726 Marquette Ave., #2, South Milwaukee and Halina
Grochowski, 1111 W Rosewood Trl., Oak Creek;

Grant 2019-2020 Operator licenses to Antonio D Marte Santiago, 200
Rainbow Ridge Dr., #912, Oak Creek; Sandra M Zimmer, 2620 S
108th St., Franksville;

RES. 2020-7627 G.22.
OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER
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ADJOURNMENT J.

Grant 2020-2021 Operator licenses to: Jayson L Doepke, 2126 W
Forest Home Ave., Milwaukee; Marcus Drewek, 2957 S 51st St.,
Milwaukee; Ethan R Fisher, 8221 Fairmont Ln., Greendale; Louis G
Guzzo, 4 W Clarendon Dr., Round Lake Beach, IL; Patti Hartung,
664 Shirley Dr., Franksville; Austin J Korth, 8481 S 5th Ave., Trlr
#4B, Oak Creek; Kimberlee Laughery, 1333 S 115th St., West Allis;
Marcia Lonzaga, 753 N 116th St., Wauwatosa; Laura A Martinez,
3742 E Obrien Rd., Oak Creek; Jane M Michel, 3720 7 Mile Rd.,
Caledonia; Ann C Moehlenpah, 3573 W Hilltop Ln.; Jeanne A
Rainwater, 7561 S 75th St.; Bobette A Sakiewicz, 9205 S Orchard
Park Circle, #2A, Oak Creek; Oscar A Sastre Colon, 3221 S 36th St.,
Milwaukee; Judy A Schneider, 8418 W Tuckaway Shores Dr.; Linda
M Steeves, 9265 S 92nd St.; Danielle E Zielinski, 9880 S Glenmoor
Ct., Oak Creek;

Grant 2020-2021 Amusement Device Operators license to: American
Entertainment, Owner, Kenneth J Grothman, W337 S5059 Hwy GG,
Dousman; Games R Us Inc, Steven Murphy, Owner, WI44 S6315
College Ct, Muskego; National Entertainment Network, James F
Sevalt, Owner, 325 Interlocken Pkwy B, Broomfield, CO.; Red's
Novelty Ltd, Agent Jay Jacomet, 1921 S 74th St., West Allis;

Grant 2020-2021 Day Care licenses pending satisfactory inspections
to: Academy of Preschool Learning, Inc, Manager Nadeen Balsis,
9501 W Drexel Ave.; Faith Academy Child Care Development
Center, Manager Jennifer Finch, 7700 W Faith Dr.; Ingenious, Inc,
Manager Banmeet K Dadwal, 7260 S 76th St.; Jubilee Christian Day
Care, Manager Tanya L Soich, 6855 S 50th St.; Mrs. Rikki's
Structured Daycare, Manager Rochelle S Boyce, N9027 W Miramar
Dr., East Troy; and

Grant 2020-2021 Mobile Home license pending satisfactory
inspections and payment of property taxes to Franklin Mobile, LLC,
Manager David Steinberger, 6361 S 27th St.

Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:44 p.m.
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.
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APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

Board and Commission Appointments

MEETING
DATE

05-19-20

ITEM NUMBER

The following Mayoral appointments have been submitted for Council confirmation:

1. Donald Nierode, 9203 S. 44th St., Aid. Dist. 4 -Architectural Board (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).
2. David Cieszynski, 11411 W. Woods Rd., Aid. Dist. 6- Architectural Board (3 year term expiring

4/30/23).
3. Annemarie Vitas-Oklobdzija, 8631 W. Forest Hill Ave., Aid. Dist. 1 - Library Board (3 year term

expiring 6/30/23).
4. Joseph Musolf, 12127 W. Jefferson Terrace, Aid. Dist. 6--Parks Commission (3 year term expiring

4/30/23).
5. Kevin Haley, 8945 S. 116th St., Aid. Dist. 6-Plan Commission (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).
6. Adam Burckhardt, 7541 S. 72nd St., Aid. Dist. 5 -Plan Commission (1 year term expiring 4/30/21).
7. Jonathan L. Webster, 4039 W. Cypress Ln., Aid. Dist. 3- Board of Public Works (3 year term

expiring 4/30/23).
8. Kelamar Svoboda, 4928 W. Tumblecreek Dr., Aid. Dist. 3- Board of Review (3 year term expiring

4/30/23).
9. Scott Meade, 9420 S. 41st St., Aid. Dist. 4 -Technology Commission (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).
10. Rajiv Surana, 3754 W. Cypress Ln., Aid. Dist. 3 Technology Commission (3 year term expiring

4/30/23).
11. Steve Rekowski, 7565 S. Mission Dr., Aid. Dist. 2- Board of Zoning and Building Appeals (3 year

term expiring 4/30/23).
12. James Cieslak, 7568 S. 74" St., Ald. Dist. 5 - Environmental Commission (3 year term expiring

4/30/23).

The following Aldermanic appointments have been submitted for Council confirmation:

13. Alderman Nelson appointment ofDoug Milinovich, 9572 W. Prairie Grass Way, Aid. Dist. 6-Board
of Review (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).

14. Alderwoman Wilhelm appointment of Dallas Schurg, 7716 S. 51 St., Ald. Dist. 3 - Quarry
Monitoring Committee (3 year term expiring 5/31/23).

15. Alderwoman Wilhelm appointment of James Luckey, 4925 W. Rawson Ave., Aid. Dist. 3 -Board of
Review (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to confirm the following Mayoral appointments:

1. Donald Nierode, 9203 S. 44th St., Aid. Dist. 4 -Architectural Board (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).
2. David Cieszynski, 11411 W. Woods Rd., Aid. Dist. 6- Architectural Board (3 year term expiring

4/30/23).



3. Annemarie Vitas-Oklobdzija, 8631 W. Forest Hill Ave., Aid. Dist. 1-- Library Board (3 year term
expiring 6/30/23).

4. Joseph Musolf, 12127 W. Jefferson Terrace, Ald. Dist. 6-Parks Commission (3 year term expiring
4/30/23).

5. Kevin Haley, 8945 S. 116th St., Aid. Dist. 6-Plan Commission (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).
6. Adam Burckhardt, 7541 S. 72nd St., Ald. Dist. 5- Plan Commission (1 year term expiring 4/30/21 ).
7. Jonathan L. Webster, 4039 W. Cypress Ln., Aid. Dist. 3- Board of Public Works (3 year term

expiring 4/30/23).
8. Kelamar Svoboda, 4928 W. Tumblecreek Dr., Ald. Dist. 3- Board of Review (3 year term expiring

4/30/23).
9. Scott Meade, 9420 S. 41st St., Aid. Dist. 4-Technology Commission (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).
10. Rajiv Surana, 3754 W. Cypress Ln., Aid. Dist. 3- Technology Commission (3 year term expiring

4/30/23).
11. Steve Rekowski, 7565 S. Mission Dr., Aid. Dist. 2- Board of Zoning and Building Appeals (3 year

term expiring 4/30/23).
12. James Cieslak, 7568 S. 74" St., Ald. Dist. 5 - Environmental Commission (3 year term expiring

4/30/23).

Motion to confirm the following Aldermanic appointments:

13. Alderman Nelson appointment ofDoug Milinovich, 9572 W. Prairie Grass Way, Aid. Dist. 6-Board
of Review (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).

14. Alderwoman Wilhelm appointment of Dallas Schurg, 7716 S. 51° St., Ald. Dist. 3- Quarry
Monitoring Committee (3 year term expiring 5/31/23).

15. Alderwoman Wilhelm appointment of James Luckey, 4925 W. Rawson Ave., Ald. Dist. 3- Board of
Review (3 year term expiring 4/30/23).

CITY CLERK



Shirley Roberts

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

volunteerfactsheet@franklinwi.info
Friday, October 11, 2019 11 :34 AM
Lusa Huening; Shirley Roberts; Sandi Wesolowski
Volunteer Fact Sheet

Name:
PhoneNumber:
EmailAddress:
YearsasResident: 40
Alderman: 5
ArchitecturalBoard: no
CivicCelebrations: no

CommunityDevelopmentAuthority: no
EconomicDevelopmentCommission: no
EnvironmentalCommission: yes
FinanceCommittee: no
FairCommission: no
BoardofHealth: no
FirePoliceCommission: no
ParksCommission: no
LibraryBoard: no
PlanCommission: no
PersonnelCommittee: no
BoardofReview: no
BoardofPublicWorks: no
QuarryMonitoringCommittee: no
TechnologyCommission: no
TourismCommission: no
BoardofZoning: no
WasteFacilitiesMonitoringCommittee: no

James E Cieslak

BoardWaterCommissioners:
CompanyNameJobl:
CompanyAddressJobl:
TelephoneJobl:
StartDateandPositionJobl:
EndDateandPositionJobl:
CompanyNameJob2:
AddressJob2:
TelephoneJob2:
StartDateandPositionJob2:

no
Ascension Healthcare

Jan 2008 dispatcher
Feb 2013 dispatcher
Midwest Airlines

July 2002 ramp agent

1



EndDateandPositionJob2:

CompanyNameJob3:

AddressJob3:

TelephoneJob3:

StartDateandPositionJob3:

EndDateandPositionJob3:

Signature:

Date:

Signature2:

Date2:

Address:

PriorityListing:

Whylnterested:

DescriptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

DescriptionofDutiesJob3:

AdditionalExperience:

ClientlP:

SessionlD:
See Current Results

Dec 2007 ramp team leader
US Bank
777 E Wisconsin Ave

about 1986 - credit card agent
Late 2007 - Loan Approval Mgr.
James Cieslak
10-11-2019
James Cieslak
10-11-2019
7568 S 74th St, Franklin, WI 53132

The qualityof life in our community depends on more than just a healthy
economy, it needs green spaces and places where nature still provides some
balance in our lives.

coordinated medical courier services for Columbia-St. Mary's network in
Milwaukee and Ozaukee Counties.
Loaded and unloaded aircraft, towed aircraft, assisted flight crews when
needed
Started in credit card servicing, promoted to supervisor, promoted to loan
office, promoted to bank manager, started and lead new loan processing area
I got hooked on nature as a child and have spent as much time in our parks and
forests as I can. As a member of the local Audubon Society I have been leading
walks at Wehr Nature Center for over 2 years, and am a member of the
leadership team. My priority is to try and preserve as much as we can of the
natural world for future generations. I am also the lead gardener at the Polish
Community Center here in Franklin, and believe in using native plantings rather
than grass that must be mowed. If I had to pick a goal for Franklin, it would be
to have it listed as a Bird City.
72.128.106.121
3iglsa4d3olr3hlztz5xccmw
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Shirley Roberts

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

volunteerfactsheet@franklmnw mnfo
Wednesday, May 13, 2020 8.23 AM
Lusa Huenmng; Shurley Roberts; Sandt Wesolowski
Volunteer Fact Sheet

Name:
PhoneNumber:
EmailAddress:
YearsasResident: 1
Alderman: 3
ArchitecturalBoard: no
CivicCelebrations: no
CommunityDevelopmentAuthority: no
EconomicDevelopmentCommission: no
EnvironmentalCommission: no
FinanceCommittee: no
FairCommission: no
BoardofHealth: no
FirePoliceCommission: no
ParksCommission: no
LibraryBoard: no
PlanCommission: no
PersonnelCommittee: no
BoardofReview: no
BoardofPublicWorks: no
QuarryMonitoringCommittee: yes
TechnologyCommission: no
TourismCommission: no
BoardofZoning: no
WasteFacilitiesMonitoringCommittee: no

Dallas Schurg

BoardWaterCommissioners:
CompanyNameJob1:
CompanyAddressJobl:
TelephoneJob1:
StartDateandPositionJobl:
EndDateandPositionJobi:
CompanyNameJob2:
AddressJob2:
TelephoneJob2:
StartDateandPositionJob2:

no
Paul Davis Restoration
W226 N918, Northmound Dr Suite 100, Waukesha, WI 53186
(414) 383-3131
12/2019

WEPS Contracting Services

N/a
N/a
11/2018

1



EndDateandPosition.Job2:

CompanyNameJob3:

AddressJob3:

TelephoneJob3:

StartDateandPositionJob3:

EndDateandPositionJob3:

Signature:

Date:

Signature2:

Date2:

Address:

Prioritylisting:

Whyl nterested:

DescriptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

DescriptionofDutiesJob3:

AdditionalExperience:

ClientlP:

Session ID:
See Current Results

11/2019
Nortec Humidity Inc (Condair)
N/a
N/a
02/2016
11/2018
Dallas Schurg
05/13/2020
Dallas Schurg

05/13/2020
7716 S 51st St

Area resident affected by quarry, asked to join by Kristin
Estimator and Project Manager Assistant
Project Manager
Application Manager

98.144.193.20
jhoij4blt0zlwnvpek2heqrc
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APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Confirmation ofthe Appointment of
Heath Robert Eddy as Planning Manager

MEETING
DATE

5/19/2020

ITEM NUMBER

Gt.

Mayor Olson requests confirmation of the appointment of Heath Robert Eddy as Planning
Manager for the City of Franklin. Heath's resume and Offer of Employment are attached.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to confirm the appointment of Heath Robert Eddy as Planning Manager for the City of
Franklin.

City Clerk's Office - SLW



HEATH ROBERT EDDY, AICP
215 Nicholson Street

Wilkes Barre PA 18702

hroberteddy@gma.com

INTRODUCTION
I am a profess1onal community/environmental planner and project manager with over2 years of experience m both the
publ1c and pr1vate sector I am an advocate for strategic thmkmng and planning, effective communications and excellent
customer service. I am► A Creative and Innovative Thinker.► A Sustainability Advocate and Practitioner.► An Experienced Project Manager and Department Leader► An Advocated for Clear and Concise Communication► An Effective and Experienced GrantWriter.

SUMMARY EXPERIENCE
My professional skills and experience mclude the followmg.► Environmental impact analysis ofdevelopment, at the site and watershed levels► Sustainability analysis and resilience plannmg for communities► Project management and supervision, including budget management► Department management, includmg supervis10n ofstaff, resources, customer service responses and enforcement

) Strategic and comprehensrve planning, both in municipal design and infrastructure, and program budget
management► Capital budgeting and fundmg for land protection and preservation► Zomng and Subdivision/Land Development entitlement review and recommendations► Grant writing and grant management ofawards► Project design and scope ofwork, includmg full busmess development and promotion► Easement and fee purchase agreements, mcluding closure of agreements
Srte design, Including impact analysis and preparation ofpreliminary plans des1gn

EXPERIENCE
11/2018-Pres Executive Director

Luzerne County Department ofPlanning and Zoning, Wilkes-Barre, PA
Department head. Co-executive director, Lackawanna-Luzerne Transportation Study MPO, preparation
ofTIP, Twelve-Year Plan, and Long Range Transportat10n Plan updates; Bi-County Comprehensive Plan
update and development; Hazard Mitigation Plan updates for Countywide and mumcipal mitigation
measures and plannmg; Countywide Stormwater Management Plan updating and administration.
Administration of zoning for 22 municipalities and subdivision/land development for 28 mumc1palities;
Act 247 advisory reviews for other mumcipalities; farmland preservation oversight and procedural
compliance, budgeting and financial compliance.

8/2013-11/2018 Senior Staff Coordinator (Planner Ill), Zoning Evaluation
Fairfax County Department ofPlanning and Zoning, Fairfax, VA
Development Review Environmental and Transportation Impact Analysis. Comprehensive
Plan Implementation. Pubhc Presentat10ns
Senior Assistant to the Zoning Administrator (Planner III), Zoning Administration
Zoning Admmistration. Zomng Amendments

1/2012-8/2013 Private Practice
Exton, PA
Freelance Writer Business Development. Srte Plan Review Zoning Entitlement Research.



HEATH ROBERT EDDY, AICP
536 Summercroft Drive

Exton PA 19341

hroberteddy@gmail.com

2007-12/2011 Director of Planning and Zoning
Honey Brook Township, Honey Brook, PA
Department Leader and Supervisor Budget Implementation and Management. Development Review.
Zoning Amendment and Administration Agncultural/Open Space Preservation. Environmental Impact
Analysis. Regional Greenways Planning Land Preservation Program Administration Purchase
Negotiations.

7/2006-12/2007 Senior Project Planner, Pennsylvania Municipal Services
CMX Engineering Inc., Kulpsville, PA, Exton, PA, and Manalapan, NJ
Business Development. Grant Wntmg. Development Review. Redevelopment Analysis and Plannmg

2/2001-7/2006 Senior Community Planner (Planner IV), Local Planning Assistance
Chester County Planning Commission, West Chester, PA
Project Management. Supervisory Duties. Municipal Planning Consultant. Comprehensive Planning
Zoning Amendments and Comprehensive Rewriting Land Use Plannmg. Environmental Impact
Analysis. Natural Resources Protection Agricultural Land Preservation Reg10nal Coordmation. Public
Presentations.

7/1998-2/2001 Senior Environmental Planner
City of Bloomington Planning Department, Bloomington, IN
Environmental Impact Analysis. Brownfields Assessment Implementat10n Grant Wntmg. Water Quality
Assessment Program Management.
Senior Zoning Planner
Development Review. Public Presentations

12/1995-7/1998 Planner
Monroe County Plan Commission, Bloomington, IN
Transportation Coordination (MPO) Comprehensive Planning. Environmental Impact Analysis Histor1c
Preservation. Development Review. Zoning Amendments. Public Presentations.

EDUCATION
December 1995
Master of Urban and Regional Planning
Ball State University, College ofArchitecture and Planning, Muncie, IN
Focus: Environmental Management and Urban Design, Transportation

June 1993
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology
Northwestern University, College ofArts and Sciences, Evanston, IL
Focus Soc1al Interaction

PUBLISHED WORKS
Arzona Study Suggests Dense, Med-Use Development Patterns Reduce VMT and Congeston published mn
Sustainable Commumtles eNews, www huduser.org, October 2012, Volume 1, Issue 5
Communty Benefits Agreement Gdes Development n Mlwaukee 's Park East Corrdor, published m The
EDGE e-newsletter, www.huduser.org, July 23, 2012► Workforce Housmg Task Force Final Report, Honey Brook Township, October 2008
Cramer Hill Neighborhood Revitalization Study, Camden New Jersey, November 2007

> Comprehensive Plan, West Nottingham Township, April 2006
> Zoning Ordinance, Highland Township, July 2005



HEATH ROBERT EDDY, AICP
215 Nicholson Street

Wilkes Barre PA 18702

hroberteddy@gmail.com

>> Comprehensive Plan, East Goshen Township, June 2005.
Regional Comprehensive Plan, Octorara Regional Planning Comm1ss1on, December 2004► Joint Comprehensive Plan, Penn Township and New London Township, May 2003► Zoning Ordinance, East Fallowfield Township, November 2002.► Monroe County Zoning Ordinance, December 1996.

> Monroe County Subdrvis1on Control Ordinance, March 1996.► Monroe County Comprehensive Land Use Plan, January 1996.► Staff Reports - development review assessments and recommendations forjursdictions mn three states

ADDITIONAL RECOGNITIONS, AWARDS, and ACTIVITIES
2009-2011 Docent/Volunteer, The Mill at Anselma, Chester Springs, PA (l747 preserved grist mill)
2008-2009 Chester County Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan, 2009 (Chester County Greenhouse Gas Reduction Task

Force)
Vice-Chairman, Southeast Section Council, Pennsylvania Chapter, Amencan Planning Association
APA Chapter Service Award to Indiana Chapter, American Planning Association, awarded at APA
National Conference, New York
Secretary, Board ofDirectors, Indiana Chapter, Amercan Planning Association
Land Use Plannmg Award, Southern Indiana Regional Development Council

2003-2005
2000

1998-2001
1997



May 8, 2020

Heath Robert Eddy
215 Nicholson Street
Wilkes Barre, PA 18702

Re: Offer of Employment - Planning Manager

Dear Heath:

The purpose of this letter 1s to outline for you the terms and conditions of this conditional offer
with the City of Franklin, Wisconsin for employment commencing June 22, 2020 The terms and
conditions of thus conditional offer of employment are as follows:

1. It is anticipated that you will competently perform the duties and responsibilities
outlined in the Job descnpt1on for the Planning Manager pos1t1on as well as any other
related duties and respons1b1ht1es, as directed by the Mayor or by action of the Common
Council. A copy of the job descnpt1on 1s appended to this offer letter.

2. The Planning Manager position 1s an FLSA-exempt position. Although City Hall
operations and staffwith which you will be working operate on a forty-hour work week
{8:30 AM- 5:00 PM, Monday - Friday), you are not beholden to the clock and have
flexibility of hours to the extent that it does not interfere with the completion of your
duties or successful management of the City's community planning functions.
Additionally, 1t 1s anticipated that you will attend City of Franklin Common Council
meetings and other meetings necessary for performing and fulfilling the duties of the
position, including but not limited to the Plan Commission, Quarry Monitoring
Committee, Board of Zoning and Buldmng Appeals, Environmental Commission and the
Parks Commission and other meetings as the demands of the pos1t1on may commonly
require.

3. You will commence employment with the City as Planning Manager, subject to the
terms and cond1t1ons outlined herein, effective June 22, 2020, unless a different date Is
mutually agreed upon.

4 Your appointment to the position of Planning Manager Is subject to a srx-month
introductory (probationary) penod dunng which time you may be discharged at wtll.
Thereafter, the pos1t1on remains "at will" as are most City FLSA-exempt pos1t1ons {and
may be terminated subJect to approval by¾ of the Common Council)



5 You may terminate your employment at any time without reason or cause provided you
give the Crty 30 days advanced written notice.

6 You will be compensated for your services as Planning Manager at an annual rate of
E1ghty-f1ve thousand dollars ($85,000.00), subject to state and federal withholding, and
other benefit-based contributions that may apply

7. You will be eligible for salary mncrease considerations beginning January 1, 2021, and
increases will be in accordance with Common Council policy, the City's pay plan
adjustments and performance evaluations Pay increases for non-represented
employees are typically awarded in July each year.

8. Fringe benefits including health insurance and contributions to the Wisconsin
Retirement System will be extended to you as they are provided to City employees, as
outlined in the City's Employee Handbook, and as described in materials appended to
this conditional offer

9. At the commencement of your employment, you will be given five (5) years of service
credit toward vacation allowance.

10 The City has budgeted, and will pay, for memberships to professional assoc1at1ons, as
well as professional development offerings and educational workshops, that are
pertinent to the execution of your duties as Planning Manager

11. The City will reimburse you for business-related mileage at the annually-set IRS rate
upon your subm1ss1on of a quarterly report. You may also avail yourself to a City pool
vehicle.

12 During the term of employment the employee shall not be required to become a
resident of the City of Franklin although residency would be preferred.

13 You are also eligible for the following benefits·
A. Moving expenses are available to you until December 31, 2020. The City will pay for

up to $5,000 in moving expenses upon surrender of receipts to the City's Director of
Administration

14. This offer is contingent upon the following:

a Successful conf1rmat1on of your appointment by the Common Council, which 1s
tentatively planned for May 19", and which can be done va ZOOM participation

b. Successful completion of a drug test as directed by the City of Franklin.
c Successful completion of a background check conducted on behalf of the City by

GovHR USA and by the Franklin Police Department.

2



Very truly yours,

Steve Olson, Mayor Dana Zahn, Human Resources Coordinator

I, Heath Eddy, acknowledge receipt of this cond1t1onal offer of employment ths day of
May 2020 and agree to the terms and condrtons outlined herein

Heath Robert Eddy

City of Franklin Benefits Summarized:

Sick days - will accrue eight hours per month beginning after sx months of employment

Vacation days (start earning vacation days immediately but can't use them for the frst s1x
months) Employees normally start earning 3 08 hours of vacation each pay period This means
by six months of employment the employee will have one week of vacation earned, two weeks
after one year The accrual goes to 4 62 hours per pay period {3 weeks per year) after five
years of employment and 6 16 hours per pay period {4 weeks per year) after 12 years of
employment With S years service credit awarded that means you would start at the 3 week
accrual rate for insurance and begin accruing at the 4 week level after 7 years of employment

Nine paid holidays+ four personal days per year Personal days are prorated for the first year
and can be used 30 days after hire

Pension - The Caty of Franklin participates mn the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) a state­
pooled pension fund for state and local government employees in the state Employees
currently pay a 6 75% mandatory contnbut1on toward their pension benefit and the City pays
an add1t1onal 6 75% These amounts are adJusted by the State each January and can go up or
down

Health & Dental insurance - Elgble for insurance benefits the 1" of the month after hire
Employee costs for the insurance options can be found on the attached comparison sheet

3



Please look at the hne "Monthly Contributions with HRA" to find your cost Management
employees receive erther single or famly dental coverage pad for by the Crty

Life Insurance - coverage Is equal to two times the employee's annual salary

4



APPROV~

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

Presentation of the 2019 Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report for the City of Franklin, WI

MEETING DATE
May 19, 2020

ITEM NUMBER
G, a.

Background
The Finance Dept has prepared the 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
City of Franklin, portions of which have been audited by Baker Tilly, LLP - CPA's. A copy of the 2019
CAFR is attached for your review.

The Finance Committee reviewed & accepted the report at the May 12, 2020 meeting and
recommends Common Council accept the report and place on file.

The Baker Tilly, LLP partner, Paul Franz, CPA will be available to present a required communication
to those charged with governance and management and the 2019 CAFR.

The Finance Director will be available for questions.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE ACTION

Motion accepting the 2019 ComprehensiveAnnual Financial Report and Auditor's Reporting and
Insights from the 2019 audit to the Common Council for placement on file.

FIN - PAR



Presentation of the 2019 Audit Results
For the City of Franklin

Paul Frantz, CPA, Partner
Baker Tilly, LLP

777 E Wisconsin Ave, 32nd Floor
Milwaukee, WI 53202

tel 414 777 5506, fax 414 777 5555
pauL_frantz@bakertilly_com Connect with us. bakertilly_com

akertitly



Audit objectives
Our responsibilities
As your independent auditor, our responsibilities include

Planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance.
Assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error
Included in that assessment is a consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting.
Performing appropriate procedures based upon our risk assessment.
Evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management.
Forming and expressing an opinion based on our audit about whether the financial statements prepared by
management. with the oversight of the City Council

Are free from material misstatement
Present fairly in all material respects, and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America

We are also required to communicate significant matters related to our audit that are relevant to the responsibilities
of the City Council, including

Qualitative aspects of the City's accounting practice including policies, accounting estimates and financial
statement disclosures
Significant difficulties encountered
Disagreements with management
Corrected and uncorrected misstatements
Internal control matters
Significant estimates
Other findings or issues arising from the audit

Management's responsibilities
Management Auditor

Prepare and fairly present the
financial statements

Establish and maintain effective
internal control over financial
reporting

Provide us with written
representations at the conclusion of
the audit

Our audit does not relieve management or those
charged with governance of their responsibilities

An audit includes consideration of internal control
over financial reporting, but not an expression of
an opinion on those controls

See Reporting and Insight from 2019 audit
communication letter for a copy of management's
representations

akertitly



Audit status
Significant changes to the audit plan
There were no significant changes made to either our planned audit strategy or to the significant risks and other
areas of emphasis identified during the performance of our risk assessment procedures.

Audit approach and results
Planned scope and timing
Audit focus

Based on our understanding of the City and environment in which you operate, we focused our audit on the
following key areas

Key transaction cycles
Areas with significant estimates
Implementation of new accounting standards
Areas of complexity including capital assets and debt

Our areas of audit focus were informed by, among other things, our assessment of materiality Materiality in the
context of our audit was determined based on specific qualitative and quantitative factors combined with
our expectations about the City's current year results.

Implementation of GASS No. 84 reporting fiduciary activities

During the current year, your government implemented GASB Statement No. 84- Fiduciary Activities. This
standard was issued to provide a clear foundation and reduce inconsistencies in reporting of fiduciary activities.
Implementation of this standard required the evaluation of various activities and application of specific criteria to
determine the fiduciary activities that required reporting. As a result of this standard you will note the following
changes in your financial statements from prior years

Reclassification of agency fund activities as custodial funds
Change in the activity that is reported through the tax collection custodial fund
Presentation of additions and deductions on the statement of changes in fiduciary net position for all fiduciary
funds, including custodial funds

Implementation of GASS No. 88 related to certain debt disclosures

During the current year, your government implemented GASB Statement No. 88- Certain Disclosures Related to
Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. This statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in
notes to financial statements and establishes additional financial statement note disclosure requirements related to
debt obligations of governments, including direct borrowings and direct placements.

G 6akertilly



Key areas of focus and significant findings
Significant risks of material misstatement

A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor's professional
judgment, requires special audit consideration. Within our audit, we focused on the following areas below.

Significant risk areas Testing approach Conclusion
Management override of
controls

Incorporate unpredictability into
audit procedures, emphasize
professional skepticism and
utilize audit team with industry
expertise

Procedures identified provided
sufficient evidence for our audit
opinion

Other key areas of emphasis

We also focused on other areas that did not meet the definition of a significant risk, but were determined to require
specific awareness and a unique audit response.

Other key areas of
emphasis
Cash and investments

Payroll

Revenues and receivables General disbursements

Pension and OPEB Long-term debt
liabilities

Capital assets including
infrastructure

Net position calculations Financial reporting and
required disclosures

Nonattest services
The following nonattest services were provided by Baker Tilly·

Compiled regulatory reports
Financial statement preparation assistance
Adjusting journal entries

The above nonattest service does not constitute an audit under generally accepted auditing standards, including
Government Auditing Standards.

G 6akertitly



Client service team

Paul Frantz, CPA
Partner

It is a pleasure to serve you. While we work
with the City's management and staff in
reviewing the financial data and assist in
preparing the financial statements, our
contract is with the Council and our
responsibility is to report to the Council.
Accordingly, if any Council or Committee
member has any questions or comments
concerning our audit, the financial
statements, any of the reports presented, or
anything else covered, please contact me.

Paul Frantz, CPA, Partner
Baker Tilly, LLP

777 E Wisconsin Ave, 32nd Floor
Milwaukee, WI 53202

tel 414 777 5506, fax414 777 5555
paul.frantz@bakertilly.com Connect with us bakertilly_com

akertitty



 

Reporting and insights 
from 2019 audit: 
 

City of Franklin, Wisconsin 
 

 
May 13, 2020 



Executive summary 
We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the City of Franklin (the “City”) for the year 
ended December 31, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated May 13, 2020. This letter presents 
communications required by our professional standards. 

Your audit should provide you with confidence in your financial statements. The audit was performed 
based on information obtained from meetings with management, data from your systems, knowledge of 
your City’s operating environment and our risk assessment procedures. We strive to provide you clear, 
concise communication throughout the audit process and of the final results of our audit. 

Additionally, we have included information on key risk areas the City should be aware of in your strategic 
planning. We are available to discuss these risks as they relate to your organization’s financial stability 
and future planning. 

If you have questions at any point, please connect with me: 

- Paul Frantz, CPA, Partner: paul.frantz@bakertily.com or +1 (414) 777 5506

Sincerely, 

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 

Paul Frantz, CPA, Partner 



 

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tilly is an independent member of Baker Tilly International. Baker Tilly International Limited is an English company. Baker Tilly 
International provides no professional services to clients. Each member firm is a separate and independent legal entity, and each describes itself as such. Baker Tilly Virchow 
Krause, LLP is not Baker Tilly International’s agent and does not have the authority to bind Baker Tilly International or act on Baker Tilly International’s behalf. None of Baker 
Tilly International, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP nor any of the other member firms of Baker Tilly International has any liability for each other’s acts or omissions. The name 
Baker Tilly and its associated logo is used under license from Baker Tilly International Limited. Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global 
network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are separate and independent legal entities.  
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THIS COMMUNICATION IS INTENDED SOLELY FOR THE INFORMATION AND USE OF THOSE CHARGED WITH 
GOVERNANCE, AND, IF APPROPRIATE, MANAGEMENT, AND IS NOT INTENDED TO BE AND SHOULD NOT BE USED BY 
ANYONE OTHER THAN THESE SPECIFIED PARTIES. 
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Audit objectives 
Our responsibilities 
As your independent auditor, our responsibilities include: 

- Planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. 

- Assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  Included in that assessment is a consideration of the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 

- Performing appropriate procedures based upon our risk assessment. 

- Evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management. 

- Forming and expressing an opinion based on our audit about whether the financial statements 
prepared by management, with the oversight of the City Council: 

- Are free from material misstatement 

- Present fairly, in all material respects, and in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America 

 

We are also required to communicate significant matters related to our audit that are relevant to the 
responsibilities of the City Council, including:  

- Qualitative aspects of the City’s accounting practice including policies, accounting estimates and 
financial statement disclosures 

- Significant difficulties encountered 

- Disagreements with management 

- Corrected and uncorrected misstatements 

- Internal control matters 

- Significant estimates 

- Other findings or issues arising from the audit 
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Management's responsibilities 

Management Auditor 

 

Prepare and fairly present the 
financial statements 

Our audit does not relieve management or those 
charged with governance of their responsibilities 

 

Establish and maintain effective 
internal control over financial 
reporting  

An audit includes consideration of internal control 
over financial reporting, but not an expression of 
an opinion on those controls 
 

 

Provide us with written 
representations at the conclusion of 
the audit 

See Appendix B for a copy of management's 
representations 



 

 

 

 

 

Audit status



 
 

City of Franklin | 2019 Audit   5/13/2020 
© 2019 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP  Page | 8 

     

Audit status 
Significant changes to the audit plan 
There were no significant changes made to either our planned audit strategy or to the significant risks and 
other areas of emphasis identified during the performance of our risk assessment procedures.  

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Audit approach and results 
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Audit approach and results 
Planned scope and timing 

Audit focus 

Based on our understanding of the City and environment in which you operate, we focused our audit on 
the following key areas: 

- Key transaction cycles 

- Areas with significant estimates 

- Implementation of new accounting standards 

- Areas of complexity including capital assets and debt 

 

Our areas of audit focus were informed by, among other things, our assessment of materiality. Materiality 
in the context of our audit was determined based on specific qualitative and quantitative factors combined 
with our expectations about the City’s current year results. 

 

Implementation of GASB No. 84 reporting fiduciary activities 

During the current year, your government implemented GASB Statement No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities. 
This standard was issued to provide a clear foundation and reduce inconsistencies in reporting of 
fiduciary activities. Implementation of this standard required the evaluation of various activities and 
application of specific criteria to determine the fiduciary activities that required reporting. As a result of this 
standard you will note the following changes in your financial statements from prior years: 
 
- Reclassification of agency fund activities as custodial funds 

- Change in the activity that is reported through the tax collection custodial fund 

- Presentation of additions and deductions on the statement of changes in fiduciary net position for all 
fiduciary funds, including custodial funds 

 

Implementation of GASB No. 88 related to certain debt disclosures 

During the current year, your government implemented GASB Statement No. 88 – Certain Disclosures 
Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. This statement defines debt for 
purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements and establishes additional financial statement note 
disclosure requirements related to debt obligations of governments, including direct borrowings and direct 
placements.   
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Key areas of focus and significant findings 

Significant risks of material misstatement 

A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s 
professional judgment, requires special audit consideration. Within our audit, we focused on the following 
areas below. 

Significant risk areas Testing approach Conclusion 

Management override of 
controls 

Incorporate unpredictability into 
audit procedures, emphasize 
professional skepticism and 
utilize audit team with industry 
expertise 

Procedures identified provided 
sufficient evidence for our audit 
opinion 

 

Other key areas of emphasis 

We also focused on other areas that did not meet the definition of a significant risk, but were determined 
to require specific awareness and a unique audit response.  

Other key areas of 
emphasis 

   

Cash and investments Revenues and receivables General disbursements  

Payroll Pension and OPEB 
liabilities 

Long-term debt  

Capital assets including 
infrastructure 

Net position calculations Financial reporting and 
required disclosures 
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Internal control matters 
We considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our audit 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements. We are not expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. 
 
A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
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Other comments and recommendations 
DEPARTMENTAL CONTROLS 

As part of our annual audit process, we focus our efforts on the primary accounting systems, internal 
controls, and procedures used by the City. This is in keeping with our goal to provide an audit opinion 
which states that the financial statements of the City are correct in all material respects. 

In some cases, the primary system of accounting procedures and controls of the City are supported by 
smaller systems which are decentralized, and reside within a department or location. In many cases, 
those systems are as simple as handling cash collections and remitting those collections to the City 
treasurer. (For example, this would be the case in a typical municipal swimming pool.) In other cases, the 
department may send invoices or statements of amounts due, and track collections of those amounts in a 
standalone accounts receivable system. (For example, this would be the case in a typical municipal 
court.) 

Generally, the more centralized a function is, the easier it is to design and implement accounting controls 
that provide some level of checks and balances. That is because you are able to divide certain tasks over 
the people available to achieve some segregation of duties. For those tasks that are decentralized, it is 
usually very difficult to provide for proper segregation of duties. Therefore, with one person being involved 
in most or all aspects of a transaction, you lose the ability to rely on the controls to achieve the 
safeguarding of assets and reliability of financial records. 

As auditors, we are required to communicate with you on a variety of topics. Since there is now more 
emphasis on internal controls and management’s responsibilities, we believe it is appropriate to make 
sure that you are informed about the lack of segregation of duties that may occur at departments or 
locations that handle cash or do miscellaneous billing. Examples in your City that fit this situation may 
include the Municipal Court, Library, Police Department and Recreation.  

As you might expect, similar situations are common in most governments. 

As auditors, we are required to focus on the financial statements at a highly summarized level and our 
audit procedures support our opinion on those financial statements. Departments or locations that handle 
relatively smaller amounts of money are not the primary focus of our audit. Yet, because of the lack of 
segregation of duties, the opportunity for loss is higher there than in centralized functions that have more 
controls. 

Because management is responsible for designing and implementing controls and procedures to detect 
and prevent fraud, we believe that is important for us to communicate this information to you. We have no 
knowledge of any fraud that has occurred or is suspected to have occurred within the departments 
mentioned above. However, your role as the governing body is to assess your risk areas and determine 
that the appropriate level of controls and procedures are in place.  

As always, the costs of controls and staffing must be weighed against the perceived benefits of 
safeguarding your assets. 

Without adding staff or splitting up the duties, your own day-to-day contact and knowledge of the 
operation are also important mitigating factors. 
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Required communications 

Qualitative aspect of accounting practices 

- Accounting policies: Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting 
policies. In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we have advised management about 
the appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies 
used by the City are described in Note I to the financial statements, the City changed accounting 
policies related to financial reporting for fiduciary activities by adopting Governmental Accounting 
Standards Council (GASB) No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities and financial reporting for debt disclosures by 
adopting Governmental Accounting Standards Council (GASB) No. 88 – Certain Disclosures Related 
to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements, respectively, effective January 1, 2019. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which accounting policies are 
controversial or for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus or diversity in 
practice. 
 

- Accounting estimates: Accounting estimates, including fair value estimates, are an integral part of the 
financial statements prepared by management and are based on management's knowledge and 
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements, the 
degree of subjectivity involved in their development and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The following estimates are of most 
significance to the  financial statements: 

 

Estimate Management’s process to 
determine  

Baker Tilly’s conclusions 
regarding reasonableness 

Net pension liability 
and related deferrals 

Evaluation of information 
provided by the Wisconsin 
Retirement System  

Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 

Net pension liability 
and related deferrals 

Key assumptions set by 
management with the assistance 
of a third party actuary 

Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 

Compensated 
absences 

Evaluation of hours earned and 
accumulated in accordance with 
employment policies and average 
wage per hour rates 

Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 

Allowance for 
doubtful accounts 

Evaluation of historical revenues 
and loss levels with the analysis 
on collectability of individual 
amounts 

Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 

Depreciation Evaluate estimated useful life of 
the asset and original acquisition 
value 

Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 

Net/Total OPEB 
liability and related 
deferrals 

Key assumptions set by 
management with the assistance 
of a third party actuary 

Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 
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- There have been no significant changes made by management to either the processes used to 
develop the particularly sensitive accounting estimates, or to the significant assumptions used to 
develop the estimates, noted above.  

 

- Financial statement disclosures: The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, 
consistent and clear. 

 

Significant unusual transactions 

There have been no significant transactions that are outside the normal course of business for the City or 
that otherwise appear to be unusual due to their timing, size or nature.  

Other information in documents containing audited financial statements 

Official Statements (or Other Equivalent Document) 

The City’s audited financial statements are “general purpose” financial statements. General purpose 
financial statements consist of the basic financial statements that can be used by a broad group of people 
for a broad range of activities. Once we have issued our audit report, we have no further obligation to 
update our report for events occurring subsequent to the date of our report. The City can use the audited 
financial statements in other client prepare documents, such as official statements related to the issuance 
of debt, without our acknowledgement. Unless we have been engaged to perform services in connection 
with any subsequent transaction requiring the inclusion of our audit report, as well as to issue an auditor’s 
acknowledgment letter, we have neither read the document nor performed subsequent event procedures 
in order to determine whether or not our report remains appropriate. 

Difficulties encountered during the audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management and completing our audit.  

Disagreements with management 

Professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not resolved to 
our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be significant to 
the financial statements or the auditors' report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit.  

Management’s consultations with other accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 
accountants regarding auditing or accounting matters. 

Written communications between management and Baker Tilly 

The Appendix includes copies of other material written communications, including a copy of the 
management representation letter. 
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Uncorrected misstatements and corrected misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are clearly trivial, and to communicate accumulated misstatements to management. The table 
below summarizes the uncorrected misstatements, other than those that are clearly trivial, that we 
presented to management and the material corrected misstatements that, in our judgment, may not have 
been detected except through our auditing procedures. In our judgment, neither the uncorrected 
misstatements nor the misstatements that management corrected, either individually or in the aggregate, 
indicate matters that could have had a significant effect on the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Management has determined that the effects of the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. The uncorrected misstatements 
or the matters underlying them could potentially cause future period financial statements to be materially 
misstated, even though, in our judgment, such uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial 
statements under audit.  The table below shows the financial statement effects of the uncorrected 
misstatements: 

Total Change in
Total Expenses/ Net Position/

Revenues Expenditures Fund Balances

Water Utility -$               (42,059)$         42,059$              

Sanitary Sewer Utility (77,143)      -                      (77,143)              

Financial Statements Effect -
Debit (Credit) to Financial Statement Total

 

Compliance with laws and regulations 

We did not identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations during our audit.  

Fraud 

We did not identify any known or suspected fraud during our audit.  

Going concern 

Pursuant to professional standards, we are required to communicate to you, when applicable, certain 
matters relating to our evaluation of the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time but no less than 12 months from the date the  financial statements are issued or available 
to be issued, including the effects on the  financial statements and the adequacy of the related 
disclosures, and the effects on the auditor's report. No such matters or conditions have come to our 
attention during our engagement.  

Independence 

We are not aware of any relationships between Baker Tilly and the City that, in our professional judgment, 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. 

Related parties 

We did not have any significant findings or issues arise during the audit in connection with the City’s 
related parties.  
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Other audit findings or issues 

We encountered no other audit findings or issues that require communication at this time. 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements 
the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information which accompanies the financial 
statements but is not RSI. With respect to the supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine 
that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled 
the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

We were not engaged to report on the other information, which accompanies the financial statements but 
are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Nonattest services 
The following nonattest services were provided by Baker Tilly: 

- Compiled regulatory reports 

- Financial statement preparation assistance 

- Adjusting journal entries 

 

The above nonattest service does not constitute an audit under generally accepted auditing standards, 
including Government Auditing Standards. 



 

 

 

 

 

Accounting changes  
relevant to the City 



 
 

 

     

Accounting changes relevant to the City  
Future accounting standards updates 

GASB 
Statement 
Number 

Description Potentially 
Impacts 
you 

Effective Date 

87 Leases  
 

12/31/20 

89 Accounting for Interest Incurred before the 
End of a Construction Period 

 
12/31/20 

91 Conduit Debt  
 

12/31/21 

 

Further information on upcoming GASB pronouncements 

 

Preparing for the new lease standard 

GASB’s new single model for lease accounting will be effective for the upcoming year. This standard will 
require governments to identify and evaluate contracts that convey control of the right to use another 
entity’s nonfinancial asset as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-
like transaction. Contracts meeting the criteria for control, term and other items within the standard will 
result in recognizing a right to use asset and lease liability or a receivable and deferred inflow of 
resources. 

 
We recommend the City review this standard and start planning now as to how this will affect your 
financial reporting. We recommend that you begin by completing an inventory of all contracts that might 
meet the definition of a lease. The contract listing should include key terms of the contracts such as: 
 
- Description of contract 

- Underlying asset  

- Contract term  

- Options for extensions and terminations  

- Service components, if any 

- Dollar amount of lease  

 
In addition, the City should begin to establish a lease policy to address the treatment of common lease 
types, including a dollar threshold for each lease. We are available to discuss this further and help you 
develop an action plan.  
 
Learn more about GASB 87. 
 
 

 

 



 
 

 

Planning for the new conduit debt reporting 

Conduit debt includes arrangements where there are three separate parties involved including a third 
party that is obligated for payment, a debt holder or lender and an issuing party which is often a 
government.  This standard provides additional criteria for identifying and classifying conduit debt with the 
intent of providing consistency in how the debt is recorded and reported in governmental financial 
statements.  The City should identify any existing debt arrangements involving third party obligors and 
evaluate how those arrangements will be reported under the new standard in order to determine the 
potential impact of this standard on future financial reporting. 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Trending challenges  
for organizations  
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Trending challenges for organizations 
Management and the governing body of the City must keep the future in mind as they evaluate strategies 
to achieve future growth. Keeping a balance between risk and sustainability is key, and organizations 
need to think beyond their immediate needs to their long term goals. Economic uncertainty, coupled with 
key risk areas and fast paced technology change, make strategic planning complex. Begin the discussion 
with your management team to find your path to your future. 

 

2020 strategic risks for Councils 

Evaluating and mitigating the greatest risks 

Public sector organizations face a multitude of internal and external 
risks in an evolving landscape. Risks can stem from strategy, 
finances, legal situations, operations, regulatory compliance, 
information technology, economic environment, and/or fraud, waste 
and abuse. 

By employing a risk assessment, areas with the greatest needs and 
highest risks are evaluated. Then a risk mitigation plan can be 
developed and deployed. 

Learn about risk assessment types, tools and strategies. 

   

Cybersecurity 

Operational reporting on cybersecurity effectiveness 

As Councils engage management in cybersecurity risk 
discussions, directors should expect management to produce 
reports on the effectiveness of the organization's 
cybersecurity-risk management program. Management can 
(and should) collect and analyze relevant performance 
measures and metrics to determine if cybersecurity 
safeguards and controls are operating as intended, and 
whether any corrective action should be taken to strengthen 
management's risk-mitigation approaches. While not an 
exhaustive list, some key processes on which management 
should report include these: 

- Incident management 

- Risk management and governance 

- Independent assurance on the cybersecurity program 

 
Learn more about cybersecurity risk management.  

WATCH: On demand webinar about Council 
governance over cybersecurity. 
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Data privacy 

Elevating privacy risks to the forefront of Council agendas 

Organizations around the world are still scrambling to comply with the General Data Protection 
Regulation in the European Union, which went into effect in May 2018. While the data privacy regulatory 
environment changes rapidly, organizations can take proactive steps to ensure that they stay informed of 
the existing regulations and of those developing on the 
near horizon. 

Adequate oversight remains a key part of staying on top 
of data privacy developments. Some regulations specify 
oversight requirements, and can depend on the type of 
the organization, the quantity and type of personal data 
processed, and the locations where operations take place. 
In many cases, a data protection officer (DPO) must lead 
the effort. Since the DPO is responsible for overseeing 
practices related to data protection strategy and 
implementation, having one in place early on will help 
ensure that the privacy program is comprehensive and 
consistent. 

Learn more about data privacy risk management. 

 

    

The talent problem 

Establishing a lifeline for your shifting workforce 

Employee recruitment and retention challenges are an all too common struggle 
in the public sector: 

- Aging workers with institutional knowledge retire 

- High demand for small qualified candidate pool 

- Perception of geographic disadvantages  

- Wage/benefit competition with private sector 

- Lean operations exclude investments in  recruitment, on-the-job training and 
technology 

- Unclear growth and career advancement tracks 

 
Sustainable organizations must have a robust workforce development and 
succession planning program. Learn how to get started and incorporate a workforce/succession planning 
program with existing operational practices. 

  

WATCH: On demand webinar about a risk-based 
approach to oversight, compliance and 
management of privacy 

 

Download 
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Innovation 

Anticipating disruptive innovation and digital transformation 

To stay competitive and relevant in a rapidly changing business landscape, organizations in every 
industry must navigate an increasingly disruptive, technology-enabled environment. Companies that do 
not address and embrace new and emerging technologies will be less competitive or may even face 
obsolescence. 

Given these challenges to companies, what does innovation mean in this era of digital transformation? 
Innovation now involves finding the right problems worth solving; building new offerings, business models, 
and experiences; and generating value at scale for customers. 

Furthermore, the rapid digital transformation of advanced technologies such as blockchain, robotic 
process automation (RPA), and artificial intelligence (AI) now portend similar effects in industries from 
financial services and healthcare to communications and manufacturing. Councils must become 

knowledgeable about these digital disruption 
trends in order to be able to conduct 
meaningful oversight that management can 
use successfully as the company embraces 
new technologies. 

 

Learn more about innovation opportunities. 

 

 

   

Public sector executive recruitment 

Navigating recruitments and smart hiring 

Competing for top executive talent in the public sector 
space takes industry knowledge, familiarity with the 
general applicant pool and experience navigating 
recruitments. Search consultants draw upon their 
understanding of organizational management and human 
resources to serve as a successful agent for government 
entities. In turn, public sector organizations can adopt a 
foundational understanding about search firms to ensure 
optimal collaboration on hiring opportunities. 

Read the three part series to learn what your entity should 
be thinking about and how Baker Tilly can help.  

 

  

Anticipating Disruptive Innovation 
and Digital Transformation 
To stay competitive and relevant in a rapidly changing business 
landscape, organizations in every industry must navigate an 
increasingly disruptive, technology-enabled environment.  

Read the blog post. 

Three part series on public 
sector executive recruitment 
Navigate the changing workforce landscape with 
confidence, read the executive recruitment series. 
1. Five myths about search firms 

2. Recruiting for difficult positions  

3. Hiring recommendations for government 
entities 
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Customer experience 

Finding your edge in a competitive market 

All industries are facing an increasingly competitive marketplace due to more connected consumers, 
partners and vendors. Where a company may have had a geographic advantage in the past, they now 
need to be able to compete against non-local organizations.  

One of the key factors in maintaining your place in the market is ensuring a positive, fast and easy 
customer experience. Whether this means enhancing your customer support services through online chat 
bots or developing a mobile app to allow your customer access to their information around the clock, your 
organization needs to take your customer experience strategy seriously. Management and Council 
members should understand where your experience is currently and what strategies you are evaluating to 
enhance it. 

Learn more about why your customer experience is so important. 

  

Operational and organizational sustainability 

Aligning resources with strategy 

 
As new demands confront the public sector 
industry, it’s easy to solve an immediate problem 
instead of pausing to take a holistic view. Rippling 
inefficiencies, increasing financial pressures, taxing 
staff resources and plummeting constituent 
satisfaction can pile atop organizations already 
facing pressure to improve efficiency, effectiveness, 
relevance and financial viability. 

An operational review follows a systematic, 
strategic approach to understanding an entity’s 
operations and performance. Opportunities to 
improve processes, bolster internal controls and 
reduce costs are uncovered in order to realign 
organizational resources and strategic objectives. 

Learn invaluable methods for executing an operational review while maintaining day-to-day operations.  
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COVID-19 Risks and ongoing response  

Staying nimble and resilient during unprecedented disruption 

COVID-19 has challenged all organizations and the effects continue to unfold. It is critical that 
management and governing bodies stay nimble to respond to direct and indirect effects of this disruption 
on operations, cash flow, and people. Some best practices to consider include: 

 Establish mechanisms to track COVID-19 related expenses, lost 
revenues or delayed revenues 

 Monitor cash flow projections and seek short term liquidity help 
 Create a policy and forms for compliance with Family First 

Coronavirus Response Act 
 Compare anticipated results to bond covenants and track any 

continuing disclosure items 
 Re-evaluate TIF projections with revised development scenarios 
 Develop a strategy for leading your community through the crisis 

Learn about public sector Coronavirus resources, including the latest news on business continuity and 
cash flow management, Federal stimulus and tax developments, and more.  
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City of Franklin | 2019 Audit   5/13/2020 
© 2019 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP  Page | 28 

Client service team 

 

Paul Frantz, CPA 

Partner 
 
777 East Wisconsin Ave 
32nd Floor 
Milwaukee, WI 53202 
United States 
 
T +1 (414) 777 5506 
paul.frantz@bakertilly.com 
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a a
Franklin

WISCONSIN

May 13, 2020

City ofFranklin

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
777 E Wisconsin Ave
32nd Floor
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

Dear Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the City of Franklin as of
December 31, 2019 and for the year then ended for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Franklin and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We confirm that we are responsible for the fair
presentation of the previously mentioned financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We are also responsible for adopting sound accounting policies,
establishing and maintaining internal control over financial reporting, and preventing and detecting fraud.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that,
in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on
the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that
is monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter.

2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and include all properly classified funds and other
financial information of the primary government required by accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America to be included in the financial reporting entity.

3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud.
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5) Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates if any are reasonable

6) Related party relationships and transactions including revenues expenditures/expenses, loans,
transfers leasing arrangements and guarantees and amounts receivable from or payable to related
parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordancewith the requirements of
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

7) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which accounting pnnc1ples
generally accepted in the United States of America require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted
or disclosed No other events including instances of noncompliance have occurred subsequent to the
balance sheet date and through the date of this letter that would require adJustment to or disclosure in the
aforementioned financial statements.

8) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements

9) We believe the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements summarized in the required
communication section of the Reporting and insights from 2019 audit document are immaterial both
individually and in the aggregate to the basic financial statements as a whole In addition you have
recommended adjusting journal entries and we are in agreement with those adjustments

1 0) We are not aware of any known actual possible pending or threatened litigation claims or
assessments or unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation claims or assessments

11) Guarantees whether written or oral under which the City is contingently liable if any have been properly
recorded or disclosed

Information Provided

12) We have provided you with

a) Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements such as financial records and related data documentation
and other matters.

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audrt.

c) Unrestricted access to persons Within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence

d) Mmutes of the meetings of Common Council or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared

13) We have not completed an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud

14) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves

a) Management,



b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control or

c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements

15) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity recerved mn
communications from employees former employees regulators or others

16)We have no knowledge of known instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions
of laws regulations contracts or grant agreements or abuse whose effects should be considered when
preparing financial statements

17) There are no known related parties or related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware

Other

18) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or
deficiencies in financial reporting practices

19) We have identified to you any previous financial audits attestation engagements and other studies
related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented

20) The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets
liabilities, or equity

21} We are responsible for compliance with federal state and local laws regulations and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements applicable to us including tax or debt limits debt contracts and IRS
arbitrage regulations and we have identified and disclosed to you all federal state and local laws
regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct and mater1al
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit
objectives including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds

22) There are no

a) Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances federal state and local laws or regulations
(including those pertaining to adopting approving and amending budgets) provisions of contracts and
grant agreements, tax or debt limits and any related debt covenants whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency or
for reporting on noncompliance except those already disclosed in the financial statement, if any

b) Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

c) Nonspendable restricted committed or assigned fund balances that were not properly authorized
and approved

d) Rates being charged to customers other than the rates as authorized by the applicable authoritative
body

e) Violations of restrictions placed on revenues as a result of bond resolution covenants such as revenue
distribution or debt service funding



23) In regards to the nonattest services performed by you listed below we have 1) accepted all management
responsibility 2) designated an individual with suitable skill knowledge or experience to oversee the
services 3) evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed and 4) accepted responsibility
for the results of the services

a) Adjusting journal entries

b) Compiled regulatory reports

c) Financial statement preparation assistance

None of these nonattest services constitute an audit under generally accepted auditing standards
including Government Auditing Standards

24) The City of Franklin has satisfactory title to all owned assets and there are no liens or encumbrances an
such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral

25) The City of Franklin has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statement in the event of noncompliance

26) The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, and
properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations if any Component units have
been properly presented as either blended or discrete

27) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities

28) All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No 34 and No 37 for presentation as
major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are
particularly important to financial statement users

29) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets restricted and unrestricted) and
components of fund balance (nonspendable restricted committed assigned and unassigned) are
properly classified and 1f applicable approved

30) The City of Franklin has no derivative financial instruments such as contracts that could be assigned to
someone else or net settled interest rate swaps collars or caps

31) Provisions for uncollectible receivables if any have been properly identified and recorded

32) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of
activities and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis

33) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues and general
revenues

34) Interfund internal and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported

35) Deposits and investments are properly classified valued and disclosed (including risk disclosures
collateralization agreements valuation methods and key inputs as applicable)

36) Provision when matenal has been made to reduce excess or obsolete inventories to their estimated net
realizable value



37) Capital assets including infrastructure and intangible assets are properly capitalized reported and if
applicable depreciated/amortized Any known impairments have been recorded and disclosed

38) Tax-exempt bonds issued have retained their tax-exempt status

39) We have appropriately disclosed the City of Franklin s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or
unrestricted resources when an expense 1s incurred for purposes forwhich both restricted and
unrestricted net position are available and have determined that net position were properly recognized
under the policy We have also disclosed our policy regarding which resources {that is restricted
committed assigned or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more than
one resource classification is available

40) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI) The RSI is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and presentation
have not changed from those used mn the prior period We have disclosed to you any significant
assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI

41) With respect to the supplementary information (SI)

a) We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the SI in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and we believe the SI including its form and
content, rs fairly presented in accordancewith accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America The methods of measurement and presentation of the SI have not changed from
those used in the prior period and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary information

b) If the SI is not presented with the audited financial statements wewill make the audited financial
statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the
date we issue the supplementary information and the auditor's report thereon

42) We assume responsibility for and agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the post­
employment health care benefits and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in
determining the amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying accounting
records We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists with respect to the values or
amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that
have had impact on the independence or objectivity of the specialists

43) We assume responsibility for and agreewth the information provided by theWisconsin Retirement
System as audited by the Legislative Audit Bureau relating to the net pension asset/liability and related
deferred outflows and deferred inflows and have adequately considered the reasonableness of the
amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying accounting records We also
assume responsibility for the census data that has been reported to the plan

44) We have evaluated and considered all potential tax abatements and believe all material tax abatements
have been properly reported and disclosed



45) We are responsible for the estimation methods and assumptions used in measuring assets and liabilities
reported or disclosed at fair value, including information obtained from brokers, pricing services or third
parties. Our valuation methodologies have been consistently applied from period to period. The fair
value measurements reported or disclosed represent our best estimate of fair value as the measurement
date in accordance with the requirements of GASS 72 - Fair Value Measurement. In addition our
disclosures related to fair value measurements are consistent with the objectives outlined in GASS 72.
We have evaluated the fair value information provided to us by brokers, pricing services or other parties
that has been used in the financial statements and believe this information to be reliable and consistent
with the requirements.

46) We assume responsibility for, and agree with, the information provided by Principal Financial Group
related to the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan net pension liability and related
deferred outflows and deferred inflows and have adequately considered the reasonableness of the
amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying accounting records. We also
assume responsibility for the census data that has been reported to the plan.

47) We have implemented GASS Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, and believe that all fiduciary funds
have been identified and properly classified in the financial statements in compliance with the Standard.

48) We have implemented GASS Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements, and believe that all required disclosures and accounting
considerations have been identified and properly classified in the financial statements in compliance with
the Standard.

Sincerely,

City of Franklin

Signed~7s TJ5.ML,GG

]Q[el,
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As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the 
audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisting 
the auditor and you with more information relevant to the audit. 

As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have learned to begin the planning process for next 
year’s audit. It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our 
next audit: 

a. We address the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, through 
our detailed audit procedures. 

b. We will obtain an understanding of the five components of internal control sufficient to assess the 
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud, and to 
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient 
understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design of controls 
relevant to an audit of financial statements and to determine whether they have been 
implemented. We will use such knowledge to:  

- Identify types of potential misstatements. 

- Consider factors that affect the risks of material misstatement. 

- Design tests of controls, when applicable, and substantive procedures. 

c. We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or 
compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant programs 

d. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate, 
are important for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles while other matters are not important. In performing the audit, we are 
concerned with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the 
financial statements. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance that material misstatements, whether caused by errors or fraud, are detected. 

Our audit will be performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here: 

a. We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise. 

b. We understand that the governing Council has the responsibility to oversee the strategic direction 
of your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity. Management has the 
responsibility for achieving the objectives of the entity. 

c. We need to know your views about your organization’s objectives and strategies, and the related 
business risks that may result in material misstatements. 

d. Which matters do you consider warrant particular attention during the audit, and are there any 
areas where you request additional procedures to be undertaken? 

e. Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies? 

f. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements? 
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Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness, and actions of the governing 
body concerning: 

a. The entity’s internal control and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with 
governance oversee the effectiveness of internal control? 

b. The detection or the possibility of fraud? 

We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws, 
accounting standards, governance practices, or other related matters, or in response to previous 
communications with us. 

With regard to the timing of our audit, here is some general information. If necessary, we may do 
preliminary financial audit work during the months of October-December, and sometimes early January. 
Our final financial fieldwork is scheduled during February and/or March to best coincide with your 
readiness and report deadlines. After fieldwork, we wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office 
and may issue drafts of our report for your review. Final copies of our report and other communications 
are issued after approval by your staff. This is typically 6-12 weeks after final fieldwork, but may vary 
depending on a number of factors.  

Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit, 
it does not change the auditor’s sole responsibility to determine the overall audit strategy and the audit 
plan, including the nature, timing, and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence. 

We realize that you may have questions on what this all means, or wish to provide other feedback. We 
welcome the opportunity to hear from you. 
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WISCONSIN

May 13, 2020

City ofFranklin

Citizens of Franklin, Honorable Mayor and Common Council members:

Introduction
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2019, is hereby submitted. State law requires that all local
governments with a population over 25,000 publish a complete set of financial statements that
are presented in conformity with general accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants.
This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of
Franklin (City). Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness
and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis
for making these representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive
internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss,
theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should
not outweigh the benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements
will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial
activities have been included in this report.
The City's financial statements have been audited by Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, a firm
of certified public accountants experienced in auditing governmental entities. The goal of the
independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, are free of material misstatement. The
independent audit involves examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP concluded, based upon the audit, that there
was reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City's financial statements
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.
The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the financial section
of this report.
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the report
of the independent auditors.

Page 1
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Mayor Common Council and Citizens
May 13 2020

City Profile
The City of Franklin, incorporated in 1956, is located in the southwestern corner of Milwaukee
County The City is 34 5 square miles In srze and has a population of 35,996 Over the last
ten years the Crty has experienced no real growth in population The city is a residentral
community (75 7%) with a commercial and industrial component (24 3%) Median Family
Income of $102,206 Is 144% of the national average Approximately one third of the acreage
In the City is undeveloped, which demands attention to growth issues It is considered to be
one of the more desirable communities In the Milwaukee metropolitan area in which to live
and work The City provides a typical range of municipal services for a suburban community
including police fire protection emergency medical/paramedic, maintenance of streets and
other infrastructure, library, public health services, recreational actvrtes, building inspection,
zoning control, refuse collection, recycling collection, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water
services, both construction and maintenance The City is authorized to levy property tax on
real and personal property located within its boundaries to support the services provided
The City operates under the mayor/council form of government Policy makmg and legislative
authority are vested In a governing council consisting of a mayor and six council members
The governing council Is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting
the budget, appointing committees and hiring management The City's Mayor is responsible
for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the governing council, for overseeing the day­
to-day operations of the government and for appointing the heads of the various departments
The Council is elected, by district on a non-partisan basis The Mayor and Council members
serve staggered three-year terms The City is organized into departments, headed by ten
officials appointed by the Mayor or Director of Administration and confirmed by the Common
Council Numerous boards, commissions and committees allow for citizen involvement In
government by providing a forum for policy input to the Council and guidance to the
departments Library service is provided through a separate Library Board that functions like
a department of the City and engages the Library Director Water service is provided through
a separate Water Utility that functions hke a department of the City The Water Utility also has
a Board of Water Commissioners which oversees water utility operations In 2015, the State
mandated that a portion of hotel taxes be dedicated to tourism, as such the City formed a
separate Tourism Commission which utilizes those tax resources to promote the City in the
area These areas therefore have been included as an integral part of the City's financial
statements The City also is financially accountable for a legally separate Community
Development Authority (Authority) The Authority's activities are reported within the City's
financial statements Additional information on the Authority can be found m Note 1 in the
notes to the financial statements
The budgetary process serves as the foundation of the City's financial planning and control
system The objective of the budgetary process is to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Common Council The
preparation of a forecast for the existing programs for the following year is prepared during
July and August Departmental requests for personnel changes and new capital outlay
expenditures are made by the middle of August The Mayor then reviews the forecast
including recommended personnel and capital expenditures and determines by mid- August
the personnel and capital expenditures that will be included in the initial departmental
requested budgets The departments take this information and submit their requested budgets
by the end of August The budgets are reviewed and the Mayor submits his recommended
budget by the middle of September The Council reviews the recommended budget and
agrees on a proposed budget by mid-October The Council is required to hold a pubhc hearing
on the proposed budget in early November, and then adopts a final budget in mid-November

Page 2



Mayor Common Council and Citizens
May 13, 2020

The adopted budget is prepared by fund, function (e g Public Safety), and department (e g
Police) Transfers of appropriations between funds, functions or department require the
approval of the governing council Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report
for each governmental fund wth an adopted budget The General Fund comparison Is
presented in Exh1b1t F as part of the basic financial statements for the governmental funds
and in Schedules 3&4 of the supplementary information For governmental funds with
adopted budgets other than the General Fund, this comparison Is presented in the
supplementary mnformation section of thus report

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when
considered from the broader perspective of the environment that the City operates

Economic Condition and Outlook
The economic actrvty in Franklin mn both the residential and the non-residential sectors was
stable New construction was elevated in 2019 compared to 2018 as evidenced by increased
construction perrmt revenues The Ballpark Commons project, estimated to add $160 million
mn new development saw several commercial projects initiated mn 2019 In addition, the
Statesman Estates multi-family development completed late in 2019, and the Bear
Development project in the southwest portion of the City got infrastructure work underway
Several new residential subdivisions are in various stages of completion
Estimated actual property values have grown at an average annual rate of 1 94% since 2009
The new growth was $64 6 million in 2019, $34 6 million In 2018, and $19 million in 2017
2020 growth is expected to be larger still reflecting the impact of Commercial activity New
growth has averaged less than 1% the last ten years, with eight of the ten years having less
than 1% growth Limits on levy increases are currently restricted to new growth, and this has
meaningfully dampened tax levy increases, the largest resource to the City
The City has been successful in restricting tax levy increases by ut1hzing tools the State
provided retarding growth of employee benefits and the shifting tax levy from debt service to
operating needs This is a non-sustainable process
A landfill in southwestern portion of the City received an expansion of its license (from the
State) The landfill has provided approximately $1 million in revenues to the Crty in prior years
With the license expansion, the per ton rate increased 25% and volumes substantially
increased in 2019 to over $2 6 million What this resource funds should be carefully
considered, because while it will likely last more than a few years, it will eventually terminate
Ut1hzing this resource for recurring expenditures will challenge future budget decisions when
It eventually ends

Residential Growth
Over the past ten years, residential valuation has stagnated, rising just 2 0% The recession
of 2008 had longer impacts than many expected The development activity increased in recent
years, with several large developments in various stages of approval Longer range, the City
has the most developable land in the County and anticipates new subdvsions as economic
activity increases again

Commercial and Industrial Growth
Over the past ten years, commercial and industrial valuation has increased at an average
annual rate of O 9 %
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May 13 2020

In 2005, two TIF Districts (#3 & #4) were established on the eastern side of the City The two
d1stncts have equalized value tax increments of $64 8 and $52 6 million, respectively In 2016
a new District #5 was established to aid the Ballpark Commons project A Developers
agreement was signed mn Q1 2018 The project estimates $125 million in new taxable
development In Q4 2018, TID6 was formed to aid the development of an industrial park on
the southwest portion of the City That project could generate $54 million 1n new development
In Q4 of 2019, TID7 was created to aid the mult1-fam1ly portion of Ballpark Commons
development with estimated development of $47 million

Expansion of the commercial and industrial tax base Is a goal of the City with respect to the
overall tax rate New TID creation in the last few years will aid in that Commercial
development Currently 75 7% of the City's property value is residential compared to 73 9%
ten years ago Future tax relief will need to come from industrial and commercial tax base
expansion

Organizational and Service Growth
2019 was a year where overall revenue of $42 1 m1lhon grew 9 5% compared to last year
Increased landfill siting fee revenues caused by the expanded license and Impact fee
collections on new multi-family development drove the revenue increase
2019 and 2018 were revaluation years The last reassessment was done in 2010 Performing
revaluations on a regular basis is in hne with the Common Councrl policy to schedule more
frequent revaluations to keep property values in line with current market values The State
determined that the local assessment, after reassessment, was 97% of fair value The
estimated actual value of City properties was approximately $4 2 billion The City has nsen to
the third largest city in Milwaukee County based upon equalized value
The challenge for the operating departments in 2019 was to continue to maintain service
levels at a time of flat revenues and growth of 1 60% in new property base The largest
revenue resource - tax levy - Is limited to this growth factor Controlling expenditures at thus
level has challenged manyWisconsin cities, Franklin is not exempt
One threat the City faces 1s the challenge by larger retail property owners of assessed values
Several large Commercial property owners have successfully challenged their assessed
values, this places shifts the property tax burden to the residential tax base

Internal Controls
The City's internal control structure is subject to ongoing evaluation by management The
City is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure
compliance wth laws, regulations and good financial policies The results of the City's audit
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 provided no instances of material weaknesses
In the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws or regulations

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, if the level of grant expenditures
exceeds an established level, currently $750,000, a single audit of grants 1s required The City
was not required to have a single audit of grants in 2019 and the last single audit was 1n 201 O

Financial Planning
Long range financial planning Is mn place, especially for the capital funds and debt service
funds, to ensure that resources are in place to meet committed projects, that there is adequate
funding for projects prior to their approval, and that adequate funding 1s m place for debt that
has been or will be Incurred, wth an appropriate plan for repayment
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Mayor Common Council and Citizens
May 13 2020

Financial Policies
The City maintains policies on fund balance level debt levels and term, investment policies,
budget forecasting policy and a capitalization policy The City also takes advantage of policies
that has new development to finance infrastructure needs caused by the new development
via special assessments and impact fees Conservative management and the enumerated
policies above have served the City well The existence of a fund balance enabled the fund
balance to be utilized in 2009 during the revenue decline and replenished in 2010 and 2011
when revenue stabilized

Awards
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada {GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR) for the year ended December 31, 2018 The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestIg1ous national award recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports This was
the 26th consecutive year that the City has received this award
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to program standards Such report
must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and applicable legal requirements
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year We believe that our current
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements We will be
submitting the CAFR to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a 2019 Certificate

Acknowledgments
Preparation of this report on a timely basts could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the Finance Department staff Appreciation Is also
extended to all other City employees who contributed to its preparation Thanks are also
extended to the Mayor, Common Council, and Finance Committee for their interest and
support m planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible
manner

Respectfully submitted,

2.La0«y
Paul Rotzenberg, CPA
Director of Finance & Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin
Franklin Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental acbv1ttes the business-type
activities each mayor fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Franklin Wisconsin as
of and for the year ended December 31 2019 and the related notes to the financial statements which
collectively comprise the City of Franklin s basic financial statements as listed In the table of contents

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and far presentation of these financal statements m
accordance wth accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca thus includes the
design 1mplementat1on and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error

Auditors' Responsibility

Our respons1b1hty Is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors Judgment includmg the assessment of
the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error In making those
risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City of Franklin s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements mn order to design audit procedures that are appropriate m the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Franklin s
internal control Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provde a basis for our
audit opinions

Page 9
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To the Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin

Opinions

In our opmIon the financial statements referred to above present fairly In all material respects the respective
financial position of the governmental activities the business-type activities each mayor fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Franklin Wisconsin as of December 31 2019 and the
respective changes In financial posItIon and where applicable cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended In accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America

Emphasis ofMatters

As discussed in Note I City of Franklin adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No 84 FducraryActivities
effective January 1 2019 Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter

As discussed in Note I City of Franklin adopted the provIsIons of GASB Statement No 88 Certam Disclosures
Related to Debt, mcludmg Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements effective January 1 2019 Our opmIons
are not modified with respect to this matter

Other Matters

ReqwredSupplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca require that the the required
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements Such 1nformat1on although not a part of the basic financial statements Is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 1t to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements mn an appropriate operational economic or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 1nformat1on in accordance with aud1tmg
standards generally accepted mn the United States of America which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 1nformat1on for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the mformat1on because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Franklin s basic financial statements The supplementary information as listed m the table
of contents ts presented for purposes of additional analysis and Is not a required part of the basic financial
statements Such Information s the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied mn the audit of the basic financial statements and certamn
additional procedures Including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves and other addrtonal procedures mn accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America In our opinion the supplementary 1nformat1on Is fairly stated in all material respects
In relation to the basic financial statements as a whole
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To the Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin

Other lnformatton

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Franklin s basic financial statements The Introductory Section and Statstcal Section are
presented for purposes of addItIonal analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements Such
mformat1on has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and accordingly we do not express an opmIon or provide any assurance on It

Prior Year Comparative Information

We have previously audited the City of Franklin s 2018 financial statements and we expressed unmodified
audit opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities the business-type activities
each mayor fund and the aggregate remaining fund information m our report dated April 30 2019 In our
opinion the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31
2018 Is consistent in all material respects with the audited financial statements from which It has been
derived

Milwaukee Wisconsin
May 13 2020
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Management's Discussion and Analysis

(Unaudited)

As management of the City of Franklin (the "City"), the following offers readers of the City's financial
statements an overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2019 Readers are encouraged to consider this information in conJunctIon with additional
information contained in the letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1-5 of this report

Financial Highlights

• The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows as of
December 31, 2019, by $242 7 million (net position). The City now has a $4 2 mil deficit (in
Unrestricted Net Position), putting pressure on its ab1hty to meet creditor obligations

• The City's total net posrton decreased by a net amount of $563,000 Net investment in capital assets
increased by $15 8 million while unrestrcted net position decreased by $14 6 million and restricted
net positron decreased by $1 8 million Several major development projects continued in 2019, wth
the Ballpark Commons project receiving an additional $3 2 million City support, the creation of TID6
for the Bear Development in the southwest portion of the City and Velo Village (TID 7) apartment
complex connected to Ballpark Commons In add1t1on, four residential developmentswere in various
stages of completion, Aspen Woods, Ryan Wood, Park Circle and Safeway Reserve Several
contributed $1 1 million in new infrastructure to the City in 2019 Additionally, the Statesmen Estates
multifamily development was completed

• The City's governmental funds reported, as of December 31, 2019, combined ending fund balances
of $45 6 million, an increase of $8 4 million from the prior year Half the increase represents a $4
million refunding bond issue, (with the debt payment in early 2020} The new development noted
earlier generated $2 7 million in new impact fees

• The Non-spendable fund balance of $155,690 did not change much
• The restricted fund balances totaling $315 million, (an increase of $8 4 million), was driven by

development activities with in Tax Increment Financing Districts, principally unspent debt proceeds
and collections of impact fees

• The assigned fund balances in total of $5 5 million decreased $1 4 million from the prior year as the
City Hall HVAC, roofing and entrance project completed

• The unassigned fund balance as of December 31, 2019 for the General Fund was $8 2 m1lhon This
represents approximately 32 percent of total 2019 General Fund expenditures The $1 3 million
increase was the result of un-expected building permit revenues increased investment income and
reduced Public Safety expenditures

• The City's Business type activities generated a $5 5 million surplus, including $7 8 million of capital
contributions ($5 9 mllion from the City and $19 million from developers) Depreciation on
contributed assets reduced the surplus

Overview of the Financial Statements

Thus discussion and analysts are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial
statements These basic financial statements are comprised of three components 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves



City of Franklin Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business The statement of net position
presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, with
the difference between the categories reported as net posrtion Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City us improving or
deteriorating Table 1 (page 127) provides a ten-year history of Net Position

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows Thus, revenue
and expenditures are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e g, uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation and sick leave) Table 2 (page
128 & 129) provides a ten-year history of the statement of activities

The government-wde financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are prmncpally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-like
activities) The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public
works, health & human services, culture & recreation and conservation & development The business­
type activities include the Franklin Water Utility and the Sanitary Sewer fund

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government) but also a legally separate Community Development Authority for which the City is
financially accountable Financal information for this blended component unit is reported as part of the
financial information presented for the primary government itself

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exhibits A and B (page 26 & 27) of this
report

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives The City, like other state and local governments uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements All of
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements However, unlike government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it Is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements Bydoing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenue,
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities
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City of Franklin Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

The City maintarns 17 rndividual governmental funds Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and mn the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General Debt Service and TIF Districts Funds that are all
considered to be major funds Data from the remaining 14 governmental funds are combined rnto a
single, aggregated presentation Indrvdual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds
is provided mn the form of combining statements later in thus report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits C, D, E and F (page 28­
32) of this report These statements include a budgetary comparison of the General Fund

The City adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, Debt Service Fund, TIF District, Library
Operating Fund, Library Auxiliary Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Tourism, Donations, Grant, Civic
Celebrations, St Martin's Fair, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Street Improvement
Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Development Fund, Utility Development Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund
and the Franklin Water Utility A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for all
governmental funds demonstrating compliance with their budgets

Proprietary funds

Proprietary funds are used to report the functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail The proprietary fund financial statements
provide separate information for the Franklin Water Utility, the Sanitary Sewer Fund and the Internal
Service Fund

The propnetaryfund financial statements can be found on Exhibits G, H &l (page 33-37) of this report

Custodial funds

Custodial funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government
Custodial funds are not reflected mn the government-wide financial statement because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the City's programs The custodial funds maintained by the City
are the Property Tax Agency Fund, that records the tax roll and tax collections for the City and other
taxing jurisdictions, a post-employment benefits trust to hold funds until needed to pay designated
health benefits for eligible current and future retirees and other agency funds

The basic custodial fund financial statements can be found on Exhibit J & K (page 38 8& 39) of this
report

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements The notes to the financial statements are found on
pages 40 - 96 of this report.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements, notes and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Franklin's progress mn funding its
retiree health obligations to eligible full time employees and its participation in theWisconsin Retirement
System and City of Franklin Defined Benefit Pension Plans Required supplementary information can
be found on pages 97 - 102 of this report
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City of Franklin Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31 2019
The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules section presents combining
statements in connection with non-major governmental funds, a detailed budgetary comparison
schedule for the General Fund, Special Revenue Capital ProJects and TIF Funds to demonstrate
compliance with the budget complementing the statement included in the basic governmental fund
financial statements, and other information related to the individual funds are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information Schedules 1 to 12 2 can be found on pages 103­
125 of this report

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earher net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows
by $242 million and $243 million at the end of 2019 and 2018 respectively

CITY OF FRANKLIN NET POSITION
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and
other assets $ 83 521 920 $ 71 044,675 $ 7 775 752 $ 7 905,215 $ 91,297 672 $ 78 949 890
long term Note Rec 16,280 068 17 555 340 16 280 068 17 555 340
Capital assets 135,590,157 126,908,049 110,933,188 105,030,800 246,523,345 231,938,849

Total assets 219,112,077 197,952,724 134,989,008 130,491,355 354,101,085 328,444,079

Deferred Outflows 11,127,908 5,866,670 803,624 192,473 11,931,532 6,059,143

Current liabilities 7 883 909 4 215 583 1 726 984 1,493 373 9,610 893 5 708 956
long-term liabilities 62,395,660 34,878,642 19,449,699 20,183,810 81,845,359 55,062,452

Total liabilities 70,279,569 39,094,225 21,176,683 21,677,183 91,456,252 60,771,408

Deferred Inflows 31,680,624 30,309,811 212,008 169,353 31,892,632 30,479,164

Net position
Net Investment in
capital assets 123,769 857 113,400 761 92 371 165 85170183 212 636,622 196,873,944

Restricted 16 185 146 17 189,242 18,035 340 18 799 969 34 220,486 35 989 211
Unrestricted (11,675,211) 3,825,355 3,997,436 4,861,140 (4,173,375) 10,383,495

Total net position $ 128,279,792 $ 134415,358 $ 114,403,941 $ 108,831,292 $ 242,683,733 $ 243,246,650

The net position section includes an adjustment for capital assets owned by the business-type
activities, but financed by the debt of the governmental activities Amounts will not cross-foot as a
result

The largest portion of the City's net position (approximately 88 and 81 percent, in 2019 and 2018,
respectively) reflects its investment in capital assets {e g land, buildings, machinery, and equipment),
less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding The City uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens consequently, net position is not available for future spending
Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities
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City of Franklin Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Investment mn capital assets accounted for $213 mullion and $197 mll1on in 2019 and 2018 respectively
of the year end net position

In 2019, the Ballpark Commons $28 million infrastructure project was substantially completed In
addition, the Statesman project was completed, as well as portions of three other developments Other
significant projects included a City Hall $1 8 million roof replacement, Heating Ventilating and Air
conditioning replacement, a $1 4 million roundabout at S 51and Drexel Ave installed and a $634,000
fire engine replacement

In 2018, construction m progress rose to $6 6 million related to the Ballpark Commons project Other
significant additions were a second salt dome, and the River Park trail bridge

An additional portion of the City's net position (13% in 2019 and 2018) represent resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used There were $34 2 million and $36 0 million
(revised) respectively in those net positions that were restricted to specific purposes A significant
increase m res1dent1al development increased the Development Fund (Impact fees) resource by $2 9
million

The remaining balance in unrestricted net position of a $4 2 million deficit and $10 4 million surplus
{revised) in 2019 and 2018, respectively, may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens
and creditors The significant reduction in unrestricted net pos1t1on relates two developer grants A $5
million incentive was for a 180-unit apartment complex completed late in the year, and another $5 9
million in site preparation costs at the Ballpark Commons project on an old landfill
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City of Franklin Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Government-wide activities

The details of changes in net position follow

City of Franklin Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ending December 31, 2019 and 2018

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenue
Program revenue:
Charges for services
Operating grants & contributions
Capital grants & contributions

General revenue:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Other
Total revenue

$ 9,135 953 $
1 991 081
4 158,787

23 543,330
1 394,469
2,437 929
1 575,432
41,373

44,278,354

6 951 359
1 932 199
2 655,553

23 621 879
1 085,976
1 366,802
847 916
111 751

38,573,435

$ 9,624,386 $ 9666,202

1 893,179

554,542 548,047
95217 134,928

12,167,324 10,349,177

$ 18,760 339 $
1 991 081
6,051 966

23,543,330
1 394,469
2,437 929
2,129,974
136,590

56,445,678

16,617,561
1 932 199
2 655,553

23,621 879
1,085 976
1,366 802
1 395 963
246,679

48,922,612

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Publicworks
Health & human services
Culture & recreation
Conservation & development
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Sewer
Total expenses

Increase in net position
before transfers

Transfers
Change in net position
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Governmental Activities

3 979,782
18 695,104
5 952,372
849,373

2,331 957
12,222 229
1,416,597

45,447414

(1169,060)
(4,966,506)
(6, 135,566)

134,415,358

3,412 150
18,429,273
9042,112
906,003

2 073,116
8 349 726
574 065

42,786,444

(4,213,009)
1,011,392
(3,201,617)

137,616,975

5,393, 192
6,167,989
11,561,181

606,143
4,966,506
5,572,649

108,831 292

5,514 057
5,949,549
11,463,606

(1 114,429)
(1,011,392)
2,125,821)

110,957 113

3,979,782
18,695104
5,952 372
849 373
2331 957
12 222 229
1 416,597
5,393,192
6,167,989
57,008,595

(562 917)

(562,917)

3,412 150
18,429 273
9 042 112
906,003

2 073 116
8,349 725
574 065

5 514 057
5,949,549
54,250,050

(5,327,438)

(5,327,438)

$ 128,279,792 $ 134415,358 $ 114,403,941 $ 108,831292

243,246,650 248 574 OBB
$ 242,683,733 $ 243,246,650

2019 saw development activity increase further, with a $5 3 million grant to an apartment developer,
over $1 million of subdivision infrastructure contributions and the Ballpark Commons project winding
up including $5 9 of developer grants for site preparation, along with significant infrastructure
investment The Intergovernmental revenue increase relates to a storm sewer project at Rawson
Homes $3 million of developer impact fees added to total revenues These developer grants will be
recovered in the future when TID tax collections are realized Interest costs are rising on the
increased debt levels

The 2018 Governmental Act1v1ttes decrease of $3 2 million is the result of developer grants in Ballpark
Commons The City committed $22 5 million of site preparation and infrastructure costs to the
Developer with approximately $14 4 million spent in 2018 Much of those payments were classified
as developer's grants

Page 17



City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Expenses by Function - Governmental Activities

I I s
+eaiw a@
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Culture and Conservation Interest onPublic works [ human recreation and long-term debtservices development
5.952,372 849,373 2.331.957 12,222.229 1,416.597
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$15,000,000
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Business-type activities

The Development activity impacted the Business-type activities with capital contributions from both the
Government and Developers. City TIO activities contributed $5.9 of water and sanitary sewer assets
(principally at Ballpark Commons, the new light industrial park and a water main replacement in Rawson
Homes), along with residential subdivision infrastructure. $3.5 million of City debt was used to support
Business-type assets.

2018 business-type activities decreased the City's net position by $2.1 million.

Utility rates in both Water & Sewer do not recover the cost of contributed assets. As replacements of
those assets occur, future rates will rise to recover the replacement costs. Water mains were replaced
in the older Rawson Homes subdivision in 2019.

The following graph compares charges for services to the operating expenses for water and sewer
activities.

Operating Revenue and Expense ­
Business-type Activities

$7,000,000

$6,000,000

$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

$­
Water Water Sewer Sewer
revenue expense revenue expense

Water and Sewer expenses can exceed revenue due to the current policy of including only depreciation
from City spending on capital assets in the rate formula. The large amount of infrastructure that has
been contributed is the reason for this policy 84% of the Business-type assets have been contributed
by developers or new growth resources (impact fees). When maintenance and replacement costs
increase, this policy may need to be reevaluated. The City replaced $1.3 million of water mains in 2019
and is planning a $3.2 million sanitary sewer project in the next two years.
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City of Franklin, Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
As shown on the following chart, the Business-type revenue includes capital grants and contributions,
investment earnings and miscellaneous income in addition to charges for services (operating revenue).

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities

Capital grants &
contributions -Sewer

16%

Charges for services ­
Sewer
21%

Interest & Other
4%

Capital grants &
contributions -Water

27%

Charges for services ­
Water
32%

2019 was a wetter than normal summer, and irrigation usage declined as a result, reducing water
revenues as compared to 2018. Average residential usage per household continues to decline as the
new development installs more water efficient appliances. 2019 Sewer rates increased 2.2% driven by
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District processing costs, increasing sewer revenues.

2018 Water revenues decreased $95,735 (1.6%) on lower volumes related to wetter weather
conditions. Sewer revenues increased $390.998 (11.8%) to recover a large cost increase from the
sanitary sewer processor There were no infrastructure contributions in 2018.

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $45.6 million, an increase of $8.4 million from the prior year At year end the unassigned
fund balance was $8.2 million, an increase of $1.4 million related primarily to the General Fund surplus.
A small deficit in the TIF Fund represents a tax refund in TID#3.

The City has assigned fund balances for activities of the Capital Projects of $5.5 million. In addition,
$132,393 of General Fund Balance has been assigned for purchase commitments into 2020.
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City of Franklin Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31 2019
Outside party restrictions have resulted in restricted fund balances

1) to pay debt service $1 1million -collections of special assessments increased the balance
2) for ut1hty improvements - $2 2 million - the increase resulted from utility assessment
collections and interest on deferred assessment balances
3) for development purposes - $88 mullion - two large multi-family proJects resulted in
significant impact fee revenues
4) for TIF Districts of $17 3 million - $6 million in new Debt resources during the year went
unspent as the developer experienced delays, and a $4 million refunding bond was sold in
December, for which the refunding will occur in the first quarter of 2020 At the same time, the
Ballpark Commons TIO spent down debt proceeds from 2018 on infrastructure projects
5) for library services $711,000
6) for Solid Waste services $455,000
7) for Tourism activities - $470,000 and
7) for donations, health grant funds, and recreational activities - totaling $441,000

The City also has nonspendable fund balances to indicate that it is not available for new spending
because it has already been committed for prepaid expenses and inventories and for advances to other
funds ($136,200) The General Fund provided a 10 year advance to theWater Ut1hty in 2017 to finance
an extraordinary contribution to the Public Works Retirement plan (in excess of the Actuarially
Determined Contribution) This was financed out of the collection of the Sewer Fund advance

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City As of December 31, 2019, the total fund
balance of the General Fund was $8 6 million of which $8 3 million was unassigned This unassigned
fund balance represents approximately 32% of 2019 General Fund expenditures

The total General fund balance increased by $13 million during 2019 Much of the surplus came from
increased building permits and investment earnings Reduced Public Safety projects left $600,000 of
appropriations unspent

The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $1 1, restricted for the payment of debt service
Much of the fund balance relates to collections of street special assessments

The TIF Districts Fund has total fund balance of $17 2 million The TID#4 $4 1 million fund balance
will fund 2020 project costs Ballpark Commons (TID#5) sold a new $3 2 million bond in 2019 using
the proceeds on additional project costs TID#6 sold $6 4 m1lhon of new bonds to fund infrastructure
proJects, however developer delays left $5 4 million unspent Velo Village (TID#7) sold $3 million of
notes to fund a developer mortgage in early 2020

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds have a total fund balance of $18 6 million Special Revenue fund
balances totaled $2 1 million Capital Project funds had fund balances totaling $16 5 mllhon half of which
is mn the Development Fund (Impact fees) The City issued $2 2 mullion in new notes during 2019 to
provide resources for the 2019 caprtal project programs

The City's Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail

Unrestricted net position of theWater Ut1hty at the end of the year amounted to $28 million a decrease
of $531,130 from the prior year The Ut1hty replaced the Rawson Homes water main spending $1 3
million

Unrestricted net position of the Sanitary Sewer Utility at the end of the year amounted to $1 2million, a
decrease of $332,571 from the prior year The Utility performed significant maintenance costs on sewer
lift stations
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City of Franklin Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

The enterprise funds financial statements can be found on Exhibits G, H and ! (page 33 - 37) of this
report

An Internal Service Fund providing resources related to employee health benefits had a $728,353
surplus, increasing fund balance to $2 5 million The City introduced a high deductible option in 2019,
with a larger than expected participation As a result claims costs were reduced 22% In addition, the
Stop Loss earner introduced a rebate program that generated $122,000 The fund balance represents
a significant percentage of annual health benefit costs (94%)

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Revenue exceeded the amended budget by $538 000 The Original budget was amended to add
$650,000 of revenues to recognize charges to developers for inspection services on expected donated
infrastructure construction The largest revenue increase ($273,000) came from construction permits
on new development Investment earnings of $510,000, exceeded expectations as short-term rates
rose

Actual expenditures were less than amended budgeted by $2 7 million (9 5% of the amended budget)
The City introduced a High Deductible health plan option for employees in 2019 after the 2019 budget
was adopted The appropriations for the High Deductible plan were included in Contingency and the
2019 budget was amended in the first quarter to re-align that employee benefit across activities The
City established a $18 million amended contingency That contingency was not spent Public Safety
project costs were not spent and the retirement of inspection personnel resulted in unspent personnel
appropriations

A $13 million surplus compares favorably to the amended budgeted deficit of $2 1 million Removing
the $1 8 million contingency noted above the amended budget deficit was more like $0 3 million

Capital assets

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of December
31, 2019, amounts to $246 5 million, net of accumulated depreciation This investment in capital assets
Includes land buildings, improvements other than buildings and machinery and equipment
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City of Franklin Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

City of Franklin's Investment in Capital Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Land $ 25 450 016 $ 25 109 551 $ 888 479 $ 888,479 $ 26 338,495 $ 25,998 030
Buildings and
Improvements 28 404 573 27 233 712 6 328 241 6 702,216 34 732 814 33,935 928

Improvements
other than buildings 119 046 303 105 348,431 142 378 652 134 188 155 261,424 955 239 536 586

Machinery and
and equipment 20023 758 18 894 992 6 129,239 5 809 997 26 152 997 24 704 989

Construction
in process 1,986,204 6,611,711 1,160,685 63,054 3,146,889 6,674,765
Total capital assets 194,910 854 183 198 397 156 885 296 147 651 901 351 796150 330 850,298

Less Accumulated
depreciation (59,320,697) (56,290,348) (45,952,108) (42,621,101) (105,272,805) (98,911,449)

Capital assets net of
depreciation $ 135,590,157 $ 126,908,049 $ 110,933,188 $ 105,030,800 $ 246,523,345 $ 231,938,849

The total increase in the City's net investment in capital assets net of depreciation for the current fiscal
year was $14 6 million or 6 3% Development drove most of the increase, with infrastructure at Ballpark
Commons (TID#5) the round-about at S 51and Drexel Ave, a fire engine, City Hall roof replacement
and Heating Ventilating and Cooling system replacement some of the larger projects

For further details on capital asset activity refer to Note 1(D)6 and Note 3(E) of the Notes to Financial
Statements and Schedules 12-122(page 124- 126)

Long-term debt

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue up to 5
percent of its total equalized valuation At December 31, 2019, the City had general obligation note and
bond issues outstanding totaling $71 9 million The current legal debt limitation for the City is $218 0
million The City's current outstanding general obligation debt is 33 0% of the statutory debt limit

By City policy, outstanding general obligation debt is limited to 2% of total equalized value or $87 2
million Outstanding debt represents 82% of this internal limit, leaving an internal debt limit margin of
$15 3 milhon The Finance Committee reviewed the Debt Policy In July, 2019 and noted that supporting
current development activity Is likely to cause the City to exceed it internal debt limit and urged the
Common Council to consider that when considering new debt issues

The City's present rating from Moody's for its general obligation debt is "Aa2" The "Aa2 rating was
affirmed wth the 2019 debt issues

In May 2018 the City issued $23 48 million in Note Anticipation Notes to finance projects in the Ballpark
Commons development The City agreed to reserve this much of the General Obligation Debt tmmrt for
the future refunding of this issue

In 2019, City had four new debt issues two in February and two in December 2019A (a $137 million
Bond was issued to support a $3 million grant mn TID#3 and refund $10 million of the 2018A NAN 20198
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City of Franklin Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31 2019
(A $6 3 million bond) was issued to support infrastructure projects in TID#6 2019C {a $12 4 million
bond) was issued to support $5 2 of infrastructure at the Ballpark Commons development $3 million to
fund a second mortgage financing commitment to Velo Village and $4 million to refund a portion of the
2018A NAN Finally, 2019D (a $23 million note) provided resources for the 2019 Capital Improvement
projects

City of Franklin's Outstanding Debt (All purposes)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
General obligation
Premium (Discount) $ 446 398 $ 150,083 $ (8,318) $ (9 353) $ 438 080 $ 140 730
Note Anticipation Notes 13 480 000 23 480 000 13 480 000 23 480 000
Bonds 34 620,000 3 385 000 18 570,341 19 869 970 53190 341 23 254 970
Notes 5,200,000 3,145,000 5,200,000 3,145,000

Total $ 53,746,398 $ 30,160,083 $ 18,562,023 $ 19,860,617 $ 72,308,421 $ 50,020,700

Additional information of the City s long-term debt can be found in Note 3(H) (page 65-68) Schedule
5 (page 106) and Tables 11 - 13 (page 134-137) in the statistical section of the report

In 2018 the City issued two Municipal Revenue Obligations to developers The first was a $3 5 million
incentive grant to the Ballpark Commons Developer payable over the life of the TIO The note carries
a 5 5% interest rate No interest or principal payments are being made on note at this time The
second was a $2 million instrument payable over the remaining eight years of that TIO This note
bears mterestat4 5% A $202 000 payment was made mn 2019 The remaining balance of all the
notes at December 31 2019 was $5 189 000

New Developer agreements mn 2019 committed the City to two additional MRO s a $3 1 million grant
in TID#6 issuable upon acceptance of donated infrastructure and a $14 952 grant in TID#7
supporting the 265 unit Velo Village apartment project issuable upon construction initiation for the
project

Other Changes of Significance

Post Employment Health Care Benefits

The City of Franklin provides retiree health care benefits to certain retiree groups from the date of
retirement until age 65 Pnor to 2008 the City's portion of health care cost was recognized as an
expenditure in the penod premiums were paid Funding for those costs was provided out of the current
operating budget of the City This was referred to as financing on a pay as you go basis

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement #45 effective for the City of
Franklin on January 1, 2008 that said that the expense of these benefits has to be recognized over the
working lives of the employees The Common Council concluded that the City of Franklin should not
only recognize the expense on its financial statements but should fund those amounts out of its general
revenue starting in 2008 with the establishment of a section 115 trust

In 2017, the City adopted GASB 75 which treats OPEB liabilities similarly to pension obligations
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City of Franklin Wisconsin
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

More detailed information can be found in Note 4(C)

Economic Factors, Tax Rates and Next Year's Budgets

• The unemployment rate as of December 31 2019 for the City was 3 0% and Milwaukee County
which includes the City, was 3 5% This compares with an unemployment rate of 3 5% for the
State ofWisconsin

• The 2019 Budget assessed tax rate of $5 43 was down from $5 61 from the prior year Tax rates
are declining as the State imposed levy limits are resulting in smaller increases in the tax levy,
while property values are rsng faster

• The City's tax levy rose from $21 0 million the previous five years, to $21 4 million 1n 2019 Much
of the restrained total levy increase came by way a shift of debt service levy, which declined
$450 000 over that same period, shifting tax levy to operating and capital levy

• The 2020 tax levy increased another $352 600 ( 1 7%) by another use of a one-time tool in state
levy limits

• 2019 budgeted expenditures increased $1 13 million (4 0%) This was made possible by the
use of Charges for Services as an increasing resource in Capital ProJect funds and applying the
prior tax levy resource to the General Fund

• This larger increase in expenditures compared to tax levy resources is not sustainable

Subsequent Events of Note:
• In March 2020 the US President, WI Governor and Franklin's Mayor declared a pubhc health

emergency It is too early to project the financial impact of this crisis on City finances The
Common Council adopted a 2020 Budget Amendment appropriating $250,000 of contingency
to fight the disease

• Related to that health crisis, the US Equity markets declined significantly, and the City's Defined
Benefit Plan administrator placed a $750,000 call for additional one-time contributions The
Common Council authorized 2020 approprattons to support a $1 million extraordinary
contribution and also authorized the Director of Finance to make up to a $750,000 contribution
if necessary, returning to Council should additional contributions be required

• The 2020 Budget anticipated $27 million of Landfill Siting revenues (Public Charges for
Services) substantially supporting capital programs By April, 2020, this revenue stream began
to decline, such that the Common Council considered reductions in 2020 capital program
appropriations

• On April 6, 2020, the Common Council authorized the issuance of a $14 952 million Munro1pal
Revenue Obligation to Velo Village under the terms of a Developer's Agreement signed in
October, 2019

Requests for Information

This financial report 1s designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for those with an
interest in the government's finances Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for add1t1onal financial information should be addressed to the Director of Finance &
Treasurer, City of Franklin 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132

General information or more detailed financial and budget information relating to the City of Franklin
can be found at the City's website www franklinwi gov - Finance Department tab
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Exhibit A
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Statement of Net Position
As of December 31, 2019

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 53 523,392 $ 3,475,763 $ 56 999 155
Receivables
Accounts 1,455,277 2,386,979 3 842 256
Taxes 26,628,560 280 938 26 909,498
Special assessments 691 966 691 966

Due from other governments 1080035 1,275,272 2 355 307
Prepaid items 5 326 5 326
Inventories 14164 14164
Long term advances 123 200 (123 200)
Restricted cash 480 000 480,000
Due from other governments long term 16 280 068 16,280,068
Capital assets ({netot accumulated depreciation)

Land 25,450,016 888,479 26 338,495
Buildings and improvements 16,558,754 6 328,241 22 886 995
Machinery and equipment 6 980 916 6 129,239 13110155
Infrastructure 84,614,267 96,426,543 181 040 810
Construction in progress 1,986,204 1,160,686 3,146,890

Total assets 219,112,077 134,989,008 354,101,085

DEFERREDOUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension and OPEB related 10,809,272 648,098 11,457,370
Total deferred outflow of resources 10,809,272 648,098 11,457,370

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,848,870 1 605,442 6,454,312
Accrued liabilities 2,266,899 37944 2 304,843
Due to other governments 130 380 130,380
Accrued interest 581,424 83,598 665,022
Special deposits 56,306 56,306
Noncurrent liabilities
Benefit obligations due within one year 743 005 80,486 823,491
Benefit obligations due in more than one year 7 906 255 807190 8 713,445
General obligation debt due within one year 6 090 000 1 330,272 7,420 272
General obligation debt due in more than one year 47,656,400 17,231,751 64,888,151

Total liabilities 70,279,539 21,176,683 91,456,222

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension and OPEB related 4 830,062 56,482 4 886 544
Subsequent year property taxes 26,531,956 26,531,956
Total Deferred Inflow ofResources 31,362,018 56,482 31,418,500

NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets 123,769,857 92 371 165 212,636,622
Restricted for
Debt service 127 211 127,211
Utility improvements 2 586,422 2 586,422
Development 9066,099 9,066,099
TIO Funds 2 328 611 2 328,611
Library 710 872 710 872
Solid Waste 455 125 455125
Recreation services 80 952 80 952
Health 198,561 198,561
Donations 161,342 161,342
Tourism Commission 469 951 469 951
Sewer equipment replacement 480000 480,000
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 17,555 340 17 555 340

Unrestricted (deficit) (11,675,211) 3,997,436 (4,173,375)
Total net position $ 128,279,792 $ 114,403,941 $ 242,683,733

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Exhibit C
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

As of December 31 2019

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental

General Service Districts Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 8 946 683 $ 1093213 $ 22 308 355 $ 18 483 341 $ 50 831 592
Receivables
Accounts 1172 832 282 445 1455277
Taxes 19 005 823 1125 347 3 261 911 3 235 479 26 628 560
Special assessments 36 475 655 491 691 966

Due from other governments 80694 999 341 1080035
Prepaid items 5 326 5 326
Inventories 14 164 14 164
Advances to other funds 136.200 1500000 1636200

TOTAL ASSETS $ 29 361 722 $ 2 255 035 $ 25 570.266 $ 25 156 097 $ 82 343 120

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 619 010 $ $ 2 730 799 $ 1470812 $ 4 820 621
Accrued liabilities 916 573 865 135 310 191 2 091 899
Due to other governments 130 380 130 380
Special deposits 56 306 56 306
Advance from other funds 1513 000 1 513 000

Total lablities 1 722,269 5 108 934 1 781 003 8 612 206

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned & unavailable revenue 19 005 699 1 136 475 3 261 911 4 731 579 28 135 664

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable

Inventories and prepaid items 19 490 19 490
Advances to other funds 136 200 136 200

Restricted
Debt service 1118 560 1118 560
Utility improvements 2 194 797 2 194 797
Development 8 833 459 8 833 459
TIF Districts 17307511 17307511
Donations 161 342 161 342
Health services 198 561 198 561
Library services 710 872 710 872
Solid waste 455 125 455 125
Recreational services 80 952 80 952
Tourism 469 951 469 951

Assigned
Purchases on order 132 393 132 393
Capital projects 5 538 456 5 538 456

Unassigned (deficit) 8 345 671 (108 090) 8.237 581

Total fund balances 8 633 754 1118 560 17 199 421 18 643 515 45 595 250

TOTAL LIABILITIES DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES $ 29 361 722 $ 2 255 035 $ 25 570 266 $ 25 156 097 $ 82 343 120

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Reconc1l1at1on of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Position
As of December 31, 2019

Fund balances total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental act1vItIes in the statement
of net position are different because

Capital assets used m governmental funds are not financial resources
and are therefore are not reported In the funds
Capital assets net of depreciation

Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as
deferred inflows of resources mn the fund financial statements
but are recognized as revenues when earned In the government-wide
statements
Special assessments
Impact fees
lntergovernment grant

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions and OPEB are applicable to future periods and
therefore are not reported mn fund statements
Deferred outflows
Deferred inflows

Internal Serice Fund net posrton

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not
due and payable in the current penod and accordingly are not reported
as fund liabilities Interest on long term debt is not accrued In
governmental funds but rather Is recognized as an expenditure when due
General obligation debt
Compensated absences
Net pension and OPEB obligations
Unamortized debt premiums
Accrued Interest

Net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Exhubt C 1

$ 45 595 250

135 590 157

428 100
232 640
943 000

11127 908
(5 148 698)

2 488 521

(53 300 002)
(2 148 384)
(6 500 878)
(446 398)
(581 424)

$ 128 279 792



Exhibit D
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

Statement of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental

General Service Districts Funds Funds
REVENUE
Taxes $ 18 829 930 $ 1300000 $ 2 278 617 $ 2 134421 $ 24 542 968
Intergovernmental revenue 1757 347 504 013 1 052 400 3,313 760
Licenses and permits 1314 918 20 671 1 335,589
Fines forfeitures and penalties 451 062 451 062
Public charges for seraces 2 829 033 4 080 163 6 909 196
Special assessments 28 524 3 474 482 3,503 006
Intergovernmental charges for services 226 178 226 178
Investment earnings 510 943 35 588 444 570 518 850 1 509 951
Miscellaneous revenue 189 606 42 500 160 965 393 071
Total revenue 26 109,017 1364112 3,269 700 11 441 952 42 184 781

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 2 953 923 266 229 6 701 3,226,853
Public safety 17 157 353 24 431 17 181 784
Public works 4 140 073 52499 1 660 197 5 852 769
Health and human services 646 760 210 595 857 355
Culture recreation and education 223 360 1 475 219 1 698,579
Conservation and development 606 419 11 540612 88594 12 235 625

Capita! outlay 7 985 635 7 937 731 15 923 366
Debt service
Principal 1405000 10 000 000 11405 000
Interest 135 338 899 969 1035307
Debt issuance costs 423 173 49924 473 097
Total expenditures 25 727 888 1 540338 31 168 117 11 453,392 69, 889.735

Excess {deficiency} of revenue
over expenditures 381 129 (176 226) (27 898417) (11,440) (27 704 954)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets 34478 34 478
Transfers m 968 448 323 419 356 731 1 648 598
Transfers out (52 100) (92 000) (536 050} (680 150)
General obligation debt issued 17 685 000 2 285 000 19 970 000
Refunding debt Issued 14 725 000 14 725 000
Premium on debt issued 80,648 270 685 12 598 363,931
Total other financing sources and uses 916.348 312 067 32 680 685 2 152.757 36 061 857

Net change mn fund balances 1297477 135 841 4 782 268 2 141317 8 356 903

Fund balances beginning 7 336 277 982 719 12 417 153 16 502 198 37 238 347

Fund balances ending $ 8,633 754 $ 1 118 560 $ 17 199 421 $ 18 643 515 $ 45 595 250

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Net change in fund balances total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental actIv1ties m the statement
of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures
However in the statement of act1v1t1es the cost of these assets
1s allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense or losses when disposed of

Capital outlay as reported mn the governmental funds
Capital outlay contributed to business-type units
Items capitalized from non outlay accounts
Deprecation
Net book value of assets disposed

Contributed capital assets are reported as revenues in the
statement of activities

The issuance of long term debt ( e g notes leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds while the repayment of
the principal on long term debt consumes current financial
resources of government funds Neither transaction however has
any effect on net position

Principal paid on long term debt
Proceeds from long term debt net of premium

The Governmental Funds report Deferred Inflows for resources
that are not available for activities

Grants & Charges for Services

Some expenses reported mn the statement of act1v1tIes do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore are
not reported as expenditures m the government funds

Compensated absences pensions and OPEB
Accrued interest payable and amortization of debt premium

Revenue m the governmental funds that provdes current
financial resources but has been previously reported as
revenue m the statement of act1v1tIes

Net special assessments

Internal service fund change m net pos1t1on

Net change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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$ 8 356 903

15 923 366
(5 934 954)
1 388 621
(3 727 753)

(77 234)

1110 062

11 405 000
(35 058 931)

943 000

(923 258)
(209 293)

(59 448)

728 353

$ (6,135 566)



Exhibit F
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

General Fund
Statement of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Variance with
Budgeted Amount final budget

Change Excess
Original Inc (Dec) Final Actual {Deficiency)

REVENUE
Taxes $ 19 876 475 s $ 19 876 475 s 19 798 378 s (78 097)
Intergovernmental revenue 1 736 127 1 736 127 1757347 21 220
Licenses and permits 1.041.490 1 041 490 1314918 273 428
Fines forfeitures and penalties 546 000 546 000 451 062 (94 938)
Public charges for services 2 056 950 650 000 2 706 950 2 829 033 122 083
Intergovernmental charges for services 207.500 207 500 226178 18 678
Investment earninqs 265 000 265 000 510 943 245 943
Miscellaneous revenue 159 650 159 650 189606 29 956

Total revenue 25.889 192 650.,000 26 539 192 27 077 465 538.273

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 4 894 848 (206 984) 4 687 864 2 926 072 1 761 792
Public safety 17 784 187 (32 700) 17 751.487 17 150 753 600 734
Public works 3 571 132 571 783 4 142 915 4.020 678 122 237
Health and human services 750 797 (9 935) 740 862 646 760 94102
Culture and recreation 182 702 43 541 226 243 223 360 2 883
Conservation and development 640 776 73 513 714.289 620.688 93.601

Total expenditures 27 824 442 439 218 28 263 660 25588311 2 675 349

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under} expenditures (1 935 250) 210 782 (1724468) 1489154 3 213 622

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 59 250 30 625 89 875 (89 875)
Transfers out (274 000) (8 100) (282 100) (52 100) 230 000

Net change in fund balance
budgetary basis (2 150 000) 233 307 (1916693) 1437054 3 353 747

Adustments to generally accepted
accounting principles basis
2019 encumbrances 132 393 132 393
2018 encumbrances 271 970) (271 970)

Net change in fund balance generally
accepted accounting principles basis (2 150 000) (2.056 270) 1.297.477 3 353 747

Fund Balances beginning 7 336 277 7 336 277 7 336 277

Fund Balances ending s 5 186 277 s 5 280 007 s 8 633 754 s 3 353 747

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Exhibit G
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

As of December 31 2019
(with comparative information for December 31 2018)

Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities
Utility Utility Sewer Sewer Year Internal

Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and investments s 2.425 883 $ 2 731.422 s 1 049 880 $ 1383225 $ 3 475 763 $ 2 691 800
Recevables
Accounts receivable 1 395 461 1 399 959 991 518 956 759 2 386 979
Taxes receivable 161 985 173 394 118 953 108 886 280 938
Due from other governments 1 275 272 1244629 1 275 272

Prepaid expenses 2 291 2 291
Total current assets 3 983 329 4 307 066 3,435,623 3695 790 7 418 952 2 691 800

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and investments 480 000 480 000
Due from other governments 16 280 068 17555340 16 280 068
Regulatory assets 42 059
Capital assets
Land 162 885 162 885 725 594 725 594 888.479
Buildings and improvements 3 020 191 3 020 191 3,308 050 3 308 050 6 328 241
Improvements other than buildings 60 725 142 55 613 608 81 653 509 78 754 451 142 378 651
Machinery and equipment 4 920 074 4 821 896 1209165 1 182 171 6 129 239
Construction in progress 1 065 176 60 301 95 510 2 753 1 160 686

Less accumulated deprecraton (21.423 626) (20 238 971) (24 528.482) (22382,129) (45 952 108)
Total capital assets {net of

accumulated depreciation) 48.469 842 43 439 910 62 463 346 61590890 110 933 188

Total noncurrent assets 48 469 842 43 481 969 79223414 79 146 230 127 693 256

Total assets 52 453 171 47 789 035 82 659 037 82 842 020 135 112 208 2 691 800

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension and OPEB related 346 811 102 915 301.287 89 558 648 098

Continued

Page 33



Exhibit G
(concluded)

CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
As of December 31 2019

(with comparative information for December 31 2018)

Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities
Utility Utility Sewer Sewer Year Internal

Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 943 378 $ 760 659 s 662 064 $ 620 577 s 1 605 442 $ 28 279
Accrued liabilities 689 689 37 255 29 109 37 944 175 000
Accrued interest payable 11 563 11 196 72 035 77 143 83 598
Current port ion of accrued compensated absences 40 243 40 243 80 486
Current port ion of long-term advances 16 750 16 500 16 750
Current port ion of long-term obligations 55 000 55 000 1275272 1 244 629 1 330 272

Total current liabilities 1 067 623 844 044 2 086 869 1 971 458 3,154 492 203 279

Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability 379 808 66 480 328 016 57 415 707 824
Net OPEB liability 14 026 24 289 14 026 24 289 28 052
General obligation notes payable 951 682 1005647 16 280 069 17 555 341 17231751
Accrued compensated absences 35.657 75 360 35 657 75 360 71 314

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,381 173 1 171 776 16.657 768 17 712.405 18 038 941

Long-term advances 106.450 123 200 106 450

Total liabilities 2 555 246 2 139 020 18 744 637 19 683 863 21299883 203.279

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension and OPEB related 29 911 90 872 26 571 78 481 56 482

NET POSITION
Net investment n capital assets 47 463 160 42 379 263 44 908 005 42 790 920 92 371 165
Restricted

Sewer equipment replacement 480 000 480 000
Intergovernmental cooperation agreement 17 555 340 18 799 969 17 555 340

Unrestricted 2 751 665 3 282 795 1 245 771 1 578 345 3,997 436 2 488 521
Total net position $ 50 214 825 $ 45.662 058 s 64 189 116 $ 63 169 234 $114 403 941 s 2 488 521

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit H
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31 2019
(with comparative information for December 31 2018)

Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities
Utility Utility Sewer Sewer Year Internal

Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUE

Metered sales
Res1dental $ 2.874 381 $ 2.918 671 s 2 066 966 $ 2019 797 $ 4 941 347 $
Mult-Family 741 263 751 798 503 338 498.485 $ 1 244 601
Commercial 648 437 689 710 591 845 584 945 1 240 282
Irrigation 108 212 139 507 108 212
Industrial 438 327 475 734 430.270 415 365 868 597
Publ c authorty 268 223 248 797 171112 152.553 439 335

Total metered sales 5.078 843 5.224 217 3 763.531 3 671 145 8 842 374
Group hea th & dental charges 3 315 854
Unmetered sales 20928 17 155 2.355 23 283
Public fire protecton service 544 847 542 668 544 847
Private fire protection service 125 087 123 381 125,087
Forfeited discounts. penalties and other 52 554 53 929 36.241 33 707 88 795

Total operating revenue 5 822 259 5 961 350 3 802 127 3 704 852 9.624 386 3 315 854

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 3.539 664 3.541 829 2 534 298 2 534 885 6.073 962 2,652 981
Deprecation 1 245 739 1 204,485 2.172.379 2135 076 3,418 118
Amortization 42 059 130 666 42 059
Administration 529 598 599 458 1018886 806.763 1 548 484

Total operating expenses 5.357 060 5.476.438 5,725 563 5 476,724 11 082 623 2,652 981

Operating ncome (loss) 465 199 484 912 (1923436) (1 771 872) (1458237) 662 873

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES!
lrwestment earnmgs 66 996 43 412 487 546 504 635 554 542 65 480
Sundry 92 997 112106 2220 22822 95 217
Interest expense (36132) (37 619) (442.426) (472 825) (478 558)

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 123 861 117 899 47 340 54 632 171 201 65 480
Income (loss) before capital contnbutons

and transfers 589 060 602 811 (1 876 096) (1 717 240) (1287036) 728 353

Capital contributions 4 929 075 2,899 058 7 828 133
Transfers out (965 368) (1 008 038) (3.080) (3 354) (968.448)

Change n net position 4 552 767 (405 227) 1 019 882 (1 720 594) 5.572 649 728,353

Net position beginning 45 662 058 46 067,285 63 169 234 64 889 828 108.831 292 1 760 168

Net position ending $ 50 214 825 $ 45 662 058 $ 64 189 116 $ 63 169 234 S 114.403 941 $ 2.488 521

See accompanying notes to the financia l statements
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Exhubrt I
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31 2019
(with comparative information for December 31 2018)

Business·type Activities Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities
Utility Utility Sewer Sewer Year Internal

Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and users $s 5.936 577 s 6 181 203 $ 3.767 823 $ 3 634 238 s 9 704.400 s 3.377 516
Payments to suppliers (3,329 430) (3 382.687) (3.065 756) (2 921 813) (6 395.186) (2,621 990)
Payments to employees (416 854) (597 759) (352 076) (484.497) (768.930)
Payments for nterfund services used (131 823) (105 330) (104,410) (106.545) (236.233)

Net cash flows provded by (used n)
operating actrvrtes 2 058 470 2 095 427 245 581 121 383 2 304 051 755.526

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from other funds (115,700)
Transfer out paid for tax equ valent (965 368) (1 008.038) (3.080) (3 354) (968 448)

Net Cash F ows from Noncapital F nancng (965 368) (1 008.038) (3.080) (3 354) (968.448) (115.700)
Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances to other funds (16 500) (16.000) (16 500)
Proceeds on disposal of asset 22822
Payments on capta debt (55 000) (55 000) (1 244 628) (1 214 724) (1 299 628)
Payments from other governments 1 244 628 1 214 723 1244628
Interest on capita debt (34 730) (36,180) (447 535) (477 808) (482 265)
Acquisition of capital assets (1 359 407) (192.326) (130.748) (471 233) (1 490 155)

Net cash provided (used) by capital (1 465 637) (299 506) (578.283) (926220) (2.043 920)
and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings 66 996 43.413 482.437 504.635 549 433 65.480

Net cash provided (used) by investing actvties 66 996 43 413 482.437 504 635 549433 65.480

Net increase (decrease) mn cash
and cash equivalents (305 539) 831 296 146.655 (303 556) (158 884) 705.306

Cash and cash equivalents Begmrnng 2.731.422 1900126 1 383.225 1 686 781 4 114647 1 986.494

Cash and cash equivalents Ending $ 2.425 883 s 2731 422 s 1 529 880 s 1 383 225 $ 3.955 763 $ 2,691 800

Cash and Investments Unrestrcted s 2.425 883 s 2731 422 s 1 049 880 s 1 383 225 $ 3.475 763 $s 2.691 BOO
Cash and Investments Restricted 480 000 480000

s 2.425 883 s 2 731 422 $ 1 529,880 $ 1 383 225 $ 3.955 763 s 2.691 800

Continued

See accompanying notes to the financial sta tements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

(with comparative information for December 31 2018)

Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds
Water
Utility

Current Year

Water Sanitary Sanitary
Utility Sewer Sewer

Prior Year Current Year Prior Year

Current
Year
Totals

Governmental
Activities
Internal

Service Funds

$ 2058470 $ 2 095.427 $ 245 581 $ 121383 $ 2304 051 $ 755 526

$ 465.199 $ 484 912 $ (1923 436) $(1771 872) $ (1.458 237) $ 662 873

1 245.740 1 204,485 2172 379 2 135 076 3.418119
12 809 12 927 (12 809) (12 750}
42 059 130 666 42 059
92 997 118 006 92 997

4498 74 125 (29 651) (103 322) (25 153) 61 662
11.409 (11 538) (10 067) (11 871) 1342
2 291 (2 291) 2 291 (2 291) 4 582 3 045

39 260 44 579
918 (4 960) 918 (4 960) 1 836

$ 7828 133

182 720 49 363 41 489 (179 912) 224 209
540 339 8 686 1 364 9 226

(55 014) (20 908)
2139 50 586 630 43 688 2 769

(10.263) 4 562 (10 263) 4 562 (20 526)
5414 5 414 10 828

1 593,271 1.610 515 2 169 017 1893255 3 762 288

27 946

92 653

$ 2899058$$ 4929075

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash flows provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Depreciation allocated to other funds
Amortization
Nonoperating revenues
(Increase) decrease mn assets and deferred
outflows of resources
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Prepaid expense
Due from other funds
Deferred outflows of resources

Increase (decrease) m liabilities and deferred inflow
of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Pension obligations
Post employment retirement benefit
Deferred nflows of resources

Total adjustments
Net cash flows provided by (used in)
operating activities

Noncash Capital Activities
Cos1 of Utility plant installed and/or financed

by external parties or the City

See accompany ng notes to the financal statements.
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Exhibit J
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
As of December 31, 2019

City of Franklin
Defined Benefit City of Franklin

Custodial Retirement Post Employment
Funds Income Plan Benefits Trust

ASSETS
Cash $ 59 903 922 $ $ 222 237
Investments
Fred Income Securities 4 622 948 1946434
Domestic Equrtes 4 458 815 3 939 768
International Equrttes 1,514,407 449,569
Total Cash & Investments 59 903 922 10 596 170 6 558 008

Taxes receivable 15 412 512
Accounts recervable 1,688

Total assets 75,318,122 10,596,170 6,558,008

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 24 569 $ $ 9 248
Accrued liabilities 10 000
Due to other governments 75 274 916
Specal deposits 18,637

Total liabilities 75,318,122 19 248

NET POSITION
Restricted for post employment benefits 10,596,170 6,538,760

Total Net Position $ $ 10,596 170 $ 6 538 760

See accompanying notes to the financal statements
Page 38



Ehubt K
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

ADDITIONS
Tax collections
Contnbut1ons
City of Franklin
Retirees

Net investment earnings (losses)
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Tax distributions
Incurred claims
Prescription drug claims
Clamms fees
Stop loss premiums less claims received

Total deductions

Custodial
Funds

$ 72 779 386 $

72 779 386

72 779 386

72 779 386

City of Franklin
Defined Benefit
Retirement
Income Plan

178 174
79 397

1 732,648
1 990,219

504 915

504,915

City of Franklin
Post Employment
Benefits Trust

$

377 172
153 829

1,101 085
1 632,086

79 674
119 408
43 059
80,589

322 730

Change in net position

Net position beginning

Net position - ending

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying summary of the City of Franklin s (the City') more significant accounting
policies Is presented to assist the reader In InterpretIng the financial statements and other data m
this report These policies as presented should be reviewed as an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements The accounting pol1c1es of the City conform to accounting
pnnc1ples generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units
A summary of the significant accounting policies follows

A REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the City The reporting entity for the City consists of the
primary government and its component units Component units are legally separate organizations
for which the primary government Is f1nanc1ally accountable or other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship wth the primary government are such that their
exclusion would cause the reporting entity s financial statements to be m1slead1ng The pnmary
government is financially accountable if (1) it appoints a voting majority of the organization's
governing body and rt is able to impose its will on that organization (2)it appoints a voting mayorty
of the organization s governing body and there is a potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the pnmary government (3) the
organization Is fiscally dependent on and there 1s a potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the primary government
Certain legally separate tax exempt organizations should also be reported as a component unit
1f all of the following criteria are met (1) the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government its
component units or its constituents (2) the primary government or its component units 1s entitled
to or has the ability to access a maJority of the economic resources received or held by the
separate organization and (3) the economic resources received or held by an individual
organization that the primary government or its component units Is entitled to or has the ability
to otherwise access are significant to the primary government

Component units are reported using one of two methods discrete presentation or blending
Generally component umts should be discretely presented mn a separate column in the financial
statements A component unit should be reported as part of the primary government using the
blending method if it meets any one of the following criteria ( 1) the primary government and the
component umt have substantively the same governing body and a financial benefit or burden
relat1onsh1p exists (2) the pnmary government and the component unit have substantively the
same governing body and management of the primary government has operational respons1bIhty
for the component unit (3) the component unit serves or benefits exclusively or almost
exclusively the primary government rather than its c1tIzens or (4) the total debt of the component
umt will be paid entirely or almost entirely from resources of the primary government The City
has not 1dent1fied any component units required to be discretely presented
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A REPORTING ENTITY (continued)

Blended Component Unit

The Community Development Authority (Authority) was created by the City m 1992 to serve as a
financing vehicle for certamn Tax Incremental Districts (TlD) development wthin the City That
District was closed mn 2012 The Authority 1s governed by a seven member board appointed by
the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council Although It Is legally separate from the City
the Authority is reported as If it were part of the primary government because its sole purpose Is
to finance and manage certain Tl D development projects for the benefit of the City The Authority
had no financial transactions during 2019 nor does the Authority own any assets or hable for any
debt Therefore no financial statements are presented m this report The Authority does not issue
separate financial statements

8 GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In January 2017 the GASB issued statement No 84 - Fiduciary Act1v1tles This statement
establishes crttera for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments for
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported Th1s
standard was implemented January 1 2019 As a result of the 1mplementat1on of this standard
the City of Franklin s Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan Pension Trust has been included
In the reporting of the City s Fiduciary Funds

In March 2018 the GASB issued statement No 88 - Certam Dtsclosures Related to Debt
mcludmg Direct Borrowmgs and Direct Placements This Statement defines debt for purposes of
disclosure In notes to financial statements and establishes add1tIonal financial statement note
disclosure requirements related to debt obligations of governments including direct borrowings
and direct placements This standard was implemented January 1 2019

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position (Exhibit A) and statement of activities (Exhibit B) display information
about the reporting government as a whole They include all funds of the reporting entity except
for fiduciary funds The statements distinguish between governmental and business type
activities Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes intergovernmental
revenue and other non-exchange revenue Business-type activities are financed in whole or in
part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services provided

The statement of actIvIt1es demonstrates the degree that direct expenses of a given segment or
function are offset by program revenue Direct expenses are those that are clearly 1dent1fiable
with a specific function or segment The City does not allocate all 1nd1rect expenses to functions
in the statement of act1vItIes Program revenue includes 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase use or directly benefit from goods services or pnv1leges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment Taxes and other items not mcluded
among program revenue are reported as general revenue Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenue rather than as program revenue
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reporting entity are organ1zed into funds wth a fund considered to be
a separate accounting entity Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self­
balancmg accounts that constitute its assets deferred outflows of resources llab1ht1es deferred
inflows of resources net pos1t1on/fund equity revenue and expenditures/expenses Funds are
organized as major funds or nonmajor funds wthin the governmental and enterprise fund
statements An emphasis rs placed on mayor funds within the governmental and enterprise
categories

A fund is considered mayor if It is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the following
cntena

a Total assets and deferred outflows hab1l1t1es and deferred inflows revenue or
expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10
percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type

b The same element of the indrvdual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met the 10
percent test Is at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined

c In add1t1on any other governmental or enterprise fund that the City believes 1s important
to financial statement users may be reported as a mayor fund

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds wth the latter bemng excluded from government-wde financial statements Mayor
Individual government funds and mayor mnddual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns 1n the fund financial statements

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - accounts for the City s primary operating actvties lt is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted form another fund

Debt Service Fund - accounts for resource accumulation from taxes special assessments and
other revenue along with payments made for principal and interest on long term debt other
than enterprise fund debt

TIF Districts Fund - accounts for resource accumulation from tax increments and other revenue
of the TIO along with payments made for capital outlay other expenditures principal and
interest on long-term debt obligations of the Tl Os Each TID 1s a sub fund of the TIO Fund
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Major Enterprise Funds (continued)

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated m a
manner s1m1lar to private business where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses Including deprecation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
cont1nu1ng basis be financed or recovered pnmanly through user charges or (b) where the
governing body has decided that penod1c determmat1on of revenue earned expenses incurred
and/or net income is appropriate for capital mamtenance public policy management control
accountab1hty or other purposes

Water Utility Fund - accounts for operations of providing water services to City residents and bills
for those services

Santtary Sewer Fund - accounts for the operations of providing sanitary sewer services for City
residents and bills for those services

In addrton the Crty reports

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds - account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than maJor
capital proJects) that are legally or policy restricted to expenditures for specified purposes
The funds include Library Operating Library Aux1l1ary Solid Waste Collection Tourism
Commission St Martin s Farr Donaton CcCelebrations and Grant

Capital ProJects Funds - account for resources accumulated to be used for the purchase of
equipment street replacement acquisition of land and the construction of capital
improvement projects The funds include Capital Outlay Equipment Replacement Capital
Improvement Street Improvement Ut1l1ty Improvement and Development

Other Fund Types

Internal Service Funds - account for the payment by the City for active employees of group health
and dental charges for services and stop loss insurance charges and the billing of
departments or agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement basis for the services received

Custodial Funds - used to account for and report assets controlled by the City and the assets are
for the benefit of mndvduals private organizations and for other governmental entities

Employee Benefit Trust Funds - used to account for and report resources that are required to be
held mn trust for the members and beneficiaries of defined benefit plans and other post­
employment benefit plans
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wde statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting Under the accrual
basis of accounting revenue Is recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the
liability Is incurred or economic asset used Revenue expenses gains losses assets deferred
inflows hab11ities and deferred outflows resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions
are recognized when the exchange takes place Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the
year that they are levied for

Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows of
resources Grants and similar ttems are recognzed as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are met Special assessments are recorded as revenue
when earned Receivables are recorded as revenue when services are performed At December
31 2019 there were $405 676 of ant1c1pated future assessments This 1s not reported as
receivables because collection 1s subJect to certain events occurring in the future and no formal
repayment schedule has been established

As a general rule the effect of mterfund actr11Ity has been eliminated from the government wide
financial statements Exceptions to thus general rule are charges between the City s Water Utility
and Sanitary Sewer fund and various other functions of the government EhmmatIon of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions
concerned

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting Revenue Is recorded when it
Is both measurable and available Available means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period For thus purpose the City
considers grant revenue to be available 1f they are collected within 150 days of the end of the
current fiscal penod and all other revenue to be available 1f they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period Expenditures are recorded when the related fund hab11ity Is
incurred except for unmatured interest on long-term debt claims Judgments compensated
absences and pension expenditures which are recorded as a fund hab1hty when due and payable

Property taxes are recorded the year levied as receivable and deferred inflow of resources and
are recognized as revenue the next year when services financed by the levy are provided

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenue in the perod the City is entitled to
the resources and the amounts are available Amounts owed to the City are recorded as
receivables Amounts not available or received prior to the entitlement perod are recorded as
deferred inflows of resources
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
(continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Special assessments levied for benefits to property owners for installation of sanitary sewers
water mains roads and other improvements are recorded as revenue when they become
measurable and available Annual installments due In future years are recorded as receivables
and deferred inflows of resources

Revenue susceptible to accrual includes property taxes room taxes public charges for services
and interest Other general revenue such as permits fines and forfeitures licenses and
miscellaneous revenue are recognized when received or when measurable and available under
the cntena mentioned above

Deferred inflows of resources are reported on the governmental funds balance sheet Deferred
inflows of resources anse from taxes leved mn the current year that are for subsequent year's
operations For governmental fund financial statements unearned revenues arise where potential
revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current
period Unearned revenue arises when resources are received before the City has a legal claim
to them as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures In
subsequent periods when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the City has a legal
claim to the resources the liability Is removed from the balance sheet and revenue 1s recognized

Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating Items
Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and dehvenng goods
In connection with the proprietary fund s principal operations The principal operating revenue of
the Water and Sanitary Sewer funds are charges to customers for sales and services provided
The rates billed mn the Water Utility are approved by the Public Service Commission Sanitary
sewer charges are billed at rates established by City policy based on the charges received from
the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage D1stnct and local operation and maintenance expenses
The principal operating revenue of the internal service fund ts charges to other funds for group
health coverage

Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services administration
and deprecation on capital assets Revenue and expenses not meeting thus definition are
reported as non operating revenue and expenses

All Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements m conformity with accounting pnnc1ples generally
accepted mn the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amount of assets and liab1lit1es and disclosure of contingent
assets and llab11it1es at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period Actual results could vary from those
estimates
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

1 Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows the City considers all highly hqu1d investments with
an 1mt1al maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents

The City of Franklin maintains two investment policies The first covers all funds except fiduciary
funds for retiree health purposes The objective of this poltcy Is to generate current income
consistent with safety and reasonable risk as defined under prudent person rules As operating
reserves the quality hqu1d1ty and maturity structure of the portfolio are most important The
investment policy

a Requires a minimum rating at time of purchase of Aa3 by either Moody s or Standard &
Poor's

b L1m1ts an issuer to 10% or less and asset classes to 35% or less of the fair value of the
portfolio with the exception of U S Government Treasury and Agency securities that have
the full faith guarantee of the U S Government

c Specifies a minimum amount of cash equivalents be mamntaned an average life of the
portfolio not exceeding 6 years and no 1nd1v1dual issue with a maturity exceeding seven
years at the date of purchase to l1m1t interest rate risk

d Lumtts Investments highly sensttve to market changes through its duration and
diversification policies to limit interest rate risk

e Prohibits the investment in foreign owned securities
f L1m1ts derivative investments to those with a final maturity of seven years or less

In add1t1on the City s investment policy restricts allowable investments to investments that follow
state statutes section 66 0603 which limits investments to

a Time deposits in any credit union bank savings bank trust company or loan assocIatIon
authorized to transact business m the state and maturing in three years or less

b The Local Government Investment Pool (LG\P)
c Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government
d Bonds or securities of any county city drainage district technical college district village

town or school d1stnct of the State of Wisconsin Also bonds issued by a local exposition
district a local professional baseball park district a local professional football stadium
district a cultural arts district or by the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics
Authority and the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority

e Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest
rating category assigned of a nationally recognized rating agency

f Securities of an open-ended management investment company or investment trust
subject to various conditions and investment options

g Repurchase agreements wIth public depositories with certain conditions
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

1 Cash and Investments (continued)

The second investment policy Is for its fiduciary fund for retiree health purposes The policy

a Requires the investment to be in a section 115 trust for retiree health purposes
b Requires compliance with the prudent person standard
c Requires asset allocation policy that considers the liab1hty stream of benefits the

relat1onsh1p to current and projected assets the historical performance of capital markets
and the perception of future economic conditions

d Primary Investment objectives are safety diversification and return
e Allows investment In various asset classes
f Limits investment in equities to 75% of total assets to be invested

The City manages the various risks m its cash and investments as follows

a Custodial credit risk - investments are held by a trustee or third party custodian
- deposits In excess of FDIC insurance limits are maintained

In the State LGIP or secured bank balances In
amounts of at least 75% of the year end cash balances

b Credit nsk - securities purchased need to have an AA or better investment rating
c Concentration of credit nsk - issuer or asset class not to exceed 10% of the market value

of the portfolio with the exception of U S issued securrtes
d Interest rate nsk - managed by l1m1ting the length of maturity of newly purchased

investments and hm1ts the average life of the portfolio to control rsk

Investments are stated at fair value which Is the amount at which an investment could be
exchanged mn a current transaction between willing parties Fair values are based on methods
and inputs as outlined in Note 3 A No investments are reported at amortized cost

Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value are recorded In the operating statement
as increases or decreases m investment income (loss) Investment income (loss) on commingled
investments of various City Funds Is allocated based on average investment balances

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) Is part of the State Investment Fund
(SIF) and Is managed by the State ofW1scons1n Investment Board The SIF is not registered with
the Securities and Exchange Commission but operates under the statutory authority ofWisconsin
Chapter 25 The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually PartIcIpants m the
LGIP have the right to withdraw funds In total on one days notice At December 31 2019 the fair
value of the City s share of LGIP assets was substantially equal to the amount reported In these
statements
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

2 Receivables

Property taxes are levied In December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1 In addition
to property taxes for the murnc1pallty taxes are collected for and remitted to the state government
county government three local school d1stncts technical college district and metropolitan
sewerage district Taxes for all other governmental units billed m the current year for the
succeeding year are reflected as receivables and due to other taxing units on the accompanying
fiduciary funds statement of fiduciary net position within the reported Custodial Funds The Sold
Waste fee 1s billed and collected along with Property Taxes

Property tax calendar - 2019 tax roll

Lien date and levy date
Tax bills mailed
Payment mn full or
FIrst installment due
Second installment due
Third installment due
Personal property taxes in full
Fmnal tax settlement wth County
Tax deed by County - 2019
Delinquent real estate taxes

December 2019
December 2019
January 31 2020
January 31 2020
March 31 2020
May 31 2020
January 31 2020
August 20 2020

October 2022

Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts No
provision for uncollectible accounts receivable has been made for enterprise funds because of
their right by law to place delinquent bills on the tax roll

Dunng the course of operations transactions occur between ind1v1dual funds that may result In
amounts owed between funds Short-term mterfund loans are reported as due to and from other
funds Long term interfund loans are reported as advances from and to other funds

Interfund receivables and payables between funds wthin governmental activities are eliminated
m the statement of net pos1tIon Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and the business-type activities are reported mn the government wde financial
statements as internal balances

In the general fund financial statements advances to other funds are offset equally by
nonspendable fund balance which 1nd1cates that they do not constitute expendable available
financial resources and therefore are not available for appropriation Advances in all other
governmental funds are classified 1n fund balance based on the ava1lab1hty of repayments for use
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

3 Inventories and Prepaid Items

Governmental fund inventory items except fuel inventory are charged to expenditures when
purchased The fue inventory s recorded at cost on a first-in first-out basis using the consumption
method of accounting The cost of such inventories ts recorded as expenditures/expenses when
consumed rather than when purchased Year-end inventory was not significant

Proprietary fund mventones are generally used for construction and for operation and
maintenance work They are not for sale Material and supplies on hand at year end are
considered mmmater1al

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items m both government-wide and fund financial statements The cost of
prepaid Items Is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when
purchased

4. Restricted Assets

Mandatory segregation of assets are presented as restricted assets Such segregation Is required
by agreements wth external parties Current liabilities payable from restricted assets are so
classified The Pension Asset 1f any 1s reported as restricted This asset represents funds held
by the Plan Trust which can only be used to settle Plan obligations The excess of restricted
assets over current llab11it1es will be used first for equipment replacement The remainder 1f
generated from earnings is shown as restricted net positron

5. Benefit Obligations

For purposes of measuring the net pension obligations (assets) deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense 1nformatIon about
the fiduciary net positions of the Wisconsin Retirement System (RS) and the City of Franklin
Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan (DPW) and additions to/deductions from WRS and
DPW s fiduciary net posItIon have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
WRS and DPW For this purpose benefit payments (mcludmg refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms Investments are
reported at fair value
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

5 Benefit Obligations (continued)

For purposes of measuring the net OPES l1ab1hty deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense information about the fiduciary net
position of the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust and additions to/deductions
from the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trusts fiduciary net posIt1on have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the City of Franklin Post Employment
Benefits Trust For this purpose the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
recognizes benefit payments when due and payable In accordance with the benefit terms
Investments are reported at fair value except for money market investments and part1cIpatIng
interest-earning investment contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year
or less which are reported at cost

6 Caprtal Assets

Government-Wide Statements

Capital assets which include property plant and equipment are reported mn the government-wide
financial statements Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an 1nit1al cost
of more than $5 000 for general capital assets and $25 000 for infrastructure assets with
estimated useful lives of two years or more Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost 1f actual amounts are not available Donated capital assets are recorded
at acquisition value at the date of donation Additions to and replacements of capital assets of
business-type activities are recorded at original cost which Includes material labor and
overhead

The cost of renewals and betterments relating to retirement units 1s added to plant accounts The
cost of property replaced retired or otherwise disposed of 1s deducted from plant accounts and
generally together with removal costs less salvage is charged to the applicable function

Deprec1at1on of all exhaustible capital assets Is recorded as an allocated expense mn the statement
of activities with accumulated depreciation reflected mn the statement of net position Deprecation
IS provded over the assets estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of deprecation
The range of useful hves by asset type follows

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Water and sewer infrastructure
Infrastructure
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

6 Capital Assets (continued)

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquIsItIon Capital
assets used In proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same In the government-wide
statements

7 Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of Resources

A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net pos1t1on/fund balance that
applies to a future penod and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that future time A deferred inflow of resources represents an
acquisition of net position/fund balance that applies to a future period and therefore will not be
recognized as an mnflow of resources (revenue) until that future tmme

In governmental funds property taxes receivable special assessments and interest revenue not
yet due are not recognized as revenue in the current period For the government wide and
proprietary fund type financial statements special assessments and interest revenue are
recognized as revenue in the current period Thus leaves property tax recervable as a deferred
Inflow of resources mn the statement of net position

Certamn ttems affect the net pension obligation (asset) are amortized over the period determined
to be affected by the change The balance at year end of these items Is reported as deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources section of the statement of net posItIon

8 Compensated Absences

Under terms of employment employees may earn compensatory time and are granted sick leave
severance pay and vacations 1n varying amounts Only benefits considered to be vested are
disclosed m these statements All vested compensatory time severance pay and vacation pay
are accrued when incurred mn the government-wde proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements A llab11ity for these amounts Is reported In governmental funds only 1f they have
matured For example a llab11ity as a result of employee res1gnatIons or retirements are payable
with expendable available resources
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmued)

D ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

8 Compensated Absences (continued)

Payments for vested compensatory time severance pay and vacation pay will be made at rates
m effect when the benefits are used Accumulated vested compensatory time severance pay and
vacation pay liabilities are determined on the basis of current salary rates and Include salary
related payments Vacation and compensatory time are used on a first-in first-out basis
Accordingly all accrued amounts are considered to be due within one year Severance due wIthm
one year Is estimated based on employee age and expected retirement

9 Long-term Obligations/Conduit Debt

All long-term obhgat1ons to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are
reported as liabilities in the government wde statements The long-term obl1gat1ons consist of
notes and bonds payable and accrued compensated absences

Long term obhgat1ons for governmental funds are not reported as hab1ht1es In the fund financial
statements The face value of debt (plus any premium) Is reported as other financing sources and
payments of principal and interest are reported as expendrtures The proprietary fund accounting
Is the same as It Is in the government wde statements

For the government-wide statements and proprietary fund statements bond premiums and
discounts are amortized over the life of the issue using the interest rate method The balance at
year end Is shown as an increase or decrease m the hab1hty section of the statement of net
position

The City has approved issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (IDRB) for the benefit
of private business enterprises IDRB s are secured by mortgages or revenue agreements on
associated proJects of the business enterprises The IDRB s do not constitute indebtedness of the
City Accordingly the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the financial statements Two series
of Industrial Revenue Bonds ong1nally issued with an aggregate principal amount of $8 375 000
are outstanding with a December 31 2019 balance of $4 025 000

10 Claims and Judgments

Clamms and judgments are recorded as liabilities If all the conditions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements are met Claims and Judgments that would normally be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded during the year as
expenditures in the government funds If they are not to be hqu1dated with expendable available
financial resources no labrltty Is recognized mn governmental fund financial statements The
related expenditure ts recognized when the liability is liquidated Clamms and judgments are
recorded in the government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses when the related
liabilities are incurred There were no significant clamms or judgments at year end
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

11 Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity Is classified as net position and displayed in three components

a Net Investment mn capital assets - Consists of capital assets net of accumulated
deprecation reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds mortgages notes or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acqu1s1t1on construction or improvement of those
assets Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are
attributable to the acqu1s1tIon construction or improvement of those assets or related debt
are also Included mn thus component of net position

b Restricted net position -Consists of net position wth constraints placed on their use either
by 1) external groups such as creditors granters contributors or laws or regulations of
other governments or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation and
includes restricted assets reduced by l1abiht1es related to those assets Generally a hab1hty
relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also results mn the
recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated wth the restricted assets reported

c Unrestricted net pos1tIon - The net amount of the assets deferred outflows of resources
hab1llt1es and deferred inflows of resources that are not included m the determ1natIon of
net investment m capital assets or the restricted components of net pos1t1on

The net posIt1on section includes an adJustment for capital assets owned by the business type
act1v1tIes column but financed by the debt of the governmental actIvItIes column The amount 1s
a reduction of net investment 1n capital assets and an Increase in unrestricted' net position
shown only mn the total column A reconc1l1at1on of this adjustment Is as follows

Net investment m capital assets
Unrestncted

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

$ 123 769 857 $ 92 371 165
(11675211) 3997 436

Adjustment Total
$ (3 504 400) $ 212 636 622

3 504 400 (4173 375)

When both restncted and unrestricted resources are available for use 1t 1s the City s polcy to use
restricted resources first then unrestricted resources as they are needed
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

11 Equity Classifications (continued)

Fund Statements

Fund balance of governmental funds Is reported m various categories based on the nature of any
l1m1tat1ons requiring the use of resources for specific purposes The government itself can
establish hm1tat1on on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance)

The committed fund balance class1ficat1on includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the government s highest decision making authority
The governing council is the highest level of decision making authority for the government that
can by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year commit fund balance Once
adopted the limitation imposed by the ordinance remamns mn place until a similar action Is taken
(the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the hm1tat1on The City does not report
any committed fund balance

Amounts mn the assigned fund balance class1ficat1on are intended to be used by the government
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed The governing
council (Common Council) has by resolution authorized the Director of Finance & Treasurer to
assign fund balance (Resolution 2014 7025) The Common Council may also assign fund balance
as 1t does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and
appropriations In the subsequent years appropriated budget Unlike commitments assignments
generally only exist temporarily In other words as add1t1onal action does not normally have to be
taken for the removal of an assignment Conversely as discussed above an add1t1onal action Is
essential to either remove or revise a commitment

When committed assigned and unassigned resources are available for use rt is the City s policy
to use committed resources first then assigned resources and then unassigned resources as
they are needed

The City has adopted a fund balance policy (Res 2016-7216) for all governmental funds
supported by tax levy as follows the ratio of year end fund balance to current year Expenditures
shall target a range between 20 and 30% The amount of Fund Balance will be taken into
cons1derat1on when establishing the following years budget At least 15% of the succeeding year
expenditure budget be ma1nta1ned for working capital Any non-spendable fund balance of the
General Fund shall be excluded from the ratio As of the year ended December 31 2019 the City
exceeded the 30% upper level by 3 5%
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

12 Comparative Data

The basic financial statements include comparative data for the pror year for individual enterprise
funds mn the fund financial statements mn order to provide an understanding of the changes mn
financial position and operations of these funds This comparative data Is not at the level of detail
required for a presentation in conformity wth general accepted accounting principles Accordingly
such mnformation should be read mn conjunction with the City s financial statements for the year
ended December 31 2018 from which the data was derived Also certain amounts presented In
the pnor year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year s
presentation

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information Is derived from the annual operating budget and 1s presented using the
same basis of accounting for each fund as described 1n Note 1 C with the exception of
encumbrances transfers from the General Fund to Special Revenue Funds and tax equivalent
from the Water Ut1hty Actual (budgetary basis) expenditures presented reflect actual (GAAP)
expenditures adJusted for expenditures budgeted under the pnor period and encumbrances
expected to be liquidated under the current period budget Actual (budgetary basis) revenue
presents the tax equivalent from the Water Ut1hty as tax revenue while GAAP basis statements
present this item as a transfer

A budget has been adopted for the General Debt Service TIO #3 TIO #4 TIO #5 Library
Operating Library Auxiliary Sold Waste Collection Cvc Celebrations St Martin s Farr
Donations Grant Tourism Capital Outlay Equipment Replacement Capital Improvement Street
Improvement Ut1hty Improvement Development Sanitary Sewer and Water Utility funds

The budget amounts presented include any amendments made during the year The City may
authorize transfers of budget amounts w1thm departments Transfers between departments and
changes to the overall budget must be approved by a two thirds vote of the Common Council
Supplemental appropriations during the year were not significant Appropratons lapse at the end
of the year unless specifically earned over Carryovers to the following year were not s1gmficant
Budgets are adopted for personnel and non personnel expenditures at the function level
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

8. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY'S TAX LEVY

Wisconsin law limits the City's future tax levies Generally, the City is limited to its prior tax levy
dollar amount (excluding TIF Districts and Debt Service Levy), increased by the greater of the
percentage change in the City's equalized value due to new construction or zero percent
Changes in debt service from one year to the next are generally exempt from this limit with certain
exceptions The City is required to reduce its allowable levy by the estimated amount of fee
revenue increase it collects for certain services, if those services were funded in 2013 by the
property tax levy Levies can be increased above the allowable limits If the amount is approved
by referendum The Solid Waste fee was enacted prior to this restriction

C. EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The City controls General Fund expenditures at the Department personnel and non-personnel
level (e g police personnel) Other funds are controlled act1v1ty level For the year ended
December 31 2019 the followng funds had expenditures exceeding budget

Budget Actual Excess Expenditures
Fund/Function Expenditures Expenditures Over Budget

General Fund
Public Health - Non-Personnel $ 73 250 $ 75 056 $ 1 806

Debt Service
Interest $ 135 188 $ 135 338 $ 150

Library Auxiliary Fund
Culture and recreation $ 47,520 $ 50 785 $ 3265

Solid Waste Fund
Public Works $ 1659501 $ 1660197 $ 696

St Martin's Fair Fund
Culture and recreation $ 52 756 $ 53,339 $ 583

Grant Fund
Public Safety $ 6,000 $ 6 299 $ 299

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is utilized by all funds Each fund's portion of
this pool is displayed on the statement of net position and balance sheet as cash and investments
of the City In addition, investments are separately held by several of the funds

Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC mn the amount of $250,000 for time
and savings accounts and $250,000 for demand deposit accounts (interest-bearing and
noninterest-bearing) In addrtion, if deposits are held in institutions outside of the state in which
the government is located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the
combined amount of all deposit accounts
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

The City's bank accounts are also insured by the State of W1sconsIn Deposit Guarantee Fund In
the amount of $400 000 per financial InstItutIon However although the fund had reserves
available at December 31 2019 the future ava1lab1l1ty of resources to cover the losses cannot be
proJected because provIsIons of the 1985 Wisconsin Act 35 provided that the amount in the fund
will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the appropnat1on 1s exhausted at which
time the fund 1s abolished This coverage has not been considered In computing custodial credit
nsk

The City mamntains a collateral arrangement wth its main bank to provide collateral1zat1on 1n
excess of deposits maintained at the bank The collateral Is maintained m the form of a letter of
credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank of C1ncmnat1 In the amount of $20 000 000

The City maintains both Non-FDIC insured and collaterallzed balances with an investment
manager that deposits funds with US Banks The funds are held in accounts As Agent for its
Customers The manager utilizes FDIC insurance third party insurance and Federal Home Loan
Bank letters of credit as collateral for balances

Cash and investments as shown on the December 31 2019 statement of net pos1t1on are subJect
to the following nsks

Carrying Bank & Investment
Value Balances Risks

Local Government Investment Pool $ 2 962 536 $ 2 962 536 Credit
Money market funds 280 709 280 709 Custodial credit
U S treasuries 7 056 406 7 056 406 Custodial credit and interest rate
Certificates of Deposit 4 745 475 4 745 475 Custodal credit
U S agencies 10 123 831 10 123 831 Credit custodal credit interest

rate and concentration of credit
Total fixed income investments 25 168 957 25 168 957

Equity funds 10 362 559 10 362 559 Custodal credit
Fed income funds 6 569 382 6 569 382 Credit and interest rate
Cash and demand deposits 92,436 357 81 827,947 Custodial credit
Total $ 134 537,255 $ 123 928,845

Reconc1llat1on to the financial statements Is shown below
Per Statement of Net PosItIon
Primary Government
Unrestricted cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

Per Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Custodial Fund
Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan Trust
City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk For deposits - Custodial credit risk ts the nsk that in the event of a financial
mst1tutIon failure the City s deposits may not be returned to the City As of December 31 2019
none of the City s total bank balances were uninsured and uncollaterahzed and therefore exposed
to custodial credit risk For investments - Custodial credit nsk is the risk that in the event of the
failure of the counterparty the City will not be able to recover the value of ,ts investments or
collateral securities mn the possession of an outside party All of the City s Investments have a tr
party relat1onsh1p with the investments held by a party independent of the party managing the
investment

Credit Risk Credit risk Is the nsk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fulfill tts obligation
The City s policy requires a minimum credit rating of Aa3 at time of purchase The City s fixed
Income Investments subject to credit risk include agencies securities corporate asset backed
securities corporate bonds government repurchase agreements and money market funds and
were rated by Moody s Investor Service

As of December 31 2019 98% of the fixed income investments were in rated fixed income
investments and subject to credit risk The ratings as a percentage of the total investment portfolio
were as follows Aa at 64% The portfolio makeup of fixed income investments was treasury and
agency securities at 64% Local Government Investment Pool at 11% and money market funds
at 1% The Local Government Investment Pool Is not rated Equities and fixed income mutual
funds held mn trust at 24% make up the remainder of the investments and are not indrvdually
rated

Concentration of Credit Risk Concentration of credit nsk Is the risk of loss attributed to a large
Investment position in a single Issuer As of December 31 2019 no issuer other than U S
Treasury and Agency secuntIes that have the full faith guarantee of the U S government had a
posItIon of greater than ten percent of the portfolio

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk Is the risk that rising interest rates will have an adverse mmpact
on the fair value of the investments in the portfolio The longer the matuntIes In the portfolio the
greater the risk of loss Is in portfolio value

The portfolio policy limits this risk by limiting the length of permitted investments and hm1ts the
purchase of investments highly sensitive to market changes
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

As of December 31 2019 the City s investments exposed to interest rate nsk were as follows

Farr Investment Maturity in years
Investment type Value Less than 1 2-3 4-5 6-7
US treasuries
and agencies $ 17 180 237 $ 6 557 472 $ 10 622 765 $ - $

Fred income funds 6,569 381 575 255 748 521 414 618 4 830 987
Total $ 23,749 618 $ 7 132 727 $ 11 371 286 $ 414 618 $ 4 830 987

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the far value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles The hierarchy 1s based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the far value of the asset Level 1 inputs are quoted prices mn active markets for identical
assets Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs

The valuation methods for recurring fair value measurements are as follows

Market approach - prices or other information from market transactions involving identical or
similar assets

As of December 31 2019
Investment Type
US treasures and agencies
Equity funds
Fpxed income funds
Total

Level 1
$

10 362 559
6 569 381

$16931 940

Level 2
$17 180 237

$17 180 237
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

B RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist of accounts taxes notes and special assessments from citizens and others
Receivables are reported net of uncollectible amounts The reserve for bad debts principally for
personal property taxes special assessments and ambulance revenue was $101 866 at
December 31 2019 Other than the special assessment receivables all other receivables are
expected to be collected wthin one year

Governmental funds report unavailable or unearned revenue in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period
Property taxes levied for the subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to lrqu1date
liabilities of the current period Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition tn connection
with resources that have been received but not yet earned At the end of the current fiscal year
the various components of unavailable revenue and unearned revenue reported in the
governmental funds were as follows

Unavailable Unearned Total
Governmental funds
Subsequent year property taxes $ - $ 26 531 924 $ 26 531 924
Impact fee note recervable 232 640 232 640
Intergovernmental grant receivable 943 000 943 000
Special assessments not yet due 428 100 428 100
Total deferred inflows of resources

for governmental funds $ 1 603 740 $ 26 531 924 $ 28 135 664
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

C DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

In 2011 the City entered mnto an Intergovernmental cooperation agreement wth another
government for the construction and financing of the Ryan Creek Interceptor Sewer The terms
of thus agreement include that the other government wll reimburse the City for substantially all of
the debt service costs resulting from the City taking on a State Clean Water Fund Loan Those
reimbursements will continue over the life of the loan ending mn 2031 This is presented as due
from other governments in the statement of net position Annual principal and Interest payments
to maturity received as part of this agreement are as follows

Year Ending Business type Activities
December 31 Principal Interest

2020 $ 1 275 272 $ 416 514
2021 1 306 669 384 730
2022 1 338 839 352 164
2023 1371 802 318 796
2024 1 405 575 284 607

2025 2029 7 564 314 879 993
2030 2031 3 292 870 81 563

Total $ 17 555 341 $ 2 718 367

D RESTRICTED ASSETS

In accordance wth the CIty s ordnance enacting a sewer user charge system and regulations of
the Department of Natural Resources the Sanitary Sewer Fund - an Enterprise Fund
incorporated an equipment replacement charge as a component of the rate structure to be used
for significant mechanical equipment replacement as required by the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources Revenue generated from this charge 1s accumulated and used for
replacement of certain equipment The balance in this account at December 31 20191s $480 000
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset actIv1ty for the year ended December 31 2019 was as follows

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets not depreciated
Land $ 25 109 551 $ 340 465 $ $ 25 450 016
Construction mn progress 6,611,711 4,625,507 1986 204

Total capital assets not depreciated 31,721,262 340,465 4,625,507 27 436 220
Capital assets depreciated
Buildings & Improvements 27 233 712 1 718 564 547 703 28 404 573
Machinery & equipment 18 894 992 1 232 411 103 645 20 023 758
Infrastructure 105 348,431 13,821,162 123 290 119 046 303

Total capital assets depreciated 151477,135 16,772,137 774 638 167,474,634

Less Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings & improvements 11611 127 725 873 491 181 11845 819
Machinery & equipment 12 103 127 1 022 648 82 933 13 042 842
Infrastructure 32,576,094 1,979,232 123,290 34 432,036

Total accumulated deprecation 56,290,348 3 727,753 697 404 59,320 697

Net capital assets depreciated 95 186,787 13 044 384 77 234 108 153 937

Governmental activities capital assets
net of accumulated depreciation $ 126,908 049 $ 13,384,849 $ 4,702,741 $ 135,590,157

Deprec1at1on expense was charged to functions as follows

Governmental Activities
General government
Pubhc safety
Public works
Health & human services
Culture & recreation
Conservation & development

Total governmental actvttes depreciation expense
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Dispositions Balance

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not depreciated
Land $ 888 479 $ $ $ 888 479
Construction in progress 63,054 2,345,266 1 247,634 1,160,686

Total capital assets not depreciated 951,533 2,345,266 1,247,634 2,049,165
Capital assets depreciated
Buildings & improvements 6 328 241 6 328 241
Machinery & equipment 6 004 067 213 923 88 751 6 129 239
Infrastructure 134,368,060 8,010,591 142,378,651

Total capital assets deprecated 146,700,368 8 224,514 88,751 154,836,131

Less Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings & improvements 1 924 170 207 696 2 131 866
Machinery & equipment 3 664 124 302 249 87 111 3 879 262
Infrastructure 37 032 807 2,908,173 39,940,980

Total accumulated depreciation 42,621 101 3,418,118 87,111 45 952 108

Net capital assets depreciated 104,079,267 4 806,396 1640 108,884,023

Business-type Activities Capital Assets
Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 105 030 800 $ 7,151,662 $ 1,249,274 $ 110 933,188

Deprec1at1on expense was charged to functions as follows

Business-Type Activities
Water
Sewer
Total Business-Type Actvties Deprecation Expense
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUN (continued)

F LEASE DISCLOSURES

OPERATING LEASES

The City has entered into several lease agreements wth telecommunications companies wheremn
the City has agreed to allow the use of water utility property for the purpose of telecommumcat1on
relays Revenue from thys activity totaled $157 666 for the year ended December 31 2019 Future
minimum lease payments receivable m conjunction with the leases are as follows

Governmental Business-Type
Actrties Actt es Total

2020 $ 69 907 $ 69 907 $ 139 814
2021 50 300 50 300 100 600
2022 50 207 50 207 100 414
2023 80 234 40 117 120 351
2024 30,707 30,707 61414
Total $ 281,355 $ 241 238 $ 522 593
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NOTE 3- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

G INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS

lnterfund receivables/payables result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods
and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur (2) transactions are recorded mn
the accounting system and (3) payments between funds are made In all cases amounts are
repard wrthrn one year

There were no rnterfund recervables and payables at December 31 2019

Advances

The City of Franklin provides short and long term advances to Its TIF DIstncts and Water Utility
The amounts advanced are either from proceeds of a borrowing or from fund reserves They are
used to enable the TIF Districts to carry out approved project plans The TIF DIstncts interest rate
Is based upon the interest rate incurred by the Debt Service Fund on its borrowings or the
reinvestment rate available to other funds The advances wll be repaid as the TIF District
resources are available In 2017 the City made an advance payment on the PublicWorks Defined
Benefit Pension Plan In doing so advanced $155 700 to the Water Utrhty on a ten year note to
aid the Water Utrhty portion of the payment In 2019 the Development Fund advanced $1 5 m1l11on
to TIF Dstrict 7 as funding for a 10-year Mortgage to a Developer The balances at December
31 2019 were

Receivable Fund
Development Due within

Payable Fund General Fund Total one year
TIF Districts $ 13 000 $ 1 500 000 $ 1 513 000 $ 13 000
Water Fund 123 200 123 200 16 750

$ 136 200 $ 1 500 000 $ 1 636,200 $ 29,750
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Transfers

Generally transfers are used to (1) move revenue from the funds that collect them to the fund
that the budget requires to expend them (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the
funds collecting the receipts to the Debt Serice Fund and (3) use unrestricted revenue collected
In the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations

Transfers as presented on the fund financial statements during the year ended December 31
2019 were as follows

Transfers Out
Nonmayor

General Debt Serice Governmental Enterprise Fund
Fund Fund Funds Funds Totals

Transfers In
General Fund $ $ $ $ 968 448 $ 968 448
Debt Serce Fund 323 419 323 419
Nonmayor Governmental Funds 52 100 92 000 212 631 356 731

Total $ 52,100 $ 92 000 $ 536 050 $ 968 448 $ 1 648,598

Current year transfers into the debt service fund from nonmayor governmental funds were
completed for principal and interest payments Transfers from the enterprise funds to the
general fund were for tax-equivalent payments All other transfers were completed for general
operational purposes and capital activities

A reconc1hat1on of fund statement transfers to government wide transfers for the year ended
December 31 2019 Is as follows

Governmental Enterprise
Funds Funds

Transfers In per fund statements $ 1 648 598 $
Transfers out per fund statements (680 150) (968 448)
Municipality finance addition to Utility Plant (5 934 954) 5,934 954
Government Wide Transfers $ (4 966 506) $ 4,966 506
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

General Obligation Debt

Long-term hab11it1es for the year ended December 31 2019 were as follows

Amounts
Beginning Ending due wthin
Balance Additions Deletions Balance one year

Governmental Activities
General oblgaton debt $ 30 010 000 $ 34 695 000 $ 11 405 000 $ 53 300 000 $ 6 090 000
Premium 150 083 363 931 67,616 446,398

Sub-total 30 160,083 35 058 931 11 472,616 53 746 398 6,090 000

Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 426 086 1 117 492 1068475 475 103 475 101
Accrued severance pay 1 407 466 152 658 81 548 1 478 576 73 200
Accrued compensatory time 175.601 270.485 251 381 194 705 194,704

Total compensated absences 2 009 153 1 540 635 1 401 404 2148 384 743 005

Net pension obligation WRS 3 258 799 3 258 799
Net pension obligation
City of Franklin Defined
Benefit Retirement Plan 253 833 1 196 342 1 450 175

Net OPEB obligation 2 455 573 663,669 1 791,904
Total benefit obligations 4718,559 5,995 776 2.065 073 8,649,262 743 005

Governmental activities
Long term liabilities $ 34 878 642 $ 41 054 707 $ 13,537 689 $ 62.395 660 $ 6 833 005
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H LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

General Obligation Debt (continued)

Amounts
Beginning Ending due within
Balance Add«tons Deletions Balance one year

Business-type Activities
General obligation debt $ 1070000 $ $ 55 000 $ 1 015 000 $ 55 000
General obligation bonds from
direct borrowngs 18 799 970 1 244 629 17 555 341 1275 272

DIscount (9,353) (1 035) (8,318)
Subtotal 19 860,617 1298594 18 562,023 1 330 272

Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 48182 42 592 43 052 47 722 47 722
Accrued severance pay 76 967 7 619 4 660 79 926 8 612
Accrued compensatory time 25,570 7 050 8 468 24152 24,152

Total compensated absences 150 719 57 261 56 180 151 800 80 486

Net OPEB obligation 48 578 20 526 28 052
Net pension oblgaton
City of Franklin Defined
Benefit Retirement Plan 123 895 583 929 707 824

Total Benefit Obhgat1ons 323 192 641190 76 706 887 676 80 486

Business-type activities
Long-term abilities $ 20,183,809 $ 641 190 $ 1,375,300 $ 19 449,699 $1,410,758
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (contrnued)

Details of general oblgaton notes and bonds payable as of December 31 2019 are as follows

Balance
Date of Interest Principal Interest Ognal Outstanding

Type Issue Rate Payable Payable Amount 12/31
General oblgation Refunding Bonds

4/20/2016 20% 3/1/17 21 3/1 & 9/1 $ 5 770 000 $ 2 210 000
General obligation Promissory Notes

12/18/14 20% 2 5% 3/1/15-24 3/18 9/1 5 320 000 1 350 000 '
General obligation Notes

12/21/17 25% 30% 3/1/19-27 3/1 & 9/1 1630000 1565000 4

Note Antcpation Note
5/1/18 25% 3 2% 3/1/19 23 3/1& 9/1 23 480 000 13 480 000 5

General obhgatron Bonds 2019A
2/20/19 30% 35% 3/1/20 32 3/1& 9/1 13 685 000 13 685 000 6

General obhgatron Bonds 2019B
2/20/19 30% 4 0% 3/1122 34 311 & 911 6 365 000 6 365 000 7

General obhgatron Bonds 2019C
12/4/19 1 75% 3 05% 3/1/22 37 3/1 & 9/1 12 360 000 12 360 000 8

General obhgatron Notes 2019D
12/4/19 20% 30% 3/1/20 27 3/18 9/1 2 285 000 2,285 000 +

Total Governmental Actrtes Debt $ 53 300 000

Business-type Activity Debt
General obhgatron Clean Water Fund Loan direct

1/25/12 246% 5/1/14 31 5/1 & 11/1 27 562 754 $ 17 555 341 2

General obhgatron Bonds
12/18/14 20% 3125% 3/1/15 34 3/18 9/1 1290000 1 015,000 3

Total Business-type Activities Debt $ 18 570 341

' Issued 63% for caprtal TIF purposes and 37% for general capital purposes 2 Issued for a
sewer extension on W Ryan Rd ° Issued for water building purposes Issued for general
Capital Improvement purposes ° Issued for capital TID 5 Infrastructure and developer grant
purposes ° Issued to Refund $10 mil of the 2018A NAN s and a Developer Grant In TID 3 '
Issued for infrastructure projects In TlD 6 °Issued to refund $4 million of the 2018A NAN
capital projects mn TID 5 & 7 and finance a Developer Mortgage In TID 7
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NOTE 3- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Annual principal and interest payments to maturity on general obligation notes and bonds
payable are as follows

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 $ 6 090 000 $ 1 319 205 $ 55 000 $ 29 738
2021 2 445 000 1359 683 60 000 28 288
2022 2 775 000 1289 339 60 000 26488
2023 11 770 000 1 064 703 60 000 24 688
2024 2 520 000 844 010 60 000 22 888

2025-29 15 490 000 3 050 546 335 000 85 263
2030-34 10 030 000 1 007 275 385 000 30 500
2034-37 2 180 000 92 900
Total $ 53,300,000 $ 10,027,661 $ 1 015,000 $ 247 853

Business-type Activities
­

Notes from Direct Borrowings
Principal Interest

2020 $ 1 275 272 $ 416 514
2021 1 306 669 384 730
2022 1 338 839 352 164
2023 1 371 802 318 796
2024 1 405 575 284 607

2025-29 7 564 313 879 993
2030-34 3,292,871 81,563

Total $ 17,555,341 $ 2,718,367

The City's statutory debt limit and margmn of indebtedness at December 31 2019 are
$218 013 450 and $146 143 109 respectively By City debt polcy the debt limit and margin of
Indebtedness limit are $87 205 380 (40% of the limit prescribed by law) and $15 335 039
respectively

In 2018 the City issued a municipal revenue obligation (MRO) as part of a development
agreement The amount of the obligation was $2 million and is payable to the developer solely
from tax increments collected from a development in TID #3 A $202 000 payment was made in
2019 The MRO bears interest at 4 5% payable March 1 annually The balance of the MRO was
$1 689 000 at December 31 2019

In 2018 the CIty issued a municipal revenue obligation (MRO) as part of a development
agreement The amount of the obligation was $3 5 m1lhon and 1s payable to the developer solely
from tax increments collected from a development mn TID #5 The MRO bears interest at 5 5%
payable March 1 annually No payments have been made on the MRO The balance of the MRO
was $3 5 mllon at December 31 2019
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H LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The obligations do not constitute a charge upon any funds of the City In the event that future tax
increments are not sufficent to pay off the obligations the obligations terminate with no further
l1ab1hty to the City Smee the amount of future payments Is contingent on the collection of future
TID Increments the obligation are not reported as a liability In the accompanying financial
statements The balance of the outstanding MRO pnnc1pal at year end was $5 189 000

The City's outstanding direct borrowing and I or direct placement related to business-type
activities of $17 555 341 contain a provision that in an event of default outstanding principal and
any accrued interest become 1mmed1ately due and payable

In February 2019 the City issued a $10680 000 General Obhgatton Bond to provide the
resources to pay $10 000 000 of the pnnc1pal balance on a $23 480 000 Note AntIc1patIon Note
sold mn May 2018

The 2018 NAN issue had the following obJect1ves 1) to finance the City commitment on a TID
proJect plan related to redevelopment of a closed landfill 2) provide long term financing for the
estimated $10 mllon sunk costs after the first year 3) provide flexibility on refunding the balance
of the NAN as increment was constructed so that future debt service could match up with
increment generation and 4) provide flex1b1hty to retire the NAN should the developer abandon
the project before completion

The $1 0 000 000 was due on March 1 2020 under the terms of the NAN The NAN had a true
interest cost of 3 2537% at time of sale The refunding 2019 issue had a true interest cost of
3 2990% The 2019 Refunding Bond will result mn $2 922 727 of interest thru March 1 2032

In December 2019 the City issued a $4 045 000 General Obligation Bond to refund $4 000 000
of the 2018 Note AntIc1patIon Notes on March 1 2020 (the earliest call date for the 2018 NAN)
The refunding issue has a true interest cost of 2 6477% Had the refunding not been 1rnt1ated the
City would have paid $448 000 of interest on the NANs until the final due date of March 1 2023
The refunding Bonds have a final due date of March 1 2035 and includes $1 006 950 of interest
over the term of the bonds
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES

Governmental Activities

Governmental actvttes net posttion reported on the government-wide statement of net position
at December 31 2019 include the following

Net rnvestment in capital assets
Land
Construction in process
Other capital assets net of accumulated deprec1at1on
Less related long term debt outstanding net
of unspent bond proceeds
Net rnvestment in capital assets

$ 25 450 016
1986 204

108 153 937

(11 820 300)
$ 123 769 857

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities net position reported on the government-wde statement of net position
at December 31 2019 mnclude the following

Net investment m capital assets
Land
Construction in process
Other capital assets net of accumulated deprecation
Less related long term debt outstanding
Net investment in capital assets
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued)

Governmental Fund Balances

Reported on the fund financial statements at December 31 2019 mnclude the following

$ 8 237 581

$ 5 670 849

$ 31531,130

$ 8 345 671
(108 090)

155,690

136 200
19 490

$ 132 393

491 711
2 528 062
2 012 476
506 207

$ 1118 560
2 194 797
8 833 459

17 307 511
161 342
198 561
710 872
455 125
80 952
469 951

$

$
Nonspendable fund balances
General Fund - advances
General Fund - prepaid items and inventory

Total nonspendable fund balance

Restricted fund balances
Debt service
Utility improvements
Development
TIF DIstncts
Donations
Health services
Library services
Solid waste
Recreational services
Tourism commission
Total restricted fund balance

Assigned Fund balances
General Fund - purchases on order
Capital Projects
Capita! outlay
Equipment replacement
Capital improvement
Street improvement
Total assigned fund blances

Unassigned fund balances
General Fund
TIF Districts (Deficit)
Total unassigned fund balances
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NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION

A DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

Wisconsin Retirement System (Protective Occupation Employees only)

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description The WRS Is a cost-sharng multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
WRS benefits and other plan prov1s1ons are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes
Benefit terms may only be modified by the legislature The retirement system 1s administered by
the W1scons1n Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF) The system provides coverage to all
eligible State of Wisconsmn local government and other public employees All employees Initially
employed by a part1c1pat1ng WRS employer on or after July 1 2011 and expected to work at least
1 200 hours a year (880 hours teachers and school d1stnct educational support employees) and
expected to be employed for at least one year from employees date of hire are eligible to
participate mn the WRS

ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Fmanc1al Report (CAFR) which can be found
at http //etf w1 gov/pubhcat1ons/cafr htm

Vesting For employees beginning part1c1pat1on on or after January 1 1990 and no longer
actively employed on or after Apnl 24 1998 creditable service in each of five years 1s required
for eligibility for a retirement annuity Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24
1998 and prior to July 1 2011 are Immediately vested Participants who initially became WRS
eligible on or after July 1 2011 must have five years of creditable service to be vested
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Benefits provided. Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupation
employees 62 for elected officials and executive service retirement partIcIpants 1f hired on or
before 12/31/2016) are entitled to retirement benefit based on a formula factor their average
earnmgs and creditable service

Final average earnings Is the average of the partIcIpant s three highest annual earnings penod
Creditable service includes current service and prior service for which a participant received
earnings and made contributions as required Creditable serce also includes creditable mlttary
service The retirement benefit will be calculated as a money purchase benefit based on the
employee's contributions plus matching employer's contributions with Interest tf that benefit Is
higher than the formula benefit

Vested particpants may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and receive an actuarially
reduced benefit Participants terminating covered employment prior to eligibility for an annurty
may erther recerve employee-required contributions plus interest as a separation benefit or leave
contributions on deposit and defer application until eligible to receive a retirement benefit

The WRS also provides death and d1sab1hty benefits for employees

Post-retirement adjustments The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adJust annuity
payments from the retirement system based on annual investment performance in accordance
with s 40 27 Wis Stat An increase (or decrease) In annuity payments may result when
investment gains (losses) together with other actuarial experience factors create a surplus
(shortfall) m the reserves as determined by the systems consulting actuary Annuity increases
are not based on cost of Iwvng or other similar factors For Core annu1tIes decreases may be
applied only to previously granted increases By law Core annuItIes cannot be reduced to an
amount below the original guaranteed amount (the 'floor') set at retirement The Core and
Variable annuity adJustments granted during recent years are as follows
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NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsm Retirement System (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Core Fund Variable Fund
Year Adjustment Adjustment

2009 (2 1) (42 0)%

2010 (1 3) (22 0)

2011 (1 2) 110

2012 (7 0) (70)

2013 (9 6) 90

2014 47 25 0

2015 29 20

2016 05 (5 0)

2017 20 40

2018 24 170

Contributions Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation In
accordance with Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes The employee required contribution 1s
one-half of the actuarially determined contnbut1on rate for General category employees mcludmg
Teachers Executives and Elected Officials Starting on January 1 2016 the Executives and
Elected Officials category merged into the General Employee category Required contributions
for protective employees are the same rate as general employees Employers are required to
contribute the remamnder of the actuarially determined contribution rate The employer may not
pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective bargamnmng
agreement

During the reporting period the WRS recognized $973 134 1n contributions from the employer

Pension LiabilitiesLiablty, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Contribution rates as of December 31 2019 are

Employee Category

Protective with Socal Security

Employee Employer

67% 107%
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NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension biabiUtiesliab1hty, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

At December 31 2019 the City reported a hab1l1ty of $3 258 799 for its proportionate share of the
net pension hab111ty The net pension hab1hty was measured as of December 31 2018 and the
total pension asset-labrlrty used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of December 31 2017 rolled forward to December 31 2018 No material
changes mn assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the actuarial valuation date and the
measurement date The City s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City s share
of contributions to the pension plan relatve to the contributions of all participating employers At
December 31 2018 the City s proportion was 0 09159883% which was an increase of
0 00378347% from its proportion measured as of December 31 2017

For the year ended December 31 2019 the City recognized pension expense of $2 097 674
which includes amounts pad to WRS related to duty disability payments

At December 31 2019 the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 2 538 111 $
Changes in assumptions 549 314
Net differences between projected and actual earnngs

on pension plan investments 4 759 253
Changes in proportion and differences between employer

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 18 308
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1 380 924

Total $ 9245910 $
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension LiabilitiesLability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

$1 380 924 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the WRS Employer's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognzed as a reduction of the net
pension hab1l1ty In the year ended December 31 2020 Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized In
pension expense as follows

Year ended December 31

2020
2021
2022
2023

$

Deferred Outflows of
Resources and Deferred

Inflows of Resources (net)

1220667
296 602
526 465

1299344
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NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension biabilitiesliab1hty, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Actuarial assumptions The total pension (as-se-tj--l1ab1l1ty 1n the December 31 2018 actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods
included m the measurement

Actuarial Valuation Date

Measurement Date of Net Penson Liability (Asset)

Actuarial Cost Method

Asset Valuation Method

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

Discount Rate

Salary Increases

Inflation
Sernority/Ment

Mortality
Post-retirement Adjustments*

December 31 2017
December 31 2018

Entry Age Normal

Farr Value
70%

70%

30%

0 1% 5 6%

Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table

19%
No post-retirement adjustment s guaranteed Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment return
actuanal expenence and other factors 1 9% 1s the assumed annual adjustment based on the investment return
assumption and the post-retirementdiscount rate

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted m 2018 that covered a
three-year period from January 1 2015 to December 31 2017 Based on this experience study
actuarial assumptions used to measure the Total Pension Liability changed from prior year
1nclud1ng the discount rate long term expected rate of return post retirement adjustment wage
1nflat1on rate mortality and separation rates The Total Pension Liability for December 31 2018
1s based upon a roll-forward of the liability calculated from the December 31 2017 actuarial
valuation
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension b-tabili-tiesliab1lity, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)
Long-term expected return on plan assets. The long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan Investments was determined using a building-block method In which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns net of pension plan investment expense
and inflation) are developed for each mayor asset class These ranges are combined to produce
the long term expected rate of return by we1ght1ng the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation The target allocation and
best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarzed In the
following table

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class are summarized 1n the following table

Long-Term
Expected Long Term

Current Asset Nominal Rate of Expected Real
Core Fund Asset Class Allocation % Return% Rate of Return %

Global Equities 49% 81% 55%

Fixed Income 24 5 40 1 5

Inflation Sensitve Assets 15 5 38 1 3

Real Estate 9 65 39

Prvate Equity/Debt 8 94 67

Multi-Asset 4 67 41

Total Core Fund 110 73 47

Variable Fund Asset Class

US Equities 70 76 50

International Equities 30 85 59

Total Variable Fund 100 80 54

NewEngland Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (Inflation) Forecast 2 5%
Asset allocations are managed w1thm established ranges target percentages may differ from actual monthly
allocations.
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NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension biabUitlesL1ability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Single discount rate A single discount rate of 7 00% was used to measure the total pension
hab1hty This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7 00% and a long term bond rate of 3 71 % Because of the unique structure of
WRS the 7 00% expected rate of return implies that a dividend of approximately 1 9% will always
be paid For purposes of the single discount rate 1t was assumed that the d1v1dend would always
be paid The projection of cash flows used to determine thus single discount rate assumed that
plan member contributions will be made at the current contnbut1on rate and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined
contribution rates and the member rate Based on these assumptions the pension plans fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments (mncluding
expected d1v1dends) of current plan members Therefore the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability

Sensitivity of the city's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) to changes
in the discount rate The following presents the city s proportionate share of the net pension
l1ab1hty (asset) calculated using the discount rate of 7 00 percent as well as what the city s
proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) would be If it were calculated using a
discount rate that 1s 1 percentage-point lower (6 00 percent) or 1 percentage-pomnt higher (8 00
percent) than the current rate

1 % Decrease to Current Discount
Discount Rate Rate

(6 00%) (7 00%)

1 % Increase to
Discount Rate

(8 00%)
City s proportionate share of the net

pension hab1llty (asset) $ 12 950 809 $ 3 258 799 $ (3 947 962)

Pension plan fiduciary net pos,t,on Detailed 1nformat1on about the pension plan s fiduciary net
position is available in separately Issued financial statements available at
http //etf w1 gov/pubhcat1ons/cafr htm

At December 31 2019 the city reported a payable to the pension plan of $184 066 which
represents contractually required contributions outstanding as of the end of the year
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description The City Is also a participant mn the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement
Income Plan a single employer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible public works
employees The assets of this Plan are administered by Principal Life Insurance Company An
annual financial report may be obtained by writing to the plan administrator at Pnncipal Financial
Group PO Box 9693 Des Moines IA 50306-9396

Vesting - Part1c1pants with five years of credible service are 50% vested in the plan Upon
reaching 10 years of credible service part1c1pants are fully vested 1n the plan

Benefits provided - The City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan provides
retirement benefits to former bargaining employees of the City that are not covered under
Wisconsin State Pension Plan (Wisconsin Retirement System) or who are regular part time
employees as defined by Cl Serice and who have a minimum of 6 months of service
Employees who retire at or after age 60 are entitled to receive an unreduced retirement benefit

The factors influencing the benefit are (1) average compensation at retirement (2) years of
creditable service and (3) a formula factor

Average compensation at retirement 1s the average of the participant's three highest consecutive
years earnings out of the ten latest years pnor to retirement Creditable service 1s the creditable
current and prior service expressed mn years or fractional partial years for which a participant
receives earnings The formula factor 1s a standard percentage based on the plan prov1s1ons

Employees may retire at age 55 with a minimum of 10 completed years of service and receive
reduced benefits Employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for a
retirement benefit may receive either normal retirement benefits at normal retirement date or a
lump-sum cash payment of participant s vested accumulatons

The plan also provides death and d1sab1hty benefits for employees
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Part1c1patmg employees - Membership in the plan as of date of study consisted of the following
classes of participants

Active employees
Terminated vested participants
Retirees
Total

29
11
26
66

Contributions Contribution requirements are established through action of the City Council and
may be amended only through city ordinance Employees make a non elective and non­
discretionary pension contribution that Is equal to 8 2% of their payroll The City contributes all
remaining amounts necessary to fund the pension plan During the reporting period contributions
of $251 009 were made by the City to the plan

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31 2019 the City reported a hab1hty of $2 157 999 for its net pension l1ab1l1ty The
net pension hab1hty was measured as of December 31 2018 and the total pension hab1hty used
to calculate the net pension llab1l1ty was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31
2018 No material changes mn assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the actuarial
valuation date and the measurement date
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)

A DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (contrnued)

City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan (continued)

Pension L1abihties, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Current year changes mn the net pension liability were as follows

Total Increase (Decrease) Net
Pens1on Plan Fiduciary Pension
Llabrlity Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance at December 31 2018 $ 10 069 831 $ 9 692 099 $ 377 732

Changes for the year·
Servrce cost 161 806 161 806
Interest 675 093 675 093
Difference between expected
and actual experience 149 778 149 778

Changes of assumptions 1303 694 1 303 694
Change In benefit terms (656 529) (656 529)
Contrrbutions - employer 251 009 (251 009)
Net investment rncome (363 980) 363 980
Benefit payments (434 808) (434 808)
Administrative Expense (33 454) 33454

Balance at December 31 2019 $ 11,268,865 $ 9,110,866 $ 2,157,999

Plan fiduciary net position as apercentageofthetotalpensionliability8085%

At December 31 2019 the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes m assumptions
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on pensron plan rnvestments
Employer contnbut1ons subsequent to measurement date

Total

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

$ 187 345 $ 60 185
1043833 79 004

489 043
176 603

$ 1,896,824 $ 139,189
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

The $176 603 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the City s
contnbutIons subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension hab1llty In the year ended December 31 2020 Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized In
pension expense as follows

Year Ended December 31

2020
2021
2022
2023

$

Deferred Outflows of
Resources and Deferred

Inflows of Resources (net)

734 856
480 649
163 740
201 787

Actuanal assumptions - The pension liability mn the December 31 2018 actuanal valuation was
determined use the following actuarial assumptions applied to all perrods in the measurement

Actuarial Valuation Date
Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation Method
Long Term Expected Rate of Return
Discount Rate
Salary increase - lnflatron
Salary increase - Sernorrty/Ment
Mortality

December 31 2018
December 31 2018
Entry Age
Market Value
650%
593%
225%
400%
2019 IRS Prescribed Mortality - Optional
Combined Table for Small Plans

Actuanal assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted In 2018 using historical
experience The net pension liability reported for fiscal year end December 31 2019 was
measured as of December 31 2018 using the total pension liability that was determined by an
actuarial valuatron as of December 31 2018
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets The long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was determined using the weighted average rate based on the target asset
allocation and the Long-Term Capital Market Assumptions These ranges are combined to
produce the long term expected rate of return by we1ght1ng the expected future real rates of return
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 1nflat1on The target allocation
and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized
mn the following table

Long Term Real
Asset Class Rate of Return Target Allocation

US Equity - Large Cap 7 70% 34 50%
US Equity - Mid Cap 7 95% 400%
US Equity Small Cap 8 50% 200%
Non US Equity 7 95% 13 50%
Real Estate 555% 600%
Core Bonds 400% 37 00%
High Yield 645% 300%

Discount rate A discount rate of 5 93% was used to measure the total pension hab1hty This
single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
5 93% and a long term bond rate of 3 97% The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution
rate and that the City contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate Based on these assumptions the
pension plan s fiduciary net posrtion was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members Therefore the long term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of proJected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan (continued)

Pension Liab1ht1es, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes In the discount rate - The following presents the
City s net pension llab1hty calculated using the discount rate of 5 93% as well as what the City s
net pension liability would be 1f It were calculated using a discount rate that rs 1-percentage point
lower (4 93%) or 1-percentage-point hgher (6 93%) than the current rate

1 % Decrease to
Discount Rate

(4 93%)

Current Discount
Rate

(5 93%)

1 % Increase to
Discount Rate

(6 93%)

City's net pension liability $ 3 428 409 $ 2 157 999 $ 1 080 562

For the year ended December 31 2019 the City recognized pension expense of
$522445405 488

B. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Based on City ordinances all eligible City of Franklin non protective employees (except public
works employees) partIc1pate In the City of Franklin Defined Contribution Plan (the Plan ) The
Plan assets are administered by the Principal Life Insurance Company

Employees after completing srx months of service with the City are eligible to participate The
Plan requires the City to make perodic contnbutions to each participant s account equal to 10%
of such participant's annual compensation Employees are required to make contributions of 5%
of wages A participant s accrued benefit for City contributions Is 100% vested and non-forfertable
upon death normal retirement early retirement or permanent and total disability as defined in the
Plan If employment 1s terminated for any other reason each part1c1pant s accrued benefit vests
at various percentages based on years of service During 2-0-1-72019 total contnbut1ons of
$ 72 -588 408 0r 10% of covered payroll were made The City contributed $2 72 44 204 and
employees $44 20428 29 The City may make amendments to the Plan
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

General Information About the OPEB Plan

Plan admimstration and description The City administers the City of Franklin Post
Employment Benefits Trust (City OPES Plan) a single-employer defined benefit OPES
plan that Is used to provide post-employment health care benefits for all ehg1b\e fu\l-t1me
employees of the City Management of the City OPES Plan 1s vested in the City s Common
Council Separate financial statements are not prepared for the City OPEB Plan

Benefits provided City of Franklin eligible full time employees meeting minimum age and
service requirements may receive group health care benefits at a reduced cost during the period
from their normal retirement date until they reach age 65 This results n another post-employment
benefit (OPEB) obligation for those groups These groups commonly have higher medrcal costs
than anticipated in the blended premrum rates That differential ts referred to as an implicit rate
subsidy

Employees covered by benefit terms At December 31 2019 the followrng employees
were covered by the benefit terms

Active employees
Inactive employees entrtled to by not yet recerv1ng benefits
Retirees recerving benefits
Total

174

26
200

Contributions. Contribution requirements are established by either City ordinance or
collective bargarnrng and may be amended only by the groups establishing the
requirements The City s periodic contribution us determined and frxed at the time of
retirement The retiree pays the balance of the periodic blended premium The eligibility
for the benefit follows

Employee Group # City Amount Age Years Servrce

Non-represented 33 75% of Premium at Retirement 62 20
Police 71 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 15

Dispatch 13 75% 0f 2005 Premium 62 20
FIre 54 75% of Premum at Retirement 53 20
DPW 29 75% of Premium at Retirement 60 15
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

Investments

Investment policy The City Is authorized to invest funds of the City OPEB Plan rn
accordance with the City s investment policy for the City OPES Plan

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a
method In which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns net of OPES plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation The target allocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following
table

Asset Class

Domestic equtty (maximum)
Domestic equity (mmnumum)
Fxed income (maximum)
Ftxed income (minimum)

Target
Allocation

75%
25
50
25

Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate of
Return

10 0%
10 0
25
25

Concentrations All OPES plan assets have been invested in bonds and equity securities
See Note 3 A for additional information

Rate of return The annual money-weighted rate of return on investments net of
investment expense for 2019 was 16 813 6% The money weighted rate of return
expresses investment performance net of investment expense adjusted for the changing
amounts actually invested

Page 89



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

Net OPEB Liability

The City s net OPES llab1llty was measured as of December 31 2019 and the total OPEB
llab1hty used to calculate the net OPEB llab1llty was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date

Actuarial assumptions The total OPEB llab1llty in the December 31 2019 actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions applied to all perods
included in the measurement unless otherwise spec1f1ed

Salary increases

Investment rate of return

Healthcare cost trend rates

2 00 percent average including 1nflat1on

6 50 percent net of OPEB plan investment
expense Including inflation

2021 and 2022 6 75% 2023 and 2024
6 25% 2025 and 2026 5 75% 2027 and
2028 5 25% and 2029+ 5 00%

Mortality rates are a blend of the Death-In-Service and Retired Lives mortality rates from
the Wisconsin Retirement System 2015-2017 Experience Study with the MP 2018
generational improvement scale (multiplied by 50%)

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1 2020 valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1 2015 - December 31 2017

Discount rate The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB l1ab1hty was 6 5 percent
The proJectIon of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that City
contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarally determined contribution rates
over the next 40 years This rate Is a blend of expected earnings on Plan assets and the
current yield for 20 year tax-exempt general obligation muntc1pal bonds wrth an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Total
OPEB
Liability

(a)

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

(b)

Net
OPEB
Liability
(a) (b)

Balance at December 31 2018 $ 7 733 557 $ 5 229 404 $ 2504 153

Changes for the year·
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected
and actual experience

Changes of assumptions
Contnbutons employer
Contributions - employees
Net investment income
Benefit payments

Estimated Balance at December 31 2019
Difference between estimated and
actual Plan Fiduciary Net Position

210 159
516 342

132 200
208 654

(442 196)
$ 8 358 716 $

377 172
215 296

1 101 085
(442 196)
6 480 761

57 999

210 159
516 342

132 200
208 654
(377 172)
(215 296)

(1101 085)

$ 1877 955

(57 999)

Actual Balance at December 31 2019 $ 8 358 716 $ 6 538 760 $ 1819 956
=======

Plan fiduciary net pos1t1on as a percentage of the total OPEB hab1hty 7823%

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare
cost trend rates The following presents the net OPEB l1abll1ty of the City as well as what
the City s net OPEB ability would be sf it were calculated using a discount rate that Is 1­
percentage pomnt lower (5 5 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (7 5 percent) than the
current discount rate

1 % Decrease to
Discount Rate

(5 5%)

Current Discount
Rate

(6 5%)

1 % Increase to
DIscount Rate

(7 5%)

City's net OPEB liability $ 2 561 109 $
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (continued)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City as well as what the City s net
OPEB liability would be if rt were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1­
percentage point lower (6 0 percent decreasing to 4 5 percent) or 1-percentage-pomnt
higher (8 0 percent decreasing to 6 5 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rates

1% Decrease to
(675% Decreasing

to 5 75%)

Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates

(6 75%)

1% Increase to
(6 75% Increasing

to 7 75%)

City s net OPEB liability $ 1 232 599 $ 1819956 $ 2 470 414

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows ofResources and Deferred Inflows ofResources
Related to OPEB

For the year ended December 31 2019 the City recognized OPEB expense of $262 062

At December 31 2019 the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net differences between proJected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments

Total

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

$ 122 031 $
192 605

225 447

$ 314,636 $ 225,447
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized In OPEB expense as follows

Year ended
December 31

Deferred Outflow
of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of
Resources (net}

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

$ 1816

1816

1816

(126 019)

209 760

Payable to the OPEB Plan

At December 31 2019 the City does not report a payable for any outstanding amount of
contributions to the City OPEB Plan required for the year ended December 31 2019
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

D CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The City at times Is party to claims and legal proceedings Although the outcome of such matters
In not presently determinable 1t Is the opinion of City management and the City attorney that the
hkehhood 1s remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on
the City's financial position

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the
grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants Management believes such
d1sallowances 1f any would be 1mmatenal

The City receives impact fees for new development projects The fees are to be used to fund
specific projects wthin a specific period of time In the event the projects are not completed or the
time period elapses the City will be required to refund the impact fees to the current owners of
properties that the fees were ong1nally collected

Funding for the operating budget of the City comes from many sources including property taxes
grants and aids from other units of government user fees fines and permits and other
miscellaneous revenue The State ofWisconsin provides a variety of aid and grant programs that
benefit the City Those aid and grant programs are dependent on continued approval and funding
by the W1scons1n governor and legislature through their budget process Any changes made by
the State to funding or elgbtlity of local aid programs could have a slgnficant mmpact on future
operating results of the City
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

E RISK MANAGEMENT

The City Is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts theft damage or destructron of assets
errors and omrssIons natural drsasters and workers' compensation claims that the City carries
commercial insurance No significant reductions mn insurance coverage occurred for any risk of
loss in the past year and settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage In any of the
past three fiscal years

The City also offers a group medical and dental insurance plan to employees for which the City
Is self-mnsured This activity Is accounted for mn the City's Self Insurance Internal Serice Fund
Group medical and dental costs are charged to City departments and retirees participating mn the
program A third party administrator handles claims payments The C(ty cames stop loss
insurance for claims m excess of $75 000 per year per mndrvdual and $75 000 per year per group
Liabilrtes are reported when it ts probable that clamms have occurred and the amount of the clamm
can be reasonably estrmated L1ab1l1tres include an estimated amount for clarms that have been
incurred but not reported ( IBNR )

Changes rn the balance of claims payable for the years ended December 31 2019 and 2018 are
as follows

Fiscal
Year
2019
2018

Balance
Begmrnng of

Year
$ 290 700

290 700

Current Claims
and Changes
In Estimates
$ 2 537 281

3 412 999

Page 95

Claims
Payments
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

F EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ON CURRENT PERIOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved the following

• Statement No 87 Leases
• Statement No 89 Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a

Construction Per1od
• Statement No 91 Conduit Debt Obligations

When they become effective apphcat1on of these standards may restate portions of these
financial statements

H SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In March 2020 the US President WI Governor and Franklin s Mayor declared a public
health emergency It rs too early to project the financial impact of thus crisis on City
finances The Common Council adopted a 2020 Budget Amendment appropriating
$250 000 of contingency to fight the disease

Related to that health cns1s the US Equity markets declined s1grnf1cantly and the City s
Defined Benefit Plan administrator placed a $750 000 call for add1t1onal one time
contributions The Common Council authorized 2020 appropriations to support a $1 million
extraordinary contnbut1on and also authorized the Director of Finance to make up to a
$750 000 contribution 1f necessary returning to Council should add1t1onal contributions be
required

The 2020 Budget anticipated $2 7 mullion of Landfill Siting revenues (Public Charges for
Services) substantially supporting cap1tal programs By April 2020 this revenue stream
began to decline such that the Common Council considered reductions m 2020 capital
program appropriations

On Apnl 6 2020 the Common Council authorized the issuance of a $14 952 m11!1on
Municipal Revenue Obhgat1on to Velo Village under the terms of a Developer's Agreement
signed in October 2019
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)
WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Proportionate
Share of the Net Plan Fiduciary

WRS Proportion Proportionate Pension Liability Net Position
Fiscal of the Net Share of the (Asset) as a as a Percentage

Year Ending Pension Net Pension Covered Percentage of of the Total
Date Asset Liability (Asset) Payroll Covered Payroll Pension Liability

12/31/14 0 084116700% $ (2 065 567) $ 8071 472 2559% 102 74%
12/31/15 0 082739220% 1344 496 8 459 850 15 89% 9820%
12/31/16 0 084036620% 692 662 8 682 689 798% 99 12%
12/31/17 0 087815360% (2 607 342) 8 950 304 2913% 102 93%
12/31/18 0 091598830% 3 258 799 9 094 718 3583% 9645%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS-WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Contributions In
City Relation to the Contributions
Fiscal Contractually Contractually Contribution as a Percentage

Year Ending Required Required Deficiency Covered of Covered
Date Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll

12/31/15 $ 689 692 $ 689 692 $ $ 8 459 850 815%
12/31/16 869 137 869 137 8682 689 1001%
12/31/17 1 074 037 1 074 037 8 950 304 1200%
12/31/18 1119 560 1 119 560 9 094 719 12 31%
12/31/19 1380924 1 380 924 13 827 280 999%

See independent auditors report and accompanying notes to required supplementary 1nformat1on
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY ANO RELATEDRATIOS
CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN

For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Fiscal Year Ending
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost s 165 130 $ 180 074 $ 154,889 s 182 107 $ 161 806
Interest on the Total Pens1on Liability 531 850 603 514 606 747 651 297 675 093
Benefit Changes (656 529)
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience 527 384 (460 357) 425 998 (154 963) 149 778
Assumption Changes 213 402 12 332 709 323 (203,418) 1303694
Benefit Payments (191,375) (239,861) (296 465) (370.146) (434,808)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 1246391 95 702 1600492 104 877 1 199 034
Total Pension Liability Beginning 7,022,369 8 268 760 8,364,462 9,964 954 10,069,831

Total Pension Liability Ending $ 8 268 760 $ 8364,462 $ 9 964 954 $ 10 069 831 $11 268 865

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer Contributions 293 632 339 927 302 518 1133 559 251 009
Pension Plan Net Investment Income 377 842 (41 577) 409,272 1372321 (363 980)
Benefit Payments (191 375) (239 861) (296 465) (370 146) (434 808)
Pension Plan Administrative Expense (27 941) (22 802) (20 307) (31.410) (28,890)
Other (4,564)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 452 158 35 687 395 018 2 104 324 (581 233)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position Beginning 6,704 912 7 157 070 7,192757 7 587 775 9,692,099

Plan Fiduciary Net Position Ending $ 7,157 070 $ 7 192 757 $ 7 587 775 $ 9 692 099 $ 9 110,866

Net Pension Liability (Asset) Ending $ 1111690 $ 1171 705 $ 2 377 179 s 377 732 $ 2 157 999

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total
Pension Liability 87% 86% 76% 96% 81%

Covered Payroll $ 1 792 628 s 1876995 $ 1 853 074 $ 1792628 $ 1776639

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 62% 62% 128% 21% 121%

See independent auditors report and accompanying notes to required supplementary information
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN

For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Fiscal Actuarially Contribution Actual Contribution
Year Ending Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as a Percentage of

Date Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll

12/31/15 $ 293 632 $ 293 632 $ - $ 1 792 628 16%
12/31/16 339 927 339 927 1 876 995 18%
12/31/17 302 518 302 518 1853074 16%
12/31/18 233 559 1 133 559 (900 000) 1792628 63%
12/31/19 251 009 251 009 1776639 14%

See independent auditors report and accompanying notes to required supplementary mformat1on
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CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
OPEB PLAN

For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Fiscal Year Ending
2017 2018 2019

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost $ 223 719 $ 238 261 s 210 159
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 489 875 509 975 516 342
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience 132 200
Assumption Changes 208 654
Benefit Payments (418 905) (622 193) (442,196)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 294 689 126 043 625 159
Total OPEB Liability Beginning 7 312,825 7 607 514 7,733 557

Total OPEB Liability Ending $ 7 607 514 $ 7 733 557 $ 8 358,716

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer Contributions 422,684 444 364 377 172
Employee Contributions 91 969 128 294 215 296
OPEB Plan Net Investment Income 673 624 (294 824) 1159 084
Benefit Payments (500 350) (622 193) (442,196)

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 687 927 (344 359) 1 309 356
Plan Fiduciary Net Position Beginning 4,885,836 5 573 763 5 229 404

Plan Fiduciary Net Position Ending $ 5.573 763 $ 5 229 404 $ 6 538 760

Net OPEB Liability Ending $ 2 033 751 $ 2 504 153 $ 1 819 956

P?lan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total OPEB Liability 73% 68% 78%

Cove red Payroll $ 13 879 896 $ 14 188 222 $ 14 300 000

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 15% 18% 13%

See independent auditors report and accompanying notes to required supplementary nformation
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
OPEB PLAN

For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Fiscal Year Ending
2017 2018 2019

Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 422 684 $ 441 859 $ 377 172
Actual Contribution 422,684 444,364 377,172

Contribution DeficenCy (Excess) $ $ (2 505) $

Covered Payroll $ 13 879 896 $ 14 188 222 $ 14 300 000

Actual Contribution as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 3% 3% 3%

See independent auditors report and accompanying notes to required supplementary information
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

As of and for the Year Ended December 31 2019

NOTE 1 - PRESENTATION

The City 1s required to present the last ten years of data on each schedule however the standards
allow the City to present as many years as are available until ten years are presented

NOTE 2 - WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The data presented mn the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)
for the Wisconsin Retirement System was taken from the reports issued by the Wisconsin
Retirement System

Changes of benefit terms There were no changes of benefit terms for any part1c1pat1ng employer
In WRS

Changes of assumptions Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted
mn 2018 using experience from 2015 - 2017 Based on the experience study conducted mn 2018
actuarial assumptions used to develop Total Pension Liability changed Including the discount
rate long-term expected rate of return post-retirement adJustment wage mflat1on rate mortality
and separation rates

NOTE 3 - CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN

The data presented m the Schedule of Changes 1n Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios and
Schedule of Contributions for the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan was
taken from the reports issued by the actuary

Changes of benefit terms There were no changes of benefit terms

Changes of assumptJOns The following assumptions changed 1) the long term rate of return on
plan assets has decreased from 6 75 to 6 5% 2) the discount rate has decreased from 6 75% to
5 93% 3) the inflation assumption has increased from 2 00% to 2 25% and 4) Salary projections
have been updated from 3 00% to 4 00%

NOTE 4 - OPEB PLAN

The data presented mn the Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios and
the Schedule of Contributions for the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefit Trust was taken
from the reports issued by the actuary

Changes of benefit terms There were no changes of benefit terms

Changes of assumptions The discount rate was reduced from 7 00% used in the previous
actuarial study to 6 5 used 1n the current study
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Nonmayor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of spec1f1c revenue sources (other than
debt service or mayor capital projects) that are restricted for specified purposes
Library Operating Fund - This fund accounts for the budgetary operation of the Library
Library Aux1l1ary Fund - This fund accounts for Library donations fines and forfeitures
Solid Waste Collection Fund - This fund accounts for solid waste collection actIvIt1es
Donation Fund - This fund accounts for donations received for specific purposes
St Martin s Fair Fund - This fund accounts for actIv1tIes related to the farmers/flea market
held the first Monday of the spring and summer months and the Labor Day weekend
Ci1c Celebrations Fund - This fund accounts for activity related to the City s Fourth of
July and other celebrations
Tourism Comm1ss1on - The State mandated that certain portions of the Hotel Tax be
dedicated for tourism promotion The Common Council formed a Tourism Commission
which determines how those funds are spent
Grant Fund - The City reports its grant activities mn thus fund Grant actv4ties include Fire
Department Police Department Health Department Community Development Block
Grants and miscellaneous grants received by the City that are not accounted for
elsewhere

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquIs1tIon or
construction of major capital fac1llt1es (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds)

Capital Outlay Fund - This fund accounts for the departmental capital outlays These
expenditures are funded by the tax levy normally are less than $25 000 and are under the
d1rect1on of the department supervisor
Equipment Replacement Fund - This fund accounts for the rolling stock replacement
program that accumulates annual funding (from landfill siting fees) for replacement of
vehicles and similar equipment mn lieu of using borrowed montes
Capital Improvement Fund - This fund accounts for land acquisitions building projects
and all public works projects and are usually funded with landfill siting revenues borrowed
money or funding from some other source other than the tax levy
Street Improvement Fund - This fund accounts for the act1vIt1es of the local road
improvement program Funding Is provided by landfill siting fees and a portion of General
Transportation Aids and an every other year local road improvement grant from the State
Utility Improvement Fund - This fund Is used to account for water and sewer connection
fees and special assessments that are used for water and sewer construction projects
Development Fund - This fund Is used to account for impact fees restricted for use to
capital improvements
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Schedule 3
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Transfers In Budget and Actual {on a Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Variance with
final budget

Original Change Final Excess
Budget Inc (Dec) Budget Actual (Deficiency)

TAXES
General property taxes $ 18 139 675 $ $ 18 139 675 $ 18 136 986 $ (2 689)
Water Utility tax equivalent 1 050 000 1 050 000 968 448 (81 552)
Cable TV franchise fees 480 000 480 000 489 934 9 934
Hotel/Room Tax 183 300 183 300 183 321 21
Mobile home assessments 23,500 23,500 19,689 (3,811)

19,876,475 19,876,475 19 798,378 (78,097)

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
State shared revenue 513 900 513 900 524 297 10 397
State expendture restraint revenue 160 200 160 200 142 891 (17 309)
Fire insurance dues 155 000 155 000 164 859 9 859
Local state and federal grants and aids
Computer ad 228,350 228 350 228 051 (299)
Transportation aids 520 000 520 000 520 847 847
Other 158,677 158,677 176,402 17 725

1 736 127 1,736,127 1 757,347 21,220

LICENSES FEES AND PERMITS
Licenses
Beer and lquor 33 840 33840 31 784 (2 056)
Bartenders 16 500 16 500 18 174 1 674
Amusement and related 9 700 9 700 9 655 (45)
Peddlers 2 650 2650 4 129 1 479
Food and related 4 050 4050 13 461 9 411
Dog and cat 9 300 9 300 11314 2014
Health 76100 76 100 77 929 1 829
Other 12 550 12 550 18 792 6 242

Permits
Building 615 000 615 000 736 292 121 292
Electrical 106 000 106 000 151 355 45 355
Plumbing 109 000 109 000 183 445 74445
Sign 8 500 8500 10 065 1 565
Park 16 900 16 900 20 738 3 838
Fire 4 500 4 500 4 420 (80)
Other 16,900 16,900 23,365 6,465

1 041,490 1,041 490 1 314,918 273,428

FINES FORFEITURES AND PENALTIES 546,000 546 000 451 062 (94,938)

(Contrnued)
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Schedule 3
{concluded)

CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Transfers In Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Variance with
final budget

Original Change Final Excess
Budget Inc (Dec) Budget Actual (Deficiency)

PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General government

Property reports and document fees $ 12 900 $ $ 12 900 $ 105 178 $ 92 278
Clerk Services 1 500 1 500 1 132 (368)

Public safety
Police Department and related 8 000 8000 13 140 5140
Ambulance service 1 340 000 1 340 000 1 338 387 (1 613)
Fire Department and related 74 000 74000 99 912 25 912
Quarry reimbursement 44 000 44000 37 410 (6 590)
Weights and measures 7600 7600 8 643 1 043

Public works
Weed cutting 9 000 9000 7 125 (1 875)
Street lighting 13 000 13 000 18 191 5 191
Engineering and DPW fees 35 000 650 000 2 685 000 799 969 114 969
Landfill tippage fees 307 500 307 500 279 789 (27 711

Health and human services
Health clinics and other health fees 118 150 118 150 115 245 (2 905)

Conservation and development
Zoning subdivision and other filing tees 86 300 86 300 4 912 (81,388)

2 056 950 650 000 2 706 950 2 829 033 122 083

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR 207 500 207 500 226 178 18 678
SERVICES

INVESTMENT EARNINGS 265 000 265 000 510 943 245 943

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
Municipal property rental 50 000 50000 78833 28 833
Property sales 31 650 31 650 12 166 (19 484)
Refunds and reimbursements 37 000 37 000 16 461 (20 539)
Insurance dividend 40 000 40 000 82 047 42 047
Other revenue 1000 1000 99 (901)

159,650 159 650 189 606 29 956

Total Revenues 25 889 192 650 000 26 539 192 27 077 465 538 273

Transfers from other funds 59250 30 625 89875 (89 875)

Total Revenues and Transfers In $ 25 948 442 $ 680 625 $ 26 629 067 $ 27 077 465 $ 448 398

1 P?1anned but unused transfer from ntemnal Service Fund
2 Recorded Engineering Sences gross rather than net is in prior years
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Schedule 4
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

General Fund
Schedule of Expenditures and Transfers Out Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Variancewith
final budget

Original Change Final Excess
Budget Inc (Dec) Budget Actual (Deficiency)

CURRENT
General Government

Mayor Personnel Services $ 18 482 s $ 18 482 $ 18 482 $
Mayor Other Services 6 350 6 350 5 890 460
Aldermen Personnel Ser1ces 47,409 47 409 47.409
Aldermen Other Services 25 191 25 191 23 032 2 159
Municipal court Personnel Services 186 933 2 945 189 878 187 333 2 545
Municipal court Other Services 58.450 58 450 15 942 42 508
City clerk Personnel Services 319 569 (5 701) 313 868 305 789 8 079
City clerk Other Services 27.200 27 200 21 835 5 365
Eleclions Personnel Services 32 525 (167) 32 358 14 025 18 333
Elections Other Services 10 100 10 100 8 704 1 396
Information services Personnel Services 127 381 2 086 129 467 129 250 217
Information services Other Services 392,468 22 920 415 388 407 012 8 376
Administration Personnel Services 311 278 6 930 318.208 317 732 476
Administration Other Services 133 475 (23 300) 110 175 48 689 61.486
Finance Personnel Services 464 090 (26 350) 437 740 409 026 28 714
Finance Other Services 122 870 122,870 104 620 18,250
Independent Audit 37 025 37 025 31 455 5 570
Assessor Other Services 229 550 229 550 226 888 2662
Legal counsel 348 650 348 650 299 700 48950
Municipal buildings Personnel Services 97 479 10601 108 080 107 963 117
Municipal buildings Other Services 117 015 117015 113 880 3,135
Refunded Taxes 2 500 20000 22 500 15 979 6.521
Property and liability insurance 86 950 86950 65,437 21 513
Anticipated Underexpenditure (375 320) 57 876 (317 444) (317 444)
Contingency 2 067 228 (274 824) 1 792,404 1792404
Total General Government 4 894 848 (206 984) 4 687 864 2 926 072 1 761 792

Public Safety
Police Personnel Services 7 703 409 (159 265) 7 544144 7 507 336 36 808
Police Other Services 1 197 800 (50) 1197750 1 037 985 159 765
Dispatch Personnel Services 1 184 017 14 126 1198 143 1 080 162 117 981
Fre Personnel Services 6,009 935 13 370 6 023 305 5 884 640 138 665
Fe Other Services 505 860 10 000 515 860 513 914 1 946
Fire protection service charge 283 300 283 300 279 819 3 481
Building Inspection Personnel Services 860 216 (15,379) 844 837 707 549 137 288
Building inspection Other Services 32 050 104 498 2 136 548 131 748 4 800
Sealer ofweights and measures 7600 7 600 7 600
Total Public Safety 17,784 187 (32,700) 17 751.487 17 150 753 600 734

1 Change in employer health plan resulted in lower health costs originally budgeted in contingency
2 Outside services used to support vacancies

(Continued)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Transfers Out Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Schedule 4
(concluded)

Variance with
final budget

Original Change Final Excess
Budget Inc {Dec) Budget Actual (Deficiency)

CURRENT
Public Works

Engineering Personnel Services 612 306 (609) 611 697 540 914 70 783
Engineering Other Services 30 860 650 000 2 680 860 675 297 5 563
Highway Personnel Servtces 1 736 098 (77 608) 3 1658490 1 648 581 9 909
Highway Other Services 833 318 833 318 805 896 27 422
Street lighting 349 500 349 500 344 092 5408
Weed control 9 050 9 050 5 898 3 152

Total Pubhc Works 3 571 132 571 783 4 142 915 4 020 678 122 237

Health and Human Services
Public health Personnel Services 634 447 (9 935) 624 512 528 981 95 531
Pubhc health Other Services 73 250 73 250 75 056 (1 806)
Animal control 43 100 43100 42723 377
Total Health and Human Services 750 797 (9 935) 740 862 646 760 94 102

Culture and Recreation
Senior activities and travel program 22 000 1 450 23 450 23 411 39
Parks Personnel Services 112 477 42 091 3 154 568 153 110 1.458
Parks Other Services 48 225 48 225 46 839 1 386
Total Culture and Recreation 182,702 43,541 226 243 223 360 2 883

Conservation and Development
Planning Personnel Services 375 395 (22 199) 353 196 332 122 21 074
Planning Other Services 74 450 87 100 161 550 113 214 48 336
Economic development Personnel Services 103 431 20 612 124 043 123 622 421
Economic development Other Services 87 500 (12 000) 75 500 51 730 23770

Total Conservation an& Development 640,776 73,513 714.289 620688 93,601

Total Expenditures 27 824.442 439 218 28 263660 25 588.311 2 675 349

Transfers to Other Funds 274.000 8,100 282 100 52 100 230,000

Total Expenditures and Transfers Out $ 28 098 442 s 447 318 $28 545 760 $ 25 640,411 s 2 905,349

1 Outside services to support vacancies
2 Recorded Engneering Services gross rather than net is n prior years.
3 Highway & Parks share personnel sh fted budget to a gn actual usage
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Schedule 5
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Original &
Final
Budget Actual

Variance with
final budget
Excess

(Deficiency)
REVENUE
Taxes
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Total revenue

$ 1300 000 $ 1300 000 $
28 524
35,588

1 300,000 1,364 112

28 524
35588
64 112

EXPENDITURES
Debt servce
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Premium (discount) on debt issued

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change In fund balances

Fund balances beg nnng

Fund balances ending

$

1405 000
135 188

1540188

(240 188)

240 188

240 188

1 405 000
135,338

1 540 338

(176,226)

323 419
(92 000)
80648

312 067

(150)
(150)

63 962

83 231
(92 000)
80 648
71 879

$ 1,118 560

136 641 $135%41
982 719
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Schedule 9
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

TIF Districts Fund
Combining Balance Sheet
As of December 31 2019

Northwestern Ascension Ballpark Loomis Velo
Mutual Hospital Commons & Ryan Village

District #3 District #4 District #5 District #6 District #7 Total
ASSETS

Cash and nvestments $ 757 094 s 4 187 883 $ 5 192 726 $ 6 521 700 s 5648 952 $ 22 308 355
Taxes receivable 1401 748 1 138 802 721 361 3261911

Total assets $ 2158 842 $ 5 326 685 $ 5,914,087 $ 6,521 700 $ 5 648.952 $s 25 570,266

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 49 $ 119.943 $ 738 013 $ 1 066.850 $ 805.944 $ 2730 799
Accrued l abi ites 865,135 865 135
Advances from Other Funds 13,000 1 500,000 1 513 000

Total liabilities 865,184 119 943 738 013 1079850 2 305 944 5108 934

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue 1 401 748 1 138.802 721 361 3.261 911

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Restricted 4 067 940 4 454 713 5441 850 3 343.008 17307511
Unassigned (deficit) (108 090) (108_090)

Total fund balances (deficit) (108.090) 4 067,940 4 454,713 5.441,850 3 343.008 17,199,421

Total liabilities deferred inflows and
fund balances $ 2 158 842 $ 5 326,685 $ 5.914 087 $ 6 521 700 $ 5.648 952 $ 25,570 266
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Schedule 10
CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN

TIF Districts Fund
Combining Schedule of Tl F Districts Revenue, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Northwestern Ascension Ballpark Loomis Velo
Mutual Hospital Commons & Ryan Village
District#3 District #4 District #5 District #6 District#7 Total

REVENUE
Taxes $ 1 114.683 s 1 132 983 s 30 951 s $ $ 2 278 617
Intergovernmental revenue 482.476 21 414 123 604 013
Investment earnings (loss} 95 601 118 138 104 510 120 883 5 438 444 570
Miscellaneous revenue 42,500 42,500

Total revenue 1692760 1 272 535 135 584 120 883 47 938 3 269 700

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 100 146 16 714 87 243 12 770 49 356 266 229
Public works 28 589 23 910 52 499
Conservation and development 5 291 991 9 000 5 929 866 309 755 11540612

Capital outlay 241 751 5 296 810 1 065 175 1 381 899 7 985 635
Debt service

Principal 10 000 000 10 000 000
Interest and fiscal charges 47 921 735 085 116 963 899 969
Debt issuance costs 38,682 221 471 109 100 53 920 423,173

Total expenditures 5,478 740 296 054 22 294 385 1 304 008 1,794 930 31 168 117

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (3 785 980) 976 481 (22 158 801) (1 183 125) (1 746 992) (27 898 417)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
General obligation debt rssued 3 005 000 3 225 000 6 365 000 5 090 000 17 685 000
Refunding debt issued 14 725 000 14 725 000
Premium (Discount) on debt issued 19 367 (22 001) 273 319 270 685

Total other financing sources (uses) 3 024 367 17 927,999 6 638 319 5 090 000 32 680 685

Net change in fund balances (761 613) 976 481 (4 230 802) 5 455 194 3 343 008 4 782 268

Fund balances (deficit) beginning 653 523 3 091 459 8 685 515 (13 344) 12.417 153

Fund balances (deficit) ending s (108 090) $ 4 067 940 $ 4,454 713 $ 5 441 850 $ 3 343 008 $17 199.421
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Schedule 12
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Capital Assets Used m the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Source

As of December 31, 2019

Governmental funds capital assets
Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure improvements
Construction mn process

Total governmental funds capital assets

Investment in governmental capital assets by source
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Donations

Total governmental funds capital assets

Page 124

2019
$ 25 450 016

28 404 573
20 023 758

119 046 303
1,986,204

$ 194,910 854

$ 545 407
3 448 825

113 582 109
77 334,513

$ 194,910 854



CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule by Function and Activity
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Schedule 12.1

Buildings Machinery
and and Infrastructure Construction

Function and Activity Land Improvements Equipment Improvements In process Total
General Government

Mayor $ $ $ 2 202 $ $ $ 2 202
Aldermen 9 584 9 584
Municipal court 35 210 35,210
City clerk 21 416 21 416
Elections 24.610 24 610
Information services 851 356 851 356
Administration 261 310 261 310
Human resources 9617 9617
Finance 189 179 189 179
Assessor 46 080 46,080
Attorney 906 906
Municipal buildings 597 437 4 643,143 457 302 5 697 882
Total General Government 597 437 4 643 143 1,908 772 7 149,352

Public Safety
Police 1 201 829 8 446 443 2641 340 12 289 612
Fire 63 248 4 351 456 4 673 844 9 088 548
Building Inspection 278 406 278 406
Total Public Safety 1265077 12 797 899 7,593 590 21656566

Public Works
Engineering 359 023 359 023
Highway 357 407 3 173 572 6 283 535 9 814 514
Street Lighting 1 097 1 097
Infrastructure 19 197 841 119 046 303 138 244 144
Construction in process 1 986 204 1986.204
Total Public Works 19 555,248 3173 572 6 643 655 119 046 303 1 986 204 150 404,982

Health & Human Services
Health 141 889 141 889

Culture and Recreation
Library 4 969 004 2 891 723 7 860 727
Parks 4 032 254 2 820 955 795,944 7,649 153
Total Culture and Recreation 4,032 254 7 789,959 3 687 667 15,509 880

Conservation and Development.
Planning 48185 48,185
Total Conservation and Development 48 185 48,185

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 25 450 016 $ 28 404 573 $ 20 023,758 $ 119046 303 $ 1986,204 $ 194 910 854
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CITY OF FRANKLIN WISCONSIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule ofChanges by Function and Activity
For the Year Ended December 31 2019

Schedule 12 2

Governmental Funds Capital Assets
Function and Activity 12/31/18 Additions Deletions 12/31/19

General Government.
Mayor $ 2 202 $ $ $ 2202
Aldermen 9 584 9584
Municipal court 35,210 35 210
City clerk 21 416 21 416
Elections 24 610 24 610
Information services 793 615 57 741 851 356
Administration 261 310 261 310
Human resources 9 617 9 617
Finance 189 179 189 179
Assessor 46 080 46 080
Attorney 906 906
Municipal buildings 4 490,222 1,755,363 547,703 5,697,882
Total General Government 5 883,951 1,813104 547,703 7,149,352

Public Safety
Police 12 262 153 68 878 41419 12 289 612
Fire 8 235 304 866 783 13 539 9 088 548
Building inspection 278,406 278,406
Total Public Safety 20,775,863 935,661 54 958 21,656,566

PublicWorks
Engineerng 334 980 24 043 359 023
Highway 9817 770 45431 48 687 9 814 514
Street lighting 1 097 1 097
Infrastructure 124 205 807 14 161 627 123 290 138 244 144
Construction in process 6,611,711 4 625,507 1,986,204
Total Public Works 140 971,365 14,231,101 4 797,484 150,404,982

Health & Human Services
Health 131,833 10,056 141,889

Culture and Recreation
Library 7 755 804 104 923 7 860 727
Parks 7,631,396 17,757 7,649,153
Total Culture and Recreation 15,387 200 122,680 15,509,880

Conservation and Development.
Planning 48,185 48,185
Total Conservation and Development 48,185 48,185

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 183,198,397 $ 17,112,602 $ 5,400,145 $ 194,910 854
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Franklin s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the 1nformat1on in the basic
f1nanc1al statements note disclosures and required supplementary information says about
the City s overall financial health

Financial Trends Table 1

These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City s
f1nanc1al performance and well-being have changed over time

Revenue Capacity Table 5

These tables contain trend 1nformat1on to help the reader assess the City s most
s1gn1fIcant local revenue source the property tax

Debt Capacity Table 11

These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
City s current level of outstanding debt and the City s ability to issue additional debt in the
future

Demographic and Economic Information Table 14

These tables offer demographic and economic 1nd1cators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City s financial activrtues take place

Operating Information Table 17

These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information mn the Crty s financial report relates to the services the City provides
and the act,vIt1es 1t performs

Sources Unless otherwise noted the 1nformat1on in these tables Is derived from the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant year The City implemented
GASB Statement 34 1n 2003 schedules presenting government wide mformat1on include
mnformation beginning mn that year
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APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

PURCHASE OF MOBILE DATA COMPUTERS FOR
THE POLICE DEPARTMENT

MEETING
DATE

5/19/2020

ITEM NUMBER

6.3

The 2020 Budget contains approved funding of $13,500 designated for the replacement of
Mobile Data Computers (MDCs) for squad cars in the Police Department.

The warranties for the existing MDC's needing replacement are expiring this month. The cost
of extending the warranties an additional year is $1,852.00.

To avoid having to extend the warranties, the police department requests approval to the
purchase of 4 new Patrol PC(s) for the amount of $13,500.

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION

Motion to approve the purchase of 4 Mobile Data Computers for the police department at a cost
of $13,500.

Police Dept-RO
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (ZONING

MAP) TO REZONE LOT 84 OF THE
APPROVED FINAL PLAT FOR"RYAN
MEADOWS" SUBDIVISION FROMM-1

LIMITED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT TO M-2
GENERAL INDUSTRIALDISTRICT

(GENERALLYLOCATED ONTHE EAST
SIDE OFMONARCH DRIVE, SOUTH OF
CHICORYSTREET, AREACOMMONLY
KNOWNAS AREAG) (APPROXIMATELY

24.0541 ACRES) (MILLS HOTEL
WYOMING, LLC, APPLICANT)

MEETING
DATE

05/19/20

ITEM NUMBER

On March 19, 2020, the Plan Commission carried a motion to recommend approval
of an Ordinance to amend the Unified Development Ordinance (zoning map) to
rezone Lot 84 ofthe approvedfinalplatfor "Ryan Meadows" subdivisionfrom M-I
limited industrial district to M-2 general industrial district (generally located on the
east side ofMonarch Drive, south ofChicory Street, area commonly known as Area
G) (approximately 24.0541 acres).

On February 14, 2020, in conjunction with this rezoning request, Copart of
Connecticut, Inc. filed a Site Plan Application for the development of a 7,200 square
foot building and a 25-acre vehicle storage yard. 10 acres of the Copart facility would
be located in the southern portion of Lot 84. This information is included in the
packet for reference.

Additionally, a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to subdivide the subject property is
scheduled for this meeting. The land division request will accommodate the proposed
Copart, Inc. Site Plan, which utilizes Lot 2 of the CSM for the storage of vehicles and
an emergency ingress/egress from Monarch Drive.

Section 5 may be deleted because the Ryan Meadows subdivision has been recorded.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

A motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2020- • an Ordinance to amend the
Unified Development Ordinance (zoning map) to rezone Lot 84 of the approved final
plat for "Ryan Meadows" subdivision from M-1 limited industrial district to M-2
general industrial district (generally located on the east side ofMonarch Drive, south
of Chicory Street, area commonly known as Area G) (approximately 24.0541 acres)
(Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, applicant).

Department of City Development: RMM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 4-3-20]

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE
(ZONING MAP) TO REZONE LOT 84 OF THE APPROVED FINAL PLAT FOR

"RYAN MEADOWS" SUBDIVISION FROM M-1 LIMITED INDUSTRIAL
DISTRICT TO M-2 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

(GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF MONARCH DRIVE,
SOUTH OF CHICORY STREET, AREA COMMONLY KNOWN AS AREA G)

(APPROXIMATELY 24.0541 ACRES)
(MILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC having petitioned for the rezoning of Lot 84
of the approved Final Plat for "Ryan Meadows" Subdivision from M-1 Limited Industrial
District to M-2 General Industrial District, such land being generally located on the east side
of Monarch Drive, south of Chicory Street, area commonly known as Area G [this Rezoning
application is being submitted in conjunction with a Site Plan application for Copart, Inc.,
which is a global online vehicle auction company]; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the City of Franklin Plan Commission
on the 9th day ofApril, 2020, upon the aforesaid petition and the Plan Commission thereafter
having determined that the proposed rezoning would promote the health, safety and welfare
of the City and having recommended approval thereof to the Common Council; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the petition and having
concurred with the recommendation of the Plan Commission and having determined that the
proposed rezoning is consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin and would promote the health, safety and welfare of the Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: §15-3.0102 (Zoning Map) of the Unified Development Ordinance of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to provide that the
zoning district designation for the property described below be changed
from M-1 Limited Industrial District to M-2 General Industrial District:

Part of Lots 2 and Outlot 1, of Certified Survey Map No. 9095 as
recorded in the Register of Deeds office for Milwaukee County as
Document No. 10830741, being a part of the Northwest 1/4 and
Southwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 and Southeast
1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4, all



ORDINANCE NO. 2020­
Page 2

in Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows:
Commencing at the southwest comer of the Northwest 1/4 of said
Section 30; thence South 8939'32" East along the south line of said
Northwest 1/4, 2142.90 feet to the Point of Beginning; Thence North
53°44'29" East, 35.97 feet to a point of curvature; thence northeasterly
106.76 feet along the arc of said curve to the left, whose radius is
270.00 feet and whose chord bears North 42°24151" East, 106.06 feet;
thenceNorth 31 °05113" East, 282.33 feet to a point of curvature; thence
northeasterly 183.30 feet along the arc of said curve to the left, whose
radius is 270.00 feet and whose chord bears North 11 °38'18" East,
179.80 feet; thence North 07%48'36" West, 543.63 feet to a point of
curvature; thence northwesterly 241.78 feet along the arc of said curve
to the left, whose radius is 270.00 feet and whose chord bears North
33°27'51" West, 233.79 feet; thence North 59°07106" West, 82.77 feet;
thence North 14%02'32" West, 27.27 feet; thence North 30°52'54" East,
29.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence northeasterly 114.43 feet
along the arc of said curve to the right, whose radius is 190.00 feet and
whose chord bears North 48°08'09" East, 112.71 feet; thence North
65°23'24" East, 245.97 feet to a point of curvature; thence northeasterly
181.45 feet along the arc of said curve to the left, whose radius is
535.00 feet and whose chord bears North 55°40126" East, 180.58 feet;
thence North 4585727" East, 53.22 feet; thence South 44°24'10" East,
200.97 feet; thence South 00°34143" East, 365.13 feet; thence South
89°25117" West, 116.04 feet; thence South 01°10'06" East, 1155.10 feet
to the south line of said Outlot l; thence North 89°42'41" West along
said south line 35.01 feet to the southwest corner of the Northeast 1/4
of said Section 30; thence South 00°34'05" West along the east line of
said Outlot 1, 667.46 feet to the southeast corner of said Outlot 1;
thence North 89°47'21" West along a south line of said Outlot 1,
662.96 feet to the southwest corner of said Outlot 1; thence North
00°34'08" West along the west line of said Outlot 1,570.47 feet; thence
North 53°44'29" East, 165.19 feet to the Point of beginning.
Containing 1,047,796 square feet (24.0541 acres) ofland, more or less.
Tax Key No. part of891-9010-002.

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-
Page 3

ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4:

SECTION 5:

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

This Rezoning shall be contingent upon the recording of the Final Plat
for the Ryan Meadows Subdivision.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2020, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-­



Items C.1 and D.3

CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of May 7, 2020

Rezoning and Site Plan

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning
application submitted by Bear Development, LLC and Site Plan submitted by Copart of
Connecticut, Inc. subject to the conditions in the draft ordinance and draft resolution.

Project Name:

Project Location:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Current Zoning:

Proposed Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Applicant's Action Requested:

Introduction

Copart of Connecticut, Inc.

10082 S 124th Street. Not Assigned/891-9010002, 939-
9994-000, and 939-9995-000
Mills Hotel Wyoming (891-9010-002), Franklin Mills,
LLC (939-9995-000), and Mathson, Daniel L & Virginia K
(Mathson, Robert ET AL) (939-9994-000)

Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC

Mason Laycock. Copart of Connecticut, Inc.

M-1 Limited Industrial District

M-2 General Industrial District

Business Park and Areas of Natural Resource Features

Recommendation of approval of the Rezoning and approval
of the proposed Site Plan.

Please note·
• Staff recommendations are under/med, in italzcs and are included in the draft ordinance.
• Staff suggestions are only underlined and are not included mn the draft resolution.

On February 10, 2020, Bear Development, filed an application requesting to rezone Lot No. 84
of the Ryan Meadows Subdivision development from M-I Limited Industrial District to M-2
General Industrial District.

On February 14, 2020, in conjunction with the Rezoning Application, Copart of Connecticut,
Inc. filed a Site Plan Application for the development of a 7,200 square foot building and a 25­
acre vehicle storage yard.

Project Description and Analysis
Rezoning Application:

As indicated, Bear Development is proposing to rezone the proposed Lot 84 of the Ryan
Meadows subdivision to the M-2 District to accommodate the Copart, Inc. development. Copart,
Inc. is a global online vehicle auction company specializing in asset liquidation and is classified
under Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) No. 5012 Automobiles and other Motor Vehicles,
which is a Permitted Use in the M-2 Zoning District, see definition below:



SIC 5012 - Automobiles and Other Motor Vehicles
Establishments primarily engaged mn the wholesale distribution ofnew and used
passenger automobiles, trucks, trailers, and other motor vehicles, includmg
motorcycles, motor homes, and snowmobiles

This Copart facility is not considered a salvage yard or junkyard because the applicant stated that
all Assets are liquidated ntact, meanng no dismantling, dranng offluids, crushing, or sale of
parts occurs at a Copartfacilty. Junkyards are classified under SIC 5093 Scrap and Waste
Materials, and defined as: Establishmentsprimarily engaged n assembling, breakang up, sorting,
and wholesale dzstribution ofscrap and waste materials. This industry includes auto wreckers
engaged in dsmantlng automobles for scrap [emphasis added] It is noted that scrap facilities
are permitted in the M-I District but not permitted in the M-2 District.

As the subject parcel does not yet exist, and to not create split zoning in violation of Section 15-
3 .0 l 03 of the UDO, the Rezonzngshall be contingent upon the recordzng o{the Fznal Plat for the
Ryan Meadows Subdivision. Also, a Certified Survey Map to divide Lot 84 into two lots is
scheduled for this Plan Commission meeting.

The area to be rezoned is designated as Business Park and Areas of Natural Resource Features on
the City's 2025 Future Land Use Map. The proposed rezoning to the M-2 District is consistent
with the City's Comprehensive Master Plan; therefore, an amendment is not required.

With that said, the M-2 District intent should be considered to ensure that the rezoning is
consistent with the City's overall plan for the larger surrounding area as an industrial park. The
M-2 District intent is below for review.

§ 15-3.0310
M-2 General Industral District

A. District Intent.
1. The M-2 General Industrial Dzstrict is intended to:

a Provdefor manufacturng, industrial, warehousng, and uses ofa more
general and less restrzctive nature and size than either the M-1 or BP Dzstncts.
b. Be used in locations where the relationship to surroundmg land use would
createfewerproblems ofcompatibilty.

2. The M-2 Dstrct is not intended to:

a Abut resdential zoning districts.
b. Accommodate mdustrial or businessparks under unified design and ownershp
which exceed 20 acres n area.
The community character ofthe M-2 Dstrct s SUBURBAN as setforth 111 the
Cty ofFrankln Comprehensrve Master Plan.

For example, some land uses that are permitted/special in the M-2 District but not permitted in
the M-1 District include: ship building, metal fabrication, soap manufacturing, paper mills,
sawmills and heavy construction. In contrast, the following land uses are permitted in the M-1

2



District but not in the M-2 District: wholesale trade (professional equipment, groceries, meats,
fruits, paper, furniture, etc.), scrap facilities, general and refrigerated warehousing,
manufacturing of instruments, laboratory equipment and special trade contractors (special use
required).

Per Memorandum sent to the applicant on March 10, 2020, staff commented that a landscape
bufferyard shall be required along the eastern boundary to ameliorate any potential nuisance
between the existing residential zoning district and the proposed M-2 General Industrial District.
The applicant added such landscape bufferyard to the landscape plan as well as a masonry fence.
However, staffrecommends that a tree survey shall be provided for all landscape bufferyard
areas prior to the issuance of_a bulding permit in accordance with Section 15-7.0301.G of_the
UDO.

With regards to adjacent residential districts to the north and south, Bear Development, LLC
submitted a landscape bufferyard easement as a condition of approval for Certified Survey Map
set forth in Resolution 2019-7565. Furthermore, an approved conservation easement on the
southern portion of Lot 84 would act as buffer to the south.

Site Plan Application:

Again, Copart of Connecticut, Inc. has applied for a Site Plan for the development of a 7,200
square foot building and a 25-acre storage yard for approximately 5,080 vehicles.

The development is proposed on approximately 44-acres, of which about .5-acres are located
within the City of Muskego. The development consists of the building, which contains office and
shop space, as well as associated parking, landscaping, lighting, fencing, and storm water
management facilities. In addition, the site plan includes a drop lot for receiving vehicles and a
significant amount of space dedicated for vehicle storage.

The 44 acres includes Lot 1 of the previously approved CSM, which has not yet been recorded,
as well as the southern portion of Lot 84, which also has not yet been created. The Ryan
Meadows subdivision plat still needs to be recorded. As such, the Copart, Inc. Site Plan shall be
contingent upon the recording ofa CSM or land transfer, as may be allowed, to combine the
southernporton ofLot 84 of_the Ryan Meadows subdvision and Lot I of_the previously
approved CSM for the redivision ofparcels bearng Tax Key Nos. 939-9994-000 and 939-9995­
000.

The site will be accessible from 124" Street through the .5-acre portion of land that is within the
City of Muskego. An emergency fire access will be provided from Monarch Drive. The applicant
is proposing a 28-foot wide entrance drive with heavy-duty pavement. Note that per Section 15­
5 .0207B., driveways shall not exceed 24 feet at the street right-of-way line and 30-feet at the
roadway, unless a greater distance is approved by the Plan Commission. Approval of the
proposed Site Plan will constitute the Plan Commission's approval of the entrance drive as
proposed by the applicant.

The site plan includes 41 parking spaces, including two ADA accessible spaces, which is in
conformance with Table 15-5.0202(1)(1). The UDO recommends junkyards provide two parking

3



spaces per 1,000 square feet of roofed area, plus one space per 15,000 square feet of outside
storage area.

According to the applicant, Copart's operatons are very unque compared to mostfaclties that
have outdoor storage. Their operation does not allow the publc n the storage yard or beyond
the bulding. That being sad, most ofthe personal vehicle traffic at a Copart Facilty is
employees and the adequate number ofparkang stalls needed arefar less than a typeal
outdoor storagefaclty. The applicant is requesting a reduction in the number of parking stalls at
this Facility to 41 stalls, two ofwhich are accessible spaces to meet the current City code and
ADA Standards.

The Plan Commission may approve increases or reductions from this Standard Parking Ratio.
Alternatively, if determined the use is not appropriately classified as a junk yard, the Plan
Commission may determine the amount of parking required per Section 15-5.0203E. of the
UDO.

All parking spaces within the parking lot in front of the building are 9-feet wide and 20-feet long
(180 square feet) and drive aisles are 24-feet wide in compliance with UDO standards.

Landscape Plan:

According to the applicant, 64.9% of the site consists of impervious surfaces, resulting in a
35.l % Landscape Surface Ratio, which complies with the M-2 District minimum LSR of 35%.

The UDO requires one planting of each type (Canopy/Shade Trees, Evergreens, Decorative
Trees, and Shrubs) per five provided parking spaces. With 41 proposed parking spaces, nine
plantings of each type are required. However, as the property abuts residentially zoned
properties, an additional 20% of plantings is required. Therefore, 11 plantings of each type are
required.

The Landscape Plan includes 11 Canopy/Shade Trees, 11 Evergreens, 11 Decorative Trees, and
15 Shrubs. Therefore, it complies with UDO Table 15-5.0302.

Per UDO Section 15-5.0303.D., permanent, on-site irrigation is required for all new living
landscape areas. The applicant is proposing temporary irrigation until the plantings are
established. According to the applicant: planting speces have been specifically chosen to be
tolerable ofdrought conditions, so permanent rrigation should not be needed.

Natural Resource Protection Plan:

All protected natural resource features shall be placed within a Conservation Easement, approved
by the Common Council and recorded with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, prior to
the issuance of building permits. It is noted that Bear Development, LLC is preparing
conservation easements for natural resources within lot l of previously approved CSM (Res.
2019-7565), and that the conservation easement for the southern portion of Lot 84 has been
approved but not yet recorded.

4



The Site Plan will also be contingent upon the approval of the Natural Resources Special
Exception (NRSE) application to allow for impacts to wetlands, wetland buffers and wetland
setbacks. The NRSE request is scheduled for this April 9, 2020, Plan Commission meeting.

Lighting Plan:

The applicant is requesting to defer the requirement of a Lighting Plan set forth in Division 15­
5 .0400 of the UDO as a condition of approval.

Stormwater management:

The applicant has provided detailed engineering plans. Staffrecommends that a final utility,
grading, eroson control and storm water management shall be subect to review and approval
by the Engineering Department, pror to ssuance ofa Building Permit.

Architecture:

Staff suggests that the architecture and building materials proposed be reconsidered.
Furthermore, metal is not recommended to be used as a primary building material, staff is
suggesting brick or stone as exterior materials.

Signage:

Sign plans have not been provided. It s recommended that all proposed sgnage shall comply
with the requirements of_Chapter 210 of_the Cty's Municipal Code and must receive a Sgn
Permit from the Inspection Department prior to installation.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Rezoning application
and approve the Site Plan, subject to the conditions in the attached draft resolution.

Additionally, the applicant is requesting the following:

1. A reduction in the number of parking stalls at this Facility to 41 stalls, two of which are
accessible spaces to meet the current City code and ADA Standards.

Staff comment: The Plan Commission may approve increases or reductions from this
Standard Parking Ratio. Alternatively, if determined the use is not appropriately classified as a
junk yard, the Plan Commission may determine the amount of parking required per Section
15-5.0203E. of the UDO. For example, if considered as a junkyard for the purpose of parking
requirements, the parking ratio would be 1/15,000 of outside storage area, resulting in 73
parking stalls.

2. A 28-foot wide drive to the west, while the UDO requires driveway width not to exceed 24
feet.

Staff comment: Per UDO §15-5.0207B., the width of a driveway shall not exceed 24 feet at
the street right-of-way line and 30-feet at the roadway, unless a greater distance is approved
by the Plan Commission. The applicant stated that the drveway is 28-foot wide to comply with

5



the isDOT commercal development standards. Wefeel this s acceptable because thus wll
be a shared driveway when Lot 1 ofCSM 11704 (to the north) is developed.

3. Approval of the proposed fences with a height of 8 feet, including a metal panel fencing and a
decorative masonry fencing, as shown in plan sheet 13/16 "Details".

Staff comment: In memorandum dated March 13, 2020, staff recommended landscape
plantings between the metal panel fencing and South 124" Street. The applicant has addressed
this recommendation.

4. Temporary irrigation in lieu of permanent irrigation, the applicant is proposing drought­
tolerant plantings.

Staff comment: Permanent irrigation is a requirement of the UDO. Staff is proposing two
alternatives: permanent irrigation and/or a 2-year planting guarantee.

• Pursuant to Unified Development Ordinance §15-5.0303.D., the applicant shall revise the
Landscape Plan to include pennanent, on-site irrigation for all new living landscape areas.

AND/OR

• Pursuant to Unified Development Ordinance §15-5.0303.G.3., any plant materials included
in an approved landscaping plan that do not survive a plant establishment period of two years
after installation shall be replaced by applicant, owner(s) of the property, successors and
assigns, with plant material(s) of the same or like species of equal size within the next
planting season, but in any event, within six months of the plant material(s)' demise.
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STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
PLAN COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 5-12-20]

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN FOR CONSTRUCTION
OF A 7,200 SQUARE FOOT BUILDING AND VEHICLE STORAGE YARD,

ALONG WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING, LANDSCAPING, LIGHTING,
FENCING, STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES AND A DROP LOT
FOR RECEIVING VEHICLES, FOR A GLOBAL ONLINE VEHICLE AUCTION

COMPANY SPECIALIZING IN ASSET LIQUIDATION SERVICES
(10082 SOUTH 124TH STREET)

(COPART OF CONNECTICUT, INC., APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Copart of Connecticut, Inc. having applied for approval of a proposed
site plan for construction of a 7,200 square foot building and vehicle storage yard for Copart,
Inc. (on approximately 44-acres (approximately .5 acres are located within the City of
Muskego)), a global online vehicle auction company specializing in asset liquidation services
(including short-term storage and sales of assets, and ancillary receiving, shipping, lien sale
and administrative activities-all assets liquidated intact) to institutional, commercial and
private owners of used undamaged and damaged vehicles, trailers, watercraft, and
powersports, industrial and construction equipment, the development consisting of a building
containing an office and shop space, as well as associated parking, landscaping, lighting,
fencing, storm water management facilities, and a drop lot for receiving vehicles (a
significant amount of space is dedicated for vehicle storage), with hours of operation
Monday through Friday, from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., at 10082 South 124th Street [this Site
Plan application is being submitted in conjunction with a Rezoning application for Mills
Hotel Wyoming, LLC, requesting to rezone thepropertyfrom M-1 Limited Industrial District
to M-2 General IndustrialDistrict]; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed such proposal and having found
same to be in compliance with the applicable terms and provisions of § 15-3.0421 of the
Unified Development Ordinance and in furtherance of those express standards and purposes
of a site plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan for the construction of a 7,200 square foot building
and vehicle storage yard for Copart, Inc., as well as associated parking, landscaping, lighting,
fencing, storm water management facilities, and a drop lot for receiving vehicles, as depicted
upon the plans date-stamped March 31, 2020, attached hereto and incorporated herein, is
hereby approved, subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. The property subject to the Site Plan shall be developed in substantial compliance
with, and operated and maintained pursuant to the Site Plan for the Copart of



COPART OF CONNECTICUT, INC. - SITE PLAN
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-
Page 2

Connecticut, Inc. "Copart, Inc." vehicle auction company date-stamped March 31,
2020.

2. Copart of Connecticut, Inc., successors and assigns, and any developer of the Copart
of Connecticut, Inc. "Copart, Inc." vehicle auction company construction project,
shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance,
inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults
to the City of Franklin, for the Copart of Connecticut, Inc. "Copart, Inc." vehicle
auction company construction project, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance,
and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19. of the Municipal Code, the general
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Copart of Connecticut, Inc.
"Copart, Inc." vehicle auction company construction project (i) being in compliance
with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances;
and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like,
required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this
approval.

4. That the Copart of Connecticut, Inc. "Copart, Inc." vehicle auction company
construction project shall be developed and constructed pursuant to such Site Plan
within one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, or this Resolution and all
rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and void, without any further
action by the City ofFranklin.

5. This Site Plan shall be contingent upon the recording of a CSM or land transfer, as
may be allowed, to combine the southern portion of Lot 84 of the Ryan Meadows
subdivision and Lot I of the previously approved CSM for the redivision of parcels
bearing Tax Key Nos. 939-9994-000 and 939-9995-000.

6. This Site Plan shall be contingent upon the approval of the Natural Resources Special
Exception (NRSE) application to allow for impacts to wetlands, wetland buffers and
wetland setbacks.

7. Conservation and landscape bufferyard easements shall be recorded with the
Milwaukee County Register ofDeeds, prior to issuance of a Building Permit.

8. Pursuant to Unified Development Ordinance Division 15-5.0400, the applicant shall
submit a Lighting Plan for Department of City Development review and approval,
prior to issuance of a Building Permit.
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9. Pursuant to Unified Development Ordinance $15-7.0301.G, the applicant shall submit
a tree survey of the areas designated as Landscape Bufferyard Easement.

10. Final utility, grading, erosion control and storm water management shall be subject to
review and approval by the Engineering Department, prior to issuance of a Building
Permit.

11. All signage shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 210 of the City's
Municipal Code and must receive a Sign Permit from the Inspection Department prior
to installation.

12. Compaction of soils shall be reviewed and approved by staff prior to the placement of
gravel.

13. The applicant shall submit a revised site plan depicting a masonry fence parallel to the
west property line to be constructed by the applicant instead of the proposed metal
panel fencing.

14. Permanent irrigation is not required as long as the applicant submits a 2-year
landscape planting guarantee to the Department ofCity Development prior to the
issuance ofbuilding permits.

15. Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance $15-5.0203.E, the minimum required
parking is 41 stalls.

16. Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance $15-5.0207.B, the width of the
driveway shall not exceed 28 feet, measured at the west property line.

17. Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance $15-3.0803.O.2.b, the metal panel
fence and the masonry fence shall not exceed 8 feet in height.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this
day 0f 2020.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Chairman
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ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk
AYES__NOESABSENT
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Table 15-3.0502
t s,eestres s.2et4,et-6sets st -·=eo. = ere.trade tr.± - -- tegg.pg

Worksheet for the Calculation of Base Site Area for Both Residential and Nonresidential Development
'"·"""""""""""''''''"''"='

STEP 1· Indicate the total gross site area (in acres) as determined by an actual on-site
43 56 acresboundarv survey.gfe.Popery -· ,.,,__ -- --=""""""----

Subtract (-) land which constitutes any existing dedicated public street rights-of-
STEP 2 way, land located w1thm the ultimate road rights-of-way of existing roads the nghts 1 83 acres

of-way of major utilities, and any dedicated public park and/or school site area
« gt patesgt.•mer

STEP 3· Subtract(-) land which, as a part of a previously approved development or land
0 acres

tri t,gt,3..-. tp
.£!Yl~2,n was reserved for open space
In the case of "Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations" for a proposed residential

STEP 4 use subtract(-) the land proposed for nonresidential uses or In the case of "Site
0 acresIntensity and Capacity Calculations" for a proposed nonres1dent1al use, subtract(-)

the land proposed for res1dent1al uses
STEP 5. Eauals "Base Site Area' 41 73 acres

. to get r.«#. hga. .g
,.,.,-.a=. ,:,-..,_- _ _ ..d.--..±....--



Table 15-3.0503
.tog. gsrse,ggee.gttg,

Worksheet for the Calculation of ResourceProtection Land

Protection Standard Based Upon Zoning District
Acres of Land inNatural Resource Feature Type
Resource Feature

Aoncultural Residential Non-Residential
Steep Slopes:
10-19% 000 060 040 - -er ti. e«.gs.goo. pg. pe :20-30% 065 0 75 070 - -i3-toe.ma.pg ggg ,\et3.+

+30% 090 0 85 0 80 - -
Woodlands & Forests. -. -~ 2.#. beepppg.tcgt2

Mature 0 70 070 0 70 - -
Youna 0 50 0 50 0 50 - -
Lakes & Ponds 1 00

tar
1 00 1 00.pg•sg. tp g9g. g. "4ooStreams 1 00 1 00 - -gt.t.cttit8,pie4hp9,,gegggg.g.e9. gag.2tg.. etes.rretetat#tear toe.tea9a saareas.sets. ause mesteeet pees 2

Shore Buffer 1 00 1 00 1 00 - -
Floodolains 1 00 1 00 1 00 - -
Wetland Buffers 1 00 1 00 1 00 1x2 29 229
Wetlands & Shoreland 1 00 1 00 1 00 1x1 62 1 62
Total Resource Protection Land 3.91 Acres



Table 15-3.0505-.,, ,,,. .__
Worksheet toiThe Calculation oiSite Intensity and Capacity for Nonresidential Development,

STEP 1· Calculate minimum required landscape surface Base Site Area x Landscape Surface 14 61 acres
pro.gs.gs.r e.

Ratio = Minimum Required On-Site Landscape Surface = ,,_,,,.,,,=-.., '"'''"""""'"''=
STEP 2.

Calculate Net Bu1ldable Site Area Base Site Area - Total Resource Protection Land or 2712Min ReaIred Landscape Surface = Net Buildable Site Area acres
eeta3,9., 2tee $.tt#pea.st99 eta peesgpe. . t a tit

STEP 3: Calculate Maximum Net Floor Area Yield of Site Net Buldable Site Area x NFAR = 23 06Maximum Net Floor Area Yield of Site acres

Calculate Maximum Gross Floor Area Yield of Site Base Site Area x GFAR = Maximum
.. - 4uk. e

STEP 4: Gross Floor Area Yield of Site 22 95 acres

Determine Maximum Permitted Floor Area of Site Lowest of MNFAY/MGFAY x '""""""'~
STEP 5: 43.560 22 95 acres
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Engineering Department
Ensuring the Orderly Development ofFranklin

DATE:

TO:

COPY:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

May 15, 2020

Alderman John Nelson

Franklin Aldermen and Mayor Olson ,_,)
G-FM«eek

Glen E. Morrow, PE- City Engineer, Director of Public Works, & Utility Manager

Copart Facilities in Caledonia and Cudahy

(

As discussed and per the request, I did drive down to the Copart facility in Caledonia yesterday
to assist you in the rezoning item for Tuesday. I didn't take any pictures in Cudahy so the
attached pictures are all from yesterday at Caledonia.

Again, like Cudahy I wouldn't classify Caledonia as a junk yard per any junk yard/pick-a-part
facility I have ever been to, but Caledonia isn't as nice as the facility in Cudahy. There are not
near as many cars nor is it as large of a site in Caledonia as Cudahy but I did a better job driving
the lot and seeing the entire operation in Caledonia.

In Cudahy there is a garage/office facility. Caledonia only has storage container/office for what
appeared to be one employee. No garage facility.

The worker at Caledonia (I got permission to enter and look around) said that they were in the
process of closing down the facility in 4-6 months. I asked if those cars would be in Franklin
facility and he was not in a position to know or speculate. I would speculate "yes"- but only
speculation because that would coincide with the Franklin schedule.

In Cudahy, there is an opaque fence surrounding the property where you cant see inside the
fence. Caledonia is a chain link- see through fence. There are slats in the chain link fence on the
north side of the property- not sure what they are screening from. Granted, there didn't appear to
be any residential properties near the Caledonia facility. Masonry and solid walls are planned for
Franklin- would still question the height of the Cudahy fence that I didn't measure- seemed
higher than 8-feet.

In Cudahy, I didn't see any stray parts lying around. In Caledonia, it wasn't "trashy" but there
were a few parts in the drive aisles that appeared to have fallen off of vehicles as they were
parked/retrieved.

In Cudahy, nearly all of the cars had some sort of wrapping and Caledonia only a few had any
sort of wrapping and it was apparent that they were wrapped somewhere else (scene of the
accidents?). For some of the Caledonia cars you wonder if anybody was fortunate to survive
(see picture showing flattened white Cadillac next to side impact damage of gray Toyota). Note
a picture of a white car with the note on the windshield "be careful picking up and moving,
engine hood is interlocked" and it appeared that several parts would fall out if you were to move
it. In Cudahy, that would have been wrapped.

Celebrating Quality of Life 9229e5tL0om580ad Fak!in,WI53132.9630 (4141427-75566 =(414)427-7691 franklinwi.qov



Both facilities had cars in rows (picture) with various crash damage, but it appeared that severity
of crashed cars in Caledonia quality was worse that Cudahy- not sure how you can grade that.
But I did see a burnout (picture) in Caledonia that I didn't see anything like in Cudahy.

In Cudahy, it appeared that all cars were looked at before they were stored and I saw evidence in
the garage that leaks were found and addressed. In Caledonia, I could definitely envision that
many cars might have spillage from the severe crashes and didn't see any facilities where it
would have been caught and addressed. I didn't see any spill spots on the ground in either
facility, but the workers at both facilities cited the same protocol for cleanup of spills when
found in the lot. Caledonia didn't know what type of earth prep took place beneath the gravel lot.
I have designed sewage lagoons and seen landfill and other environmental sites where
compacted clay is sufficient to protect groundwater. Gravel does offer some level of filtering
and a place for microbes to live and grow to handle small spills. I have thought more on this
issue since our conversation and a monitoring station at the drainage outlet locations with
required sampling of automotive fluids per City's direction or frequency not to exceed 3 months
could be installed to verify that only clean water is leaving site. Could be a requirement of the
rezoning?

In Cudahy, I dismissed most of the "ugly features" as knowledge that it was a former junk yard
and I could imagine that a new facility wouldn't look as bad. In Caledonia, this appeared to be a
virgin green field and I assume that all "improvements" were 100% Copart activities- definitely
not attractive.

Unlike Cudahy, I did ask about rental cars that were just being traded out for being old style.
Caledonia stated that he never sees those cars as all of his cars were from accidents. Granted, I
didn't drive the entire Cudahy site, but I didn't see any of those slightly-used cars at either
location that we were pitched at the first plan commission meeting- I had initially imagined a
"used car lot" look. When I visited both facilities- I would describe as a storage lot behind a
large body shop where all of the cars need mechanical repairs and body work- but fixable.
However in that mix (Caledonia site) there are some cars that cant be fixed and are waiting to be
parted out and placed in the crusher for scrap metal.
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTIONCONDITIONALLY
APPROVINGA 2 LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY
MAP, BEINGALL OF LOT 84 IN RYAN

MEADOWS, LOCATED IN THE
SOUTHWEST 1/4 ANDNORTHWEST 1/4 OF

THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND THE
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4

AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND THE
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4
ALL IN SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,
RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
(MILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC,

APPLICANT) (GENERALLYON THE EAST
SIDE OFMONARCH DRIVE, SOUTH OF
CHICORY STREET, AREACOMMONLY

KNOWNAS AREAG)

MEETING
DATE

05/19/20

ITEM NUMBER

G.5

On March 19, 2020, the Plan Commission carried a motion to recommend approval
ofa resolution conditionally approving a 2 lot certified survey map, being all ofLot
84 in Ryan Meadows, located in the Southwest 114 and Northwest 1/4 of the
Northeast 114 and the Northeast 1/4 ofthe Southwest 114 and the Northeast 1/4 and
the Southeast 1/4 ofthe Northwest 1/4 all in Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21
East, City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (generally on the east side of
Monarch Drive, south ofChicory Street, area commonly known as area G)

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2020- , conditionally approving a 2 lot
certified survey map, being all of Lot 84 in Ryan Meadows, located in the Southwest
1/4 and Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest
1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 all in Section
30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin (generally on the east side of Monarch Drive, south of Chicory Street, area
commonly known as area G).

Department of City Development: RMM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2020---

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 4-29-20]

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 2 LOT CERTIFIED
SURVEY MAP, BEING ALL OF LOT 84 IN RYAN MEADOWS, LOCATED IN THE

SOUTHWEST 1/4 AND NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND THE
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND THE

SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 ALL IN SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 5
NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

(MILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC, APPLICANT)
(GENERALLY ON THE EAST SIDE OF MONARCH DRIVE, SOUTH
OF CHICORY STREET, AREA COMMONLY KNOWN AS AREA G)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for
approval of a certified survey map, such map being all of Lot 84 in Ryan Meadows, located
in the Southwest 1/4 and Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of the
Southwest 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 all in Section
30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin,
more specifically, of the property generally located on the east side of Monarch Drive, south
of Chicory Street, area commonly known as Area G, bearing part of Tax Key No. 891-9010-
002, Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, applicant; said certified survey map having been reviewed
by the City Plan Commission and the Plan Commission having recommended approval
thereof pursuant to certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such
proposed certified survey map is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain
conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Mills Hotel
Wyoming, LLC, as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the
following conditions:

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and
made by the applicant, prior to recording.

2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9. of the
Municipal Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development
and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such
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Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.

3. Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of
separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the
City ofFranklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form
and content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or
designee to further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to
the approval of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey
Map.

4. Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, successors and assigns, and any developer of the Mills
Hotel Wyoming, LLC subdivision of Lot 84 of the Ryan Meadows Subdivision into 2
lots certified survey map project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all
development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin,
including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, within 30 days of invoice for same.
Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19. of the Municipal Code, the
general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC and
the subdivision of Lot 84 of the Ryan Meadows Subdivision into 2 lots certified
survey map project for the property generally located on the east side of Monarch
Drive, south of Chicory Street, area commonly known as Area G: (i) being in
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and
the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented
for this approval.

6. The applicant shall revise the conservation easement "Wetland 1-Lot 84 & Outlot 3"
to include the shore buffer area for review by the Department of City Development
and the City Attorney and approval by the Common Council, prior to the recording of
the Certified Survey Map.

7. The applicant shall submit civil plans of the Monarch Drive cul-de-sac for review and
approval by the Engineering Department, prior to the recording of the Certified
Survey Map.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner,
Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval and
without any further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above
conditions is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of adoption of this
Resolution.
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BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions
within 180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval,
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and
procedures for the recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to
obtain the recording of the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, Mills Hotel Wyoming,
LLC, with the Office of the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day 0f?2020.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT
--- --- ---



Item D.2

CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of May 7, 2020

Certified Survey Map

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the Certified Survey
Map application submitted by Bear Development, LLC, subject to the conditions in the draft
resolution.

Project Name:

Project Location:
Property Owner:

Applicant:

Current Zoning:

Proposed Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Applicant's Action Requested:

Ryan Meadows Lot 84- Certified Survey Map

Not Assigned/891-9010-002
Mills Hotel Wyoming

Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC

M-1 Limited Industrial District

M-2 General Industrial District (separate application)

Business Park and Areas ofNatural Resource Features

Recommendation of approval of the Certified Survey Map.

The applicant, Bear Development, LLC, filed a Certified Survey Map to subdivide Lot No. 84 of
the Ryan Meadows Subdivision into two separate parcels. Lot 1 has an area of 13.46 acres and
Lot 2 has an area of 10.59 acres. The land division request will accommodate the proposed
Copart, Inc. Site Plan, which utilizes Lot 2 for the storage of vehicles and an emergency
ingress/egress from Monarch Drive.

The applicant submitted this CSM application on March 23, 2020. Pursuant to Wisconsin
Statutes §236.34(lm)(f)., the approving authority (Common Council) shall take action within 90
days of application submittal unless a time extension is granted by the applicant. The 90-day
review time frame expires on June 21, 2020.

There are no current plans for the development of Lot 1, but is anticipated for Business
Park/Industrial development.

The subject property is currently zoned M-1 Limited Industrial District; however, the applicant
has a Rezoning Application currently under review to change the zoning to M-2 General
Industrial District.

Recommended Motions

A motion to recommend approval of the Certified Survey Map to the Common Council, subject
to the conditions set forth in the attached resolution.



Date:

To:

From:

RE:

MEMORANDUM

April 16, 2020/ April 23, 2020

Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC. / Regulo Martinez Montilva

Department of City Development/ Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC

Application for Certified Survey Map (CSM). / Resubmittal of Lot 84 Certified Survey Map

Bear Development, LLC. submitted this CSM application on March 23, 2020, the 90-day review
time frame set forth in Wis. Statutes §236.34 (lm)(f) expires on June 21, 2020.

Staff comments are as follows for the Certified Survey Map application, for Lot 84 of Ryan
Meadows subdivision:

City Development Department comments

l. Per Section 15-7.0702 of the UDO, please show correctly on the face of the CSM, in addition to the
information required by§ 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes, the following:

a. Existing and Proposed Contours. Existing and proposed contours at vertical intervals of not
more than two (2) feet. Elevations shall be marked on such contours based on National
Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929 (mean sea level). This requirement may be waived if the
parcel(s) created are fully developed.
Existmg and proposed contours have been added to the Certified Survey Map per Section
15-7 0702 of the UDO.

b. Owner, Subdivider, Land Surveyor. Name and address of the owner, Subdivider, and Land
Surveyor. - It is recommended that the owner/subdivider label on Sheet 5 be moved to
Sheet 1.
Owner/Subdivider information has been moved to Page I per the City 's request

c. Existing Zoning. The Certified Survey Map shall indicate on its face the current zoning and
zoning boundary lines of all parcels. lots or outlots proposed to be created by the Certified
Survey Map. - Please label the zoning districts of each parcel.
Existing zoning classifications have been included on the face of the CSM.

2. The temporary turnaround at the end of Monarch Drive shall be removed and replaced with a cul­
de-sac to be consistent with the Copart, Inc. development proposal. The cul-de-sac must meet City
standards, which includes an island. Note that if any land is being dedicated to the City to
accommodate the cul-de-sac design, the CSM must also be revised to note the 'dedication
accepted' language under the City of Franklin Common Council Approval section of the CSM.
Adequate land area has been provided as right of way dedication to accommodate a City cul-de­
sac The design of the cul-de-sac has been previously discussed with City Engineering Full design
plans of the cul-de-sac wll follow approval of the CSM

3. Sheet 3 does not show the 30-foot wetland buffer, which is shown on Sheet 2. Please include the
30-foot Buffer notation throughout the CSM.
The 30-foot wetland buffer has been added at the request of the City

1



4. Please revise the Mayor's name to Stephen R. Olson.
Corrected

5. As previously discussed, Lot 2 must be combined to the other Copart, Inc. site if utilized for that
same development. Again, all plats, CSMs, and land transfers to create the parcel presented for the
Copart, Inc. development must be completed prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.
Noted The combination wll be completed after the Copart approvals have been granted.

6. The proposed CSM and one of the conservation easements for Lot No. 84 does not appear to
include the Shore Buffer as shown on the NRPP. See below. This CSM and easement must be
revised accordingly to show the full extent of the protected area, including the Shore Buffer.
The revised CSM depicts the full extent ofprotected areas The Conservation Easement w1 II be rev 1sed
accordmgl)

Proposed Certified Survey Map NRPP Map
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Engineering Department comments
7. Add the recording information of Ryan Meadows subdivision to the header of this proposal.

Recording information is mcluded m the legal description.
8. Indicate in this proposal the sentence "Lot 1 & 2 are served by Public Sewer and Water.

Language added.
9. Show the section corners coordinates, at least two comers.

Completed
10. Show the dedication of the right of way by the cul-de-sac of Monarch Drive.

Completed
11. Remove the word "Temporary Tum Around Easement" as this will be a dedicated for public road

right of way.
Completed

12. The legal description needs to be adjusted to reflect the dedication of the right of way.
Completed

13. Under the Owner Certificate, insert the word after the Wisconsin Statutes II and the Unified
Development

14. Ordinance Division-15 of the City of Franklin".
Language added

15. Under the Common Council Approval, insert the word after Approved II and the dedication
accepted".
Language added

Note: The Engineering comments may be revised to reflect comments from the Milwaukee County.

Milwaukee County comments

See attached letter.
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LEGEND:
QDenotes Found I' Iron Pipe

Denotes Found 3/4' hon Rod
D Denotes Set 3/4 X 18" Iron Rebar 1.50 L13S/FT
'1, Denotes Wetland
{R) Denotes "Recorded As
D Denotes 'Dedicated· See Sheet II for Deta!s

Ge1ng all of Lot 84 mn Ryan Meadows located mn the Southwest 1/4 and
Northwest 1/ 4 of the Nor theast 1/4 AND the Northeast 1/ 4 of the
Southwest 1/4 AND the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the
Northwest 1/4 all 1n Section 30, Township 5 North Range 21 East, City
of FranRlln, M1lwauRee County Wisconsin N45o57'27"E

53.22'
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EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY
Vertical Datum National
Geodetic Vertical Datum of
1929 (NGVD29) Contours
are shown at a 2' interval
based on actual ground
survey of the current ground
terrain Reference
Benchmark Concrete
monument with brass cap at
the Northwest corner of the
Northeast 1/4 Section 30,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East,
Elevation = 803 18

804

"' "' "'WETLAND
v

/ LOT2
452,797 SQ FT. %
10 3948 ACRES

GRAPHICAL
SCALE (FEET)

I I I I
0 1"=250'

■

LEGEND:
QDenotes Found I' Iron Pipe

Denotes Found 3/4' Iron Rod
0 DenotesSet 3/4 X 18' Iron Rebar 150 LBS./FT

DenotesWetland
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.-----
emng all of Lot 84 1n Ryan Meadows located 1n theSouthwest 1/4 and
Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast I/4 AND the Northeast 1/4 of the
Southwest 1/4 AND the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the
Northwest 1/4 all 1n Section 30 Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City
of Franllin, Milwaukee County Wisconsin.
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__
Ge1ng all of Lot 84 mn Ryan Meadows located mn the Southwest l/4 and
Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast l/4 AND the Northeast 1/4 of the
Southwest 1/4 AND the Northeast /4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the
Northwest 1/4 all rn Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City
of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

GRAPHICAL "' "' "' "'
SCALE (FEET) WETLAND

"' "' "' 'V "'~ I I I I0 "' 'V "' "'z

0 1" = 250'

PROPOSED GRADING
Vertical Datum National
Geodetic Vertical Datum of
1929 (NGVD29) Reference
Benchmark Concrete
monument with brass cap at
the Northwest corner of the
Northeast 1/4 Section 30,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East,
Elevation = 803 18

;
I

.,/

LOT2

Denotes Wetland

LEGEND.
~enotes Found I Iron Pipe

Denotes Found 3/4 Iron Rod
0 Denotes Set 3/4 X 18' Iron Rebar 150 LBS./FT
v
-800- Denotes Ex,sung Contour
~- Denotes Proposed Contour

REVISED
APRIL 23, 2020

MARCH 16, 2020
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. ------
Ge1ng all of Lot 84 1n Ryan Meadows located 1n the Southwest 1/4 and Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast I/4 AND
the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 AND the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest I/Li all 1n

Section 30, Township 5 North Range 21 East, City of FranRlln M1lwauRee County, Wisconsin

BOUNDARY CURVE TABLE

CURVE LENGTH RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH TANGENT TANGENT

C1 10676 270 00' 022°39'16 N42"24'51 'E 10606' N53'44'29 'E N31"05'13 'E

c2 183.30' 270.00' 038°53'49' N11'38'18"E 179.80' N3105'13"E N07°48'36"W

C3 24178' 270 00' 051°18'30' N332751W 233.79' N07°48'36'W N5907'06"W

C4 114.43' 19000' 034°30'30" N4808'09"E 112 71' N30'52'54 E N65'23'24 E

C5 181.45' 535 00' 0192557° N55"40'26"E 180.58' N652324 'E N45'57'27"E

C6 56.55' 270 00' 01200'00' N4614'44 'E 56.45 N52"14'44 'E N4014'44 'E

C7 4316' 270 00' 009'09'31" N35'39'59"E 43.11' N40"14'44 'E N31'05'13'E

VICINITY SKETCH
SCALE 1"=2000'

■
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TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH RANGE 21 EAST

SW1/4
SEC 30
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Flood Zone Classification The property lies with in Zone 'Xof the Flood
Insurance Rate Map Community Panel No 55079C0206E AND
55079C0205E dated SEPTEMBER 26 2008 Zone "X areas are
determined to be outside the O 2% annual chance floodplain

2 Bearings referenced to the Wisconsin State Plane Coordinate System
South Zone (N.A D 1927) The north line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section
30 Township 5 North, Range 21 East bears S89°44'26 'E
Wetlands delineated by Heather D Patti PWS - Senior Wetland Ecologist
Project Manager R.A. Smith National Inc. on December 8 2014
VISION CORNER EASEMENTS No Obstructions Pennitted No visual
obstructions such as structures parking or vegetation shall be permitted
between the heights of 2 5 feet and 10 feel above the plane through the
mean curb grades within the Vision Comer Easement.
Lot 1 and Lot 2 are served by Public Sewer and Water
Temporary Tum Around Easement shown on the recorded plat of Ryan
Meadows on Lot 2 of this Certified Survey Map to be vacated via separate
document

NOTES



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__
Being all of Lot 84 in Ryan Meadows located mn the Southwest l/4 and Northwest I/4 of the Northeast I/4 AND
the Northeast I/4 of the Southwest 1/4 AND the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/'-I all 1n

Secon 30, Township 5 North Range 2I East, City of Franklmn Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

50' CONSERVATION EASEMENT

LINE TABLE

LINE NO BEARING DISTANCE

L1 N75"2221 'E 39 14

L2 S83"24'58"E 22 94

L3 N8101'31E 12 95'

L4 N64"22'19"E 3535'

L5 S72°46'48 'E 3810'

L6 S84°45'14 'E 19 51'

L7 N89"55'05"E 35.37'

L8 N78"42'05"E 35.25

L9 N7813'06'E 3492'

L10 N76"36'18' E 38.42'

L11 N78"25'24 'E 42.12'

L12 N80"05'35 'E 32.68'

L13 N86"06'12"E 30.49'

L14 N88"33'35 'E 28.34'

L15 $78"35'50"E 28.25'

L16 $6151 16E 4350'

L17 S51 "40'09"E 26.71

L18 S60"4843"E 32.81

L19 S82°18'03 'E 25.35'

L20 S83°46'43 E 34 76'

L21 $7659'19E 32.39'

22 S65"37'25"E 23.62'

LINE TABLE

LINE NO BEARING DISTANCE

L23 S8551'26"W 29 14

l24 N520225w 3019'

l25 $851242w 5.62

L26 N76"55'48w 4786'

L27 N4954'31"W 53.03'

L28 N643214 'wW 50 77

L29 N54"16'58''W 5716'

L30 N32"49'08''W 60.42'

L31 N03"52'01 'E 9168'

L32 N35"53 42"E 38 67'

L33 N3125'06 'E 3965

L34 N47°1620E 2214'

L35 N21°59'20"E 43,89'

L36 N3340'08 'W 23.04'

L37 N0249'59w 4267

L38 N2521'49'E 65.72'

L39 N19"04'30"E 4701'

L40 N60"4628 'E 5764

L41 N88"06'54 'E 5762'

L42 S3206'26 'E 66 20'

L43 $2157'55'E 4518'

NOTES.

CONSERVATION EASEMENT RESTRICTIONS
- No construction or placement of buildings or any structure
- No construction or any improvements unless notwithstanding covenant 1 above
the Improvement Is specifically and previously approved by the Common Council
of the City of Franklin, upon the advice of such other persons entities and
agencies as it may elect; such improvements as may be so approved being
intended lo enhance the resource value of the protected properly to the
environment or the public and including but not limited to animal and bird feeding
stations, park benches the removal of animal blockage of natural drainage or
other occurring blockage of natural drainage and the like
- No excavation dredging grading mining drilling or change the topography of
the land or Its natural condition in any manner including any cutting or removal of
vegetation except for the removal of dead or diseased trees, with the exception of
limited grading within the wetland setback area as defined by the City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Grading within the wetland setback is limited to
the grading shown in the approved Final Engineering Plans for the Strauss Brands
Facility development.
- No filling dumping or depositing of any material whatsoever including but not
limited to soll yard waste, or other landscape materials ashes garbage or debris
- No planting of any vegetation not native to the protected properly or not typical
wetland vegetation
- No operating snowmobiles dune buggies motorcycles all-terrain vehicles or any■ other types of Motorized vehicles

.Ee e«ere»• ■ PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP
20725WATERTOWNROAD I SUITE 1OO
BROOKFIELD WI 53186
OFFICE. (262) 754-8888 This instrument drafted by John P Konopacki, PLS-License No. 5-2461
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. ------
emng all of Lot 84mn Ryan Meadows located in the Southwest I/4 and Northwest I/4 of the Northeast I/4 AND
the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 AND the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 all 1n

Section 30, Township 5 North Range 21 East City of FranRhn M1lwauRee County Wisconsin

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
WAUKESHACOUNTY) SS

I John P Konopacki Professional Land Surveyor do hereby certify·

That I have surveyed mapped and divided Lot 84 in Ryan Meadows, as recorded in the Register of Deeds office for Milwaukee
County as Document No 10962414 located in the Southwest 1/4 and Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 AND the Northeast 1/4 of
the Southwest 1/4 AND the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 all in Section 30 , Township 5 North Range 21
East City of Franklin Milwaukee County Wisconsin described as follows

Commencing at the southwest comer of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 30
Thence South 89"39'32 East along the south line of said Northwest 1/4 and then along a south line of Ryan Meadows a recorded
subdivision, 2008 73 feet to the north right of way line of Monarch Drive and a west line of said Ryan Meadows
Thence South oo• 34'08" East along said west line of Ryan Meadows 98.50 feet to the south right of way line of Monarch Drive and
the Point of Beginning ,

Thence North 53°44 29" East along said south right of way line , 201 16 feet to a point of curvature
Thence northeasterly 106 76 feet along the arc of said curve to the left and said right of way line ,
whose radius is 270.00 feet and whose chord bears North 42"24'51" East, 106 06 feet,
Thence North 31"05'13" East along said right of way line 282.33 feet to a point of curvature
Thence northeasterly 183 30 feet along the arc of said curve to the left and said right of way line
whose radius is 270 00 feet and whose chord bears North 11"3818 East, 179 80 feet,
Thence North 07"48 36' West along said right of way line 543 63 feet to a point of curvature
Thence northwesterly 241 78 feet along the arc of said curve to the left and said right of way line
whose radius is 270 00 feet and whose chord bears North 33°2751" West, 233.79 feet,
Thence North 59"07'06" West along said right of way line 82 77 feet,
Thence North 1402'32" West, 27 27 feet to the south right of way line of Chicory Street;
Thence North 30"52 54" East along said south right of way line , 29 00 feet to a point of curvature·
Thence northeasterly 114.43 feet along the arc of said curve to the right and said right of way line
whose radius is 190 00 feet and whose chord bears North 48%08'09" East, 112 71 feet;
Thence North 65"23'24" East along said right of way line 245 97 feet to a point of curvature
Thence northeasterly 181.45 feet along the arc of said curve to the left and said right of way line
whose radius is 535 00 feet and whose chord bears North 55°40'26" East, 180 58 feet,
Thence North 45°57'27 East along said right of way line 53 22 feet to the west line of Outlot 3 in said Ryan Meadows ,
Thence South 44 24'10" East along said west line , 200 97 feet,
Thence South 003443" East along said west line , 365.13 feet,
Thence South 89"25'17" West along said west line 116 04 feet;
Thence South 01"10'06" East along said west line 1155 10 feet to the south line of the Northeast 1/4
of said Section 30 and a south line of Ryan Meadows
Thence North 89°42'41" West along said south line , 35 01 feet to the southwest comer of said Northeast 1/4
Thence South 00°34'05" East along the east line of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 30 and an east line
of said Ryan Meadows, 667 .46 feet to a south line of said Ryan Meadows
Thence North 89"47'21 West along said south line 662 96 feet to a west line of said Ryan Meadows ,
Thence North 00°34'08 West along said west line , 570 47 feet to the Point of beginning

Dedicating that portion of subject property as graphically shown for public road right of way purposes.

Containing 1 047,796 square feet (24 0541 acres) of land Gross and 1 039 220 square feet (23 8572 acres) of land Net, more or less.

That I have made such survey land division and map by the direction ofMILLS HOTEL WYOMING LLC LOOMIS COTTAGE
VENTURES LLC and STRAUSS INVESTMENTS LLC, owners of said land

That such plat is a correct representation of a ll the exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division thereof made

That I have fully complied with the requirements of Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin Stale Statutes and the City of Franklin Land Division
Ordinance and the Unified Development Ordinance Division - 15 of the City of Franklin in surveying the certified survey map

wmo.,sos,Ao
$ w» ·v ,g %
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\ Waukesha, fa WI n.s9 de%'i '$;surfaleere4or wno• ■ PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. ------
Being all of Lot 84 mn Ryan Meadows located in the Southwest I/4 and Northwest I/4 of the Northeast I/4 AND
the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 AND the Northeast I/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest I/u all in

5econ30, Township 5 North Range 2I East City of Frankln, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE OF DEDICATION

MILLS HOTELWYOMING, LLC Limited Liability Companies duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Wisconsin as owners do hereby certify that said limited liability companies caused the land described on this certified survey map to be
surveyed divided, dedicated and mapped as represented on this certified survey map.

MILLS HOTELWYOMING, LLC, also certifies that this plat is required by s.236 10 or s 236 12 of theWisconsin State Statutes and the
Unified Development Ordinance Division-15 of the City of Franklin to be submitted to the following for approval or objection

City of Franklin

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said MILLS HOTELWYOMING, LLC, has caused these presents to be signed by Stephen C Mills, Member
and Martha L Mills Member at (city) , County Wisconsin on thisday
of 2020

In the presence of· MILLS HOTELWYOMING, LLC
By· Mills Enterprises, LLC, it Manager

Stephen C Mills Member

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
________COUNTY)SS

Martha L. MIiis Member

Personally came before me thisday of 2020 Stephen C Mills Member and Martha L. Mills
Member of the above named MILLS HOTELWYOMING, LLC to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument,
and to me known to be such members of said limited liability company and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing instrument as
such officer as the deed of said Umited liability company by its authority

Notary Public
Name. _
State of Wisconsin
My Commission Expires _

PLAN COMMISSION APPROVAL

Approved by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin on thisday of 2020

Date

Date

COMMON COUNCIL APPROVAL

Date

Date

Stephen R. Olson Chairman

Secretary

Stephen R. Olson Mayor

Sandra L Wesolowski City Clerk

PEG JOB#809.20
SHEET 10 OF 11

Approved and the dedication accepted by the Common Council of the City of Franklin Wisconsin
on thisday of 2020
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__

LOT1

N89°39'32"W
247.57'

0 1" = 50'

GRAPHICAL
SCALE (FEET)

I

wo
¢ ­- O0 <\I°otO (0
0z

DEDICATED FOR PUBLIC ROAD
RIGHT OF WAY PURPOSES
MONARCH DRIVE
8,576 SQ. FT.
0.1969 ACRES

N53°44'29"E
872'

LOT2

C8

~o
0

~
0
0
0z

DEDICATION
DETAIL

emng all of Lot 84 1n Ryan Meadows located 1n the Southwest l/4 and Nor thwest l/4 of the Northeast 1/4 AND
the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 AND the Northeast l/4 and the Southeast l/4 of the Northwest 1/4 all 1n

Section 30, Township 5 North Range 21 East, City of Franklin Milwaukee County Wisconsin

ILEGEND:gerotes Found 3/4 ton Rod
D Denotes Set 3/4 X 18' lion Rebar 150 LBS.IFT

BOUNDARY CURVE TABLE

CURVE LENGTH RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH TANGENT TANGENT

C1 10676' 270.00' 022"39'16' N42"24'51"E 106.06' N53"44'29"E N3105'13 'E

C6 56 55' 27000' 01200'00' N46"14'44"E 56.45 N52"14'44"E N40"1444"E

C7 4316' 270 00' 009°09'31 N35"39'59"E 4311' N40"14'44"E N31"05'13"E

CB 9817' 6250' 089"59'59' S81"15'32"E 8839' S36"15'32' E N53"44'29"E

C9 5315' 62 50' 048"43'42' N2922'38E 51 57' N53"44'29' E N05"00'46 'E

C10 705' 27000' 00129'44 N52"59'37 E 705' N53"44'29' E N52"14'44"E

This instrument draftedby John P Konopachl, P?LS-LicenseNo. S-2461
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

STANDARDS, FINDINGS AND DECISION
OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN COMMON
COUNCIL UPON THE APPLICATION OF

MILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC,
APPLICANT, FOR A SPECIAL EXCEPTION

TO CERTAIN NATURAL RESOURCE
PROVISIONS OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE

MEETING
DATE

05/19/2020

ITEM NUMBER

At their meeting on March 25, 2020 the Environmental Commission recommended
approval of the subject Special Exception to certain natural resource provisions of the
Unified Development Ordinancewith conditions as proposed at theirmeeting and as set
forth in the attached final draft City ofFranklin Environmental Commission document.

At the regular meeting of the Plan Commission on May 7, 2020, following a properly
noticed public hearing, the following action was approved: motion to recommend
approval of the Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC Natural Resource Features Special
Exception pursuant to the Standards, Findings and Decision recommended by the Plan
Commission and Common Council Consideration of staff recommendations as
presented at this meeting; and to review the Environmental Commission
recommendations.

Upon review, the Environmental Commission recommendation to accept wetland
restoration in lieu of mitigation is not permissible by the UDO, Staff therefor
recommended that the application provide required wetland mitigation as part of a
wetland in the same subwatershed. The Plan Commission's recommendation to include
the Department of City Development recommendations has been reflected in the
Decision section of the attached draft Standards, Findings, and Decision document.

Please note that residents spoke during the public hearing with concerns about how the
proposed development for the site would impact the watershed, and how nonpoint
pollution and runoffwould be managed by that development.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Adopt the standards, findings and decision of the City of Franklin Common Council
upon the application ofMills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, applicant, for a special exception
to certain natural resource provisions of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance.

Department of City Development: MX



Redraft 05/13/2020

Standards, Findings and Decision
of the City ofFranklin Common Council upon the Application ofMills Hotel

Wyoming, LLC, applicant, for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City ofFranklin

Unified Development Ordinance

Whereas, Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, applicant, having filed an application
dated January 22, 2020, for a Special Exception pursuant to Section 15-9.0110 of the
City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance pertaining to the granting of Special
Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland, Wetland
Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or Enhancements to a
Natural Resource Feature; a copy of said application being annexed hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

Whereas, the application having been reviewed by the City of Franklin
Environmental Commission and the Commission having made its recommendation
upon the application, a copy of said recommendation dated March 25, 2020 being
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B; and

Whereas, following a public hearing before the City of Franklin Plan
Commission, the Plan Commission having reviewed the application and having made
its recommendation thereon as set forth upon the report of the City of Franklin
Planning Department, a copy of said report dated May 7, 2020 being annexed hereto
and incorporated herein as Exhibit C; and

Whereas, the property which is the subject of the application for a Special
Exception is generally located at West Loomis Road and West Ryan Road (Lot 84 in
Ryan Meadows Subdivision), zoned R-2 Estate/Single-Family Residence District, C-1
Conservancy District and R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District, and such property
is more particularly described upon Exhibit D annexed hereto and incorporated
herein; and

Whereas, Section 15-10.0208B. of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, as amended by Ordinance No. 2003-1747, pertaining to the granting of
Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland,
Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature, provides in part: "The decision of the
Common Council upon any decision under this Section shall be in writing, state the
grounds of such determination, be filed in the office of the City Planning Manager
and be mailed to the applicant."

Now, Therefore, the Common Council makes the following findings pursuant
to Section 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c. of the Unified Development Ordinance upon

1



the application for a Special Exception dated January 22, 2020, by Mills Hotel
Wyoming, LLC, applicant, pursuant to the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, the proceedings heretofore had and the recitals and matters incorporated
as set forth above, recognizing the applicant as having the burden of proof to present
evidence sufficient to support the following findings and that such findings be made
by not less than four members of the Common Council in order to grant such Special
Exception.

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): but rather, are not self-imposed and
are inherent to the site.

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicant and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: The strict application ofnatural resource protection to this
area, including wetland preservation, buffers and setbacks would render the parcel
unusable; and

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicant's use of the property and
that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives: Applicant represents that the
denial of the NRSE would be unreasonable and negatively impact the applicants
proposed use of the property based on the fact that the impacts are minimal and
occur in areas ofdegraded, farmed wetland. There are no reasonable alternatives
for development oftheproperty.

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: the proposed
development with the grant ofa Special Exception as requested will be consistent
with the existing character ofthe neighborhood; and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties: The situation and conditions related to this project are
unique. Other properties seeking the same relief would need to meet similar
standards; and

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: Applicant represents that the unique
circumstances involved with this request is what the NRSE process was intendedfor;
and

2



d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-existence with the
development: (this finding only applying to an application to improve or enhance a
natural resource feature). The applicant understands and agrees to place
Conservation Easements on other natural resourcefeatures within the site, including
any areas ofmitigation.

The Common Council considered the following factors in making its
determinations pursuant to Section 15-10.0208B.2.d. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: The proposed improvements which cause the needfor the NRSE
include grading, roadways, underground utilities and lot grading. The improvements
will not negatively affect surroundingproperties.

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: The exceptional, extraordinary or unusual
circumstance is that the resource being impacted has been designated as low quality
and is orientated in a way thatprevents practical development on the remaining land.

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue;
disability of an occupant: Thefuture use ofthe property has been affirmed through
recent zoning and Certified SurveyMap. Thefuture improvements will bepermanent.

4. Aesthetics: There will be no negative impact to aesthetics.

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:
The NRSE is not over-reaching. Applicant represents that the specific situation is
what the NRSE was intendedfor.

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: Applicant owns the adjacent
property to the east and west. The property to the South of the site (Zoned
residential) is owned by the current owner oftheparcel subject to the NRSE, and has
grantedpermissionfor development oftheparcel and this NRSE request, prior to the
property sale. Bear Development or itspartners own the other surroundingproperties
as part oftheir developmentprojectfor thispart ofFranklin.

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area:
Manufacturing and residential.

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: No negative affect upon adjoining
property is perceived.
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9. Natural features of the property: The wetland resource that will be impacted
consists primarily oflow-quality, farmed vegetation.

10. Environmental impacts: There are no other environmental impacts associated
with the NRSE with exception to the reduction ofapproximately 10,000 squarefeet of
farmed wetland. The applicantproposes mitigation by enhancing an existing wetland
that is part ofthe same watershed.

11. A recommendation from the Environmental Commission as well as a review and
recommendation prepared by an Environmental Commission-selected person
knowledgeable in natural systems: The Environmental Commission recommendation
and its reference to the report ofMarch 25, 2020 is incorporated herein.

12. The practicable alternatives analysis required by Section 15-9.01 l0C.4. of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the overall impact of the entire proposed use or
structure, performance standards and analysis with regard to the impacts of the
proposal, proposed design solutions for any concerns under the Ordinance, executory
actions which would maintain the general intent of the Ordinance in question, and
other factors relating to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance section imposing the
requirement: The Plan Commission recommendation and the Environmental
Commission recommendation address thesefactors and are incorporated herein.

Decision

Upon the above findings and all ofthe files and proceedings heretofore had
upon the subject application, the Common Council hereby grants a Special Exception
for such reliefas is described within Exhibit C, upon the conditions:

1) that the natural resourcefeatures and mitigation areas upon the properties to be
developed be protected by a perpetual conservation easement to be approved by
the Common Council prior to any development within the areas for which the
Special Exception is grantedprior to the issuance ofany Occupancy Permits;

2) that the applicant obtain all other necessary approval(s) from all other applicable
governmental agencies prior to any development within the areas for which the
Special Exception is granted;

3) that all development within the areas for which the Special Exception is granted
shall proceed pursuant to and be governed by the approved Natural Resource
Protection Plan and all other applicable plans for Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC,
applicant, and all other applicable provisions of the Unified Development
Ordinance.
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4) Mitigation is provided by the applicant be in compliance with the standards of
$15-4.0103.B.4. Mitigation may be provided off-site, within the same
subwatershed.

The duration ofthis grant ofSpecial Exception ispermanent.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of2020.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT­
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TO:
DATE:
RE:
APPLICATION:

City of Franklin Environmental Commission

Common Council
March 25, 2020
Special Exception application review and recommendation
Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, Applicant, dated: January 22, 2020
(generallyWest Loomis Road and West Ryan Road (Lot 84 in
Ryan Meadows Subdivision)

I. $15-9.0110 of the Unified Development Ordinance Special Exception to
Natural Resource Feature Provisions Application information:

1. Unified Development Ordinance Section(s) from which Special Exception is
requested: The applicant is requesting an exception from §15-4 0101
Natural Resource Protection Standards, and $15-4.0102 Natural Resource
Features Determination which require that identified natural resources
features be protectedfrom impacts ofdevelopment.

2. Nature of the Special Exception requested (description of resources,
encroachment, distances and dimensions): The applicant is requesting to
impact 9,969 square feet offarmed wetland, 19,268 square feet of wetland
buffer, and a setback area totaling 34,002 square feet including the buffer
(14,734 squarefeet ofsetback outside the buffer). The wetland area exists as a
linear shaped swale that has been continuouslyfarmed since at least 193 7.

3. Applicant's reason for request: Thefarmed wetland is shaped and located in
such a way that it bisects the site. The orientation prevents the propertyfrom
being practically developed. Because the wetland is farmed and devoid of
vegetation, the applicant believes it has a very lowfunctional value.

Federal and State Permitsfor the proposed wetland impact have been secured.

4. Applicant's reason why request appropriate for Special Exception: The City of
Franklin Plan Commission and City Council has approved a zoning
reclassification and Certified Survey Map for this property. The intended use
ofthe property is an extension ofmanufacturing use.
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The property in question is currently activelyfarmedfor traditonal row crops.
The applicant completed a wetland delineaton, as required by the CSM and
dscovered that it includes a farmed wetland which bisects the property. The
swalefeature, which was classified as "low-qualty" wetland, is not vegetated
except for seasonal row crops. Without the Natural Resource Exception, the
property cannot be developed.

Upon review, both the Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources and the
Army Corps ofEngineers granted permits for the proposed wetland impact
based on the low-quality characteristics ofthe wetland and thefact that the
property cannot be developed without the requested impact.

The remaining wetlands on site will be perpetually protected by a
Conservation Easement.

II. Environmental Commission review of the §15-9.0ll0C.4.f. Natural Resource
Feature impacts to functional values:

1. Diversity of flora including State and/or Federal designated threatened and/or
endangered species: Soybeans/Corn.

2. Storm and flood water storage: The property is not in a designatedfloodplain
orfloodway.

3. Hydrologic functions: The wetland is overland drainage swale.

4. Water quality protection including filtration and storage of sediments,
nutrients or toxic substances: The wetland is not vegetated year-round. Runoff
and sediment are not trapped orfiltered by thisfeature.

5. Shoreline protection against erosion: The wetland is not adjacent to a body of
water.

6. Habitat for aquatic organisms: The wetland is not adjacent to a body ofwater.

7. Habitat for wildlife: The wetland is not vegetated. It is actively tilledfor row
crop production.

8. Human use functional value: The proposed areas of impacts are not being
usedfor any type ofhuman use other than agriculture.

9. Groundwater recharge/discharge protection: The swale is a natural
depressional area which leads to a functional wetland. Groundwater and
surface water will continue to drain to theperpheral wetlands.
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10. Aesthetic appeal, recreation, education, and science value: There is no
educatonal or scentifc function to the impacted areas. There is no aesthete
appeal.

11. State or Federal designated threatened or endangered species or species of
special concern: Owners are not aware ofany State or Federal designated
threatened or endangered species on our site.

12. Existence within a Shoreland: The wetland is not adjacent to a body ofwater.

13. Existence within a Primary or Secondary Environmental Corridor or within an
Isolated Natural Area, as those areas are defined and currently mapped by the
Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission from time to time:
The property in question does not include any land designated as Primary or
Secondary Environmental Corridor as defined by SEWRPC.

III. Environmental Commission review of the §15-10.0208B.2.d. factors and
recommendations as to findings thereon:

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application
to improve or enhance a natural resource feature): The condition is not self­
imposed.

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicants and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: The strict application ofnatural resourceprotection to
this area, including wetland preservation, buffers and setbacks would render
theparcel unusable.

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicants' use of the property
and that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives: Applicant represents
that the denial ofthe NRSE would be unreasonable and negatively impact the
applicants proposed use ofthe property based on thefact that the impacts are
minimal and occur in areas of degraded, farmed wetland. There are no
reasonable alternativesfor development oftheproperty.

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section wll:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: The proposed
impacts and resulting development will be consistent with the neighborhood, and
consistent with the existng zoning and Comprehensive Plan.
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b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties: The suuation and condtions related to this
project are unique. Other properties seeking the same relefwould need to meet
smilar standards.

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribmng the requirement: Applcant represents that the
unique crcumstances nvolved with this request is what the NRSE process was
intendedfor.

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable
water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co­
existence with the development (this finding only applying to an applicaton to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): The applicant understands
and agrees to place Conservation Easements on other natural resource
features within the site, including any areas ofmitigation.

IV. Environmental Commission review of the $15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c.
factors and recommendations as to findings thereon:

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative placement
of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: The proposed improvements which cause the need for the
NRSE include grading, roadways, underground utilities and lot grading. The
improvements will not negatively affect surroundingproperties.

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying to
the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: The exceptional, extraordinary or unusual
circumstance is that the resource being impacted has been designated as low
quality and is orientated in a way that prevents practical development on the
remaining land.

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue; disability
of an occupant: Thefuture use ofthe property has been affirmed through recent
zoning and Certified SurveyMap. Thefuture improvements will bepermanent.

4. Aesthetics: There will be no negative impact to aesthetics.

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Except1on:
The NRSE is not over-reaching. Applicant represents that the specific slluatwn is
what the NRSE was intendedfor.
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6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: Applicant owns the adjacent
property to the east and west. The property to the South of the site (Zoned
residential) is owned by the current owner oftheparcel subject to the NRSE, and has
granted penmssionfor development oftheparcel and this NRSE request, prior to the
property sale. Bear Development or its partners own the other surrounding properties
as part oftheir developmentprojectfor this part ofFranklin.

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Current
zoning types are a mix ofresidential and manufacturing, with conservation areas.
The development plans for this area identify this and other parcels for rezoning to
manufacturing uses.

8. Any negative effect upon adjoining property: There are no negative effects to the
surroundingproperty.

9. Natural features of the property: The wetland resource that will be impacted
consists primarily oflow-quality, farmed vegetation.

10. Environmental impacts: There are no other environmental impacts associated
with the NRSE with exception to the reduction ofapproximately 10,000 squarefeet of
farmed wetland. The applicantproposes mitigation by enhancing an existing wetland
that is part ofthe same watershed.

V. Environmental Commission Recommendation:

The Environmental Commission has reviewed the subject Application pursuant to
$15-10.0208B. of the Unified Development Ordinance and makes the following
recommendation:

1. The recommendations set forth in Sections III. and IV. Above are incorporated
herein.

2. The Environmental Commission recommends approval of the Application
upon the aforesaid recommendations for the reasons set forth therein.

3. The Environmental Commission recommends that should the Common
Council approve the Application, that such approval be subject to the
following conditions:

a. Review by the Plan Commission of revised site intensity
calculations to clarify the quantity of steep slopes;

b. Mitigation by the applicant be in the form of wetland enhancement
to the existing wetlands on site;
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c. The applicant shall obtam approval of conservation easements for
those existing natural resources to be protected pnor to approval of
any site plan;

d. Land upon which the mitigation is to take place shall be protected
by a conservation easement as permanent natural resource features.
Applicant shall obtain approval of the required easement prior to
approval of any site plan.

The above review and recommendation was passed and adopted at a regular r,eetmg
of the Environmental Commission of the City of Franklin on he 257 day of
Ho2ch ,2020.

Dated thisJ1 day of APB L , 2020.

Attest:

n, Vice-Chairman
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Item C.2
CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of April 9, 2020

Natural Resource Special Exception

Project Name:

Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Current Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Applicant's Action Requested:

INTRODUCTION:

Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, (FranklinMills/ Bear
Development) Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)

Not Assigned: Tax Key No. 939-9994-000, and 939-9995-
000

Mathson, Daniel L & Virginia K (Mathson, Robert ET AL)
(939-9994-000)

Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC

R-2 Estate Single-Family Residence District

[939-9994-000 previously received approval to be rezoned
to M-2 General Industrial District; however, the CSM
creating the M-2 parcel has not yet been recorded]

Business Park and Areas ofNatural Resource Features

Recommendation to the Environmental Commission, Plan
Commission, and Common Council for approval of the
proposedNatural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)

On January 24, 2020, the applicant submitted an application for a Special Exception to Natural
Resource Feature Provisions to the Department of City Development. The applicant is requesting
approval to impact wetlands, wetland buffers, and wetland setbacks in order to develop on the subject
land. Applications to rezone the parcel, and a site plan for the development of Copart, Inc., a global
online vehicle auction company specializing in asset liquidation are currently seeking approval.

Pursuant to Section 15-10.0208 of the UDO, all requests for a Natural Resource Special Exception
(NRSE) shall be provided to the Environmental Commission for its review and recommendation. The
Commission recommended approval of the NRSE, subject to the conditions in the Special Exception
application review and recommendation.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The applicant has submitted an application for an NRSE for property bearing Tax Key No. 939 9994
000. The subject property contains several wetlands and areas of steep slopes. No impacts are proposed
to the steep slopes. Staff notes that two different figures have been provided for the quantity of steep
slopes: 0.11 acres is listed on the Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP); 0.8 was used for site
intensity calculations in the Environmental Commission submittal materials. Revised calculations were
not provided as of this writing. Staffrecommends that the applicant clarify the amount ofsteep slopes
on site and revise the NRPPI Site Intensity calculations accordingly.



The wetland delineations were completed in April 2019, identifying several wetlands on the property.
The applicant obtained letters from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) dated
January 8, 2020 (permit EXE-SE-2020-41-00039) and the Army Corps of Engineers (ACE) likewise
dated January 8, 2020 designating two wetland area, W-1 and W-4, of the delineation report for the
Mathson property as not regulated. These artificial wetlands meet the standards of§ 15-4.0102.J to be
exempted from natural resource measurement requirements; they are therefore not subject to
regulations. No impacts are proposed to W-3 on this part of the property.

The applicant's request is to impact just under 10,000 square feet of wetland identified as W-2 in the
Mathson property delineation. Under separate cover on January 8, 2020, (GP-SE-2020-41-00037) the
DNR granted permission to fill this wetland. The January 8 letter from the ACE likewise issues a
general permit to fill this wetland.

Specifically, the exception is requested for impacts to:

• 9,969 square feet ofwetland
• 19,268 square feet ofwetland buffer
• 34,002 square feet of wetland a setback area including the buffer (14,734 square feet of setback

outside the buffer)

The impacted wetland is part of the Ryan Creek subwatershed of the Root River (Figure 1 ).

Fgure IatershedBoundary

The standard for mitigation ofwetland (§ 15-4.0103 .B.4) andwetland buffer (§ 15-4.0103 .B. 5) requires
a mitigation area of 1.5 acres ofmitigation provided to every one (1) acre of impact. Plant species and
soils employed must be of superior quality to the existing wetland, meaning that the applicant must
choose optimal plants regardless of the quality ofvegetation being replaced. The UDO further requires
that the mitigation be provided on the same parcel or site for which the exception is being made. Plan
Commission may allow off site mitigation within the same watershed (§15-4.0103.C).

The applicant has proposedmitigation by expanding existingwetlands elsewhere on property currently
being developed byFranklinMills/Bear, as expansion ofwetlands on the subject property would render
it undevelopable. During the meeting of the Environmental Commission, the applicant proposed that
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remediation or enhancement of existing wetlands would be a more beneficial approach for the
watershed and natural features in the area, and requested this be considered in lieu ofmitigation. Upon
review, the Environmental commission recommended this approach, provided the enhancement take
place on the subject property. This recommendation is reflected in their review and recommendation
document. Staff_ recommends that the applicant provde mitigation, and that said mitigation be
protected by a conservation easement Staff further recommends that areas of existing natural
resources be similarlyprotected by easements.

The applicant has provided the attached Natural Resource Special Exemption Application, Project
Description, and associated information. Staffwould note:

•
•
•

•

•

The wetland delineation was prepared by an Assured Delineator.
Required permits from other units of government have been obtained.
Conservation easements materials for existing natural resources to be preserved have been
provided and are under review by the Planning Department.
The applicant is proposing restoration of existing wetlands in lieu ofmitigation, the details of
which have not been fully defined yet. Submitted materials for Plan Commission detail off-site
mitigation ofwetlands only.
Conservation easements for mitigation areas will need to be submitted once a proposal has
been identified.

CONCLUSION:

Per Section 15-10.0208 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the applicant shall have the
burden of proof to present evidence sufficient to support a Natural Resource Special Exception
(NRSE) request. The applicant has presented evidence for the request by answering the questions
and addressing the statements that are part of the Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)
application. The applicant's responses to the application's questions and statements are attached for
your review. Also attached is a document titled, "Cty ofFranklin Environmental Commission" that
the Environmental Commission must complete andforward to the Common Council. The questions
and statements on this document correspond with the Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)
application questions and statements that the applicant has answered and addressed.

At its March 25, 2020 meeting, the Environmental Commission recommended approval of the NRSE
as presented at their meeting, with conditions as set forth in Section V. of the City of Franklin
Environmental Commission Special Exception application review and recommendation memo.

CONCLUSION:

The Environmental Commission recommendations are contained in the decisions section of the
attached draft Standards, Findings and Decision of the City of Franklin document.

Staff recommends approval of the NRSE, subject to a number of conditions such as:
• Revision of the Site Intensity Calculations to clarify the quantity of steep slopes;
• Provision ofmitigation by the applicant; and
• Recording of Conservation Easements.

3



Draft 4/9/20

Standards, Findings and Decision
of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the Application ofMills Hotel

Wyoming, LLC, applicant, for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City ofFranklin

Unified Development Ordinance

Whereas, Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, applicant, having filed an application
dated January 22, 2020, for a Special Exception pursuant to Section 15-9.0110 of the
City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance pertaining to the granting of Special
Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland, Wetland
Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or Enhancements to a
Natural Resource Feature; a copy of said application being annexed hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

Whereas, the application having been reviewed by the City of Franklin
Environmental Commission and the Commission having made its recommendation
upon the application, a copy of said recommendation dated March 25, 2020 being
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B; and

Whereas, following a public hearing before the City of Franklin Plan
Commission, the Plan Commission having reviewed the application and having made
its recommendation thereon as set forth upon the report of the City of Franklin
Planning Department, a copy of said report dated April 9, 2020 being annexed hereto
and incorporated herein as Exhibit C; and

Whereas, the property which is the subject of the application for a Special
Exception is generally located at West Loomis Road and West Ryan Road (Lot 84 in
Ryan Meadows Subdivision), zoned R-2 Estate/Single-Family Residence District, C-1
Conservancy District and R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District, and such property
is more particularly described upon Exhibit D annexed hereto and incorporated
herein; and

Whereas, Section 15-10.0208B. of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, as amended by Ordinance No. 2003-1747, pertaining to the granting of
Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland,
Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature, provides in part: "The decision of the
Common Council upon any decision under this Section shall be in writing, state the
grounds of such determination, be filed in the office of the City Planning Manager
and be mailed to the applicant."
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Now, Therefore, the Common Council makes the following findings pursuant
to Section 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c. of the Unified Development Ordinance upon
the application for a Special Exception dated January 22, 2020, by Mills Hotel
Wyoming, LLC, applicant, pursuant to the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, the proceedings heretofore had and the recitals and matters incorporated
as set forth above, recognizing the applicant as having the burden of proof to present
evidence sufficient to support the following findings and that such findings be made
by not less than four members of the Common Council in order to grant such Special
Exception.

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): but rather, _

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicant and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives._,or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicant's use of the property and
that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives:------------

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: the proposed
development with the grant ofa Special Exception as requested will be consistent
with the existing character ofthe neighborhood; and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties._and

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-existence with the
development: (this finding only applying to an application to improve or enhance a
natural resourcefeature).

The Common Council considered the following factors in making its
determinations pursuant to Section 15-10.0208B.2.d. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.
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1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks.

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: _

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue;
disability of an occupant._

4. Aesthetics:--------------------------

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: _

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Residential.

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: No negative affect upon adjoining
property is perceived.

9. Natural features of the property: _

]), Environmental impacts.

11. A recommendation from the Environmental Commission as well as a review and
recommendation prepared by an Environmental Commission-selected person
knowledgeable in natural systems: The Environmental Commission recommendation
and its reference to the report of is incorporated herein.

12. The practicable alternatives analysis required by Section 15-9.01 l0C.4. of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the overall impact of the entire proposed use or
structure, performance standards and analysis with regard to the impacts of the
proposal, proposed design solutions for any concerns under the Ordinance, executory
actions which would maintain the general intent of the Ordinance in question, and
other factors relating to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance section imposing the
requirement: The Plan Commission recommendation and the Environmental
Commission recommendation address thesefactors and are incorporated herein.

Decision
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Upon the above findings and all ofthe files and proceedings heretofore had
upon the subject application, the Common Council hereby grants a Special Exception
for such reliefas is described within Exhibit C, upon the conditions:

1) that the natural resourcefeatures and mitigation areas upon the properties to be
developed be protected by a perpetual conservation easement to be approved by
the Common Council prior to any development within the areas for which the
Special Exception is grantedprior to the issuance ofany Occupancy Permits;

2) that the applicant obtain all other necessary approval(s)from all other applicable
governmental agencies prior to any development within the areas for which the
SpecialException is granted;

3) that all development within the areas for which the Special Exception is granted
shall proceed pursuant to and be governed by the approved Natural Resource
Protection Plan and all other applicable plans for Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC,
applicant, and all other applicable provisions of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

4) that the applicantprovide revised site intensity calculations to clarify the quantity
ofsteep slopes prior to any land disturbing activities; and,

5) Mitigation is provided by the applicant be in theform ofwetland enhancement to
the existing wetlands on site.

The duration ofthis grant ofSpecialException is permanent.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2020.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT­
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TO:
DATE:
RE:
APPLICATION:

City of Franklin Environmental Commission

Common Council
March 25, 2020
Special Exception application review and recommendation
Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, Applicant, dated: January 22, 2020
(generally West Loomis Road and West Ryan Road (Lot 84 in
Ryan Meadows Subdivision)

I. $15-9.0110 of the Unified Development Ordinance Special Exception to
Natural Resource Feature Provisions Application information:

1. Unified Development Ordinance Section(s) from which Special Exception is
requested: The applicant is requesting an exception from $15-4.0101
Natural Resource Protection Standards, and $15-4.0102 Natural Resource
Features Determination which require that identified natural resources
features beprotectedfrom impacts ofdevelopment.

2. Nature of the Special Exception requested (description of resources,
encroachment, distances and dimensions): The applicant is requesting to
impact 9,969 square feet offarmed wetland, 19,268 square feet ofwetland
buffer, and a setback area totaling 34,002 square feet including the buffer
(14, 734 squarefeet ofsetback outside the buffer). The wetland area exists as a
linear shaped swale that has been continuouslyfarmed since at least 193 7.

3. Applicant's reason for request: Thefarmed wetland is shaped and located in
such a way that it bisects the site. The orientation prevents the propertyfrom
being practically developed. Because the wetland is farmed and devoid of
vegetation, the applicant believes it has a very lowfunctional value.

Federal and State Permitsfor theproposed wetland impact have been secured.

4. Applicant's reason why request appropriate for Special Exception: The City of
Franklin Plan Commission and City Council has approved a zoning
reclassification and Certified Survey Mapfor this property. The intended use
oftheproperty is an extension ofmanufacturing use.
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Theproperty in question is currently activelyfarmedfor traditional row crops.
The applicant completed a wetland delineation, as required by the CSM and
discovered that it includes a farmed wetland which bisects the property. The
swalefeature, which was classified as "low-quality" wetland, is not vegetated
exceptfor seasonal row crops. Without the Natural Resource Exception, the
property cannot be developed.

Upon review, both the Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources and the
Army Corps ofEngineers granted permits for the proposed wetland impact
based on the low-quality characteristics ofthe wetland and thefact that the
property cannot be developed without the requested impact.

The remaining wetlands on site will be perpetually protected by a
Conservation Easement.

II. Environmental Commission review of the §15-9.0ll0C.4.f. Natural Resource
Feature impacts to functional values:

1. Diversity of flora including State and/or Federal designated threatened and/or
endangered species: Soybeans/Corn.

2. Storm and flood water storage: The property is not in a designatedfloodplain
orfloodway.

3. Hydrologic functions: The wetland is overland drainage swale.

4. Water quality protection including filtration and storage of sediments,
nutrients or toxic substances: The wetland is not vegetated year-round. Runoff
and sediment are not trapped orfiltered by thisfeature.

5. Shoreline protection against erosion: The wetland is not adjacent to a body of
water.

6. Habitat for aquatic organisms: The wetland is not adjacent to a body ofwater.

7. Habitat for wildlife: The wetland is not vegetated. It is actively tilledfor row
cropproduction.

8. Human use functional value: The proposed areas of impacts are not being
usedfor any type ofhuman use other than agriculture.

9. Groundwater recharge/discharge protection: The swale is a natural
depressional area which leads to a functional wetland. Groundwater and
surface water will continue to drain to theperipheral wetlands.
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10. Aesthetic appeal, recreation, education, and science value: There is no
educational or scientific function to the impacted areas. There is no aesthetic
appeal.

11. State or Federal designated threatened or endangered species or species of
special concern: Owners are not aware ofany State or Federal designated
threatened or endangered species on our site.

12. Existence within a Shoreland: The wetland is not adjacent to a body ofwater.

13. Existence within a Primary or Secondary Environmental Corridor or within an
Isolated Natural Area, as those areas are defined and currently mapped by the
Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission from time to time:
The property in question does not include any land designated as Primary or
Secondary Environmental Corridor as defined by SEWRPC.

III. Environmental Commission review of the §15-10.0208B.2.d. factors and
recommendations as to findings thereon:

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application
to improve or enhance a natural resource feature): The condition is not self­
imposed.

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicants and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: The strict application ofnatural resourceprotection to
this area, including wetland preservation, buffers and setbacks would render
theparcel unusable.

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicants' use of the property
and that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives: Applicant represents
that the denial ofthe NRSE would be unreasonable and negatively impact the
applicants proposed use ofthe property based on thefact that the impacts are
minimal and occur in areas of degraded, farmed wetland. There are no
reasonable alternativesfor development oftheproperty.

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: The proposed
impacts and resulting development will be consistent with the neighborhood, and
consistent with the existing zoning and Comprehensive Plan.
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b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties: The situation and conditions related to this
project are unique. Otherproperties seeking the same reliefwould need to meet
similar standards.

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: Applicant represents that the
unique circumstances involved with this request is what the NRSEprocess was
intendedfor.

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable
water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co­
existence with the development (this finding only applying to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): The applicant understands
and agrees to place Conservation Easements on other natural resource
features within the site, including any areas ofmitigation.

IV. Environmental Commission review of the §15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c.
factors and recommendations as to findings thereon:

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative placement
of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: The proposed improvements which cause the need for the
NRSE include grading, roadways, underground utilities and lot grading. The
improvements will not negatively affect surroundingproperties.

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying to
the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: The exceptional, extraordinary or unusual
circumstance is that the resource being impacted has been designated as low
quality and is orientated in a way that prevents practical development on the
remaining land.

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue; disability
of an occupant: Thefuture use ofthe property has been affirmed through recent
zoning and Certified SurveyMap. Thefuture improvements will be permanent.

4. Aesthetics: There will be no negative impact to aesthetics.

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:
The NRSE is not over-reaching. Applicant represents that the specific situation is
what the NRSEwas intendedfor.
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6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: Applicant owns the adjacent
property to the east and west. The property to the South of the site (Zoned
residential) is owned by the current owner oftheparcel subject to the NRSE, and has
grantedpermissionfor development oftheparcel and this NRSE request, prior to the
property sale. Bear Development or its partners own the other surroundingproperties
as part oftheir developmentprojectfor this part ofFranklin.

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Current
zoning types are a mix of residential and manufacturing, with conservation areas.
The development plans for this area identify this and other parcels for rezoning to
manufacturing uses.

8. Any negative effect upon adjoining property: There are no negative effects to the
surroundingproperty.

9. Natural features of the property: The wetland resource that will be impacted
consists primarily oflow-quality, farmed vegetation.

10. Environmental impacts: There are no other environmental impacts associated
with the NRSE with exception to the reduction ofapproximately 10,000 squarefeet of
farmed wetland. The applicantproposes mitigation by enhancing an existing wetland
that is part ofthe same watershed.

V. Environmental Commission Recommendation:

The Environmental Commission has reviewed the subject Application pursuant to
§ 15-10.0208B. of the Unified Development Ordinance and makes the following
recommendation:

1. The recommendations set forth in Sections III. and IV. Above are incorporated
herein.

2. The Environmental Commission recommends approval of the Application
upon the aforesaid recommendations for the reasons set forth therein.

3. The Environmental Commission recommends that should the Common
Council approve the Application, that such approval be subject to the
following conditions:

a. Review by the Plan Commission of revised site intensity
calculations to clarify the quantity of steep slopes;

b. Mitigation by the applicant be in the form of wetland enhancement
to the existing wetlands on site;
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c. The applicant shall obtain approval of conservation easements for
those existing natural resources to be protected prior to approval of
any site plan;

d. Land upon which the mitigation is to take place shall be protected
by a conservation easement as permanent natural resource features.
Applicant shall obtain approval of the required easement prior to
approval of any site plan.

The above review and recommendation was passed and adopted at a regular meeting
of the Environmental Commission of the City of Franklin on the day of

, 2020.---------·

Dated this_ day of2020.

Arthur Skowron, Chairman
Attest:

Wesley Cannon, Vice-Chairman
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BER
DEVELOPMENT
4011 80 street, Kenosha, WI 53142

Phone: (262) 842-0556 Fax: (262) 842-0557

March 16, 2020

Ms. Marion Eeks
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Frankhn, WI 53132

Re: Mills Hotel Wyoming- Natural Resource Special Exception

Dear Ms. Eeks:

Bear Development 1s pleased to submit this letter and the enclosed submittal materials as formal
application for a Natural Resource Special Exception. Bear Development is actmg on behalf and
with authorization of the owner of record, the Mathson Family.

Property Information
Bear Development, LLC 1s the contract purchaser owner of of approximately thirteen (13) acres of
vacant land in the City of Franklin. The land 1s located d1rectly south, and adjacent to, the Ryan
Meadows /Loomis Business Park development.

The property in question is included in a Certified Survey Map and zoning reclassification which
was approved by the City Council on December 17, 2019. The property is planned for further
Industrial development.

The property subject to the Natural Resource Special Exception is part of Tax Key 939-9994-000.
The property is vacant and actively farmed for traditional row crops. According to historical air
photos, the subject property has been contmuously farmed smce at least 1937.

Specific Request
Bear Development, LLC is requesting approval of a Natural Resource Special Except10n to impact
10,000 square feet ofwetland.

Enclosed as part of this submittal, are the following permits which have been secured for the area
in question:

• U.S. Army Corps ofEngmeers- Nationwide Permit
• Wisconsmn Department of Natural Resources - General



Natural Resource Protection Plan
As part of our due dihgence, a wetland delineation was completed on the subject property.
Heartland Ecological Group identified the specific area as wetland.

ExistingConditions
The specific area exists as a actively farmedwetland. It exhibits depress1onal topography and acts
as an overland drainage course. The wetland does not include natural vegetation or habitat.

Other Natural Resource Features
The subject property does include other wetland features on site. The AssuredWetland Delineation
was submitted to the Army Corps of Engineers for a jurisdictional determination. It was determined
that the identified wetlands are not waters of the United States and therefore are exempt from
ACOE regulation. Because the wetlands are less than 10,000 square feet in size and are not
jurisdictional, they are considered exempt from State ofWiscosnin regulation and are treated the
same as artificial wetland. Copies of the Jurisdictional Determination, wetlands exempt10ns, WDNR
General Permit and Federal Nationwide Permits have been provided to City Staff.

Proposed Use
Bear Development, LLC has secured a Certified SurveyMap and M-2 zoning on the subject property.
The property is proposed as an extension of industrial commercial uses which are proposed within
the Loomis Business Park and those uses existing along STH 45.

Because of the shape, size and orientation of the farmedwetland. This property cannot be
practically or economically developed without the Natural Resources Special Exception.

The particular wetland has been evaluated and analyzed by both the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. Both agencies have granted permits to impact
the wetland.

We appreciate your time and consideration of thus matter and respectfully request approval of the
Natural Resource Exception to disturb the identified feature on the project site. Please note that our
project includes the permanent preservation of significant open space mncluding Conservation and
Landsscape Bufferyard Easements which will be recorded with the approved Certified Survey Map.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 842-0556 or by email, dan@beardevelopment.com

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Respectfully,

Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC



City of Franklin
Department of City Development

Date: March 6, 2020

To: Franklin Mills, LLC

From: City Development Staff

RE: Bear Franklin Natural Resource Special Exception - StaffComments

Please be advised that staffhas reviewed the above referenced materials. Department comments
are as follows for the Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE) materials submitted by Mr.
Daniel Szczap of Bear Development LLC, on behalf of Franklin Mills, LLC date stamped by the
City of Franklin on January 24, 2020.

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Requirements:

Natural Resources
1. Clearly illustrate and enumerate all natural resource features as required by $15-4.0102

and $15-7.020 I .I. If a category of natural resource is not present, indicate that in the
table on the map.
Included in the resubmittal is a revisedNatural Resource Protection Plan which identifies
all natural resource features.

2. In accordance with §15-40102.K and §15-3.0501.B, and §15-7.0201.N, please provide
site intensity calculations using the methodology described in Division 15-3.0500
Site Intensity Calculations are provided.

3. Pursuant to §15-4.0102.K and $15-7.020l .J of the UDO, please clearly indicate the
amount and type of natural resource features to be impacted.

a. Pursuant to § 15-4.0102.1 of the UDO, please indicate the amount of wetland, and
wetland setbacks and buffers, both total and to be impacted.

Wetland: 9,969 SF
Wetland Buffer: 19,628 SF
Wetland Setback: 34,002 SF

b. Any areas of temporary disturbance (construction access, staging areas, etc.)
should be noted separately.
NIA

c. Calculations should include information about all wetlands to be impacted.
Wetlands that have been designated as artificial do not need to be included.
Completed.



4. Pursuant to $15-4.0102.K. of the UDO, please clearly indicate the amount and type of
any areas of overlapping natural resource features.
There are no overlapping natural resources.

5. Pursuant to § 15-4.0102.K. of the UDO, please indicate the amount of each natural
resource feature to be protected by a conservation easement.
A Conservation Easement Exhibit has been provided.

6. Pursuant to §15-4.0103 and §15-10.0208.B.3.b., please describe the mitigation you will
provide for the natural resource impacts. Note that, as required by §15-4.0103.B.1.d,
land upon which the mitigation is to take place shall be protected by a conservation
easement as permanent natural resource features. Please submit the required easement
and exhibits.

a. Note that the standard for wetland mitigation is 1.5 acres of compensation for
each 1 acre of impact.

A narrative and map regarding potential mitigation areas has been provided.

Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP)
7. As required by §15-7.0201.C, please names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the

owners, subdividers, lessee and/or developer(s) of the property and of the designer of the
plan shall be shown on the plan.
Completed.

8. In accordance with §15-7.0201.F and §15-7.0201.K, please show the location of any
current or proposed easements on the subject property on the NRPP. Likewise, in
accordance with § 15-7.0201.H indicate the location and dimensions of all permanent
easements on the subject property boundary lines and adjacent to the site.
Please see attached Conservation Easement Exhibit.

9. Conservation easements are required for those natural resources to be protected, pursuant
to §15-7.0201.K. of the UDO. Staffnotes that a conservation easement has been
submitted for the remaining wetland areas and is under review. Easements for mitigation
areas need to be submitted.
The easement for the mitigation area will be provided when the mitigatoion area has been
identified.

Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)
10. Pursuant to $15-9.0110.A. of the UDO, please indicate the name and address of all

abutting property owners.
Provided.

11. As required by $15-9.0110.B, please provide an electronic copy of the Plat of Survey for
the portion of the subject property owned by Franklin Mills LLC
Provided.

2



12. Pursuant to §15-9.0110.C.5, please provide the date of any previous application or
request for a Special Exception pertinent to the subject property, and the disposition of
that previous application or request.
NIA.

Additional StaffRecommendations

13. Staff recommends that the Project Summary be revised to include information about all
the natural resources on the property, including those which have received exemptions
from other units of government.
Provided.

14. Staff recommends that the applicant provide a copy of the proposed future site plan with
theNRSE.
Provided.

Engineering Department Comments

Lot 84 of Ryan Meadows does not exist yet. See the address W. Loomis Rd & W. Ryan Rd,
10082 South 124th Street.
NIA

Police Department Comments

The Franklin Police Department has reviewed the Natural Resource Exception Application for
Lot 84 Ryan Meadows.The Police Department has no issues with this request.

Fire Department Comments

The fire department has no position on the NRSE at this location.
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January 22, 2020

Regulo Martinez-Montilva
Associate Planner-Department of City Development
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re Franklin Mills -- Natural Resource Special Exception Application

Dear Mr. Martmez-Montilva:

Please accept thus letter as authorization for Daniel Szczap of Bear Development, LLC to make application for a
Natural Resources Special Exception application for the property identified as Tax Key No 939-9994-000 The
property is owned by the Mathson Family and is currently under contract to purchase with Bear Development, LLC

The application submitted by Bear Development; LLC is fully supported by the Mathson Family.
We understand that the Natural Resource Special Exception is related to a portion of land which was delineated as
a wetland by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and the Army Corps of Engineers

The subject property has been continually farmed during the period in which the Mathson family has owned the
property. It exists and remains as a farmed portion of our property The size, shape and orientation of this
"wetland" Is an impediment to future development potential for the property As such, we support the application
and urge the Environmental Commission, Plan Commission and Common Council to approve the Natural Resource
Exception as proposed

Thank you for your initial review and comment related to the required Landscape Bufferyard Easements proposed

Should you have any questions or concerns, please contact me. I can be reached at (262) 370-3850



Abutting Property Owners

891-9007-000
Strauss Investments, LLC
5129 N. Franklin Drive
Franklin, WI 53132

891-9999-000
Franklin One, LLC
333 Bishop's Way #160
Brookfield, WI 53005

939-9994-000
Daniel & Virginia Mathson
19370 Killarney Way
Brookfield, WI 53045

891-9010-000
Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC
4015 80" Street
Kenosha, Wl53142

MSKC2260998001
Bethlehem Evangelical Lutheran Church
W124 S9995 North Cape
Muskego, WI 53150

DJ and Sons, LLC
S95 W14509 Ryan Drive
Muskego, WI 53150-4717



Franklin Mills Natural Resources Special Exception

Mitigation Proposal

Franklin Mills, LLC is proposing to impact 9,969 square feet of wetland.

The wetland buffer associated with the impacted wetland is 19,268 square feet.

Per City of Franklin requirements Franklin Mills will work to provide the following to off-set the
impacted wetland:

Wetland:

Wetland Buffer:

9969 SF x 1.5= 14,953 SF of wetland

19,268x1.5 = 28,902 of wetland buffer

A total area of 43,855 of land must be included in a Conservation Area to compensate for the 9,969
square feet of impact.

We have identified areas located on our property within Franklin and within the watershed that may be
suitable for mitigation. The most effective areas to evaluate for mitigation are areas directly adjacent to
existing wetlands that can be manipulated to increase the footprint and hydrology ofthe wetland
resource. Another alternative, if acceptable to the City, would be wetland enhancement, by which a
degraded or farmed wetland is enhanced to provide an ecological lift to a given resource.

Please note that the wetland we propose to impact is a highly degraded farmed wetland, which lacks
native vegetation. Therefore, it has a very low ecological value. This wetland has been evaluated by the
Army Corps of Engineers and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. Both agencies have granted
wetland impact permits without any mitigation requirements.

While we understand the intent of the City of Franklin to require wetland mitigation, the process and
requirements are not well-defined. When required by the ACOE or WDNR to mitigate wetlands, wetland
credits are purchased from an approved commercial wetland mitigation bank. This does not appear to
be an option provided by the UDO.

Wetland mitigation is a mix of science and art and requires the ideal situation to be successful near and
long term. It will take significant time, study and resources to perform wetland mitigation on a site this
small and in the limited area in which to establish an artificial wetland. The City may consider accepting
a bond or other surety until a suitable site can be identified.
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NUMBER
BEING PART OF THE FRACTIONAL NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER
OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE
21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
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Item C.2
CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of May 7, 2020

Natural Resource Special Exception

Project Name:

Project Address/TaxKey:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Current Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Applicant's Action Requested:

INTRODUCTION:

Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, (FranklinMills/ Bear
Development) Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)

Not Assigned: Tax KeyNo. 939-9994-000, and 939-9995-
000

Mathson, Daniel L & Virginia K (Mathson, Robert ET AL)
(939-9994-000)

Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC

M-2 General Industrial District

Business Park and Areas ofNatural Resource Features

Recommendation to the Environmental Commission, Plan
Commission, and Common Council for approval of the
proposedNatural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)

On January 24, 2020, the applicant submitted an application for a Special Exception to Natural
Resource Feature Provisions to the Department of City Development. The applicant is requesting
approval to impact wetlands, wetland buffers, and wetland setbacks in order to develop on the subject
land. Applications to rezone the parcel, and a site plan for the development of Copart, Inc., a global
online vehicle auction company specializing in asset liquidation are currently seeking approval.

This item was originally scheduled to be heard at the April 9, 2020 Plan Commission, but was tabled
with related items until May 7, 2020. In the interim, the applicant has submitted additional materials
to address two elements of the previous Plan Commission Submittal:

• Revised site intensity calculations
• Information regarding proposed wetland enhancement in lieu ofmitigation

Pursuant to Section 15-10.0208 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), all requests for a
Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE) shall be provided to the Environmental Commission for
its review and recommendation. The Commission recommended approval of the NRSE, subject to the
conditions in the Special Exception application review and recommendation.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The applicant has submitted an application for an NRSE for property bearing Tax Key No. 939 9994
000. The subject property contains several wetlands. Two different figures were originally provided to
for the quantity of steep slopes on the property: 0.11 acres is listed on the Natural Resource Protection
Plan (NRPP); 0.8 was used for site intensity calculations in the Environmental Commission submittal



materials. Revised calculations provided state that there are no areas on the site as that meet the UDO
definition of steep slopes.

Wetland delineations were completed in April 2019, identifying several wetlands on the property. The
applicant obtained letters from the Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources (DNR) dated January
8, 2020 (permit EXE-SE-2020-41-00039) and the Army Corps of Engineers (ACE) likewise dated
January 8, 2020 designating two wetland area, W-1 and W-4, of the delineation report for the Mathson
property as not regulated. These artificial wetlands meetthe standards of§15-4.0102.J to be exempted
from natural resource measurement requirements; they are therefore not subject to regulations. No
impacts are proposed to W-3 on this part of the property.

The applicant's request is to impact just under 10,000 square feet of wetland identified as W-2 in the
Mathson property delineation. Under separate cover on January 8, 2020, (GP-SE-2020-41-00037) the
DNR granted permission to fill this wetland. The January 8 letter from the ACE likewise issues a
general permit to fill this wetland.

Specifically, the exception is requested for impacts to:

• 9,969 square feet ofwetland
• 19,268 square feet of wetland buffer
• 34,002 square feet of wetland a setback area including the buffer (14,734 square feet of setback

outside the buffer)

The impacted wetland is part of the Ryan Creek subwatershed of the Root River (Figure l).

Fgure IWatershedBoundary andwetlandmpactarea

The standard for mitigation ofwetland (§15-4.0103.B.4) andwetland buffer ($15-4.0103.B.5) requires
a mitigation area of 1.5 acres ofmitigation provided to every one (1) acre of impact. Plant species and
soils employed must be of superior quality to the existing wetland, meaning that the applicant must
choose optimal plants regardless of the quality ofvegetation being replaced. The UDO further requires
that the mitigation be provided on the same parcel or site for which the exception is being made. Plan
Commission may allow off site mitigation within the same watershed (§15-4.0103.C).

2



The applicant has proposed mitigation by expanding existing wetlands elsewhere on property currently
being developed by Franklin Mills/Bear, as expansion of existing wetlands on the subject property
would render it undevelopable. During the meeting of the Environmental Commission, the applicant
proposed that remediation or enhancement of existing wetlands would be a more beneficial approach
for the watershed and natural features in the area, and requested this be considered in lieu ofmitigation.
Upon review, the Environmental commission recommended this approach, provided the enhancement
take place on the subject property. This recommendation is reflected in their review and
recommendation document. The applicant has provided additional information with details of the
proposed enhancement project. The proposal includes hand seeding, mowing, and herbicide
application. Staff recommends that the applicant provide mitigation, and that said mitigation be
protected by a conservation easement. Staff further recommends that areas of existing natural
resources be similarly protected by easements.

The applicant has provided the attached Natural Resource Special Exemption Application, Project
Description, and associated information. Staffwould note:

• The wetland delineation was prepared by an Assured Delineator.
• Required permits from other units ofgovernment have been obtained.
• Conservation easements materials for existing natural resources to be preserved have been

provided and are under review by the Planning Department.
• The applicant is proposing restoration ofexisting wetlands in lieu ofmitigation, the details of

which have not been fully defined yet. Submitted materials forPlan Commission detail off-site
mitigation ofwetlands only.

• Conservation easements for mitigation areas will need to be submitted once a proposal has
been identified.

CONCLUSION:

Per Section 15-10.0208 ofthe Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the-applicant shall have the
burden ofproofto present evidence sufficient to support a Natural Resource Special Exception
(NRSE) request. The applicant has presented evidence for the request by answering the questions
and addressing the statements that are part ofthe Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)
application. The applicant's responses to the application's questions and statements are attached for
your review. Also attached is a document titled, "City ofFranklin Environmental Commission" that
the Environmental Commission must complete andforward to the Common Council. The questions
and statements on this document correspond with the Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)
application questions and statements that the applicant has answered and addressed.

At its March 25, 2020 meeting, the Environmental Commission recommended approval ofthe NRSE
as presented at their meeting, with conditions as set forth in Section V. ofthe City ofFranklin
Environmental Commission Special Exception application review and recommendation memo.

CONCLUSION:

The Environmental Commission recommendations are contained in the decisions section of the
attached draft Standards, Findings and Decision ofthe City ofFranklin document.

Staff recommends approval ofthe NRSE, subject to a number ofconditions such as:
• Provision ofmitigation by the applicant; and
• Recording ofConservation Easements.
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Draft 5/7/20

Standards, Findings and Decision
of the City ofFranklin Common Council upon the Application ofMills Hotel

Wyoming, LLC, applicant, for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City ofFranklin

Unified Development Ordinance

Whereas, Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, applicant, having filed an application
dated January 22, 2020, for a Special Exception pursuant to Section 15-9.0110 of the
City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance pertaining to the granting of Special
Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland, Wetland
Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or Enhancements to a
Natural Resource Feature; a copy of said application being annexed hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

Whereas, the application having been reviewed by the City of Franklin
Environmental Commission and the Commission having made its recommendation
upon the application, a copy of said recommendation dated March 25, 2020 being
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B; and

Whereas, following a public hearing before the City of Franklin Plan
Commission, the Plan Commission having reviewed the application and having made
its recommendation thereon as set forth upon the report of the City of Franklin
Planning Department, a copy of said report dated May 7, 2020 being annexed hereto
and incorporated herein as Exhibit C; and

Whereas, the property which is the subject of the application for a Special
Exception is generally located at West Loomis Road and West Ryan Road (Lot 84 in
Ryan Meadows Subdivision), zoned R-2 Estate/Single-Family Residence District, C-1
Conservancy District and R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District, and such property
is more particularly described upon Exhibit D annexed hereto and incorporated
herein; and

Whereas, Section 15-10.0208B. of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, as amended by Ordinance No. 2003-1747, pertaining to the granting of
Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland,
Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature, provides in part: "The decision of the
Common Council upon any decision under this Section shall be in writing, state the
grounds of such determination, be filed in the office of the City Planning Manager
and be mailed to the applicant."

1



Now, Therefore, the Common Council makes the following findings pursuant
to Section 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c. of the Unified Development Ordinance upon
the application for a Special Exception dated January 22, 2020, by Mills Hotel
Wyoming, LLC, applicant, pursuant to the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, the proceedings heretofore had and the recitals and matters incorporated
as set forth above, recognizing the applicant as having the burden of proof to present
evidence sufficient to support the following findings and that such findings be made
by not less than four members of the Common Council in order to grant such Special
Exception.

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): but rather,

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicant and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: ; or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicant's use of the property and
that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives.

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: the proposed
development with the grant ofa Special Exception as requested will be consistent
with the existing character ofthe neighborhood; and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties.:_,and

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement:.;and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-existence with the
development: (this finding only applying to an application to improve or enhance a
natural resourcefeature).

The Common Council considered the following factors in making its
determinations pursuant to Section 15-10.0208B.2.d. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

2



1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: _

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: _

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue;
disability of an occupant: _

4. Aesthetics:--------------------------

5. Degree ofnoncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: _

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Residential.

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: No negative affect upon adjoining
property is perceived.

9. Natural features of the property: _

10. Environmental impacts: _

11. A recommendation from the Environmental Commission as well as a review and
recommendation prepared by an Environmental Commission-selected person
knowledgeable in natural systems: The Environmental Commission recommendation
and its reference to the report of is incorporated herein.

12. The practicable alternatives analysis required by Section 15-9.011 0C.4. of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the overall impact of the entire proposed use or
structure, performance standards and analysis with regard to the impacts of the
proposal, proposed design solutions for any concerns under the Ordinance, executory
actions which would maintain the general intent of the Ordinance in question, and
other factors relating to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance section imposing the
requirement: The Plan Commission recommendation and the Environmental
Commission recommendation address thesefactors and are incorporated herein.

Decision

3



Upon the above findings and all ofthe files and proceedings heretofore had
upon the subject application, the Common Council hereby grants a Special Exception
for such reliefas is described within Exhibit C, upon the conditions:

1) that the natural resourcefeatures and mitigation areas upon the properties to be
developed be protected by a perpetual conservation easement to be approved by
the Common Council prior to any development within the areas for which the
Special Exception is grantedprior to the issuance ofany Occupancy Permits;

2) that the applicant obtain all other necessary approval(s)from all other applicable
governmental agencies prior to any development within the areas for which the
Special Exception is granted;

3) that all development within the areas for which the Special Exception is granted
shall proceed pursuant to and be governed by the approved Natural Resource
Protection Plan and all other applicable plans for Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC,
applicant, and all other applicable provisions of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

4) that the applicantprovide revised site intensity calculations to clarify the quantity
ofsteep slopes prior to any land disturbing activities; and,

5) Mitigation is provided by the applicant be in theform ofwetland enhancement to
the existing wetlands on site.

The duration ofthis grant ofSpecial Exception is permanent.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2020.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of>2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---
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? BER
DEVELOPMENT
4011 8Ostreet, Kenosha, WI 53142

Phone: (262) 842-0556 Fax: (262) 842-0557

April 21, 2020

Ms. Marion Eeks
City of Franklin
9229 W. Looms Road
Frankhn, WI 53132

Re: Mills Hotel Wyoming- Natural Resource Special Exception

Dear Ms. Eeks:

Bear Development is pleased to submit this letter and the enclosed materials as formal application
for a Natural Resource Special Exception.

Please note that the Natural Resource Protection Plan and Site Intensity Calculations have been
revised. Based on further research of the Umfied Development Ordinance, we found that the
property does not include Steep Slopes as defined by the UDO. The NRPP Exhibit and Site Intensity
Calculations have been revised accordmgly.

As discussed and recommended by the Environmental Commission, we propose to meet our
mitigation obhgations in the form ofwetland enhancement on existingwetlands which exist on the
subject property. These wetlands are already protected in the form of Conservation Easements
which will be recorded with the approved Certified Survey Map.

Wetland Enhancement

Wet to Wet-Mesic Prairie habitat is proposed in areas on-site with more open canopy structure and
consistently saturated conditions, sometimes with extended periods of above-ground inundation.
Wet toWet-Mesic Prairie rehabilitation and reestablishment is proposed in areas that remain
saturated for most of the growing season. These areaswill be primarily revegetated utilizing
seeding by manual methods.

Areas within current agricultural fields proposed to be restored as mesic prairie will be designed to
serve as upland grassland bird habitat. This grammnod-dominated landscape with mmmmal woody
cover provides habitat for foraging, breeding and nesting purposed for birds and other wildlife that
rely on this increasingly threatened habitat type.



Invasive SpeciesManagement

Mowmg. Especially during the first 2 growing seasons, planted areas shall be mowed to a height of
6-8 inches at during the early growing season and as needed to control INN spec1es. Mowmg shall
take place prior to or when INN species are flowering so as to prevent seed set. Cut vegetative
material will be left on-site if it does not affect the establishment of native vegetation.

Herbicide Application. Herbicide may be applied in a variety of methods depending on plant
community composition and needs. Equipment calibrationwill be adjusted and the utmost care will
be taken to avoid drift on non-target species during all forms of treatment.

We appreciate your time and consideration of this matter and respectfully request approval of the
Natural Resource Exception to disturb the identified feature on the project site. Please note that our
project includes the permanent preservation of significant open space including Conservation and
Landsscape Bufferyard Easements whichwill be recordedwith the approved Certified Survey Map.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 842-0556 or by email, dan@beardevelopment.com

Thankyou for your time and consideration.

Respectfully,

Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC
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BER
DEVELOPMENT
4011 80" Street, Kenosha, WI 53142

Phone: (262) 842-0556 Fax: (262) 842-0557

May 15,2020

City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Natural Resource Special Exception

Dear Members of the City of Franklin Common Council:

Please accept this letter and the enclosed information for your review and consideration. The
information is being provided as further clarification of the Natural Resources Special Exception.

The Natural Resources Special Exception is limited to an area of farmed wetland approximately 9980
square feet. This area has been farmed since at least 1937. The area is not vegetated, does not provide
wildlife habitat or hold standing water.

The area of request consists of a narrow, linear overland drainageway. While it is small in area, the
shape and orientation of the wetland does render the entire 13-acre parcel undevelopable, regardless of
future land use. The orientation of the farmed wetland essentially blocks the entire parcel.

Bear Development, LLC has secured wetland impact permits from both the Army Corps of Engineers and
the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. The permit application process was thorough and
extensive and included a Practical Alternatives Analysis. The Alternatives Analysis concluded that the
area cannot be avoided under any development scenario. It was also noted that the wetland was of
lower quality and did not provide the ecological benefits found in typical, adjacent wetlands. Based on
extensive review, both the Army Corps and WDNR concluded that the wetland impact was permissible.
The permits from both agencies are attached for your review.

Previous City Meetings

The particular NRSE area was discussed extensively by the Plan Commission and Common Council in
December 2019. It was recognized that the NRSE area created a unique impediment for future
development of the property. Bear Development, LLC was encouraged at that time to file the necessary
paperwork for a Natural Resource Special Exception to properly remove the farmed wetland from future
Conservation Easements. The Certified Survey Map was approved by Council on December 17, 2019.



(

(

In March 2020, the City of Franklin Environmental Commission discussed the NRSE request and
recommended approval of the NRSE with a condition that the existing wetlands on the site be
enhanced. The City of Franklin Plan Commission recommended approval of the NRSE at the May 7, 2020
meeting.

Bear Development, LLC respectfully requests approval of the Natural Resource Special Exception. We
feel we have met the intent and purpose of the NRSE as set forth by the City of Franklin Unified
Development Ordinance. Further we have met the rigorous requirements of permit approval by both
the Federal and State agencies which regulate wetland permitting.

We fully understand and respect the purpose of the City of Franklin regulations which protect natural
resources. Our team has takes great effort to reduce and minimize natural resource disturbance at all
our developments. However, at times, minimal impacts are impossible to avoid. The NRSE process
recognizes this and offers the opportunity to mitigate these situations. We feel our request is very
minimal, considering all facts relating the specific area which is under consideration and we ask for your
approval.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 842-0556 or by email, dan@beardevelopment.com

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Respectfully,

4tau+
Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, ST. PAUL DISTRICT

180 FIFTH STREET EAST, SUITE 700
ST. PAUL, MN 55101-1678

January 8, 2020

Regulatory File No. 2019-02880-AJK

Daniel Szczap
Franklin Mills, LLC
4011 80" Street
Kenosha,Wl53142

Dear Mr. Szczap:

We are responding to your request for authorization to discharge fill material into 0.23 acres
of wetland for the Franklin Mills commercial development. The proposed work is located in
Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Project authorization:
The regulated activities associated with this project include the discharge of fill material into

0.23 acres of wetland. We have determined that these activities are authorized by a Nationwide
Permit (NWP) or a Regional General Permit (RGP), specifically, NWP 39, Commercial and
Institutional Developments. This work is shown on the enclosed figures, labeled 2019-02880­
AJK Figures 1-3 of 3.

Conditions of your permit:
You must ensure the authorized work is performed in accordance with the enclosed General

Permit terms, General Conditions, and St. Paul District Regional Conditions.

You are also required to complete and return the enclosed Compliance Certification form
within 30 days of completing your project. Please email the completed form to the contact
identified in the last paragraph.

A change in location or project plans may require re-evaluation of your project. Proposed
changes should be coordinated with this office prior to construction. Failure to comply with all
terms and conditions of this permit invalidates this authorization and could result in a violation of
Section 301 of the Clean Water Act or Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act. You must also
obtain all local, State, and other Federal permits that apply to this project.

Water Quality Certification:
You may not proceed with the work described above until you have obtained a Water

Quality Certification or waiver. You are responsible for contacting the certifying agency listed
below.

Permit expiration:
This permit is valid until March 18, 2022, unless the general permit is modified, suspended,

or revoked. If the work has not been completed by that time, you should contact this office to
verify that the permit is still valid. Furthermore, if you commence or are under contract to
commence this activity before the date of General Permit expiration, modification, or revocation,
you have 12 months to complete the activity under the present terms and conditions of the
General Permit.



Regulatory Branch (File No. 2019-02880-AJK)

Jurisdictional determination:
An approved jurisdictional determination has been prepared and concludes that W-1 and W­

4, as shown on page 2 of the enclosed figures, are not waters of the U.S. Therefore, work in
those aquatic resources does not require authorization. This approved jurisdictional
determination may be relied upon for five years from the date of this letter. However, we reserve
the right to re-evaluate the determination in response to information that was not considered
during our initial review. If you object to this approved jurisdictional determination, you may
request an administrative appeal pursuant to regulations at 33 CFR 331. Enclosed you will find
a Notification of Appeal Process fact sheet and Request for Appeal (RFA) form. If you request to
appeal this determination, a complete RFA form must be received by the Mississippi Valley
Division Office at the address shown on the form by March 6, 2020.

Contact Information:
If you have any questions, please contact A.J. Kitchen in our Brookfield office at (651) 290­

5729 or by email at anthony.j.kitchen@usace.army.mil.

Sincerely,

Todd M. Vesperman
Chief, Southeast Section

Enclosures
CC: Ryan Pappas, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

Page 2 of 2



State ofWisconsin
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
1155 Pilgrim Road
Plymouth, WI 53073

January 8, 2020

Tony Evers, Governor
Preston D. Cole, Secretary
Telephone 608-266-2621
Toll Free 1-888-936-7463
TTY Access via relay - 711 ,

GP-SE-2020-41-00037

(

Franklin Mills, LLC
Daniel Szczap
4011 80th Street
Kenosha, WI 53142

RE: Coverage under the wetland statewide general permit for wetland fill or disturbance for
residential, commercial, or industrial development, located in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee
County, also described as being in the NW1/4 of the SW1/4 of Section 30, Township 05 North,
Range 21 East.

Dear Mr. Szczap:

Thank you for submitting an application for coverage under the wetland statewide general permit
for wetland fill or disturbance for residential, commercial, or industrial development, s. 281.36, Wis.
Stats.

You have certified that your project meets the eligibility criteria and conditions for this activity.
Based upon your signed certification you may proceed with your project to fill 0.23 acres of
wetlands. Please take this time to re-read the permit eligibility standards and conditions. The
eligibility standards can be found on your application checklist or in the statewide general permit
WDNR-GP1-2017 (found at http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/waterways/construction/wetlands.html). The
permit conditions are attached to this letter. You are responsible for meeting all general permit
eligibility standards and permit conditions. This includes notifying the Department before starting
the project, and submitting photographs within one week of project completion. Please note your
coverage is valid for 5 years from the date of the department's determination or until the activity is
completed, whichever occurs first. This permit coverage constitutes the state of Wisconsin's
wetland water quality certification under uses s. 1341 (CleanWater Act s. 401 ).

The Department conducts routine and annual compliance monitoring inspections. Our staff may
follow up and inspect your project to verify compliance with state statutes and codes. If you need
to modify your project please contact your local Water Management Specialist, Ryan Pappas at
(715) 492-0200 or email Ryan.Pappas@wisconsin.gov to discuss your proposed modifications.

The Department of Natural Resources appreciates your willingness to comply with wetland
regulations, which help to protect the water quality, fish and wildlife habitat, natural scenic beauty
and recreational value of Wisconsin's wetland resources for future generations. Please be sure to
obtain any other local, state or federal permits that are required before starting your project.

If you have any questions, please call me at (715) 492-0200 or email
Ryan.Pappas@wisconsin.gov.

Sincerely,

dnr.wi.gov
wisconsin.gov NaturatuyWISCONSIN 9

Printed on
Recycled
Paper
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Ryan Pappas
Water Management Specialist

cc: A.J. Kitchen, Project Manager, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Franklin Zoning Administrator
SEWRPC
Conservation Warden

WDNR-GP1-2017 Permit Conditions -
Residential/Commercial/Industrial

You agree to comply with the following conditions:

1. Application. You shall submit a complete application package to the Department as
outlined in the application materials and section 2 of this permit. If requested, you shall
furnish the Department, within a reasonable timeframe, any information the department
needs to verify compliance with the terms and conditions of this permit.

2. Certification. Acceptance of general permit WDNR-GP1-2017 and efforts to begin work
on the activities authorized by this general permit signifies that you have certified the
project meets all eligibility standards outlined in Section 1 of this permit and that you
have read, understood and have agreed to follow all terms and conditions of this general
permit.

3. Reliance on Applicant's Data. The determination by this office that a confirmation of
authorization is not contrary to wetland water quality standards will be based upon the
information provided by the applicant and any other information required by the DNR.

4. Project Plans. This permit does not authorize any work other than what is specifically
described in the notification package and plans submitted to the Department and you
certified is in compliance with the terms and conditions of WDNR-GP1-2017

5. Expiration. This WDNR-GP1-2017 expires on October 31, 2022. The time limit for
completing work authorized by the provisions of WDNR-GP1-2017 ends 5 years after
the date on which the discharge is considered to be authorized under WDNR-GP1-2017
or until the discharge is completed, whichever occurs first.

6. Other Permit Requirements. You are responsible for obtaining any other permit or
approval that may be required for your project by local zoning ordinances, other local
authority, other state permits and by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers before starting
your project.

7. Authorization Distribution. You must supply a copy of the permit coverage
authorization to every contractor working on the project.



APPROVAL . /•
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

INTRODUCTION:

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

CONCEPTREVIEWFOR A SINGLE-FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION WITH 17 LOTS

(9720 S 112TH STREET)

(KAEREKHOMES, INC., APPLICANT)

MEETINGDATE

05/19/2020

ITEM NUMBER

GT

On April 7, 2020, the applicant, Kaerek Homes, Inc., filed a Concept Review Application
for a proposed single-family residential development for property located at 9720 S. 112th
Street. The subject property is currently zoned R-2 Estate Single-Family Residence District
and is designated as Business Park and Areas of Natural Resource Features on the City's
2025 Future LandUse Map.

STAFF COMMENTS:
Staffwould note that the proposed subdivisionwould require:
• A Special Use for "Open Space Subdivision" Option 3.
• Preliminary and Final Plat approval, and associated easements.
• Comprehensive Master PlanAmendment to change the future landuse of the property

to Residential (single-family) and Areas ofNatural Resource Features.

The following concerns arose during the review (see Memorandum dated 5-4-2020 for the
full list):
• Connection or easement to the adjacent properties to the south and east is

recommended for future development.
• Existing driveway along the northern property line does not comply with UDO

setbacks.
• Loop streets preferred instead of cul-de-sacs.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Provide direction to the applicant regarding the proposed single-family residential subdivision to
be located at 9720 S 112th Street (KaerekHomes, Inc., Applicant).

Department of CityDevelopment: RMM



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE COMMON COUNCIL

Meeting ofMay 19, 2020

Concept Review

RECOMMENDATION: Provide direction to the applicant regarding the proposed single-family
residential subdivision to be located at 9720 S 112th Street (Kaerek Homes, Inc., Applicant).

Project Name:
Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:
Applicant:

Current Zoning:
2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Action Requested:

Introduction

Kaerek Homes Concept Review
9720 S. 112 Street/892 9998 000

Dean A. Rogich
Kaerek Homes, Inc.
R-2 Estate Single-Family Residence District
Business Park and Areas ofNatural Resource Features

No action requested

On April 7, 2020, the applicant, Kaerek Homes, Inc., filed a Concept ReviewApplication for a
proposed single-family residential development for property located at 9720 S. 1 12 Street. The
subject property is currently zoned R-2 Estate Single-Family Residence District and is
designated as Business Park and Areas ofNatural Resource Features on the City's 2025 Future
Land Use Map.

The property is surrounded by R-2 District, FW Floodway District, and C-1 Conservancy
District to the north and east, A-2 Prime Agricultural District to the south, and the recently
approved Ryan Meadows subdivision (zoned R-6 District) to the west.

Note that the single-family property to the east is landlocked and has a driveway extending
through the subject property to S. 112" Street. The applicant's concept plan includes an access
easement to allow this home's driveway to extend to the easternmost cul-de-sac.

The applicant is proposing to retain the R-2 District zoning and develop the subdivision utilizing
the Special Use "Open Space Subdivision" Option 3 Development Standards. The Unified
Development Ordinance (UDO) defines an Open Space Subdivision as "A residential
subdivision which provides a designated amount of open space as set forth under the
requirements ofDivision 15-3.0200 and Section 15-3.0702(A) of this Ordinance." The UDO also
provides a specific set of Special Use requirements that must be met. See below.

SECTION 15-3.0702 DETAILED STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES IN
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
A. Open Space Subdivision. The following specific requirements and standards shall apply to all
"Open Space Subdivision" options in the R-1, R-2, R-3, R-3E, R-4, R-5, R-6, and R-7 Districts:



1. MustMeetDistrict Standards. All "Open Space Subdivisions" shall meet the applicable open
space ratio, density, lot dimension, living area per dwelling umt, and height requirements for both
the zoning district and "Open Space Subdivision" option selected.

2. Conservation and/or Open Space Preservation Easements. All "Open Space Subd1vis1ons"
shall have submitted conservation and/or open space preservation easements regulating the
protection ofnatural resource features and/or open space in the proposed development. Such
documents shall assure that all such conservation and/or open space preservation easements are
held privately and in perpetmty under a Wisconsm non-profit membership corporation
(homeowners' association). Said conservation and/or open space preservation easements shall
cover the total required Open Space Ratio, or OSR, area ofthe Open Space Subdivision.

3. Wisconsin Non-ProfitMembership Corporation (Homeowners' Association). All "Open
Space Subdivisions" shall have submitted the legal instruments and rules for the creation of a
Wisconsin non-profit membership corporation (homeowners' association). Said non-profit
membership corporation shall be responsible for maintaining all open space areas and
conservation and/or open space easements in the development.

4. City Attorney Review. The City Attorney shall review all conservation and/or open space
easements and homeowners' associations and shall approve said instruments as to form.

5. Minimum Required Width ofOpen Space When Abutting an Adjacent "Conventional
Subdivision." Aminimum fifty (50) foot-wide open-space buffer shall be provided between an
"Open Space Subdivision" and an abutting "Conventional Subdivision." Said open space buffer
shall be protected by a conservation and/or open space preservation easement and shall count
towards the total required amount ofopen space for the "Open Space Subdivision."

As currently proposed by the applicant, to proceed with the development a Special Use and
Preliminary and Final Plat Applications are required.

An alternative process may also be considered, which is to rezone the property to R-4 Suburban
Single-Family Residence District. The R-4 District Conventional Subdivision Development
Standards match the R-2 Special Use Option 3 standards and would eliminate the need for open
space subdivision requirements if deemed unnecessary or not applicable to the design of the
subdivision. This may be better evaluated upon the delineation ofnatural resource features
onsite.

It is also recommended that a Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application be submitted
to amend the future land use of the property to Residential and Areas ofNatural Resource
Features. Note that the Areas ofNatural Resource Features use would be revised to match field
delineations of protected natural resources.

Related to the Comprehensive Master Plan, it can be noted that to the north of this site is planned
Commercial and to the south and east is Recreational. Continuing south along S. 112"" Street, the
future land use transitions to residential. The proposed change in use to residential for this
property is consistent with the City's recent change to allow the Ryan Meadow subdivision on
the opposite side of S. 112"" Street. It is also consistent and does not affect the planned land uses
of the overall surrounding area.

2



ProjectDescription/Analysis
The subject property has an area of20.10 acres (approximately 875,556 square feet) and is
currently vacant land being used for agricultural purposes.

The Conceptual Plan illustrates ingress/egress to the subdivision from S. 112" Street that aligns
with the future Meadowview Drive. Two cul-de-sacs then extend north from the entrance road.

The concept plan includes 17 single-family lots and 2 outlots. The outlots include protected
natural resources, open space, and storm water management facilities. The 17 single-family lots
range in size from 16,000 square feet to 23,695 square feet. The median lot size is about 17,984
square feet.

Outlot 1 has an area of 12,935 square feet and Outlot 2 is 472,334 square feet, which results in
about 55.7% open space for the subdivision. The lots and roads would comprise of the remaining
44.3% of the land.

Detailed natural resource information has not yet been provided. The concept plan reflects the
best available information from the City's GIS Environmental Features layer as well as the
Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources Surface Water Data Viewer mapping.

The design and layout of the subdivision may be revised based upon field delineations of
wetlands and any other protected natural resources onsite. Further, if feasible, it is recommended
that the applicant consider developing the southeast comer of the property while considering any
input from staff, the Plan Commission, and Common Council. This may necessitate the rezoning
to R-4 District option as less open space would be provided.

As this is only a concept plan, compliance with UDO standards will be reviewed upon a detailed
project plan submittal. With that said, it is anticipated that sidewalks, street trees, and open space
amenities, such as walking trails, will be recommended.

It is also suggested that connections to the properties to the south and east be considered. The
feasibility of these connections will also depend on the extent and location ofnatural resource
features.

Staff Recommendation:

It is recommended that sufficient feedback be provided to allow the applicant to determine
whether to proceed or not with detailed plans for the proposed single-family residential
subdivision development.

3



Date:

To:

From:

RE:

MEMORANDUM

May 4, 2020

Mike Kaerek. Kaerek Hornes, Inc.

Department ofCity Development

Application for Concept Review - 9720 S. 112" Street.

Kaerek Hornes, Inc. submitted a Concept Review application on April 7, 2020, review comments
are as follows:

City Development Department comments

1. The subject property is zoned R-2 Estate Single-Family Residence District and planned as Business
Park and Areas ofNatural Resource Features. The process to develop the proposed single-family
subdivision will include:
a. A Special Use Application to utilize development standards under the R-2 District Special

Use Open Space Option No. 3. Please review Section 15-3.0702(A) of the Unified
Development Ordinance pertaining to Open Space Subdivisions.

Also, please be aware of the State requirement to provide "substantial evidence" to support
your request. See below.

(de) Conditional use permits.
62.23(7)(de)l.1. In this paragraph:

a. "Conditional use" means a use allowed under a conditional use permit,
special exception, or other special zoning permission issued by a city, but
does not include a variance.
b. "Substantial evidence" means facts and information, other than merely
personal preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the requirements
and conditions an applicant must meet to obtain a conditional use permit and
that reasonable persons would accept in support of a conclusion.

2.
a. If an applicant for a conditional use permit meets or agrees to meet all of
the requirements and conditions specified in the city ordinance or those
imposed by the city zoning board, the city shall grant the conditional use
permit. Any condition imposed must be related to the purpose of the
ordinance and be based on substantial evidence.

b. The requirements and conditions described under subd. 2. a. must be
reasonable and, to the extent practicable, measurable and may include
conditions such as the permit's duration, transfer, or renewal. The applicant
must demonstrate that the application and all requirements and conditions
established by the city relating to the conditional use are or shall be satisfied,
both ofwhich must be supported by substantial evidence. The city's decision

1



to approve or deny the permit must be supported by substantial evidence.

3. Upon receipt of a conditional use permit application, and following publication in
the city of a class 2 notice under ch. 985, the city shall hold a public hearing on the
application.

4. Once granted, a conditional use permit shall remain in effect as long as the
conditions upon which the permit was issued are followed, but the city may impose
conditions such as the permit's duration, transfer, or renewal, in addition to any
other conditions specified in the zoning ordinance or by the city zoning board.

5. Ifa city denies a person's conditional use permit application, the person may
appeal the decision to the circuit court under the procedures contained in par. (e) 10.

b. A Preliminary Plat Application, followed by a Final Plat Application. Please be aware that
installation of streets and utilities is required prior to approval of a Final Plat (see Section
l 5-2.0303A. of the UDO). Alternatively, an improvement guarantee may be provided per
Section 15-2.0303B of the UDO.

c. A Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment is also recommended to change the future land
use designation from Business Park and Areas ofNatural Resource Features to Residential
and Areas ofNatural Resource Features. The Areas ofNatural Resource Features should be
amended to match field delineations once completed.

2. It is suggested that an alternate process be considered, which is to rezone the property to the R-4
District and develop under the Conventional Subdivision standards. These standards are the same
as the R-2 District Special Use Option No. 3 standards and would eliminate the Special Use Open
Space requirements if those were deemed to not be applicable or needed with the proposed design
of the subdivision.

3. Wetland delineations should be completed as soon as possible. There may or may not be other
wetlands on the property, which could affect the design and layout of the subdivision. Further, it is
recommended that the southeast comer of the property be developed if reasonably accessible. Note
that this may then require the rezoning option as noted above as less open space would be
provided.

4. It is recommended that a connection to the property to the south be included for access and future
development of that property.

5. It is also suggested that a road reservation be included from the cul-de-sac extending east to
provide access to the parcel to the east for future development. The existing driveway could also be
relocated within this area. Note that this should be looked at more closely upon the delineation of
natural resource features to determine the accessibility and potential development of the lot to the
east.

6. The City's cul-de-sac standards are attached for review.
7. It is anticipated that sidewalks will be recommended throughout the subdivision.
8. Are any amenities planned for the subdivision, such as walking trails through the open space areas?
9. Is the existing driveway for the home to the east graveled or is that improved with asphalt or

concrete? Ifnot already, it is recommended that the driveway be improved and setback a minimum
of 6-feet from the property line.

2



10. Will your company build some or all of the homes within the development or will the lots be sold
to builders and individual lot/home buyers?

11. Please be aware of City impact fees. The impact fee schedule can be found on the City's website at:
https://www.franklinwi.gov/Departments/Inspect1on-Services/Impact-Fees.htm

12. Proposed street trees shall comply with Section 15-8.0117 of the UDO. One street tree is required
for each 85-feet oflot frontage on each side of all streets. Note that separate Engineering
Department standards conflicts and requires 75-feet. It is recommended to conform to the more
restrictive requirement.

13. Note that a separate Lighting Plan must be provided in compliance with Division 15-5.0400 for
Plan Commission review and approval. Also, see Section 15-8.0115 of the UDO.

14. Upon submittal of the Preliminary Plat Application, note that detailed plans will be required, such
as the Natural Resource Protection Plan, draft conservation easements, storm water management,
grading, erosion control, etc.

15. Note that a subdivision monument sign will require a separate application as well as review and
approval by the Plan Commission.

Engineering Department comments

16. Every lot must have a 60-ft minimum frontage measured at the right-of-way line or the arc of the
curve (cul-de-sac).

1 7. Lots shall have a minimum lot depth of 110-ft.
18. Must have the vision triangle is shown at the intersections, 60x60 at the collector street and, 30x30

at the minor collector street.

Mayor's comments

19. It would be a lot better for DPW and Fire were this a loop street instead of two cul-du-sac's. This is
about 45 minutes of plowing.

20. Also, the street name will probably be pretty close to a street name that I'm pretty familiar with ...
meadowCREEK court.

Police Department comments

21. The Police department has no issues with this application.

3



DocuSgn Envelope ID CD656339-AEO5-45O8-9BA5-8616C86F275C

Planning Department
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132
Email generalplanning@franklinwi gov

City of Franklin Phone (414) 425-4024
Fax (414) 427-7691

Web Site www franklinw1 gov

Date ofApplication; MARCH 30 2020

CONCEPT REVIEW APPLICATION
Complete, accurate and specific Informationmustbeentered. Please Print.

Applicant {Full Legal Name[s]):
Name MIKE KAEREK

Company KAEREK HOMES INC

Mailing Address 11600 WEST LINCOLN AVENUE

City/ State WEST ALLIS WI
Phone 414-321-5300

Email Address MikeKaerek@kaerekhomes.com

Zip 53227

Applicantis Represented by: (contactperson){Fu/1 Legal Name[s])
Name

Company

Mailing Address

City/ State

Phone

Email Address

______________ Zip

Project Property Information:
Property Address 9720 SOUTH 112TH STREET

Property Owner(s)PAP9@l'

Mailing AddressF"""
City I State NEW BERLIN WI

Email Address

Tax Key Nos89998000

Existing Zoning_"

Existing Use"U""""
Proposed Use Single family residential

CMP Land Use Identification Business Park & Areas of Natural Resource Features

Z1p 53151

The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Future Land Use Map is available at http.//www.frankhnw1.gov/Home/ResourcesDocuments/Maps.htm

Concept Review submittals for reviewmust include and be accompanied by the following:
Iii This Application form accurately completed with ongmal signature(s) Facsimiles and copies will not be accepted
Iii Application Filing Fee, payable to City of Franklin Iii $250
Iii Three (3) complete collated sets of Apphcat1on materials to include
Iii One (1) original and two {2) copies of a written Project Summary, including description of any new building construction and site work,

interior/exterior building modifications or additions to be made to property, site improvement costs, estimate ofproject value and any other
information that is available.

Iii Three (3) 8 5 x 11 inch or 11x17 inch copies of the Preliminary Site/Development Plan of the subject property(es) and immediate surroundings
(ie, a scaled map identifying the subject property and immediate environs, including existing and proposed parcels, existing and proposed
structures, existing and proposed land uses, existing and proposed zoning, existing and proposed infrastructure and utilities[approximate locations
only], and existing and proposed site conditions/site constraints [i e approximate locations of public road access, rights-of-way, natural
resources/green space and drainage issues/concerns, etc])

D Three colored copies (11"x17") of the building elevations, if applicable
Iii Email (or CD ROM) with all plans/submittal materials Plans must be submitted in both Adobe PDFand AutoCAD compatible format (where applicable)

•Upon receipt of a complete submittal, staff review will be conducted within five business days
•Concept Review requests are reviewed by the Committee of the Whole Meetings are held the first Monday of every month

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge, (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application, and (3)
the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently
issued building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any cond1t1on(s) of approval By
execution of this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subJect property(ies) between the hours of 7 00
a m and 7-00 p m daily for the purpose of inspection while the apphcat1on is under review The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has
been posted against trespassing pursuant to Wis Stat §943 13

{The applicant's signature must befrom a Managing Member if the business is an LLC, orfrom the President or Vice President ifthe business is a corporation. A
signed applicant's authorization letter may be provided in lieu ofthe applicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's authorization letter may be
pro' di&ftheproperty owner's signature[s]below. ifmorethan one, all oftheowners ofthepropertymustsign this Application).

Joo H Re'
Signature Property Owner

Name & Title (PRINT)

Signature Property Owner

Name & Title (PRINT)

Dean A. Rogch

•Maren30.20o

ae

Signature Applicant
Kaerek Homes Inc

Name & Title (PRINT)

Signature Applicant's Representative

Name & Title (PRINT)

Mike Kaerek - President

3T­

Date _
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Project Summary - Concept Plan
RE: 9720 S. 112/ Street
For. Kaerek Homes Inc
Date. March 26, 2020

Plan I Design I Deliver
www pinnacle-engr com

Kaerek Homes Inc has an offer to purchase the 20-acre property located at 9720 S 112 Street,
tax key number 892-9998-000 The property rs located south of Ryan Road, on the east side of S.
112h Street across from the recently approved Ryan Meadows development. The property Is
currently vacant and is used as agricultural land. The property 1s zoned R-2 residential and the
2025 Comprehensive Master Plan 1s business park and areas of natural resource features. Kaerek
Homes is proposing to develop the property as single family res1dental lots meeting the R-2 zoning
requirements. To develop the property as residential, Kaerek will request a change to the 2025
Comprehensive Master Plan

The proposed concept plan 1s dated March 26, 2020. The subdivision is proposed to be developed
as an R-2 open space subdvrsnon per the requirements of the City of Franklin UDO There are
seventeen lots (minimum 16,000 square feet in size) with 1,130 lineal feet of new roadway. Access
would be across from Meadowview Drive, which is the southernmost entrance to the Ryan Meadows
development There would be two cul-de-sacs, one that Is 800' in length and the second which 1s
330' mn length. The road cross section would be the standard City of Franklin cross section with
curb and gutter. Sanitary sewer main would be extended from the adjacent MMSD MIS sewer that
is located along the north property line. Water main would be extended from S. 112th Street. Open
space would be mn excess of 50% to preserve potential wetlands on site and to provide areas for
storm water management. A wetland delineation has not yet been completed but 1t will be as part
of the Natural Resource Protection Plan for the property. The anticipated cost of the site
Improvements rs approximately $960,000

The minimum size homes in the development would be 1,600 square feet for ranch style and 2,000
square feet for two-stories Estimated home and lot packages would be $400,000.

MILWAUKEE REGIONAL OFFICE 20725 WATERTOWN ROAD I SUITE 100 [ BROOKFIELD, WI 53186

P 26275488881F 262 754 8850 I WWW PINNACLE ENGR COM MILWAUKEE I CHICAGO NATIONWIDE
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
t COUNCIL ACTION May 19, 2020~

. l.,.,ll
REPORTS & Report on Expenditures related to the COVID-19 ITEM NUMBERPublic Health Emergency thru May 13, 2020

"?RECOMMENDATIONS ,o,

Background
On March 17, 2020 the Common Council authorized spending up to $250,000 in response to the
COVID-19 Public Health Emergency.

Thru May 14, 2020, the City has spent $120,885 (up from $98,099 two weeks earlier) of Labor funds,
$38,241 (up from $36,981 two weeks earlier) in operating costs (principally $10,000 in extra postage for
absentee ballots), and $11,587 on equipment (with an additional $5,596 on order). Details of the
expenditures are:

Apr 29 May 14
Elections 23,606 13,878
Info Systems 451 846
Admin - postage 10,000
Finance 55 55
Muni Buildinas 424 647
Police 2334 2,407
Fire 2314 2,513
Highway 5546 5,645
Parks 2251 2,251
Total 36,981 38,241

Total expenditures and encumbrances are $176,309 (up from $152,263 on Apr 29).

The FEMA grant will potentially cover overtime costs, which total $67,433 currently. Very little else of
these funds are recoverable under the COVID-19 FEMA grant, as they don't meet the requirements
of the grant.

In addition, it appears that certain city resources are going to be negatively impacted, specifically,
ambulance revenues are down $72,000 from a year ago at the end of April, hotel tax receipts will be
down, as the major hotels have been effectively shut down, Fines/Forfietures are down $37,506 from
2019 thru April 30, investment income on reduced interest rates (estimated to reduce annual
revenues by $80,000), the school liason officer- approximately $22,000 (with the school closed -the
officer was not needed), and landfill siting revenues. These amounts total $211,000 so far. It is too
early to understand the total revenue shortfalls, but clearly there will be some sizable amounts.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Information Only- no action requested.

Finance Dept - Paul
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RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AUTHORIZE SOUTHEAST CONSTRUCTION
LLC TO CONSTRUCT CONCRETE WALKAND
PATIO AT PLEASANT VIEW PARKPAVILION
(4901W. EVERGREEN STREET) FOR $12,600

MEETING DATE
May 19, 2020

ITEM NUMBER
• o•1,

BACKGROUND
Construction of the Pleasant View Pavilion (4901 W. Evergreen Street) is essentially complete. DPW had
anticipated placing the concrete work around the outside of the facility but 2020 has presented many
challenges where this project cannot be completed in-house by the desired June 1 deadline.

ANALYSIS
Southeast Construction, LLC was a responsive contractor and known to be reputable. They submitted a
quote for 2,100 square feet of sidewalk and patio for $12,600.

Staff recommends approval to authorize Southeast Construction, LLC to perform the work.

OPTIONS
A. Authorize Southeast Construction, LLC to construct a concrete sidewalk and patio surrounding the

new Pleasant ViewPavilion. Or
B. Refer back to Staffwith further direction.

FISCAL NOTE
There is $4,271 of appropriations available for this project. Common Council could award the project using
Contingency OR a portion of the $150,000 Pleasant View Park Improvement appropriation. These funds are
partly eligible for park impact fee funds.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
(OPTION A) Motion to authorize Southeast Construction LLC to construct concrete walk and patio
at Pleasant View ParkPavilion (4901 W. Evergreen Street) for $12,600

Engineering-GEM
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www.southeastconstructionllc.com .----------.
PROPOSAL AND

7835 South 66th Street• Frankhn, WI 53132 ACCEPTANCE
Cell 414-614-7445 • Office. 414-427-9709 • Fax. 414-427-9712

R?1.1
"7;-982-0843

(Check boxes necessary for job)
D Driveway _

CITY sore ,- 107TYO¥A WI22
SALESMAN 'f }\ \ \ DATEOF PLANS

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

D Remove Existing Concrete / Asphalt

JOB LOCATION

M r
CELLI4t- 758-375¥ WORK#

'-7# of loads estimated / '--

D Approach

Cl(Sldewalk F;{Fronta s y-

5F 2100
D Flares

D Driveway Flares

9side//Rear

D Stoop I Steps

D Footing I Post Holes
D Garage Slab I Floor

KaorGrade and Slone

~~ompact Gravel

~Thickness _9!(, 4" D 5" J 6 DJ7 D 8

D Remove Existing Dirt I Gravel# of loads estimated out _

f6 Bag Mix or Design Mix

9(Low Chert

j,Fiber Mesh

D Wire Mesh

D Picture Frame □ PF Edges Only D Shed Slab
Joints / Edges D Pattern of Stamp

D Border

D Sealer

5Hand Tooled Jointsosaw Cut Joints

5-Broom Finish

1Expansion Felt

3.steel Rods

~c:;ure & Sealer
Notes

D Hard Trawled Finish

D SE Swirl Finish

D Border Color

D Color

□ Release Color

D Re Surface
Total Square Feet :} 1 I ()0

We Propose to hereby furnish material and labor-complete in accordance with above specifications, for the sum of:

D Half down Interim Payment when job is set-up. Balance due upon completion.

Payment to be made as follows

,,.
f(,!3alance due upon completion.

Date: _
s126009°
$ -
$

$ -
$

$ +

$
.t .I

JOB TOTAL

DEPOSIT PAID

BALANCE

INTERIM PAYMENT

NEW BALANCE

CHANGE ORDER

NEW BALANCE

PAID
IN

FULL

Check# _

Check #­

Check# _

$ _

$ _

D Deposit $ _

Date: _

Date: _

I have read the prices specifications and the Terms and Conditions
contained on the front and back of this form carefully and I accept
this proposal You are authorized to do work as specified Payment
will be made on completion or otherwise stated above

Authorized~/ · ~./.U:, _ /
signatureZ&to '+f-
NOTE This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not
accepted within_!/Ldays.

Acceptance of Proposal - The above prices, specifications and the Terms and Conditions are satisfactory and are
hereby accepted You are authorized to do the work as specified Payment will be made as ouUined above

Date of Acceptance ----.-'---',------- Signature-~------------­,.
Signature /-
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RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2019-
2398, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2020
ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND
TO PROVIDE $9,000 OF CARRYFORWARD

APPROPRIATIONS FOR BUILDING
MAINTENANCE AT THE POLICE
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING

MEETING DATE
May 5, 2020

ITEM NUMBER

Background
The 2019 Police Building Maintenance budget included funds to repair a exterior retaining wall. The
work was delayed beyond 2019 into 2020. The Chief has requested that $9,000 to complete the project
be brought forward from the 2019 unused non-personnel appropriations to fund the project costs in
2020.
Some of the work is being completed by Highway staffing and some by Building Maintenance
staffing. However materials have been purchased to supply the project. By completing the Budget
Amendment, the Police Department will have the full $40,000 compliment of 2020 appropriations to
address building maintenance issues.
Analysis
The 2019 Police Department had $159,000 of unused non-personnel appropriations. These unused
appropriations became part of the $1.3 million of surplus at December 31, 2019. They are therefore
available to carryforward into 2020.

Recommendation

The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends adoption of the proposed amendment
carrying forward $9,000 of unused 2019 Police non-personnel appropriations into 2020.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion adopting an ordinance to amend Ordinance 2019-2398, an Ordinance adopting the 2020
annual budgets for the General Fund to provide $9,000 of carryforward appropriations for
building maintenance at the Police Administration Building

Roll Call Vote Required
Finance Dept - Paul



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCENO. 2020---

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2019-2398, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2020 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE

APPROPRIATIONS $9,000 OF CARRYFORWARD APPROPRIATIONS FOR BUILDING
MAINTENANCE AT THE POLICE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2020 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 19, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the 2019 Police non-personnel appropriations included funds for repairs on a
external retaining wall at the Police Administration building; and

WHEREAS, the 2019 repair was not completed; and

WHEREAS, the Police 2019 results had more than $159,000 of unused non-personnel
services appropriations such that a portion can be carryforward to 2020 Police non-personnel
appropriations.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That a 2020 Budget for the General Fund be amended as follows:

General Fund
Police Department Non-personnel costs Increase $9,000

Section 2 Pursuant to §65.90(5)(a), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to publish a Class 1
notice of this budget amendment within ten days of adoption of this ordinance.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of>2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT
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Authorization to Execute ProofPoint Business
Package Services as Provided Through Heartland
Business Systems (HBS) for SpamFiltering &

Malware Prevention for all Incoming/Outgoing Email

MEETING
DATE

5/19/2020

ITEM NUMBER

GIL.

For the past four years, the City of Franklin has used the product Symantec Email Security.Cloud to
provide spam filtering and malware prevention services for all incoming and outgoing email This
has been a cloud-based service that has not reqmred any on-premise equipment, where the service is
s1mply provided as an annual license. Over the course of four years, Symantec Email Security.Cloud
(a.k.a Message Labs) has provided robust email filtering services, where the City has not encountered
any successful ransomware attacks. For a cost-efficient service, this is quite a remarkable track record
and speaks largely to the implementation of a layered security defense

Unfortunately, Symantec Enterprise software was purchased by Broadcom in 2019. Broadcom has
frozen the purchase of any new software licenses for all Symantec Enterprise products, which has
created significant problems for businesses that rely on their products along with the value-added re­
sellers. CDW-G, one of the largest software licensing providers for State software licenses, has
dropped Symantec Enterprise as a vendor due to the problems and delays mn gettmng licenses
processed and entitled. Annual software subscriptions were purchased and processed through
CDW-G.

It is very questionable if Broadcom will continue to support Symantec Email Security.Cloud over the
long term, as the product is not listed as a key component in their published roadmaps Symantec
Email Security.Cloud is a rebranded service from a company called Message Labs, which was not a
direct part of the acquisiton. Due to the significant need of reliable email spam and malware
filtermg services, the uncertamty of our current service platform under Broadcom has become an
operational risk. Broadcom may decide to continue providmg services or kill the service at any time
without notification.

Durmg the April 29, 2020 Technology Commission meeting, three new vendors were presented as a
replacement for Symantec. All vendors were selected based upon being a Gartner Quadrant One
technology company for emaul security services. The Technology Commission unanimously made a
motion to recommend moving from Symantec Email Security.Cloud over to ProofPoint Business
licensing. Proofpoint is an industry leader m email filtering services and has continued to be a
Gartner Quadrant One innovator over the course of 5 years. Heartland Business Systems will be the
value-added reseller of all licenses and will assist with the implementation and transition from
Symantec to Proofpoint. Heartland Busmess Systems internally uses Proofpoint themselves for all of
their email security needs, and has a deep level of experience for very quickly on-boarding new
customers.

ProofPoint Business provides the following security services:
• Anh-virus Protection
• Spam Filtering



• Content Filter1ng
• Outbound Filtermg
• Impostor Email Protection (Phishing)
• URL Defense (sandboxing)
• 30 Day Emergency Inbox m the Cloud (with spooling and mstant replay)
• Online Reportmg and Notifications

Costs: Currently Symantec Email Security Cloud has an annual budgeted renewal cost of $5,382 for
265 licenses. The migration to Proofpoint via Heartland Business Systems has an annual cost $5,472
plus a $25 migration fee. The quote includes all costs to setup and on-board the City of Franklin
within the Proofpoint portal and to swing current email connections over to the new services.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorze the execution of ProofPoint Business Package Emaul Services as provided
through Heartland Business Systems, per Quote 092876, and per the prov1sons of the Information
Technology Services Agreement already mn place between the City of Franklin and Heartland
Business Systems, with total project costs of $5,497 which will be funded from the 2020 Information
Services Operation Outlay Budget (01-0141-5257 Software Maintenance)

IT-JM



Proofpoint Spam Filter

Prepared For

Franklin, City of
James Matelski
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin WI 53132

P: (414) 427-7645
E: JMatelski@frankhnw1 gov

Prepared By

MilwaukeeAreaOffice
Greg Borchard
N28 W23050 Roundy Drive Suite 200
Pewaukee WI 53072

P: 262-650-6500 ext 1222
E. gborchard@hbs net

Quote #092876 v1

Date Issued

02.04.2020

Expires

02.25.2020

Monthly Recurring Services Recurring Qty Ext. Recurring

DC-PPBUS-MO Proofpoint Business Package $1 60 285 $456 00
Proofpomnt Business Package per user Monthly
Includes SPAM URL Defense Attachment Defense Reputation

Recumng Subtotal $456.00

Onboarding & One Time Services Price Qty Ext. Price

DC-PP-SETUP One Time ProofpointSet Up Fee $25 00 1 $25 00
Heart land Business Systems Data Center Hosting - One Time Proofpont Set Up
Fee for Spam Flter and Emal Encryption

Subtotal $25.00

Quote Summary Recurring One-Time

Monthly Recurring Services $456 00 $0 00

Onboardmng & One Time Services $0 00 $25 00

Total $0.00 $25.00

This quote may not include applicable sales tax shipping handing and/or delv ery charges Final applicable sales tax shppng handling and/or delvery charges are calculated and applied at invoice The above
prices are for hardware/software only and do not include delivery setup or 1nstallat1on by Heartland ( HBS") unless otherw ise noted Installation by HBS 1s available at our regular hourly rates or pursuant to a prepaid
HBSFlex AgreementThis configuration Is presented for convenience only HBS is not responsible for typographical or other errors/omissions regarding price s or other information. Pnces and configurations are
subject to change without notice HBS may modify or cancel thus quote ifthe pncing rs impacted by a tanff A 15% restocking fee will be charged on any returned part. Customer is responsible for all costs associated
with return of product and a $25 00 processing fee No returns are accepted by HBS without pnor wntten approval This quote expressly ltm1ts acceptance to the terms of this quote and HBS d1sc laIms any additional
terms By providing your E-S ignature you acknowledge that your electronic signature is the legal equivalent ofyour manual signature and you warrant that you have express authority to execute thus agreement and
legally bmd your organization to this proposal and all attached documents Any purchase that the customer makes from HBS is governed by HBS' Standard Terms and Conditions(' ST&Cs") located at
http.//www hbs net/standard-terms-and-conditions, which are inco rporated heren by reference The ST&Cs are subject to change When a new order is placed the ST&Cs on the above-stated website at that time
shall apply lf customer has signed HBS ST&Cs version 2018 v2 0 or later or the partues have executed a currentmaster servce s agreem ent, the signed agreemen t shall supersede the version on the website
QT 2018 v2 4

Acceptance

Milwaukee Area Office

Greg Borchard

Signature / Name

02/04/2020

Date

Franklin, City of

Signature / Name

Date

Initials

Quote #092876 v1 Page: 1 of 11
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Data Center Agreement

Heartland Business Systems

Master Data Center Agreement

THIS MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT (hereinafter, this "Agreement") 1s entered into this Date by and
between Heartland Business Systems, a Wisconsin Corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Provider"), and Franklin,
City of (hereinafter, "Customer") The Agreement consists of the following terms and cond1t1ons and all Service
Schedules attached hereto or subsequently signed by the parties that reference this Agreement

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, Provider Is mn the business of, among other things, the provision of information technology services,
solutions and related equipment, and

WHEREAS, Customer desires to purchase or otherwise acquire from Provider certain services and related products for
its own use, and

WHEREAS, Prov1derw1shes to provide such services and related equipment to Customer on the terms and cond1t1ons
set forth herein

NOW, THEREFORE, in cons1derat1on of the mutual covenants and cond1t1ons herein contained, Provider and Customer
do hereby agree as follows

ARTICLE I

PROVISION OF SERVICES AND RELATED EQUIPMENT

Services. Provider shall provide to Customer those services (hereinafter, the "Services") specifically 1dent1fied on the attached
Service Schedule(s) Unless Provider and Customer agree to the contrary, and such agreement 1s memorialized on the Service
Schedule(s), the transm1ss1on fac1ht1es through which Provider provides the Services to Customer need not be dedicated to the
provision of Services exclusively to Customer, and Provider shall be entitled to utilize such facilities for the transmission of other
data, or the provision of Services to other customers, provided such other utilization of these facilities does not interfere with
Customer's use and/or enJoyment of the Services Provider covenants and agrees that the SeNJces shall be functional in all
material respects and available for Customer's use on or before the date of first ava1lab1hty 1dent1fied on the Service Schedule(s)

1 Bandwidth allocation wll be 1 5Mbps with options to purchase more as needed

Availability of Services.

Provider shall use commercially reasonable efforts to ensure the continuous availability of the Services without
interruption Notwithstanding, Customer acknowledges and agrees that, from time to time, the Services may be
temporarily unavailable dunng penods of testing, maintenance, repair, or during other periods caused by events
of force majeure (as defined m Article VI B, below)

Availability/Service Credit The Services are accessible 24/7, with a 99 9% targeted uptime 99 9% of the time

Quote#092876 v1 Page: 2 of 11



during any calendar month, the Services shall be available Unavailability is a condition mn which there Is
unava1lab1l1ty of the Services due to hardware failure OR sustained packet loss in excess of fifty percent within the
Provider's facilities for at least two consecutive hours due to a failure of the Provider to provide Services during
such period, unava1lab1hty does not include packet loss or network unava1lab1hty due to scheduled maintenance or
inability of a user to connect with the Services due to Internet or telecommunications problems or any other issues
outside the control of Provider In order to receive any service credit, Customer must notify Provider within seven
(7) days from the time Customer becomes ehg1ble to receive a service credit Failure to comply with this
requirement wll forfeit Customer's rght to receive a service credit The aggregate maximum number of service
credits to be issued by Provider to Customer for any and all downtime periods and performance problems during
any given calendar month shall not exceed one month of service Service credits are issued as followed

Length of Unavailability
Service Credit

(per calendar month)

24 to 48 hours of aggregate unava1lab1hty below 99 9%
1 day of service fees credited
(1e 1/30 monthly fees)

1 2 days of service fees
48 to 96 hours of aggregate unavarlabrhty below 99 9% credited

(e 1/15 monthly fees)

*Each block of 96 hours of aggregate unava1lab1hty thereafter shall be credited 5 days of service fees

*All Service Credit shall be applied to the next month's mvo,ce

Use of Services.

1 Customer represents and warrants that 1t will not use the Services or otherwise engage 1n any act1v1t1es

a that constitute or encourage a violation of any applicable law or regulation, including, but not limited to,
the sale of illegal goods, or the v1olat1on of export control or obscenity laws,

b that defame, impersonate, or invade the privacy of any third party or entity,

c that infringe the rights of any third party, including, but not limited to, the intellectual property, business
contractual, or fiduciary rights of others, and

d that are mn any way connected with the transmission of "junk mail," "spam," or the unsolicited mass
distribution of e-mail, or with any unethical marketing practices

e that cause the reselling or transfer for value any services provided by the attached service schedule(s)
unless otherwise indicated to the contrary in any of the attached service schedule(s)

f that removes any copyright ownership information, or falsifies such information, on any files uploaded,

Quote #092876 v1 Page: 3 of 11



downloaded, made publicly available through, or transmitted via Provider's system

2 Provider reserves the right, at any time, to refuse to host or discontinue hosting any Web site or Internet
connection which Provider believes, In its sole discretion

a offers for sale goods or services, or uses or displays materials, that are illegal, obscene, vulgar,
offensive, dangerous, or are otherwise inappropriate,

b received a significant number of complaints for failing to be reasonably accessible to customers, or
timely fulfill customer orders,

c has become the subject of a government complaint or invest1gat1on,

d has violated or 1s alleged to have violated any local, state, or federal law or regulation,

e has violated or 1s alleged to have violated the rights or interests of any person or entity,

f impairs or threatens to 1mpa1r the functionality of servers owned or operated by Provider, or other Web
sites hosted or maintained by Provider on its own behalf or for the benefit of other customers,

g has violated or threatens to violate this Agreement

3 Customer explicitly licenses Provider to make any copies of copyright protected materials necessary to provide
Internet and related services to Customer, as well as make any necessary copies necessary to preserve and
maintamn Provider's system and Customer's files and electronic maul

4 Customer explicitly licenses Provider to make any copies, without limitation, of any copyrighted materials
submitted to a public forum maintained on Provider's system, or submitted to any forum to which Provider
provides access Thus clause cannot be modified by either party unless any modification Is mn writing and signed
by both parties

5 Unattended Forms Customer is not permitted to run any programs or software which continually send data over
or access Provider's system, or run any programs or software on Provider's system unattended, unless such use
has been approved in advance by Provider's staff

Equipment.

Quote #092876 v1 Page: 4 of 11
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1 Installation, Operation. and Maintenance of Equmment. Provider shall instruct. construct, operate, and maintain
all cable, equipment, and other fac1ht1es necessary to provide the Services to Customer up to a point of
demarcation 1dent1fied by Provider Unless Provider and Customer agree otherwise, and such agreement Is
memorialized on the Service Schedule(s) Customer shall be responsible for the installation, construction,
operation, and maintenance of all cable, equipment, software, licensing and other facilities necessary to utilize the
Services from and after the point of demarcation To the extent necessary, Customer shall, at no cost to Provider,
grant to Provider and its agent's access, including any necessary or required easement, to Customer's premises
as may be necessary for Provider to install, construct, operate, or maintain any cable, equipment, software,
licensing or other facilities, to otherwise provide the Serices to Customer Except in emergency situations (which
shall be determined by Provider, in its reasonable Judgment), Provider will obtain approval from Customer (not to
be unreasonably withheld or delayed) before entering upon Customer's premises to engage in any of the
foregoing activities

2 Respons1b1hty for Equipment. Except as may be otherwise specified in the Service Schedule(s), neither party
shall be responsible for the maintenance or repair of cable, electronics, structures, equipment, or materials owned
by the other party, provided, however, that each party shall be responsible to the other for any damage or harm,
Including damage caused by environmental conditions at a party's location, or by the negligence or willful
misconduct of the other party

Customer shall be responsible for maintaining insurance coverage adequate to cover damage to Customer's
physical property whether located at Customer's premises or at Provider's premises

3 Title and Control of Facilities Title to equipment or fac1ht1es owned by Provider and used in any fashion to
provide Services shall remain with Provider Customer shall keep all such equipment and facilities located on
Customer's premises free and clear of all hens, encumbrances, and security interests, and shall not tamper with
or allow the same to be moved or tampered with by any person not authorized by Provider to do so Customer
shall also keep all such equipment and fac1ht1es secure and free from environmental hazards

4 Access to Equipment and Fac1ht1es upon Termination or Expiration of Agreement Customer shall grant to
Provider access to all of Provider's equipment and other fac1ht1es in or about Customer's premises for purposes of
removing the same dunng the thirty (30) days immediately following the expiration or termination of thus
Agreement by either party and for any reason Such access shall be granted during normal business hours and
shall afford Provider sufficient time and opportunity to remove its equipment and other fac1l1t1es from Customer's
premises

Procurement of Access Rights. Customer shall, at its expense, procure all necessary rights of way, easements, franchises,
licenses, conduit rights, bu1ldmg entrance rights, landlord consents, and other rights and grants of authority which are necessary
or desirable for Provider to provide the Services specifically to Customer

Security of Transmitted Information. When applicable, the Customer shall incorporate Secure Socket Layer ("SSL"), or
substantially equivalent technology, to transmit sensitive Customer information (such as payment information, credrt card
1nformat1on, social security numbers and medical information protected by HIPAA) over the World Wide Web Notwithstanding the
incorporation of such technology into the Services delivered to Customer, Provider shall not be liable to Customer or any third
party for the failure of such technology to mamntamn the confidentiality of any information transmitted by, from, or to Provider
pursuant to this Agreement, or in connection with the Services provided to Customer

Virtual Private Network Security Provider's VPN security Is followed in accordance with NIST Publications

http //csrc nist gov/pubhcatIons/nistpubs/800-52/SP800-52 pdf

http //csrc nIst gov/pubhcat1ons/nistpubs/800-77/sp800-77 pdf

http //csrc nist gov/pubhcat1ons/nistpubs/800-113/SP800-113 pdf

Quote #092876 v1 Page: 5 of 11



Customer Responsibility of Hosted Software.

1 General Customer acknowledges that with respect to the Hosted Software, all the design, development,
operation, support and maintenance of the Hosted Software program Is their full financial responsibility

In add1t1on, any Web site owned or operated by Customer, any telecommunication equipment and software owned
or operated by Customer, all computer network hardware and software owned and operated by Customer, and all
associated software licensing, services, support, maintenance, upgrades, and renewal costs of all items owned or
operated by Customer Is their full financial responsIbIhty Software hcensing and renewals may include but are
not hmIted to CRM, SQL, anti-virus, etc

Further, Customer acknowledges that in respect to the Hosted Software, the Provider's only respons1b1lrty Is to
provide Hosting Services as outlined m thus Agreement

Customer further acknowledges that no system on the Internet can be guaranteed safe from unauthorized
intrusion, and therefore any confidential information stored on or transmitted through Provider's system Is
stored or transmitted at Customer's own nsk

2 Hosted Software Content Customer represents and warrants that () Customer owns or has sufficient rights in
and to Hosted Software and the Hosted Software Content, rncluding without hm1tat1on, personal, medical and
financial information contained within the Hosted Software content, mn order to use, and permtt use of, the Hosted
Software content as contemplated in this Agreement, and () the Hosted Software Content does not and shall not
contamn any content, materals, advertising or services that mfnnge on or volate any applicable law, regulation or
right of a third party Customer also acknowledges that Hosted Software Content may be stored on servers
located within the United States or accessed by Provider's support personnel in the United States, and hereby
authorizes such access and storage Provider only provides access to the Hosted Software, Provider does not
operate or control the information, services, opinions or other content of the Internet Provider does not monitor
and shall have no hab1hty or respons1b1hty whatsoever for the Hosted Software Content of any transmIssIons or
communications transmitted or otherwise disseminated va the Hosting Services Customer agrees that it shall
make no claim whatsoever against Provider relating to the Hosted Software Content or content of the Internet or
respecting any information, product, service or software ordered through or provided via the Internet, and
Customer shall indemnify and hold Provider harmless from any and all claims (including claims by governmental
entItIes seeking to impose penal sanctions} related, directly or rnd1rectly, to such Hosted Software Content

3 Configuration and Support Customer agrees to maintain and update DNS records for all domains, and therefore
holds all respons1b1hty pertaining to DNS configuration Customer agrees to provide level 1 support including, but
not hmmrted to mnital incoming calls and basic level troubleshooting Customer acknowledges the responsibility to
reconfigure and set up all mall clients for each mndrvdual user account on each computer

ARTICLE II

COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTTERMS

Compensation to Provider. As compensation for the Services provided hereunder, Customer shall pay to Provider the rates
and other charges identified on the Service Schedule(s) for Serces provided or made available to Customer during the perod
identified on Provider's mnvoce to Customer

Taxes and Other Charges There may be added to any charges under Article II A, above, an amount equal to industry-wide
surcharges and/or fees and surcharge, duty, levy, tax, or withholding, including, but not ltm1ted to, sales, property, excise and use
taxes, or any tax m lreu thereof or in add1t1on thereto, imposed by any local, state, or federal government or governmental agency
with respect to the Services, or with respect to this Agreement, excepting only taxes on the income of Provider Furthermore,
service order charges apply to certain services and will charged for those services in add1t1on to other charges

Payment Provider shall render an invoice in accordance with Provider's usual and customary billing cycle for Services delivered
or made available to Customer dunng each preceding month during the Term Except as set forth below, Customer shall pay
each invoice mn full within thirty (30) days of the date of each mnvoce Payments not made mn full within thirty (30) days may accrue
interest at the rate of one and one-half percent (15%) per month, or the highest rate allowable by law, whichever Is lower If
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Customer disputes any InvoIce amount in good faith, then Customer shall, within thirty (30) days of the date of such invoice

1 Pay to Provider the undisputed amount of the invoice, and

2 Provide Provider a detailed written description of the disputed amount and the basis for Customer's dispute, along
with a potential resolution, and

3 Customer shall cooperate with Provider in resolving the disputed invoice amount and shall promptly pay the
remainder of the invoice upon resolution of the dispute

ARTICLE Ill

TERM AND TERMINATION

Term This Agreement shall become effective on the later to occur of (1) the date first written above, or (11) the date upon which
both parties have executed this Agreement (hereinafter, the "Effective Date" of this Agreement) This Agreement shall remain In
effect as long as any Serice Schedule associated with it remains in effect unless terminated in accordance with the provisions of
the Agreement The term of each Service Schedule rs stated in the Service Schedule Provider shall utilize commercially
reasonable efforts to make the Services available to Customer as soon as possible, and the Services shall be available to
Customer, subject to the terms and cond1t1ons hereof, for the term 1dent1fied on the Service Schedule(s), which Perod shall
commence on the date the Services are first made available to Customer hereinafter, that period commencing on the Effective
Date and continuing until termination

Termination. This Agreement shall terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following events

1 Mutual Agreement Upon the mutual written agreement of the parties detailed in the Service Schedule

2 Bankruptcy/Insolvency Upon the appointment of a receiver to take possession of all or substantially all of the
assets of either party to this Agreement, or an assignment by either party to this Agreement for the benefit of
creditors, or any action taken or suffered by either party to this Agreement under any insolvency, bankruptcy, or
reorganization act, at the option of the other party

3 Default In the event of a default by one party, the non-defaulting party may provide written notice of the default
and may terminate this Agreement at any time following the expIrat1on of a reasonable opportunity to cure such
default, provided that, 1f the defaulting party has cured the breach prior to the expiration of such cure penod, this
Agreement shall remain in effect For purposes of this Agreement, a "reasonable opportunity to cure" shall be ten
(10) days for a monetary or payment default and thirty (30) days for a non-monetary or non-payment default,
unless such default cannot with reasonable diligence be cured within such period, in which case, the cure period
shall be automatically extended for so long as the defaulting party, acting in good faith and with reasonable
diligence, requires to cure such default

4 Data Deletion Folling the termination of this Agreement, Provider shall have no obligation to retain any data
provided by Customer, and Provider shal have the right to delete such data The Customer further releases
Provider from any liability whatsoever for such actions

Changes in Legislation. Should any changes in leg1slat1on or law require any changes to this Agreement or any services
provided by Provider, Provider reserves the right to make any such changes, as are determined necessary or prudent to be
compliant, at Provider's sole discretion, without giving Customer advanced notice If such changes are made, Provider promises
to send by electronic or postal mail notice of any changes in a reasonable time period In event of such changes, Customer may
terminate service without a required notice penod, but rs to pay for services provided to the date of the effective termination

Effect of Early Termination. The termination of this Agreement for any cause shall not release either party hereto from any
l1ab11ity which at the time of termination has already accrued to the other party hereto, or which thereafter may accrue with respect
to any act or omission prior to termination, or from any obligation which Is expressly stated heremn to survive termination
Termination of this Agreement in accordance with its terms shall be without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the
parties
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ARTICLE IV

INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Indemnification. Customer and Provider hereby indemnifies and holds harmless each other from any and all damages, clamms,
actions, investigations, proceedings, losses, costs, and other related expenses (Including actual attorney fees) that may arise out
of (@) any material breach of thus Agreement by erther party, () any breach of any of the representations or warranties made by
either party mn this Agreement, and (ui) any alleged volation of any rights of another, including, but not limited to, each party's use
of any content, trademark, service mark, trade name, copyrighted or patented material, or other intellectual property of Its own or
of any third party The indemnification rights granted hereby are independent of, and in addition to, such rghts and remedies as
either party may have at law or mn equity, or otherwise, including the rght to seek specific performance, rescission, or restitution

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.

1 IN GENERAL. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, PROVIDER SHALL HAVE NO
LIABILITY OR RESPONSIBILITY TO CUSTOMER OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON, FIRM, OR ENTITY WITH
RESPECT TO ANY LIABILITY, LOSS, OR DAMAGE ARISING OUT OF, OR RELATING TO, THE OPERATION
OR NON-OPERATION OF THE SERVICES PROVIDER HEREBY SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL
WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
AGREEMENT OR PROVIDER'S PROVISION OF, OR FAILURE TO PROVIDE, THE SERVICES

2 NO LIABILITY FOR CONTENT THE CONTENT THAT CUSTOMER MAY ACCESS OR DELIVER THROUGH
ANY SERVICES IS PROVIDED BY INDEPENDENT CONTENT PROVIDERS, OVER WHICH PROVIDER DOES
NOT EXERCISE AND DISCLAIMS ANY CONTROL PROVIDER NEITHER PREVIEWS CONTENT NOR
EXERCISES EDITORIAL CONTROL, DOES NOT ENDORSE ANY OPINIONS OR INFORMATION ACCESSED
THROUGH ANY SERVICE, AND ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR ON-LINE CONTENT PROVIDER
SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OR QUALITY OF THE
INFORMATION OBTAINED m USING THE SERVICES SUCH CONTENT OR PROGRAMS MAY INCLUDE,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, PROGRAMS OR CONTENT OF AND INFRINGING, ABUSIVE, PROFANE, OR
SEXUALLY OFFENSIVE NATURE ALL CONTENT FROM OTHER PARTIES ACCESSED VIA THE SERVICES
IS ACCESSED BY CUSTOMER AND THOSE USERS CUSTOMER HAS AUTHORIZED, ALL AT CUSTOMER'S
OWN RISK, AND PROVIDER ASSUMES NO LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY CLAIMS, LOSSES,
ACTIONS, DAMAGES, SUITS, OR PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR OTHERWISE RELATING TO SUCH
CONTENT

3 DAMAGE, LOSS. OR DESTRUCTION OF SOFTWARE FILES AND/OR DATA PROVIDER ASSUMES NO
RESPONSIBILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY DAMAGE TO OR LOSS OR DESTRUCTION OF ANY OF
CUSTOMER'S HARDWARE, SOFTWARE, FILES, DATA, OR PERIPHERALS WHICH MAY RESULT FROM
CUSTOMER'S USE OF THE SERVICES, OR FROM THE INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, OR REMOVAL OF
ANY SERVICE OR RELATED EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE PROVIDER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT ANY
DATAOR FILES SENT BY OR TO CUSTOMER WILL BE TRANSMITTED IN UNCORRUPTED FORM WITHIN
ANY PERIOD OF TIME

4 NO CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN ARTICLE IV A, ABOVE, AND EXCEPT FOR
DAMAGES RESULTING FROM GROSS NEGLIGENCE, WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, RECKLESSNESS, OR
PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH, OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY, NEITHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE TO THE
OTHER FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL. CONSEQUENTIAL, RELIANCE, OR SPECIAL DAMAGES
SUFFERED BY THE OTHER PARTY (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGE FOR HARM TO
BUSINESS, LOST REVENUES, LOST SAVINGS, OR LOST PROFITS SUFFERED BY SUCH OTHER PARTY),
REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, WARRANTY, STRICT LIABILITY, OR
TORT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, NEGLIGENCE OF ANY KIND, WHETHER ACTIVE OR PASSIVE,
AND REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THE PARTY KNEW OF THE POSSIBILITY THAT SUCH DAMAGES
COULD RESULT

5 MAXIMUM LIABILITY THE SOLE AND ENTIRE MAXIMUM LIABILITY OF PROVIDER TO CUSTOMER FOR
ANY AND ALL PROVEN LOSS, CLAIM, DAMAGE OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND (INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO CONTRACT OR TORT) WITH RESPECT TO ALL SERVICES PROVIDED BY PROVIDER AND
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ANY ACT OR OMISSION OF PROVIDER WILL CONSIST OF A DUTY TO REFUND NOT MORE THAN THE
AMOUNTS PAID BY THE CUSTOMER TO PROVIDER DURING THE YEAR PRECEDING SUCH LOSS, CLAIM,
DAMAGE OR LIABILITY IN NO EVENT WILL PROVIDER BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, EVEN IF PROVIDER HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGES

ARTICLE V

CONFIDENTIALITY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Definition of "Confidential Information". For purposes of this Agreement, "Confidential Information" means information that Is
marked or otherwise specifically identified mn writing as proprietary, confidential, or trade secret and shall include, without lmrtaton,
this Agreement

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. The d1sclosmg party will make a good-faith effort to cause Confidential
Information (1) disclosed in tangible form to be marked, and (11) disclosed verbally to be 1dent1fied verbally at the time of disclosure
or promptly thereafter, as confidential Notwithstanding the foregoing, a disclosing party's failure to so mark or identify Confidential
Information will not excuse a recerving party from the requirements of thus Agreement if the recervng party knew or should have
known that such Confidential Information was proprietary or confidential

Disclosure of Confidential Information. Each party will hold in strict confidence Confidential Information disclosed by the other
party and shall not disclose the same to any third party, except if the information () was previously known by the receiving party
free from any obligation to keep it confidential, (u) is Independently developed by the receiving party, (111) becomes publicly
available, (1v) is disclosed to the recervng party by a third party without breach of any confidentiality obligation, or (v) is required to
be disclosed by law or legal process

Protective Arrangements. If erther party Is compelled to disclose Confidential Information mn judicial or administrative
proceedings, such party will give the other party the opportunity, in advance of such disclosure, to seek protective arrangements
and will cooperate with the other party in that regard

Intellectual Property. Each party shall retain all of its intellectual property and other proprietary rights in any information and
materials disclosed to the other in the course of performance of this Agreement The foregoing notwithstanding, Customer hereby
grants Provider and its successors and assigns a non-exclusive, worldwide, royalty-free, perpetual, non-revocable license in all
content displayed on any Web site hosted by Provider on Customer's behalf to maintain such matenal and content on Provider
servers during the Term of this Agreement In the event that new information or materials are created in the course of
performance under this Agreement, subject to any pre-existing or independently developed intellectual property rights of a party,
each party will own all intellectual property rights in its contribution to the new information or materials created Each party agrees
to not translate, decompile, reverse engineer, disassemble, modify, reproduce, duplicate, remarket, or otherwise dispose of the
other party's intellectual property rights

ARTICLE VI

MISCELLANEOUS

Notices. All notices permitted or required to be gven under the terms of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been given
when delivered personally, deposited in the United States Mail, certified, postage prepaid, or delivered by e-mail, and addressed
as follows

If to Provider Heartland Business Systems

Attn Controller

1700 Stephen Street
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PO Box347

Little Chute, WI 54140-0347

If to Customer Franklin, City of

James Matelski

JMatelsk1@franklinw1 gov

B. Force Majeure. Notwithstanding any other term or cond1t1on of this Agreement, neither party will be liable to
the other party for any delay or failure of performance resulting from any cause beyond such party's reasonable control and
without such party's fault or negligence, including, without lim1tat1on, unusually severe weather cond1t1ons, earthquakes, floods,
nuclear accidents, acts of God, epidemics, war, terrorist acts, rots, insurrections, crl disturbances, government regulations, acts
of civil or military authorities or public enemy, fuel, energy, labor, or materal shortages, or an inability to procure raw mater1als or
other inputs necessary for a party's satisfaction of its obligations arising hereunder

C. Entire Agreement: Amendments. This Agreement, together with all schedules and exh1b1ts hereto,
constitutes the entire agreement between Provider and Customer with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all
prior proposals, negotiations, communications, and agreements between Provider and Customer with respect to the subject
matter hereof, whether oral or written This Agreement shall not be amended or modified, except by a subsequent written
agreement executed by duly-authorized representatives of Provider and Customer

D. Assignment. Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, except that Provider may assign all or any part of this Agreement to any
affiliate without obtaining Customer's consent For purposes of this Agreement, an "affiliate" of Provider Is any entity that (directly
or indirectly) controls, Is controlled by, or Is under common control with Provider

E. Governing Law: Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted by
and in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin Provider and Customer agree that any legal or equitable action for
claims, debts, or obl1gat1ons arising from any provIsIon of this Agreement shall be brought in the state or federal courts located in
the State of Wisconsin Provider and Customer further agree that both the state and federal courts in the State of Wisconsin shall
have personal jurisdIct1on over both parties, and venue shall be appropriate in any such court

F. Strict Performance. The failure of Provider or Customer to object to or to take affirmative action with respect
to any conduct of the other that is in violation of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of that
violation, or of any future violations of the provisions of thus Agreement

G. Relationship of Parties. This Agreement creates only an independent contractor relat1onsh1p between
Provider and Customer and does not create a joint venture, partnership, or agency, express or implied, between Provider and
Customer Neither party shall act as an agent of the other for any purpose and neither shall have the authority to bind the other
party

H. Survival. All representations, warranties, covenants, condItIons, and agreements contained herein which
either are expressed as surviving the expiration or termination of thus Agreement or, by their nature, are to be performed or
observed, mn whole or in part, after the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of thus
Agreement

I. Headings. The headings and captions contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and do not
affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement

J. Attorney Fees. In the event either party IrntIates legal action with respect to the interpretation or performance
of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs as the court may award
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K. No Third-Party Rights. Nothing contained mn this Agreement shall be construed as creating or giving rise to
any rights In any third parties, or any persons other than the parties hereto

L. Advice. No oral or written advice given by Provider, its staff or its agents shall create a warrantee except as
may be outlined in attached Service Schedule(s)

M. Conflicts. In the event that the terms of this Agreement conflict with the terms of an attached Services
Schedule, the terms of the Services Schedule shall govern

N. Licenses. Customer grants any perm1ss1ons or licenses (including but not limited to copyright licenses), as
may be required, and within Customer's power to grant, to Provider in order to provide Internet and related services to Customer,
or as may be required for Provider to operate for Customer's benefit

0. System and Service Modifications. The services and software that may be offered mn a services schedule
are subject to change and limitation Is at Provider's discretion, as Is any month to month pricing schedule or pricing schedule not
under contract Provider will notify Customer of any changes by electronic or postal mail to the agent named in this Agreement or
other Customer officer, unless the change 1s Judged by Provider to be necessary to preserve proper security or functioning of
Provider's system If Customer obJects to any change in service, unless the change Is one Provider has determined 1s necessary
for security purposes or to mamtamn proper operation of Provider's system, Customer will be entitled to cancel only the specific
service affected by said change or modification Customer's continued use of the Hosting services after the effective date of such
modified general terms and cond1t1ons, policies, or changes in services or software will constitute Customer's acceptance of such
modified terms
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REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Update on Granting Selective Waiver of Interest
and Penalties associated with Late Payment of
the May 31, 2020 Tax Levy installment to Those

Franklin Property Tax Payers Adversely
Impacted by the Public Health Emergency and
setting a final due date for the 2019 Tax Levy of

October 1, 2020

MEETING DATE
May 19, 2020

ITEM NUMBER

Background
State Statute 74.12(1)(a) requires Franklin to set Real Estate tax bill installment due dates by August
15 prior to the tax levy adoption. Franklin has set installment dates of Jan 31, March 31 and May 31
for tax bills.

The Public Health Emergency, and various Governor orders has caused many residents and property
taxpayers to lose employment creating financial hardships in meeting 2019 tax levy property tax
payment installments. The Emergency has also adversely impacted Franklin commercial properties in
a like manner.

There are 1,633 property tax accounts owing $4,336,522 that are due May 31, 2020 under the
installment method of payment. The total tax levy was $100,160,688. Interest and penalty on those
installments would be $65,047 on the entire amount should it go past due. The City would normally
keep any interest and penalty it collects, the County keeps any interest and penalty it collects for all
the time the amounts are past due.

To provide some relief to adversely impacted property taxpayers, the Wisconsin Legislature in Act
185 recently signed into law provided in Section 105: (25) that:

for property taxes payable in 2020, after making a general or case-by-case finding of hardship,
a taxation district may provide that an installment payment that is due and payable after April
1, 2020, and is received after its due date shall not accrue interest or penalties if the total
amount due and payable in 2020 is paid on or before October 1, 2020.

A taxation district may not waive interest and penalties as provided in this subsection unless
the county board of the county where the taxation district is located first adopts a resolution
authorizing such waiver and establishing criteria for determining hardship, and the taxation
district subsequently adopts a similar resolution.

The Director of Finance & Treasurer has received several requests for relief of interest and penalty
upon the 2019 tax levy installments due March 31 and May 31. Act 185 only provides for relief for
Franklin's May 31 installment on those accounts which were current on April 1, 2020.

The WI Counties Association provided an update to their members that says:

lf the county adopts the authorizing resolution on May 28", but the municipality does not adopt
the corresponding resolution until June 5, any payments not made by May 31 are considered
delinquent and the property taxpayer will be charged interest and penalty (as applicable)
retroactive to February 1, 2020.



This is the situation for Franklin taxpayers. May 28 is a Thurs, and the opportunity to pay taxes
normally end Fri May 29". Should the taxpayer need the relief, unless the Franklin Common Council
meets by Sunday May 31, after the County considers the matter on May 28", the opportunity is lost to
Franklin taxpayers.

Milwaukee County is considering legislation that will provide this relief. The Milwaukee County Board
discussed the issue and referred it to their Finance Committee for further study. The Milwaukee
County board next meets on May 28, 2020.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Such action as the Common Council shall deem appropriate.

Finance Dept - Paul



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTIONNO. 2020----

A RESOLUTION GRANTING SELECTIVE WAIVER OF INTEREST AND PENALTIES
ASSOCIATEDWITH LATE PAYMENT OF THE MAY 31, 2020 TAX LEVY

INSTALLMENT TO THOSE FRANKLIN PEROPERTYTAXPAYERS ADVERSELY
IMPACTED BYTHE PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCYAND SETTINGA FINAL DUE

DATE FOR THE 2019 TAX LEVYOF OCTOBER 1, 2020

WHEREAS, the City ofFranklin mailed the 2019 tax levy property tax bills in December,
2019 with installment dates of January 31, March 31 and May 31, 2020; and

WHEREAS, a Public Health Emergency was declared in March 2020 adversely impacting
Franklin residents with job layoffs and other loss of income causing significant stress in making
the May 31, 2020 installment; and

WHEREAS, the Public Health Emergency closed non-essential businesses and otherwise
reducing revenues to Franklin businesses adversely impacting their ability to meet the May 31,
2020 installment due date of the 2019 tax levy; and

WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Legislature in April 2020 enacted Act 185 providing for relief
of interest and penalties on tax accounts that are current with installment payments on April 1,
2020 for future installments extending the future installment to October 1, 2020; and

WHEREAS, there are 1,633 Franklin taxpayer accounts owing $4,336,522 on May 31,
2020 installments of the 2019 tax levy that are potentially eligible for relief; and

WHEREAS, ACT 185 requires that the Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors to adopt
a resolution providing for such relief enabling the City of Franklin to provide similar relief.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE ITRESOLVED, by theMayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that the Franklin Treasurer is authorized to waive interest and penalties on the May 31,
2020 property tax installment payments until October 1, 2020 to those Franklin taxpayers who
provide a written statement that they were adversely impacted by the COVID-19 Public Health
Emergency in such form and manner as the Treasurer shall deem sufficient or such other
requirements that the Milwaukee County Board shall require. .

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this _th
day ofMay, 2020.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
thisth day ofMay, 2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor



ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT
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REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize Service Agreement with Associated
Financial Group, LLC in a 2020 Consulting
Relationship for Employee and Retiree Health
Insurance Benefits Plan Design and Procuring

Insurance Services

MEETING DATE
May 19, 2020

ITEM NUMBER

G,15

Background
The City of Franklin maintains a self-funded health insurance benefit program for active and eligible
retirees. The City uses the expertise of insurance brokers to aid in evaluating health and other related
insurance risk areas, compare and recommend health and related insurance coverage options,
design a plan of insurance, obtain quotes for plan benefits processing and Stop Loss coverage, and
procure such services and Stop Loss Coverage.

These services have been provided by Diversified Services for a number of years. Diversified
Services was purchased by Associated Financial Group, LLC, doing business as Associated Benefits
and Risk Consulting "ABRC". ABRC is proposing to provide similar services for an annualized fee of
$54,500

Analysis
The City has been well served by ABRC (and its predicessors) for a number of years, realizing
reduced employer costs while maintaining competitive employee health benefits.

The agreement has been reviewed by legal services with appropriate changes incorporated.

The proposed annual is considered in the 2020 Self Insurance Fund budget.

Recommendation

Staff recommends execution of the attached Service Fee Agreement with ABRC for 2020.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion authorizing a Service Agreement with Associated Financial Group, LLC in a 2020
Consulting Relationship for Employee and Retiree Health Insurance Benefits Plan Design and
Procuring Insurance Services

Finance Dept - Paul
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SERVICE FEE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into effective January 1, 2020, by and between City OfFranklin, WI
(hereinafter "Client"), and Associated Financial Group, LLC, using the marketing name Associated
Benefits and Risk Consulting (hereinafter "ABRC").

A. ABRC is primarily engaged in the insurance brokerage business.

B. ABRC routinely helps its clients assess their insurance risks and needs, designs plans of
insurance, and obtains cost quotes based on these plans, and places insurance with insurance
carriers.

C. ABRC is typically compensated for its efforts through the commissions it receives in
brokering the sale ofinsurance to its clients.

D. ABRC has been discussing insurance risks and needs with Client.

[] Consulting Fee Relationship: Client has designated ABRC to be its official Agent of
Record, and has completed (orwill complete) any forms necessary to do so.

[] Marketing Fee Relationship: Although there is no formal business / insurance agency
relationship between them, Client has asked ABRC to evaluate its insurance risk areas,
compare and recommend insurance coverage options, design a plan of insurance (based
upon discussions between the parties), obtain quotes for said plan, and procure or attempt
to procure insurance suitable to Client's needs.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe above recitals and the mutual promises and conditions
contained in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Client's Performance: Client will provide ABRC with, and give ABRC full access to
whatever information ABRC determines is necessary to enable ABRC to perform fully and
effectively under this Agreement.

2. ABRC's Performance: ABRC will evaluate Client's insurance risk areas, compare and
recommend insurance coverage options, design a plan ofinsurance (based upon discussions
between the parties), obtain quotes for said plan, and procure or attempt to procure insurance
suitable to Client's needs.

3. Acknowledgement: Client acknowledges that ABRC's performance under this Agreement
represents a significant investment oftime, effort, and expense on the part ofABRC, and are
services forwhich ABRC is normally compensated through the commissions it receives as a
result ofentering into a business/insurance agency relationship with its clients.

4. Compensation: Client acknowledges that ABRC shall be entitled to compensation for the
efforts it makes pursuant to this agreement, according to the following terms:

Fees. For the services described herein, Client shall pay ABRC fees in an annualized
amount equal to $54,500. Unless otherwise noted, the fees set forth in the previous
sentence shall be paid by Client in equal monthly installments.

,} Associated
Benefits and Risk Consulting

Copyright© 2008-2018 Associated Financial Group, LLC Associated Benefits and Risk Consulting is a marketing name used by ABRC
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Contingency Compensation. Some carriers, vendors, or third parties may pay
contingency compensation for business that ABRC may place with them. Such
contingency compensation does not alter or increase the cost ofthe services that ABRC is
brokering or performing on behalfofClient, and thus does not increase the costs that
Client pays for the provision of such services. Therefore, in addition to any fees
described above, ABRC shall be entitled to any contingency compensation resulting from
its work on behalfofClient irrespective ofany other provisions elected under this
Agreement.

Commissions. Some carriers, vendors, or third parties may pay commissions for the
types of services provided by ABRC. Any commissions paid by such entities are often
already factored into the cost ofthe services (e.g. rates) that ABRC is brokering or
performing on behalfofClient, and thus often do not increase the costs that client pays
for the provision of such services. Therefore, in addition to any fees or contingency
compensation described above, ABRC shall be entitled to any commissions resulting
from its work on behalfofClient, unless Client and ABRC shall specifically agree to
some other arrangement in writing, or unless Client checks the following box:

~ Client does not want ABRC to receive commissions for some of the services
ABRC may provide or broker under this Agreement, regardless ofwhether
such commissions increase the cost ofthe services provided or brokered. If
for some only, please indicate the specific limitations for accepting
commissions below:

Life/AD&D LTD

Vision

Prescription Drug

5. Payment: Client shall pay ABRCs' fees according to the schedule set forth above via either
Direct Wire Transfer, Traditional Invoicing, or ACH (which is the methodpreferred by
ABRC). In the event Client chooses to be invoiced, Client shall pay any fees invoiced by
ABRC no later than 30 days after receiving an invoice from ABRC. Please identify Client's
preferred payment method:

□ ACH

[] Direct Wire Transfer

[] Traditional Invoicing

6. Agreement Term and Termination: ABRC is entering into a consultative relationship with
Client. Unless terminated by either party, this relationship is expected to be open-ended and
ongoing. As a result, at the expiration ofthis Agreement, this Agreement will automatically
renew according to the same terms (subject to a 3% increase in the Fees described in the
Compensation section above) and time period as described above, unless Client and ABRC
enter into a new or amended agreement. Either Party may terminate this Agreement (or any
automatically renewed agreement) by providing the other Party with at least 90 days written
notice of intent to terminate. However, in the event either Party commits a material breach of
this Agreement, the other Party can terminate upon 30-days' written notice.

7. Confidentiality: All information and advice exchanged between the Parties (including their
agents and employees) shall be treated as confidential, and shall not be disclosed to third
parties except: 1) as agreed upon in writing, 2) where necessary to accomplish the purposes
ofthis Agreement, or 3) as required by law. In addition, each party agrees promptly to advise

,]Associated
Benefits and Risk Consulting
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the other party in writing ofany unauthorized misappropriation, disclosure or use by any
person ofConfidential Information which may come to its attention, and to take all
reasonable steps to limit, stop or otherwise remedy such misappropriation, disclosure or use.
The confidentiality provisions contained herein shall continue and stay in effect even after the
expiration ofthis Agreement.

8. Final Agreement: This Agreement is an independent document that contains all of the
covenants and agreements between the parties, and supersedes any and all other oral or
written Agreements between Client and ABRC with respect to the matters described herein.

9. Disclaimer. While knowledge ofthe legal, tax, and financial issues related to the products,
services, and advice offered by Associated Financial Group is an important part ofour
expertise, the products, services, and advice themselves do not constitute, and should not be
construed as providing, legal, tax, or financial advice. Client acknowledges that, in providing
products, services, or advice under this Agreement, ABRC is not acting in the capacity ofa
fiduciary, and Client hereby waives any rights it may have to pursue any type of fiduciary
claim against ABRC.

Client is seeking ABRC's expertise and recommendations with respect to the products,
services, and advice offered by ABRC under this Agreement. However, ABRC cannot
control the manner in which Client may interpret or utilize the products, services, and advice
offered by ABRC under this Agreement. Therefore, Client hereby agrees that any claims it
may have against ABRC as a result ofproducts, services, or advice provided under this
Agreement will be limited to the annualized fee amount it was paying at the time the facts
underlying the alleged claim(s) occurred. The restrictions set forth in the previous sentence
do not apply to gross misconduct, intellectual property violations, or data breaches.

10. Modifications: Any modification ofthis Agreement shall be effective only if it is in writing,
signed and dated by all parties hereto.

11. Jurisdiction: This Agreement is to be construed pursuant to Laws ofthe State ofWI.
Jurisdiction and venue for any claim arising out ofthis Agreement shall be made in the State
ofWI.

By signing this Agreement, the Parties agree to the terms as set forth above. Moreover, the individual
executing this Agreement on behalfofClient hereby represents and warrants that, as ofthe Effective Date
ofthis Agreement, he/she is duly authorized to execute this Agreement on behalfofClient.

City of Franklin, WI

By: _
Consultant

Steve Olson, Mayor

Signature: _

Date: _

2]Associated

Associated Financial Group, LLC

By: Elisabeth Wright/Employee Benefits

Prmt Name/Ttle

Signature: _

[ate.

For Office Use Only:

Sales Manager

Benefits and Risk Consulting

Copyright @ 2008-2018 Associated Financial Group, LLC Associated Benefits and Risk Consulting is a marketing name used by ABRC
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REPORTS AND
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REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Potential property acquisitions for the development of
West Elm Road widening and public utilities public
improvements for the Tax Incremental District No. 4
Franklin Corporate Park: 10627 South 27th Street, Tax
Key Nos. 951-9996-002 (potential acquisition of
approximately 5,969 square feet) and 951-9999-001
(potential acquisition of approximately 5,234 square

feet); 3001 West Elm Road, Tax Key No. 978-9996-006
(potential acquisition of approximately 15,977 square
feet); and 10613 South 27th Street, Tax Key No. 951-
9996-009 (potential acquisition of approximately 24,008
square feet). The Common Council may enter closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(e), for market
competition and bargaining reasons, to deliberate and
consider terms relating to potential property acquisitions
for the development ofWest Elm Road widening and
public utilities public improvements for the Tax

Incremental District No. 4 Franklin Corporate Park:
10627 South 27th Street, Tax Key Nos. 951-9996-002

(potential acquisition of approximately 5,969 square feet)
and 951-9999-001 (potential acquisition of

approximately 5,234 square feet); 3001 West Elm Road,
Tax Key No. 978-9996-006 (potential acquisition of

approximately 15,977 square feet); and 10613 South 27th
Street, Tax Key No. 951-9996-009 (potential acquisition
of approximately 24,008 square feet); and the investing
ofpublic funds and governmental actions in relation
thereto and to effect such acquisitions, and to reenter
open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING
DATE

May 19, 2020

ITEM NUMBER

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), for market competition and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to potential property acquisitions for the development ofWest
Elm Road widening and public utilities public improvements for the Tax Incremental District No. 4 Franklin
Corporate Park: 10627 South 27th Street, Tax Key Nos. 951-9996-002 (potential acquisition of approximately
5,969 square feet) and 951-9999-001 (potential acquisition of approximately 5,234 square feet); 3001 West Elm
Road, Tax Key No. 978-9996-006 (potential acquisition of approximately 15,977 square feet); and 10613 South
27th Street, Tax Key No. 951-9996-009 (potential acquisition of approximately 24,008 square feet); and the
investing of public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto and to effect such acquisitions, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate.

Engineering Dept.: GEM; Legal Services Dept.: jw
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

she COUNCIL ACTION 5/19/20

LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS H.

See attached listing frommeeting of May 19, 2020.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
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WI SC O N S I N

414-425-7500
License Committee - REVISED** (Page 12)

Agenda
Aldermen's Room

May 19, 2020 - 4:00 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. I Annlicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations

Tve/ Time Aoolicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Operator Evans, Destanie M
2019-2020 726 Marquette Ave #2New
4:30 p.m. South Milwaukee, WI 53172

Iron Mike's
Operator Chahal, Sonny S
2019-2020 3789 W Cypress LnNew

Franklin, WI 53132
Walqreens #05884

Operator Khudarathullah, Vasim S
2019-2020 13455 W Fountain DrNew

New Berlin, WI 53155
Andv's On Ryan Road

Operator Ristic, Jasmina
2019-2020 7209 S Hillendale DrNew

Franklin, WI 53132
Walareens #15020

Operator Singh, Mahakpreet
2019-2020 7325 S 38 StNew

Franklin, WI 53132
Walgreens #05884

Operator Syed, Mariya
2019-2020 7132 S Madison CtNew

Franklin, WI 53132
Walqreens #05459

Operator Tiwana, Shubh Karman S
2019-2020 9325 S Cobblestone WayNew

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Walareens #05884

Operator Krueger, Danielle M
2019-2020 W1369 County Rd CNew

Sharon, WI 53585
Romev's Place

Operator Krueger, Danielle M
2020-2021 W1369 County Rd CRenewal

Sharon, WI 53585
Romev's Place

Operator Wyman, Katlyn
2019-2020 2250 W College Ave #1New

Milwaukee, WI 53221
Iron Mike's

Page 1 of 12



License ommittee Agenda
Alderman's Room
May 19, 2020

Aoolicant Information Approve Hold DenyTvpe/ Time
Operator Wyman, Katlyn
2020-2021 2250 W College Ave #1Renewal Milwaukee, WI 53221

Iron Mike's
Operator Anderson, Leslie
2020-2021 504 Shelbourne Ct #66New

Racme, WI 53402
On the Border

Operator Charaim, Margarita
2020-2021 421 Kelburn Rd Apt 214New Deerfield, IL 60015

On the Border
Operator Detaeje, Sierra M
2020-2021 4352 S Kinnickinnic AveNew

Cudahy, WI 53110
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator Fenelon, John Joseph
2020-2021 8000 W Sunbury CtNew

Milwaukee, WI 53219
Kwik Trip #287

Operator Manske, Thomas R
2020-2021 5459 Olympia DrNew

Greendale, WI 53129
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator Robinson, Paul J
2020-2021 4201 S Taylor AveNew

Milwaukee, WI 53207
Tuckawav Countrv Club

Operator Sellner, Ashley L
2020-2021 4945 S Heritage Dr Apt 102New

Greenfield, WI 53220
Walareens #05459

Operator Strait, Samuel K
2020-2021 6429 S 123"8 StNew

Franklin, WI 53132
Kwik Trip #857

Operator Abraham, Carsen J
2020-2021 8528 S 68% StRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walareens #15020

Operator Aguilar, Jennifer M
2020-2021 2121 W Grant UpperRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53215
Walareens #05884

Operator Albert, Sandra A
2020-2021 10520 S 112% StRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Hideaway Pub & Eatery

Operator Albrecht, Alexis A
2020-2021 5891 Tower Rd Apt 3Renewal

Greendale, WI 53129
Walqreens #15020
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License committee Agenda
Alderman's Room
May 19, 2020

Annlicant Information Approve Hold DenyTvDe/ Time
Operator Albrecht, Matthew T
2020-2021 S103 W20703 Heather LnRenewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Kwik Trio #287

Operator Anderson, Cathy J
2020-2021 8736 S Country Dr #201Renewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Tuckawav Country Club

Operator Anderson, Danielle J
2020-2021 W229 S8020 Big Bend DrRenewal

Big Bend, WI 53103
Point After Pub & Grille

Operator Arndt, Aimee M
2020-2021 2955 W Drexel Ave #408Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator Balcerzak, Amy B
2020-2021 2605 E Emily AveRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Walareens #15020

Operator Bartolone, Michael J
2020-2021 3842 S Marcy StRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53220
On the Border

Operator Beierle, Wendy J
2020-2021 9221 S 96% stRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Hodach Citao

Operator Bennett, Virginia Marie
2020-2021 Wl40 S9287 Boxhorn DrRenewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Kwik Trio #287

Operator Bhatti, Brandon S
2020-2021 S90 W12978 Boxhorn Reserve CtRenewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Midtown Gas & Liauor

Operator Bielinski, Tanya J
2020-2021 12343 W McShane RdRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Swiss Street Pub & Grill

Operator Boardman, Rick L
2020-2021 2112 $ 724 StRenewal

West Allis, WI 53219
Hodach Citao

Operator Braovac, John D
2020-2021 1335 S 124% StRenewal

Brookfield, WI 53005
Croatian Park

Operator Brys, Pamela
2020-2021 1720 W Meyer Lane # 6104Renewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Buckhorn Bar & Grill
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Lacense committee Agenda
Alderman's Room
May 19, 2020

Tve/ Time Annlicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Operator Burczyk Jr, Roger C
2020-2021 9529 Caddy LnRenewal

Caledonia, WI 53108
Kwik Tri #287

Operator Canales, William J
2020-2021 722 Mackinac AveRenewal

South Milwaukee, WI 53172
On the Border

Operator Clifford, Joel B
2020-2021 3115A S BrisbaneRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53207
On the Border

Operator Conley, Shannen K
2020-2021 S76 W17745 Janesville RdRenewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Romev's Place

Operator Counter, Peggy S
2020-2021 S98 W13259 Loomis DrRenewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Kwik Tri□ #287

Operator Cruz, Nicole M
2020-2021 4380 S Burrell StRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53207
Mulliaan's Irish Pub & Grill

Operator Deall, Rebecca L
2020-2021 3725 S 76 StRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53220
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator De George, Susan M
2020-2021 2456 S 88 StRenewal

West Allis, WI 53227
Point After Pub & Grille

Operator Ewig, Christopher A
2020-2021 6626 S 26% stRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Iron Mike's

Operator Farrell, Joshua J
2020-2021 7417 S 36% StRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Discount Cioarettes & Liauor

Operator Fenninger, Kristen N
2020-2021 9750 S 31StRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Bowery Bar & Grill

Operator Flowers, Katelynn M
2020-2021 5829 S New York AveRenewal

Cudahy, WI 53110
Discount Ciaarettes & Luauor

Operator Gagliano, Eric M
2020-2021 3723 Meadow Rose CtRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Bowerv Bar & Grill
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License ommittee Agenda
Alderman's Room
May 19, 2020

Applicant Information Approve Hold DenyTvoe/ Time
Operator Galipo, Kathleen
2020-2021 7984 S 60% StRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator Gaus, Nicole L
2020-2021 1127 N Cass St #1BRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53202
Bowery Bar & Grill

Operator Grochowski, Halina
2020-2021 1111 W Rosewood TriRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Buckhorn Bar & Grill

Operator Haese, Jeremy J
2020-2021 6818 S 118% StRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Discount Cigarettes & Liauor

Operator Hansen, Jo Ann M
2020-2021 2300 Raymond AveRenewal

Franksville, WI 53216
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator Harvey, Nicholas A
2020-2021 W6538 N Lakeshore DrRenewal

Elkhorn, WI 53121
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator Heup, Joseph W
2020-2021 7606 W Norwood LnRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Kwik Trip #287

Operator Holtz, Thomas A
2020-2021 1303 E Golden LnRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Andv's on Rvan Rd

Operator Hutts, Lisa M
2020-2021 5612 Euston StRenewal

Greendale, WI 53129
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator Jaskie, Shane R
2020-2021 7811 W Winston WayRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Iron Mike's

Operator lenders, Jennifer
2020-2021 1085 Tanglewood CtRenewal

Brookfield, WI 53005
Chili's Grill & Bar

Operator Jensen, Ellen L
2020-2021 2415 W Hilltop LaneRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Buckhorn Bar & Grill

Operator Jubeck, Adam J
2020-2021 2430 W Briar Lake Way #2BRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Bowery Bar & Grill
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License committee Agenda
Alderman's Room
May 19, 2020

Annlicant Information Approve Hold DenyType/ Time
Operator Julian, Amanda N
2020-2021 2811 W Acre AveRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walareens #15020

Operator Kais, Kevin K
2020-2021 3201 Pleasant View CircleRenewal

Caledonia, WI 53402
Walareens #05884

Operator Kaur, Paramjeet
2020-2021 185 W Rainbow Ridge Dr Apt 301Renewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Franklin Liauor Store

Operator Klinko, Dawn
2020-2021 6830 W Kathleen Ct #4Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walareens #15020

Operator Knight, Jennifer N
2020-2021 4536 W Hilltop LnRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walareens #15020

Operator Kuklinski, Kim T
2020-2021 7555 Parkview Rd #26Renewal

Greendale, WI 53129
Kwik Tri #287

Operator Marquardt, Shelly
2020-2021 26011 75% StRenewal

Salem, WI 53168
Hodach Citao

Operator Mashkina, Nadiya
2020-2021 9667 W Forest Home Ave Apt 1Renewal

Hales Corners, WI 53130
Walareens #15020

Operator Mather, Lauren J
2020-2021 12400 Mac Alister Way #103Renewal

New Berlin, WI 53151
Tuckawav Countrv Club

Operator Matranga, Grace M
2020-2021 4034 W Anthony DrRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Kwik Tri #287

Operator Miller, Janet
2020-2021 8995 Woodbridge DrRenewal

Greendale, WI 53129
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator Mlynczak, Susan
2020-2021 16513 50 RdRenewal

Franksville, WI 53126
Point After Pub & Grille

Operator Mueller-Yarnell, Diane T
2020-2021 3574 S 84% StRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53228
Pick 'n Save #6360
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License Lommittee Agencta
Alderman's Room
May 19, 2020

Applicant Information Approve Hold DenyType/ Time
Operator Murphy, Melissa
2020-2021 6157 S 424 StRenewal

Greenfield, WI 53221
Walareens #15020

Operator Olszewski, Derek J
2020-2021 7009 Ernest DrRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
On the Border

Operator Ottman, Jason J
2020-2021 9619 W 5 Mile RdRenewal

Franksville, WI 53216
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator Page, Andrew M
2020-2021 4642 W Crawford AveRenewal

Greenfield, WI 53220
Point After Pub & Grille

Operator Page, Sarah J
2020-2021 1227 Williams AveRenewal

South Milwaukee, WI 53172
Walareens #15020

Operator Paul, Kayla M
2020-2021 7850 s Ridgewood DrRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walareens #15020

Operator Pelzek, Alexandria P
2020-2021 5553 Root River DrRenewal

Greendale, WI 53129
Kwik Tri #287

Operator Pollack, Joseph M
2020-2021 10165 W Coldspring Rd Apt 106Renewal

Greenfield, WI 53228
On the Border

Operator Popp, Denise K
2020-2021 W182S7715 Valley DrRenewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Romev's Place

Operator Reikowski, Mark A
2020-2021 W125 S8317 North Cape RdRenewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Walareens #15020

Operator Rinke, Kristen
2020-2021 S97 W12719 Champions DrRenewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Hideaway Pub & Eatery

Operator Rogers, Laura J
2020-2021 6823 W Bennett AveRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53219
Kwik Trip #287

Operator Rogers, Tori M
2020-2021 4750 W Marquette AveRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Tuckaway Country Club
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License Committee Agenda
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Annlicant Information Approve Hold DenyType/ Time
Operator Schappel, Timothy D
2020-2021 2202 Landings LnRenewal

Delavan, WI 53115
On the Border

Operator Schauer, Joseph M
2020-2021 8520 W Euclid AveRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53227
Croatian Park

Operator Schultz, Kimberly A
2020-2021 4040 SKK Ave #15Renewal

St. Francis, WI 53235
Sendik's Food Market

Operator Shallow, Rebekah L
2020-2021 6125 S Martin RdRenewal

New Berlin, WI 53146
Root River Center

Operator Sibila, Candice
2020-2021 4362 S Nicholson AveRenewal

St. Francis, WI 53235
Point After Pub & Grille

Operator Smith, Hollie C
2020-2021 6873 S 35% StRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walareens #15020

Operator Steffes, Mark R
2020-2021 5344 Sutton Place SouthRenewal

Greenfield, WI 53221
Kwik Trio #287

Operator Stork, Nadine A
2020-2021 8636 W Marshfield CtRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walareens #15020

Operator Trippler, Stacie L
2020-2021 5331 N 37% StRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53209
On the Border

Operator Van Erden, Susan C
2020-2021 4899 W Maple Leaf CircleRenewal

Greenfield, WI 53220
Pick 'n Save #6360

Operator Varga, Kathleen A
2020-2021 3739 S Packard Ave #120Renewal

St. Francis, WI 53235
Walareens #15020

Operator Villwock, Mallory K
2020-2021 8026 S 47 StRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Waloreens #15020

Operator Widenski, Denise
2020-2021 7335 S Quincy AveRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Kwik Trip #287
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License Committee Agenda
Alderman's Room
May 19, 2020

Type/ Time Annlicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Operator Williams, Laken L
2020-2021 7409 S 46% StRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Kwik Trip #287

Operator Willing, Tyler D
2020-2021 2700 Sussex LnRenewal

Waukesha, WI 53188
Kwik Trip #287

Operator Wist, Veronica M
2020-2021 8322 W Forest Hill AveRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Sendik's Food Market

Operator Wolff, Pamela J
2020-2021 7515 W Drexel Ave #108Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walgreens #05884

Operator Wozney, Vanessa A
2020-2021 1204 E Connie LnRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Kwik Trip #287

Operator Zacher, Alyssa G
2020-2021 595 E Shepard Hill DrRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Bowery Bar & Grill

Operator Zubarik, Sally A
2020-2021 S88 W22560 Willow CtRenewal

Big Bend, WI 53103
Sendik's Food Market

Amusement Device Mitchell Novelty Co
Operator 3506 W National Ave2020-2021

Milwaukee, WI 53215
Ralph H Fleege, Owner

Amusement Device Reggie's Amusements, LLC
Operator 4918 S Packard Ave2020-2021

Cudahy, WI 53110
Reginald Zeniecki, Owner

Amusement Device Wisconsin P&P Amusements
Operator 12565 W Lisbon Rd2020-2021

Brookfield, WI 53005
Michael Weiael, Owner

Class A Combination Dairyland Retail Group, LLC
2020-2021 Dba 7-Eleven

7610 W Rawson Ave
Elizabeth Evans, Agent

Class A Combination Ryan Fuel LLC
2020-2021 Dba Andy's on Ryan Rd

5120 W Ryan Rd
Kavita Khullar, Agent

Class A Combination Wisconsin CVS Pharmacy LLC
2020-2021 Dba CVS Pharmacy #5390

5220 W Rawson Ave
Samantha Jo Klaphake, Agent
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Tvpe/ Time Anlicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Class A Combination Hodach Petroleum Inc

2020-2021 Dba Hodach Citgo
9830 W St Martins Rd
Stephen Hodach, Aaent

Class A Combination Kwik Trip, Inc
2020-2021 Dba Kwik Trip #287

5040 W Rawson Ave
Jill A Le Claire. Aaent

Class A Combination Kwik Trip Inc
2020-2021 Dba Kwik Trip #857

10750 W Speedway Dr
Andrew P Wichmann, Aaent

Class A Combination Sam's East, Inc
2020-2021 Dba Sam's Club

6705 S 27 St
Henry Monti, Aaent

Class A Combination Sendik's Franklin LLC
2020-2021 Dba Sendik's Food Markets

5200 W Rawson Ave
Theodore Balistreri. Aaent

Class A Combination Target Corporation
2020-2021 Dba Target Store T2388

7800 S Lovers Lane Rd
Daniel Olsen, Agent

Class A Combination Wal-Mart Stores East, LP
2020-2021 Dba Walmart

6701 S 27% St
Veronica Wriaht, Agent

Class A Combination Walgreen Co.
2020-2021 Dba Walgreens #15020

7130 S 76St
Jessica Nerby, Agent

Class A Combination Walgreen Co.
2020-2021 Dba Walgreens #05884

9527 S 27 St
Brian Hilber, Agent

Class A Combination Walgreen Co.
2020-2021 Dba Walgreens #5459

9909 W Loomis Rd
Danielle Peters, Aaent

Class B Combination The Bowery, LLC
2020-2021 Dba The Bowery Bar & Grill

3023 W Ryan Rd
Roaer Hein, Agent

Class B Combination RLGIDI, Inc.
2020-2021 Dba Casa Di Giorgio

3137 W Rawson Ave
Rex Idrizy Aaent

Class B Combination Brinker Restaurant Corp.
2020-2021 Dba Chili's Bar & Grill

6439 $ 27 St
Justin Pischke Aaent
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License ommittee Agenda
Alderman's Room
May 19, 2020

Type/ Time Aoolicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Class B Combination, Country Lanes LLC
Entertainment & Dba Country LanesAmusement, Bowling 11231 W Forest Home Ave2020-2021

Robert Sczerzen, Aaent
Reserve Class B FF&E, LLC
Combination Dba Hampton Inn & Suites Milwaukee/Franklin2020-2021 6901 S 76 st

Teresa D'Amato, Aaent
Class B Combination, Franklin Food & Beverage, LLC
Entertainment & DBA The Hideaway Pub & EateryAmusement 9643 S 76h st2020-2021

Frank J Orcholski Agent
Reserve Class B Hudson Burger LLC
Combination Dba Milwaukee Burger Company2020-2021 6421 S 27% St

Dallas Fitzaerald Aaent
Class B Combination, HB&H, LLC
Entertainment & Dba On The BorderAmusement 10741 S 27% St2020-2021

Gerald Hay, Agent
Class B Combination Romey's Place LLC

2020-2021 Dba Romey's Place
7508 S North cape Rd
Nathan Fabry Agent

Class B Combination, Kriton & Ermira LLC
Entertainment & Dba Toscana RestaurantAmusement 8405 S 27 St2020-2021

Ermira Lazai, Owner/Aaent
Class B Combination St Martins Inn, LLC

2020-2021 Dba Wegner's St Martins Inn
11318 W St Martins Rd
Dennis Wegner, Aaent

Class B Beer Dhiman LLC
Class CWine Dba India Palace2020-2021 7107 S 76% St

Deepak Dhiman, Agent
Class B Beer M-Squared Inc
2020-2021 Dba Crossroads II Pizza & Subs

11357 W St Martins Rd
Michael Falk, Agent

Day Care Discovery Days Childcare III, Inc.
2020-2021 DBA Discovery Days Childcare

9758 S Airways Ct
Tina Kraussel, Manager

Day Care KinderCare Education LLC
2020-2021 KinderCare

6350 S 108 St
Theresa Castronovo, Manager

Entertainment & Milwaukee County Parks
Amusement Milwaukee County Sports Complex2020-2021

6000 W Ryan Rd
Andrea Wallace, Aqent
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License committee Agenda
Alderman's Room
May 19, 2020

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Entertainment & Milwaukee County Parks
Amusement Oakwood Park Golf Course2020-2021

3600 W Oakwood Rd
Andrea Wallace, Agent

Entertainment & Milwaukee County Parks
Amusement Whitnall Park Golf Course2020-2021 6751 S 924 St

Andrea Wallace, Aagent
**REVISED The Rock Sports Complex

Extraordinary 7005 S Ballpark DrEntertainment & Special
Eventto Hold a Drive-In Thomas Johns, Agent

Theater To begin 05/22/2020. Monday - Friday at 6:00 PM 8 8:45
PM; Saturdays at 5:00 PM, 7:45 PM 8 10:30 PM; Sundays
at 3:00 PM, 6:00 PM and 8:45 PM.

**REVISED The Rock Sports Complex
Class B Combination 7005 S Ballpark DrPremise Description

Change Thomas Johns, Agent
Request to amend the premise description to include the
Stadium north parking lot.

**REVISED The Rock Sports Complex (Milky Way Drive-In)
Drive-In Theater License 7005 S Ballpark Dr Milwaukee Milkman North Parking lot2019-2020

New Thomas Johns, Agent

**REVISED The Rock Sports Complex (Milky Way Drive-In)
Drive-In Theater License 7005 S Ballpark Dr Milwaukee Milkman North Parking lot2020-2021

Renewal Thomas Johns, Agent

3. Adjournment

Time

Notice s given that a majority of the Common Council may attend thus meeting to gather mnformat1on about an agenda Item over which they have
decision-makmng responsibility Thus may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Council wll not take formal act1on at thus meeting
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9229 W Loomis Rd, Franklin, WI 53132-9630
Telephone: 414-425-7500

City derk's Office
Fax: 414-425-6428

EXTRAORDINARY ENTERTAINMENT & SPECIAL EVENT
APPLICATION

Application must be remived a minimum of 30 working days prior to event.
Event Location (address and full description) 7o~~ S', €-<,((...,.Le_ br.

.A(i tat G31,

Setup date(s)/time(s) S-<.,{-t,,1.( /.b:,,. e -z._. W'S,. rr; ..u- -1-o ,; '-\. • °
Breakdown date(s)/time{s) C,_...1,,;--:f.owv,. t___,0 0-" hr '2- cs <of
Maximum number antennart°# Ce-sen-·t-)
Maximum number of tickets to be sold (if any) per day_'Z--P__0 _

Appllcant ls«k< ell ca-.,-c

Dates) and Time(s /'ea tr Fi sleus ee t 6:'(Se; l-es @
52,7'6g, e:3° 5+ -se 3,-, €:6z

Owner of property Cfc. c::.:,...,_...,.~ ~-,, f<.. ! LLL_
Purpose of Event bv-a MD-./,:,,_ -ft,u.....(-. <et> < <'ck<«Gr -« •(cw+H= .

Address (including City/State/Zip) ,o'1'1 S:
Home phone ('1< '1 ) {jo'8, -- C. "3 C 0

E-mail cjc-var5­
Fax A

(If corporation, attach certified copy ofArticles of Incorporation togetherwith the name, age,
residence and mailing address of each person holding more than 10% of the stock.)

&-(pg<bc. Cl 3»a F,I s3(

cent ()31­
Business phone ( es -> 1 0

1. Provide plans to limit the maximum number of people permitted to assemble.

2. Provide plans for fencing the location of the special event and the gates contained in such fence. A
detailed drawing must be submitted as part of this application.

3. Provide plans for supplying potable water, including the source, amount available and location of outlets.

4. Provide plans for providing toilet and lavatory facilities, including the source, number, location, type and
means of disposing of waste.

5. Provide plans for holding, collecting & disposal of solid waste material.



6. Provide plans, if any, to illuminate the location, induding sources and amounts of power and location of
lamps.

7. Provide plans and description for parking vehides, including size and location of lots, highway
ingress/egress, parking lots and shuttle services.

8. Provide plans for telephone services, including source, number and location.

9. Provide plans for security, induding number of guards, deployment, names, addresses, credentials and
hours of availability.

10. Provide plans for fire protection, incduding number, type and locations of all protective devices, including
alarms & extinguishers, number of emergency fire personnel available.

11. Provide plans for sound contro l and amplification, including numbers, locations and power of amplifiers &
speakers.

12. Provide plans for food and -beverage mncessions and mncessionaires, induding names, addresses and
license or permit numbers.

13. Provide plans and specifi c descriptions for each of any other type of vendor or provider of amusements
or entertainments, incduding names, addresses and license or permit numbers.

14. Provide Certificate of Insurance no later than 10 days prior to the event.
15. D $100.00 nonrefundable license & administration fee payable with application.

D bond D letter of credit [] cash deposit
(due no later than 10 days prior to the event, based upon anticipated cost of services)

Police services------
------ Fire services
Registered Sanitarian (non-staff) services, if needed
Total estimated costs

Applicant agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City of Franklin from and against any and all liabilities,
claims, demands, judgments, losses and/or all suits at law or in equity, costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorney fees, for injury or death of any person or loss or damage to the property of any person,
firm, organization or corporation, arising in any way as a consequence of the granting of a license for this
special event. Applicant affinns that the statements contained in this application are true and correct to the
best knowledge of Applicant.

Date__o_s-_/_,e:,----1f---z...::,__'2-o _

RECEIVED REPORTED TO COUNCILLICENSE#SERVICE FEE TO BE INVOICED

P:\SHARED\LICENSES\APPLICATIONS\APP EXTRAORDINARY ENTERTAINMENT& SPECIAL EVENT 2019



Sandi Wesolowski

Subject:
Attachments:

FW applications
Dnve-ln Theater Renewal pdf; Drve-In Theater Permit pdf; Drve-In Event Permit.pdf;
Liquor License Amendment Map[3] pdf

From: Tom Johns <tomy@rocventures.org>
Sent: Monday, May 18, 2020 4:44 PM
To: Sandi Wesolowski <SWesolowski@franklinwi.gov>
Subject: Re: applications

Sandi

Completed applications attached; I will follow up with some of the additional info later.

In addition, we would like to request we amend our liquor license premise description to allow the sale of alcohol mn the
stadium north parking lot. Attached is a map that highlights the area.

Thank you in advance for your attention to this.

Best,

TJ

1
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rFranklin

9229 W Loomis Rd, Franklin, w1 53132-9630 W I S C O N S I N
Telephone: 414-425-7500

City Clerk's Office

Fax: 414-425-6428

~EW □ RENEWAL
DRIVE-IN THEATER
License Application

July 1, 20/'f-June 30, 2020

Date:.__0_7_/_, 6_/~__-z....-o _$250.00 plus $1.50 per stall
Number of stalls: '2-cc:>

General Description of Entertainment or Amusement: br,✓,{_ - «st-(tu-l-. M --i s ' ::._

sd( ••42K • cad
location of function: J1,1w.o...u.k.-<..-<.. i« «- p-·•
Trade Name: ,',(i//4.1 tJ"t.1 hr,v-<.. - ,:,,.
Mai1ingAddress: -Jo'11 •3-(arc- s.( so ..,l/ 1o I S"J /"'1-"L

Telephone: (11) 708-3te Telephone: («) 3(7- ((

Fee:

Individual Partnership --~

If Corporation, list names, addresses and titles of Officers:

Name

l(el.(Z-­ Address

7z. 1d c.
.la « 3(3z

Tttle

Person Responsible: la«s -Jes
Address: f,,,J/ -u,.:;z_ iU2(5 ,(coo .f. l-<....

Date of sru. eels/a<o

l,J( '57 !'8'

Drivers License Number: ...J S"-i-o - 8367.- 8--... I ( - Oi. State: L-..> I-----------
Any arrests for or convictions of any Federal, State of Local offense(s}? Yes ~

List of offenses, dates & places of conviction(s),__N_4- _



•••....Franklin
9229 W Loomis Rd, Franklin,WI 53132-9630 WISCONSIN City Clerk's Office
Telephone 414-425-7500 Fax 414-425-6428

0 NEW~ENEWAL
DRIVE-IN THEATER
License Application

July 1, 2020-June30, 2021

Fee: $250.00 plus $1.50 per stall Date: oS-Lie. [~'"1.--to
Number of stalls: -""2--,oo

b.,..,-..,.-<- -,·.,, .
-1(,......~. i(-s ­General Description of Entertainment or Amusement: Aov',..._

b k {l-+­ ' -k -cs«e ~.. .,,,I.~~r, or'

Location of function: ,{{; l ..,.._,_~-« ,1/{ l /k..,,,,,i ,< ,J -1.or--ft. ear l D t- ~-LC-(~ rl -«cakt

cl-, -z 1.\i---, il....c ,....;..,..
::>

Trade Name:

Mailing Address: 7e{ c:;. & J.<.ec.rt-. Jjr • I .i(­ 30o Fr,a,"1 lc... f,·..., (,A I 313z
}• .

Telephone:(t.{1'1) i 06 - b"?.c 0 Telephone: (r,"131 -'-(--./ 1
/

Individual Partnership ~ration

If Corporation, list names, addresses and titles of Officers:

Name Address Title

a2(2_era 7-z..'(( S. /§ 7·1.._.,-1.f Sk.( 0..-...vt.--u {_C.~D

<Fr---tk f,'"'1. L,v( <;;'"il/"'J""L.

Person Responsible: le+s -e-, C
Address: w·z.:2..,_ A.) -z_( ~$" b, (.L--t<AN>O~ L.,., • I Jal-cc s« l-..Jt 51 /-G,'

Date of Birth: os [sr (@7a Place of Birth: ta«la- WI
l

Drivers License Number: r--l ':i"--z...o - B'!> 0r - %31 - o State: w,
Any arrests for or convictions of any Federal, State of Local offense(s)? Yes <No>
List of offenses, dates & places of conviction(s) tl14

<a D S-( ~ (-z.-c '<-0Signature: ­ -- Date:,,.,...
/

(__
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APPROVAL

sh /
V

Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
5/19/2020

ITEM NUMBER

7.

Attached are vouchers dated May 2, 2020 through May 14, 2020 Nos. 178304 through Nos. 178464 in
the amount of$ 2,600,709.06. (Including a $1,500,000.00 investment). Also included in this listing are
EFT's Nos. 4300 through Nos. 4309, Library vouchers totaling $5,168.16, Tourism vouchers totaling
$ 1,000.00, Water Utility vouchers totaling $ 11,675.67 and Property Tax refunds totaling $6,175.59.

Early release disbursements dated May 2, 2020 through May 13, 2020 in the amount of $ 1,798,408.1 O
are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing. These
payments have been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920.

The net payroll dated May 8, 2020 is$ 390,059.69 previously estimated at$ 405,000.00. Payroll
deductions dated May 8, 2020 are$ 227,468.15 previously estimated at$ 238,000.00.

The estimated payroll for May 22, 2020 is$ 385,000.00 with estimated deductions and matching
payments of$ 438,000.00.

Attached is a list of property tax disbursements Nos. 17910 through Nos. 17913 dated May 1, 2020
through May 14, 2020 in the amount of$ 528.33. Voided checks in the amount of$ (266.49) are
separately listed.

Approval to release the below vouchers once they have been approved for payment.

Adaptor Inc
Fisco Auto Body
Geographical Marketing
Neenah Foundry
R & R Insurance
R & R Insurance

2020 Road Improvements
Repainting of Fire #E113
Apr'20 GIS Services
2020 Road Improvements
Jun'20 Workers Comp
Jun'20 LWMMI Policy

$7,140.00
$11,982.00
$11,719.57
$7,411.00
$33,146.00
$ 22. 146.00

TOTAL $93,544.57

The Library Board has not approved May 2020 vouchers for payment as of this writing. Approval of
Library vouchers will be considered at the May 18, 2020 meeting. Upon their approval, request is made
to authorize the release of these payments not to exceed $15,000.00.



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of May 14, 2020 in the amount of$ 2,600,709.60 and

• Payroll dated May 8, 2020 in the amount of $ 390,059 69 and payments of the various
payroll deductions in the amount of $ 227,468.15 plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated May 22, 2020 in the amount of $ 385,000.00 and payments of the various
payroll deductions in the amount of $ 438,000.00, plus City matching payments and

• Property tax disbursements with an ending date of May 14, 2020 in the amount of$ 528.33 and

• Approval to release payments to miscellaneous vendors in the amount of $ 98,544.57 and

• Approval to release Library vouchers upon approval by the Library Board not to exceed 15,000.00

ROLL CALLVOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept -- KM
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